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Dominion Resources, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Net income including noncontrolling interests $1,923 $1,326 $1,720 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes: 

Net deferred gains (losses) on derivatives-hedging activities, net of $(74), $(20) and $161 tax 
Changes in unrealized net gains on investment securities, net of $23, $(59) and ${136) tax 
Changes in net unrecognized pension and other postretirement benefit costs, net of $29, $189 and $(341) tax 
Amounts reclassified to net income: 

Net derivative (gains) losses-hedging activities, net of $68, $(59) and $(53) tax 
Net realized gains on investment securities, net of $29, $33 and $35 tax 
Net pension and other postretirement benefit costs, net of $(35), $(24) and $(39) tax 

Changes in other comprehensive loss from equity method investees, net of $1, $3 and $—tax 

110 
6 

(66) 

(108) 
(50) 
51 
(1) 

17 
128 

(305) 

93 
(54) 
33 
(4) 

(243) 
203 
516 

77 
(55) 
55 
_-

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 

Comprehensive income including noncontrolling inte'rests 
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 

Comprehensive income attributable to Dominion 

(58) 

1,865 
24 

$1,841 

(92) 

1,234 
16 

$1,218 

553 

2,273 
23 

$2,250 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Dominion's Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Dominion Resources, Inc. 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

AtDecemberSl, 2015 2014 

(millions) 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Casti and cash equivalents 
Customer receivables (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $32 and $34) 
Other receivables (less allovi/ance for doubtful accounts of $2 and $3) 
Inventories: 

Materials and supplies 
Fossil fuel 
Gas stored 

Derivative assets 
Margin deposit assets 
Prepayments 
Deferred income taxes 
Regulatory, assets , . 
Other 

607 
1,200 

169 

902 
381 

65 
255 

16 
198 
— 

351 
47 

i 318 
1,514 

119 

923 
413 

74 
. 536 

287 
167 
800 
347 
117 

Total current assets 

Investments 
Nuclear decommissioning trust funds 
Investment in equity method affiliates 
Other 

Total investments 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment 
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization 

Total property, plant and equipment, net 

4,191 

4,183 
1,320 

271 

5,774 

57,776 
(16,222) 

41,554 

5,615 

4,196 
1,081 

284 

5,561 

51,406 
(15,136) 

36,270 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 
Goodwill 
Pension and other postretirement benefit assets 
Intangible assets, net 
Regulatory assets 
Other 

3,294 
943 
570 

1,865 
606 

3,044 
956 
570 

1,642 
669 

Total deferred charges and other assets 7,278 6,881 

Total assets $ 58,797 $ 54,327 
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AtDecemberSl, ^ 2015 2014 

{millions) 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Current Liabilities 
Securitiesdue within one year $ 1,826 $ 1,375 
ShorMerm debt 3,509 2,775 
Accounts payable 726 952 
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 515 566 
Derivative liabilities 312 591 

OtherU) 1,232 939 

Total current liabilities [ 8,120 7,198 

Long-Term Debt 
Long-term debt 20,172 18,348 
Junior subordinated notes 1.358 1,374 
Remarketable subordinated notes \ 2,086 2,083 

Jotai long-term debt 23,616 21,805 
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 

Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 7,414 7,444 
Asset retirement obligations 1,887 1,633 
Pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities 1.199 1,296 
Regulatory liabilities 2,285 1,991 
Other 674 1,003 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities [ 13,459 13,367 

Total liabilities 45,195 42,370 

Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 22) 

Equity 

Common stock-no par(2i 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total common shareholders' equity 12,664 11,555 

Noncontrolling interests ?38 402 

Total equity 13,602 11,957 

Total liabilities and equity $ 58,797 $ 54,327 

(1) See Note 3 for amounts attributable to related parties. 
(2) 1 billion shares authorized; 596 million shares and 585 million shares outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Dominion's Consolidated Financial Statements. 

6,680 
6,458 
(474) 

5,876 
6,095 
(416) 
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Dominion Resources, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Equity 

Common Stock Dominion Shareholders 

Accumulated 
Other Total Common 

[millions) 

December 31, 2012 

Shares 

576 

Amount 

$5,655 

Retained 
Earnings 

$5,790 

Comprehensive 
Income (Loss) 

$(877) 

Shareholders' 
Equity 

$10,568 

Moncontrolling 
Interests 

$ 57 

Total 
. Equity 

$10,625 

Net income including noncontrolling interests 
Issuance of stock-employee and direct stock 

purchase plans 
Stock awards (net of change in unearned 

compensation) 
Other stock issuancesii' 
Present value of stock purchase contract 

payments related to RSNs'2) 
Fairless lease buyout 
Dividends 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 

1,714 

278 

12 
7 

(154) 
(15) 

(2) 

(1,319)13) 
553 

1,714 

278 

12 
7 

(156) 
(15) 

(1,319) 
553 

(57) 
(6) 

1,720 

278 

12 
7 

(156) 
(72) 

(1,325) 
553 

December 31, 2013 581 5,783 6,183 (324) 11,642 11,642 
Net income including noncontrolling interests 
Issuance of Dominion Midstream common units, 

net of offering costs 
Issuance of stock-employee and direct stock 

purchase plans 
Stock awards (net of change in unearned 

compensation) 
Other stock issuances''" 
Present value of stock purchase contract 

payments related to RSNs'̂ * 
Dividends 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax 

1,323 

205 

14 
14 

(143) 
(1,41 l)i3) 

(92) 

1,323 

205 

14 
14 

(143) 
(1,411) 

(92) 

Net income including noncontrolling interests 
Dominion Midstream's acquisition of interest in 

li'oquois 
Acquisition of Four Brothers and Three Cedars 
Contributions from SunEdison to Four Brothers 

and Three Cedars 
Sale of interest in merchant solar projects 
Purchase of Dominion Midstream common units 
Issuance of common stock 
Stock awards (net of change in unearned 

compensation) 
Dividends 
Dominion Midstream distributions 
Other comprehensive loss, net of lax 
Other 

1,899 1,899 

11 

26 
(6) 

786 

13 

(15) 

(1,536) 

(58) 

3 

392 

24 

1,326 

392 

205 

14 
14 

(143) 
(1,411) 

(92) 
Other 
December 31, 2014 585 

3 
5,876 6,095 (416) 

3 
11,555 

7 
402 

10 
11,957 

1,923 

— 
— • 

26 
(6) 

786 

13 
(1,536) 

— 
(58) 
(15) 

216: 
47 

103 
179 
(19) 

(16) 

2 

216 
47 

103 
205 
(25) 
786 

13 
(1,536) 

(16) 
(58) 
(13) 

December 31, 2015 596 $8,680 $6,458 $(474) $12,664 $938 $13,602 

(1) Primarily includes $28 million in shares issued in excess of principal amounts relatedto converted securities, net of reclassification from other paid-in capital 
See Note 17for fiirther information on convertible securities. 

(2) See Note 17for further information. 
(3) hicludes subsidiary preferred dividends relatedto noncontrolling interests of$13 million and $17 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
(4) Contains shares issued in excess of principal amounts relatedto converted securities. See Note 17 for further information on convertible securities. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Dominion's Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Dominion Resources, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Operating Activities 
Net income including noncontrolling interests $ 1,923 $ 1,326 $ 1,720 
Adjustments to reconcile net income including noncontrolling interests to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation, depletion and amortization (including nuclearfuel) 1,669 1,560 1,390 
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 854 449 737 
Gains on the sale of assets and businesses (123) (220) (122) 
Charges associated with North Anns and offshore wind legislation — 374 — 
Charges associated with Liability Management Exercise — 284 — 
Charges associated with future ash pond and landfill closure costs 99 121 — 
Other adjustments (42) (113) (86) 
Changes in: 

Accounts receivable 294 131 (98) 
Inventories (26) (43) (29) 
Deferred fuel and purchased gas costs, net 94 (180) 102 
Prepayments (25) 24 123 
Accounts payable (199) (202) 50 
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes (52) (41) (27) 
Margin deposit assets and liabilities 237 361 (414) 
Other operating assets and liabilities (228) (392) 87 

Net cash provided by operating activities 4,475 3,439 3,433 

Investing Activities 
Plant construction and other property additions (including nuclear fuel) (5,575) (5,345) (4,065) 
Acquisition of solar development projects (418) (205) (39) 
Acquisition of DCG (497) — — 
Proceeds from sales of securities 1,340 1,235 1,476 
Purchases of securities (1,326) (1,241) (1,493) 
Proceeds from the sale of Brayton Point, Kincaid and equity method investment in Elwood — — 465 
Proceeds from the sale of electric retail energy marketing business — 187 — 
Proceeds from Blue Racer — 85 160 
Proceeds from assignments of shale development rights 79 60 18 
Other (106) 44 20 

Net cash used in investing activities (6,503) (5,181) (3,458) 

Financing Activities 
Issuance (repayment) of short-term debt, net 734 848 (485) 
Issuance of short-term notes 600 400 400 
Repayment of short-term notes (400) (400) (400) 
Issuance and remarketing of long-term debt 2,962 6,085 4,135 
Repayment and repurchase of long-term debt, including redemption premiums (892) (3,993) (1,245) 
Repayment of junior subordinated notes — — (258) 
Acquisition of Juniper noncontrolling interest in Fairless — — (923) 
Net proceeds from issuance of Dominion Midstream common units — 392 — 
Contributions from SunEdison to Four Brothers and Three Cedars 103 — — 
Proceeds from sale of interest in merchant solar projects 184 — — 
Subsidiary preferred stock redemption — (259) — 
Issuance of common stock 786 205 278 
Common dividend payments (1,536) (1,398) (1,302) 
Subsidiary preferred dividend payments — ( I I ) (17) 
Other (224) (125) (90) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

2,317 

289 
318 

$ 607 

1,744 

2 
316 

$ 318 

93 

68 
248 

$ 316 

Supplemental Cash Flow Intormation 
Cash paid during the year for: 

Interest and related charges, excluding capitalized amounts $ 843 $ 889 $ 852 
Income (axes 75 72 56 

Significant noncash investing activities:"' 
Accrued capital expenditures 478 315 375 
Dominion Midstream's acquisition of a noncontrolling partnership interest in Iroquois in exchange for issuance of 

Dominion Midstream common units 216 - - ^ 

'''•' See Note 3 for noncash activities related to the acquisition of Four Brothers and Three Cedars. 

Tht accompanying notes are an inte^alpart of Dominion's Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of 

Virginia Electric and Power Company 
Richmond, Virginia 

W e have audited the accompanying consohdated balance sheets of Virginia Electric and Power Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of . 

Dominion Resources, Inc.) and subsidiaries ("Virginia Power") as of December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated state­
ments of income, comprehensive income, common shateholder's equity, and cash flows for each ofthe three years in the period ended 

December 31 , 2015. These fmancial statements are the responsibility of Virginia Power's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements 

are free of material misstatement. Virginia Power is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control 
over fmancial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit proce­

dures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Vitginia Power's 
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evi­

dence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. W e believe that our audits provide a reasonable 

basis for our opinion. .. 

In our opinion, sitch consolidated fmancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Virginia Electric 

and Power Company and subsidiaries as of December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each 

ofthe three years in the period ended December 3 1 , 2015, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America. 

/s/Deloit te & Touche LLP 

Richmond, Virginia 

February 26, 2016 

67 



Virginia Electric and Power Company 
Consolidated Statements of Income 

Year Erided December 31, 2015 2014 . 2013 

(millions) 

Operating Revenue<^i $7,622 $7,579 $7,295 
Operating Expenses 

Electric fuel and other energy-reiated purchasesf '̂ 2,320 • 2,406 2,304 
Purchased electric capacity 330 360 358 
Other operations and maintenance: 

Affiliated suppliers 279 . 286 290 
Other „. 1,355 1,630 1,161 

Depreciation and amortization , 953 915 . 853 
Other taxes , . 264 . 258 . 249 

Total operating expenses 

Income from operations^ . • • . • 

Other income 
Interest and related charges 
Income from operations before income tax expense 
Income tax expense 

Het Income 
Preferred dividends'^' 

Balance available for common stock 

, . 5,501 
2,121 

68 
443 

1,746 
659 

1,087 

$1,087 

5,855. 

1,724 

93' 
411 

1,406 
548 

858 
13 

$ 845, 

5,215 

2,080 

86 
369 

1,797 
659 

1,138 
17 

$L121 

(1) See Note 24 for amounts attributable to affiliates. 
(2) Includes $2 million associated with the write-off^of issuance expenses related to the redemption of Virginia Power's preferred sto,ck in 2014. See Note 18 for 

additional information. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Virginia Power's Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Virginia Electric and Power Company-
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Net income $1,087 $858 $1,138 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes: , , 

Net deferred gains (losses) on derivatives-hedging activities, net of $2, $2 and $(3) tax (1) (4) 6 
Changes in unrealized net gains (losses) on nuclear decommissioning trust funds, net of $1, $(9) and, 

$(13)tax' (4) , 15 . -20 
Amounts reclassified to net income: 

Net derivative (gains) losses-hedging activities, net of $—, $2 and $— tax 
Net realized gains or] nuclear decommissioning trust funds, net of $4, $4 and $2 tax 

Other comprehensive income (loss) 

Comprehensive income 

1 
(6) 

(10) 

$1,077 

(3) 
(6) 

. 2 

$860 

(3; 
23 

$1,161 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Virginia Power's Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Virginia Electric and Power Company 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

AtDecemberSl, :_^ 2015 2014 

(millions) 

A S S E T S • 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 3 
Customer receivables (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $27 and $25) 
Other receivables (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1 in both periods) 
Affiliated receivables 
Inventories (average cost method): 

Materials arid supplies 
Fossil fuel 

Prepayments'" 
f^egulatory assets 
Deferred income taxes 
Other̂ is 

18 3 
822 
109 
296 

502 
371 

38 
326 

— 
22 

15 
986 

64 
1 

455 
398 
252 
298 

6 
76 

Total current assets 

Investments 
Nuclear decommissioning trust funds 
Other 

Total investments 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Total property, plant and equipment, net 

2,504 

1,945 
3 

1,948 

37,639 
(11,708) 

25,931 

2,551 

1,930 
4 

1,934 

35,180 
(11,080) 

24,100 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 
Intangible assets, net 
Regulatory assets 
Other'i' 

213 
667 
359 

205 
439 
280 

Total deferred charges and other assets 1,239 924 

Total assets $31.622 $29,509 

(I) See Note 24 for amounts attributable to affiliates. 
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AtDecemberSl, 2015 2014 

(millions) 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 
Current Liabilities 

Securities due within one year 
Short-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Payables to affiliates 
Affiliated current borrowings 
Accrued interest, payroll and taxeŝ Ĵ  
Derivative liabilities'^' 
Customer deposits 
Asset retirement obligations 
Regulatory liabilities 
Other 

Total current liabilities 3,730 3,276 

Long-Term Debt . ^ 8,949 8,726 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabiltties 
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 
Asset retirement obligations 
Regulatory liabilities 
Pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities'^' 
Other'ii 

Common Shareholder's Equity 
Common stock-no par'2' 
Other paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 

(1) See Note 24 for amounts attributable to affiliates. 
(2) 500,000 shares authorized; 274,723 shares outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 2014. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Virginia Poiaer's Consolidated Financial Statements. 

476 
1,656 

365 
73 

376 
190 
80 

119 
143 
35 

216 

$ 211 
1,361 

458 
92 

427 
299 
60 

107 
7 

90 
264 

4,654 
1,104 
1,929 

316 
299 

4,415 
848 

1,683 
219 
287 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

8,302 

20,981 

7,452 

19,454 

Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 22) 

5,738 
1,113 
3,750 

40 

5,738 
1,113 
3,154 

50 
Total common shareholder's equity 10,641 10,055 

Total liabilities and shareholder's equity $31,622 $29,509 
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Virginia Electric and Power Company 
Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholder's Equity 

(millions, except for shares) 

Balance at December 31, 2012 

Net income 
Dividends 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 

Balance at December 31, 2013 

Net income 
Dividends 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 
Balance at December 31, 2014 

Net income 
Dividends 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax . 

Balance al December 31, 2015 

Common Stock 

Shares , . Amount 

(thousands) 

275 

275 

275 

275 

$5,738 

5,738 

5,738 

$5,738 

Otlier 
Paid-in 
Capital 

$1,113 

1,113 

1,113 

$1,113 

Retained 
Earnings 

$2,357 

1,138 
(596) 

2,899 

858 
(603) 

3,154 

1,087 
(491) 

$3,750 

Accumulated 
other 

Comprehensive 
income (Loss) 

$25 

23 

48 

2 

50 

(10) 

$40 

Total 

$ 9,233 

1,138 
(596) 

23 

9,798 

858 
(603) 

2 

10,055 

1,087 
(491) 
(10) 

$10,641 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Virginia Power's Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Virginia Electric and Power Company 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December SI , 2015 2014 2013 

{millions) 

Operating Activities 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization (including nuclearfuel) 
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits, net 
Charges associated with North Anna and offshore wind legislation 
Charges associated with future ash pond and landfill closure costs 
Other adjustments 
Changes in: 

Accounts receivable 
Affiliated accounts receivable and payable 
Inventories 
Prepayments 
Deferred fuel expenses, net 
Accounts payable 
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 
Other operating assets and liabilities 

$ 1,087 $ 858 $ 1,138 

1,121 
251 

99 
(27) 

128 
(314) 
(20) 
214 
64 
(75) 
(9) 
36 

1,090 
396 
374 
121 
(35) 

(27) 
23 
(45) 
(220) 
(191) 

5 
(19) 
(82) 

1,016 
240 

(68) 

(124) 
3 

(19) 
(9) 
93 
15 
14 
30 

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,555 2,248 2,329 

Investing Activities 
Plant construction and other property additions 
Purchases of nuclear fuel 
Acquisition of solar development project 
Purchases of securities 
Proceeds from sales of securities 
Other 

(2,474) 
(172) 
(43) 

(651) 
639 
(87) 

(2,911) 
(196) 

(574) 
549 

(2) 

(2,394) 
(139) 

(603) 
572 
(37) 

Net cash used in investing activities (2,788) (3,134) (2,601) 

Financing Activities 
Issuance (repayment) of short-term debt, net 
Issuance (repayment) of affiliated current borrowings, net 
Issuance and remarketing of long-term debt 
Repayment of long-term debt 
Preferred stock redemption 
Common dividend payments to parent 
Preferred dividend payments 
Other 

295 
(51) 

1,112 
(625) 

(491) 

(4) 

519 
330 
950 
(61) 

(259) 
(590) 

(11) 
7 

Supplemental Cash Flow Information 
Cash paid during the year for: 

Interest and related charges, excluding capitalized amounts 
Income taxes 

Significant noncash investing activities: 
Accrued capital expenditures 

$ 422 
517 

169 

383 
386 

181 

(151) 
(338) 

1,835 
(470) 

(579) 
(17) 
(20) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

236 

3 
15 

$ 18 

885 260 

(1) (12) 
16 28 

$ 15 $ 16 

328 
427 

276 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Virginia Power's Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors of 
Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC 
Richmond, Virginia 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Domin­
ion Resources, Inc.) and subsidiaries ("Dominion Gas") as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of 
income, comprehensive income, equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015- These financial 
statements are the responsibility of Dominion Gas' man^ement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. Dominion Gas is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control 
over financial reporting. Our audits included considerauon of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit proce­
dures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Dominion Gas' 
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evi­
dence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall fmancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Dominion Gas 
Holdings, LLC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and"2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Isl Deloitte & Touche LLP 

Richmond, Virginia 
February 26, 2016 
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Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC 
Consolidated Statements of Income 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 • 2014 2013 

(miirions) 

Operating Revenue )̂ $1,716 $1,898 $1,937 

Operating Expenses 
Purchased gas'̂ '-
Other energy-related purchases • • . 
Other operations and maintenance: 

Affiliated suppliers 
0tber(2i. 

Depreciation and amortization 
Other taxes 

133 
21 

64 
326 
217 
166 

315 
40, 

64 
274 
197 . 
157 

323 
93 

70 
353 
188 
148 

Total.operati.ng expenses 

Income from operations 

Other income 
Interest and related charges'i'. 

Income from operations before income tax expense 
Income lax expense 

Net Income 

927 

789 

24 
73 

740 
283 

$ 457 

1,047 

. 851 

22 
27 

846 
334 

$ 512 

1,17,5 

762 

28 
28 

762 
301 

$ 461 

(1) See Note 24 for amounts attributable to related parties. 
(2) Includes gaim on the sales of assets to related parties of$59 million and $122 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively. See Note 9 for more information. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Dominion Gas' Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 

(millions] 

Net income $457 $512 $461 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes; 

Net deferred gains (losses) on derivatives-hedging activities, net of $(4), $19 and $(27) tax 6 (31) 39 
Changes in unrecognized pension costs, net of $13, $6 and $(18) tax (20) (10) 26 
Amounts reclassified to net income.-

Net derivative (gains) losses-hedging activities, net of $3, $(5) and $(5) tax (3) 8 U 
Net pension and other postretirement benefit costs, net of $(3), $(3) and $(4) tax 4 5 6 

Other comprehensive income (loss) _ _ ^ (13) (28) 82 

Comprehensive income _ _ _ _ _ _ ^ $444 $484 $543 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Dominion Gas' Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

AtDecemijerSl, 2015 2014 

(millions) 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash ..equivalents 
Customer receivables (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1 and $4)'^' 
Ottier receivables (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $2 and $1)'̂ * 
Affiliated receivables 
Inventories: 

Materials and supplies 
Gas stored 

Prepayments"'' 
Regulatory assets 
Deferred income taxes 
Otherd' 

13 ; 
219 

7 
98 

54 
24 
88 
23 
— 
40 

; 9 
322 

19 
12 

53 
12 

166 
38 
96 
83 

Total current assets 

Investments 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Total property, plant and equipment, net 

566 

104 

9,593 
(2,690) 

7,003 

810 

108 

8,902 
(2,538) 

6,364 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 
Goodw/ill 
Intangible, assets, net 
Regulatory assets 
Pension and other postretirement benefit assets'̂ ' 
Olherii' 

542 
S3 

449 
1,510 

74 

542 
79 

379 
1,486 

80 
Total deferred charges and other assets 2,658 2,566 

Total assets $10,331 $9,848 

(1) See Note 24 for amounts attributable to related parties. 
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AtDecemberSl, 2015 2014 

(millions) 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Current Liabilities 
Securities due within one year 
Short-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Payables to affiliates 
Affiliated current borrowings 
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes'^' 
Regulatory liabilities 
Other'i' 

Total current liabilities 1,475 1,038 

Long-Term Debt 2,892 2,594 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 
Regulatory liabilities 
Other'i) 

(1) See Note 24 for amounts attributable to related parties. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Dominion Gas' Consolidated Financial Statements. 

$ 400 
391 
201 

22 
95 

183 
55 

128 

$ -
— 

247 
41 

384 
194 
75 
97 

2,214 
201 
231 

2,158 
192 
300 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 

Total liabilities 
2,646 

7,013 

2,650 

6,282 
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 22) 

Equity 
Membership interests 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total equity 

Total liabilities and equity 

3,417 
(99) 

3,318 

$10,331 

3,652 
(86) 

3,566 

$9,848 
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Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC 
Consolidated Statements of Equity 

(millions) 

Balance at December 31, 2012 
Net income 
Equity contribution from parent 
Distributions 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 
Balance at December 31, 2013 

Net income . 
Equity contribution from parent 
Distributions 
Other comprehensive-loss, net of tax 

Balance at December 31, 2014 

Net income 
Distributions 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax 
Balance at December 31, 2015 

Membership Interests 

$3,416 

461 
6 

(398) 

3,485 

512 
i 

(346) 

3,652 

457 
(692) 

$3,417 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income (Loss) 

$(140) 

82 

(58) 

(28) 

(86) 

(13) 

$ (99) 

Total 

$3,276 

461 
6 

(398) 
• 82 

3,427 

512 
1 

(346) 
(28) 

3,566 

457 
(692) 
(13) 

$3,318 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Dominion Gas' Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31, ' . 2015 2014 -2013 

(millions) 

Operating Activities 
Net income . $.457 $ 512 $ 461 
Adjustments to reconcile net income td net cash provided by operating activities: 

Gains on sales of assets (123) (124) (122) 
Depreciation and amohization 217 197 188 
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits, net 163 216 102 
Other adjustments 16 2 (3) 
Changes in: 

Accounts receivable 115 (42) (17) 
Affiliated receivables (86) (1) 2 
Inventories (13) (2) — 
Prepayments 99 (99) 13 
Accounts payable (51) (35) 62 
Payables to affiliates (19) (4) 8 
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes (11) (15) 48 
Other operating assets and liabilities • (136) (134) (44) 

Net cash provided by operating activities ; ] ' 628 471 698 

Investing Activities 
Plant construction and other property additions (795) (719) (650) 
Proceeds from sale of assets to an affiliate — 47 113 
Proceeds from Blue Racer — 1 78 
Proceeds from assignments of stiale development rights - 79 60 18 
Advances to affiliate, net — — (5) 
Other . . (11) (5) (14) 

Net cash used in investing activities ._ (727) (616) (460) 

Financing Activities 
Issuance of short-term debt, net • 391' — — 
Repayment of affiliated current borrowings, net (289) (892) (545) 
Repayment and acquisition of affiliated long-term debt — — (569) 
Issuance of long-term debt 700 1,400 1,200 
Distribution payments to parent (692) (346) (318) 
Other (7) (16) (10) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in casti and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

103 

4 
9 

$ 13 

146 

1 
8 

$ 9 

(242) 

(4) 
12 

$ 8 

Supplemental Cash Flow Information 
Cash paid during the year for: 

Interest and related charges, excluding capitalized amounts 
Income taxes 

Significant noncash investing and financing activities: 
Accrued capital expenditures 
Extinguishment of affiliated long-term debt in exchange for assets sold to affiliate 
Distribution of non-cash asset (account receivable) to parent 
Proceeds from sale of assets to affiliate not yet received 

70 
98 

57 
— 
— 
— 

$ 23 
266 

35 
67 
— 
— 

$ 31 
148 

42 
— 
80 
30 

The accompanying notes are an imegralpart of Dominion Gas' Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

NOTE 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

Dominion, headquartered in Richmond, Virginia, is one ofthe 

nation's largest producers and transporters of energy. Dominion's 
operations are conducted rhrough various subsidiaries, including 
Virginia Power and Dominion Gas. Virginia Power is a regulared 

public utility that generates, transmits and distributes electricity 
for sale in Virginia and northeastern Norrh Carolina. Virginia 

Power is a member of PJM, an R T O , and its electric transmission 
facilities are integrated into the PJM wholesale electricity markets. 

All of Virginia Power's stock is owned by Dominion, Dominion 
Gas is a holding company that conducts business activities 

through a regulated interstate natural gas transmission pipeline 
and underground storage system in the Northeast, mid-Atlantic 
and Midwest states^ regulated gas transportation and distribution 

operations in Ohio, and gas gathering and processing activities 
primarily in West Virginia, Ohio And Pennsylvania. All of 

Dominion Gas' membership interests are held by Dominion. 

Dominion's operations also include an LNG import, trans­

port and storage facility in Maryland, a preferred equity interest 

in which was contributed to Dominion Midstream in 2014, an 
equity investment in Atlantic Coast Pipeline and regulated gas 

transportation and distribution operations in West Virginia. 

Dominion's nonregulated operations include merchant gen­

eration, energy marketing and price risk management activities, 

retail energy marketing operations and an equity investment in 

Blue Racer. 

In October 2014,-Dominion Midstream launched its inirial 

public offering of 20,125,000 common units representing limited 
partner interests at a price of $21 per unit, which included an 

over-allotment option to purchase an additional 2,625,000 

common units at the initial offering price, which was exercised in 

full by the underwriters. Dominion received $392 million in net 

proceeds from the sale of the units, after deducting underwriting 

discounts, structuring fees and estimated offering expenses. At 

December 31 , 2015, Dominion owns the general partner and 

6 4 . 1 % ofthe limited partner interests in Dominion Midstream, 
which owns a preferred equity interest and the general partner 

interest in Cove Point, D C G and a 25 .93% noncontrolling part­

nership interest in Iroquois. The public's ownership interest in 
Dominion Midsrream is reflected as non-controlling interest in 

Dominion's Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Dominion manages its daily operations rhrough three primary 

operating segments: DVP, Dominion Generation and Dominion 
Energy. Dominion also reports a Corporate and Other segment, 

which includes its corporate, service company and other functions' 
(including unallocated debt) and the net impact of operations 

that are discondnued, which is discussed in Notes 3 and 25. In 
addition, Corporate and Other includes specific items attributable 
to Dominion's operaring segments that are not included in profit 

measures evaluated by executive management in assessing the 
segments' performance or allocating resources among the seg­

ments. 

Virginia Power manages its daily operations rhrough two 
primary operating segments; DVP and Dominion Generation. It 

also reports a Corporate and Other segment that primarily 
includes specific items attributable to its operating segments that 

are not included in profit measures evaluated by executive 
management in assessing the segments' performance or allocating 

resources among the segments. 

- Dominion Gas manages its daily operations through one 

primary operating segmenr: Dominion Energy. It also reports a 
Corporate and Other segment that primarily includes specific 
items attributable to its operating segment that are not included 

in profit measures evaluated by executive management in assess­
ing the segment's performance and the effect of certain items 

recorded at Dominion Gas as a tesult of the recognition of 
Dominion's basis in the net assets contributed. 

See Note 25 for further discussion ofthe Companies' operat­

ing segments. 

N O T E 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

General 
The Companies make certain estimates and assumptions in pre­
paring their Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance 

with GAAP. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosute of contingent 

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 

reported amounts of revenues, expenses and cash flows for the 

periods presented. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

The Companies' Consohdated Financial Statements include, 

after eliminating intercompany transactions and balances, the 

accounts of their respective majority-owned subsidiaries and non-

wholly-owned entities in which they have a controlling financial . 

interest. For certain partnership structures, income is allocated 
based on the liquidation value of the underlying contractual 

arrangements. SunEdison's ownership interest in Four Brothers 

and Three Cedars, as well as Terra Nova Renewable Partners' 

3 3 % interest in certain of Dominion's merchant solar projects, is 

reflected as noncontrolling inrerest in Dominion's Consolidated 

Financial Statements. See Note 3 for further information on 

transactions with SunEdison. 

The Companies report certain contracts, instruments and 
investments at. fair value. See Note 6 for fiirther information on 

fair value measurements. 

Dominion maintains pension and other postretirement bene­

fit plans. Virginia Power and Dominion Gas participate in certain 

of these plans. See Note 21 for further informarion on these 

plans. 

Cerrain amounts in the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Finan­
cial Statements and footnotes have been reclassified to conform to 

the 2015 presentation for comparative purposes. The 

reclassifications did not affect the Companies' net income, total 
assets, liabilities, equity or cash flows. 

Amounts disclosed for Dominion are inclusive of Virginia 

Power and/or Dominion Gas, where applicable. 

Operating Revenue 
Operating revenue is recorded on the basis of services rendered, 
commodities delivered or contracts setded and includes amounts 

yet ro be billed to customers. Dominion and Virginia Power col­

lect sales, consumprion and consumer utility taxes and Dominion 
Gas collects sales taxes; however, these amounts are excluded from 
revenue. Dominion's customer receivables at December 3 1 , 2015 

and 2 0 l 4 included S462 million and $564 million, respectively, 
of accrued unbilled revenue based on estimated amounts of elec­

tricity and natural gas delivered but not yet billed to its utility 
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customers. Virginia Power's customer receivables at 
December 31 , 2015 and 2014 included $333 million and $407 
million, respectively, of accrued unbilled revenue based on esti­

mated amounts of electriciry delivered but not yet billed to its 
customers. Dominion Gas' customer receivables at 

December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014 included $98 million and $127 
million, respectively, of accrued unbilled revenue based on esti­

mated amounts of natural gas delivered but not yet billed to its 
customers. 

The primary- types of sales and service activities reported as 
operating revenue for Dominion are as follows: 

• Regulated electric sales consist primatily of state-tegulated 
retail electric sales, and federally-regulated wholesale electric 

sales and electric transmission services; 

• Nonregulated electric sales consist primarily of sales of elec­

tricity at market-based rates and conttacted fixed rates, and 
associated derivarive activity; 

• Regulated gas sales consist primarily of state- and FERC-

regulated natural gas sales and related distribution services; 

• Nonregulated gas sales consist primarily of sales of natural gas 

production at market-based rates and contracted fixed prices, 
sales of gas purchased from third parties, gas trading and 

marketing revenue and associated derivative activity; 

• Gas transportation and storage consists primarily of FERC-

regulated sales of gathering, transmission, distribution and 

storage services. Also included are state-regulated gas dis­

tribution charges to retail distribution service customers opt­

ing for alternate suppliers; and 

Other revenue consists primarily of sales of N G L production 
and condensate, extracted products and associated derivative 

activity. Other revenue also includes miscellaneous service 

revenue from electric and gas distribution operations, and gas 

processing and handling revenue. 

The primary types of sales and service activities reported as 
operating revenue for Virginia Power are as follows; 

• Regulated electric sales consist primarily of state-regulated 

retail electric sales and federally-regulated wholesale electric 

sales and electric transmission services; and 

• Other revenue corisists primarily of miscellaneous service 
revenue from electric distribution operations and miscella­
neous revenue from generation operations, including sales of 

capacity and other commodities. 

The primary types of sales and service acrivities reported as 
operating revenue for Dominion Gas are as follows: 

Regulated gas sales consist primarily of state- and FERC-
reguJaced natural gas sales and related distriburion sen-ices; 

• Nonregulated gas sales consist primarily of sales of natural gas 
production at market-based rates and contracted fixed prices 

and sales of gas purchased from third parries. Revenue from 
sales of gas producrion is recognized based on actual volumes 
of gas sold to purchasers and is reported net of royalties; 

• Gas transpottarion and storage consists primarily of FERC-
regulated sales of gathering, transmission and storage services. 

Also included are state-regulated gas distribution charges to 
retail distribution service customers opting for alternate 

suppliers; 

• N G L revenue consists primarily of sales of N G L production 
and condensate, extracted products and associated derivative 
activity; and 

• Other revenue consists primarily of miscellaneous service 
revenue, gas processing and handling revenue. 

Electric Fuel, Purchased Energy and Purctiased Gas-
Deferred Costs 
Where permitted by regulatory authorities, the differences 

between Dominion's and Virginia Power's actual electric fuel and 
pufchased energy expenses and Dominion's and Dominion Gas' 
purchased gas expenses and the related levels of recovery for these 

expenses in ciurent rates are deferred and matched against recov­
eries in future periods. The deferral ofcosts in excess of current 

period fuel rate recovery is recognized as a regulatory asset, while 
rate recovery in excess of current period fuel expenses is recog­

nized as a regulatory liability. 

O f t h e cost of fuel used in electric generation and energy 

purchases to serve urility customers, approximately 84% is cur­
rently subject to deferred fuel accounting, while substantially all 

of the remaining amount is subject to recovery through similar 

mechanisms. . 

Virtually all of Dominion Gas', Cove Point's and Hope's 
natural gas purchases are either subject to deferral accounting or 

are recovered from the customer in the same accounting period as 

rhe sale. 

Income Taxes 
A consolidated federal income tax return is filed for Dominion 

and its subsidiaries, including Virginia Power and Dominion Gas' 

subsidiaries. In addition, where applicable, combined income tax 

returns for Dominion and its subsidiaries are filed in various 
states; otherwise, separate state income tax returns are filed. 

Although Dominion Gas is disregarded for income tax pur­

poses, a provision for income raxes is recognized to reflecr rhe 

inclusion of its business activities in the tax returns of its parent, 

Dominion. Virginia Power and Dominion Gas participate in 

intercompany tax sharing agreements with Dominion and its 

subsidiaties. Current income taxes are based on taxable income or 

loss and credits determined on a separate company basis. 

Under the agreements, if a subsidiary incurs a tax loss or earns 
a credit, recognition of cutrent income tax benefits is limited to 

refunds of prior year taxes obtained by the carryback of the net 
operating loss or credit or to the extent the tax loss or credir is 

absorbed by the taxable income of other Dorninion consohdated 
group members. Otherwise, the net operating loss or credit is 

carried forward and is recognized as a deferred tax asset until real­
ized. 

Accounting for income taxes involves an asset and liability 
approach. Deferred income tax assets and habilities are provided, 

represenring future effects on income taxes for temporary differ­
ences between the bases of assets and liabilities fot fmancial 
reporting and tax purposes. Accordingly, deferred taxes are recog­

nized for the future consequences of different treatments used for 
the reporting of transactions in fmancial accounting and income 

tax retutns. The Companies establish a valuation allowance when 
it is more-likely-thaii-not that all, or a portion, of a deferred tax 

asset will not be realized. Where tbe treatment of temporary 
differences is different for rate-regulated operations, a regulatory 

asset is recognized if it is probable that future revenues will be 
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Combined Notes to CotisoUdated Financial Statements, Continued 

provided for the payment of deferred tax liabilities.' 

The Companies recognize positions taken, or expected to be 
taken, in income tax returns rhat are more-likely-than-not to be 
realized, assuming that the position will be examined by tax 

authorities with full knowledge of all relevant infocmation. 

If it is not more-likely-than-not that a tax position, or some 
portion thereof, will be sustained, the related tax benefits are not 

recognized in the financial statements. Unrecognized tax benefits 
may result in an increase in income taxes payable, a teduction of 

income tax refunds receivable or changes in deferred taxes. Also, 
when uncertainty about the deductibility of an amount islimited 
to the timing of such deductibility, the increase In income taxes 

payable (or reduction in tax reftinds receivahle) is accompanied by 
a decrease in deferred tax liabilities. Except when such amounts 

are presented net with amounts receivable from br amounts pre­
paid to tax authorities, noncurrent income taxes payable telated to 

unrecognized tax benefits are classified in other deferred credits 
and other habilities on the Consohdated Balance Sheets and cur­

renr payables are included in accrued interest, paytoll and taxes on 
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

The Companies recognize interest on underpayments and 

overpayments of income taxes in interest expense and other 

income, respectively. Penalties are also recognized in other income. 

Dominion's, Virginia Power's and Dominion Gas' interesr 

and penalties were immaterial in 2015, 2014 and 2013. 

At December 31 , 2015, Virginia Power's Consolidared Bal­

ance Sheer included a $296 milhon afilliated receivable, 
representing current year excess federal income tax payments 

expected to be refunded, $9 million of federal income taxes pay­

able for prior years, less than $1 milhon of state income taxes 

payable, $10 million of state income taxes receivable, $14 million 

of noncurrent state income taxes receivable and $2 miUion of 

noncurrent state income taxes payable. 

At December 3 1 , 2014, Virginia Power's Consolidated Bal­

ance Sheet included $225 million of federal and srate income 

taxes receivable, $13 million of noncurrent state income taxes 

receivable and $38 million of noncurrent federal and state income 

taxes payable. In March 2015, Virginia Power received a $229 

million refund of irs 2014 federal income tax payments. 

At December 31 , 2015, Dominion Gas' Consolidated Bal­
ance Sheet included $91 million of affiliated receivables, . , 

represenring current yeat excess federal income tax payments 
expected to be refiinded and the benefit of urilizing a subsidiary's 

tax loss to offset taxable income in Dominion's consolidated tax 
return to be filed in 2016, less than $1 million of state income 

taxes payable, $4 million of state income taxes receivable and $22 
million of noncurrent state income taxes payable. 

At December 31 , 2014, Dominion Gas', Consolidated Balance 

Sheet included $96 million of federal and state income ta?ces receiv­
able, $14 million of state income taxes payable, $7 million pf non- . 

current state income taxes payable and $20 million noncurrent state 
income taxes receivable. In March 2015, Dominion Gas received a 
$93 million refund of its 2014 federal income tax payments. 

Investment tax credits are recognized by nonregulated oper­

ations in the year qualifying property is placed in service, For 
regulated operations, investment tax credits are deferred and. 
amortized over the service lives of the properties giving rise to the 

credits. Production tax credits are recognized as energy is gen­
erated and sold. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Current banking arrangements generally do not require checks to 
be funded until they are presented for payment. The following 

table illustrates the checks outstanding but not yet presented for 
payment and recorded in accounts payable for the Companies: 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 

(millions) 

Dominion 
Virginia Power 
Dominion Gas 

$27 $42 
11 20 
7 9 

For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, 
cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in banks 

and temporary investments purchased with an origin^,rnaturity 
of three months or less. 

Derivative Instruments 
Dominion and Virginia Power use derivative instruments such as 

futures, swaps, forwards, options and FTRs to manage the • 

commodity and financial market risks of their business oper­

ations. Dominion Gas uses derivarive instruments such as physical 

and financial forwards, futures and swaps to manage commodity 

price and interest rate risks. 

All derivatives, except those for which an exception applies, 

are required to be reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at 

fair value. Derjivative contracts representing unrealized gain posi­

tions and purchased options are reported as derivative assets. 

Derivative contracts representing unrealized losses and options 

sold are reported as derivative liabiliries. One of the exceptions to 
fair value accounting, normal purchases and normal sales, may be 

elected when the contract satisfies certain crireria, including a 

requirement that physical dehvery of the underlying commodiry 

is probable. Expenses and revenues resulting from deliveries under 

normal purchase contracts and normal sales contracts, 

respecrively, are included in earnings at the time of contract per­

formance. 

The Companies do not offset amounts recognized for the 
right to reclaim cash collateral or the obligation to return, cash 

collateral against amounts recognized for derivative instruments 

executed with the same counterparty under the same master net­
ting arrangemenr. Dominion had margin assets of $16 million 
and $287 million associated wich cash collateral at December 3 1 , 

2015 and 2014, respecrively. Dominion's margin liabilities asso­
ciated with cash collateral at December 3 1 , 2015 were immaterial. 

Dominion had margin liabilities of $34 million associated with 
cash collateral at December 3 1 , 2014. Virginia Power did not 

have any margin assets associated with cash collateral ar 
December 3 1 , 2015. Virginia Power had margin assets of $6 mil­
hon associated with cash collateral at December 31 2014. Virginia 

Power did not have any matgin liabilities associated \vith cash 

collateral at December 31 , 2015 or 2014. Dominion Gas did not 
have any margin assets or liabilities related to cash collateral at 
December 31 , 2015 or 2 0 l 4 . See Note 7 for furrher informarion 

about derivatives. 

To manage price risk. Dominion and Virginia Power hold 
certain derivarive instruments that are not designated as hedges 

for accounting purposes. However, to the extent Dominion and 
Virginia Power do not hold offsetting positions for such 
derivatives, they believe these instruments represent economic 
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hedges that mitigate their exposure to fluctuations in commodity 
prices and interest rates. As part of Dominion's strategy to market 

energy and manage related risks, it formerly managed a porrfolio 
of commodity-based financial derivative instruments held for 
trading purposes. Dominion used established policies and proce­

dures to manage the risks associated with price fluctuations in 
these energy commodities and used various derivative instruments 

to "reduce risk by creating offsetting market positions. In the sec­
ond quarter of 2013, Dominion commenced a repositioning of its 

producer services business. The repositioning was completed in 
the first quarter of 2014 and resulted in the termination of natu­

ral gas trading and certain energy marketing activities. 
Statement of Income Presentation: 

• Derivatives Held for Trading Purposes: All income statement 

activity, including amounts realized upon settlement, is pre­
sented in operating revenue on a net basis. 

• Derivatives N o t Held for Trading Purposes: All income 
statement activity, including amounts realized upon settle­

ment, is presented in operating revenue, operating expenses or 

interest and related charges based on the nature of the under­

lying risk. 

In Virginia Power's generation operations, changes in the fair 

value of derivative instruments result in the recognirion of regu­

latory assets or regulatory liabilities for jurisdictions subject to 

cost-based rate tegulation. Realized gains or losses on the 

derivative instruments are generally recognized when the related 
transactions impact earnings. 

D E R I V A T I V E I N S T R U M E N T S D E S I G N A T E D AS H E D G I N G 

INSTRUMENTS 

The Companies designate a portion of their derivative instru­

ments as either cash flow or fair value hedges for accounting 

purposes. For all derivatives designated as hedges, the Companies 

formally document the relationship between the hedging instru­

ment and the hedged item, as well as the risk management 

objective and the strategy for using rhe hedging instrument. The 

Companies assess whether rhe hedging relationship between the 

derivative and the hedged item is highly effective at offsetting 
changes in cash flows or fair values both at the inception ofthe 

hedging relationship and on an ongoing basis. Any change in the 

fair value of the derivative that is not effective at offsetting 
changes in the cash flows or fair values of the hedged item is 
recognized currently in earnings. Also, the Companies may elect 

to exclude certain gains or losses on hedging instruments from the 
assessment of hedge effectiveness, such as gains or losses attribut­

able ro changes in the time value of options or changes in the 
difference between spot prices and forward prices, thus requiring 

that such changes be recorded currenrly in earnings. Hedge 
accounting is discontinued prospectively for derivatives that cease 
to be highly effective hedges. For derivative instruments that are 

accounted for as fair value hedges or cash flow hedges, the cash 

flows from the derivatives and from the related hedged items are 
classified in operaring cash flows. 

Cash Flow Hedges—^A majority of the Companies' hedge 

strategies represents cash flow hedges of the vatiable price risk 
associated with the purchase and sale of electricity, natural gas, 

NGLs and other energy-related products. The Companies also 
use interest rate swaps to hedge their exposure to variable interest 
rates on long-term debt. For transactions in which the Companies 

are hedging the variability of cash flows, changes in the fair value 

of the derivatives are reported in AOCI , to the extent they are 
effective at offsetting changes in the hedged item. Any derivative 

gains or losses reported in A O C I are reclassified to earnings when 
the forecasted item is included in earnings, or earlier, if it 

becomes probable that the forecasted transaction will not occur. 
For cash flow hedge transactions, hedge accounting is dis­

continued if the occurrence of the forecasted transaction is no 
longer probable. 

Dominion entered into interest rate derivative instruments to 
hedge its forecasted interest payments related to planned debt issu­

ances in 2013 and 2014. These interest rate derivatives were des­
ignated by Dominion as cash flow hedges in 2012 and 2013, prior 

to the formation of Dominion Gas. For the purposes of the 
Dominion Gas financial statements, the derivative balances, A O C I 

balance, and any income statement impact related to these interest 
rate derivative instruments entered into by Dominion have been, 
and will continue to be, included in the Dominion Gas' Con­

solidated Financial Statements as the forecasted interest payments 

related to the debt issuances now occur at Dominion Gas. 

Fair Value Hedges—Dominion also uses fair value hedges to 

mitigate the fixed price exposure inherent in certain firm 

commodity commitments and commodity inventory. In addition, 

Dominion and Virginia Power have designated interest rate swaps 

as fair value hedges on certain fixed rate long-term debt to man­

age interest rate exposure. For fair value hedge transactions, 

changes in the fair value of the derivative are generally offset cur­

rently in earnings by the recognition of changes in the hedged 
item's fair value. Derivative gains and losses from the hedged item 

are reclassified to earnings when the hedged item is included in 

earnings, or eariier, if the hedged item no longer qualifies for 

hedge accounting. Hedge accounting is discontinued if the 

hedged item no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. See Note 6 

for further informarion about fair value measuremenrs and asso­

ciated valuation methods for derivatives. See Note 7 for further 

information on derivatives. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment is recorded at lower of original 
cost or fair value, if impaired. Capitalized costs include labor, 
materials and other direct and indirect costs such as asset retire­

ment costs, capitalized interest and, for certain operations subject 

to cost-of-service rate regulation, A F U D C and overhead costs. 
The cost of repairs and maintenance, including minor additions 
and replacements, is generally charged to expense as it is incurred. 

In 2015, 2014 and 2013, Dominion capitahzed interest costs 

and A F U D C to property, plant and equipment of $100 million, 

$80 million and $66 million, respectively. In 2015, 2014 and 
2013, Virginia Power capitalized A F U D C to property, plant and 
equipment of $30 million, $39 million and $33 million, 

respecrively. In 2015, 2014 and 2013, Dominion Gas capitahzed 
A F U D C to property, plant and equipment of $1 million, $1 mil­

lion and $5 million, respectively. 

Under Virginia law, certain Virginia jurisdictional projects 

qualify for current recovery of A F U D C through rate adjustment 

clauses. A F U D C on these projects is calculated and recorded as a 
regulatory asset and is not capitalized to property, plant and 
equipment. In 2015, 2014 and 2013, Virginia Power recorded 

$19 million, $8 million and $32 million of A F U D C related to 
these projects, respectively. 
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For property subject To cost-of-service rate regulation, includ­
ing Virginia Power electric distribution, electric transmission, and 
generation property. Dominion Gas natura! gas distribution and 

transmission property, and for certain Dominion natural gas prop­
erty, the Undepreciated cost of such property, less salvage value, is 

generally charged to accumulated depreciation at retirement. Cost 
of removal collections from utility customers not representing 

AROs are recorded as regulatory liabilities. For property subject to 
cost-of-service rate regulation that will be abandoned significantly 

before the end of its useful life, the net carrying value is reclassified 
from plant-in-service when it becomes probable it will be aban­
doned. 

For property that is not subject to cost-of-service rate tegu­
lation, including nonutility property, cost of removal not asso­
ciated with AROs is charged to expense as incurred. The 

Companies also record gains and losses upon retirement based 
upon the difference between the proceeds received, if any, and the 

property's net book value at the retirement date. 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed 

on the straight-line method based on projected service lives. The 

Companies' average composite depreciation rates on utility prop­

erty, plant and equipment are as follows: 

Vear Ended December 3 i , 2015 2014 2013 

(percent) 

Dominion 
Generation 
Transmission 
Distribution 
Storage 
Gas gathering and processing 
General and other 

2.78 
2.42 
3.11 
2.42 
3.19 
3.67 

2-66 
2.38 
3.12 
2.39 
2.81 
3.62 

2.71 
2.35 
3.13 
2.43 
2.39 
3.82 

Virginia Power 
Generation 
Transmission 
Distribution 
General and other 

2.78 2.66 2.71 
2.33 2.34 2.28 
3.33 . 3.34 3.33 
3.40 3.29 .,3.51 

Dominion Gas 
Transmission 
Distribution 
Storage 
Gas gathering and processing 
General and other 

2.46 
2.45 
2.44 
3.20 
4.72 

2.40 
2.47 
2.40 
2.82 
5.77 

2.43 
2.50 
2.43 
2.39 
5.93 

In 2013, Virginia Power revised its depreciation rates to 
reflect the results of a new depreciation study. This change ' ' 
resulted in an increase of $!9 million ($12 million after-tax) iin 

depreciation and amortization expense in Virginia Power's Con­
sohdated Statements of Income. 

In 2014, Virginia Power also made a one-time adjustment to 
depteciation expense as ordered by the Virginia Commis­

sion. This adjustment resulted in an increase of $38 million ($23 
million after-tax) in depreciation and amortization expense in 

Virginia Power's Consolidated Statements of Income. 

In 2013, Dominion Gas revised the depreciation rates fot East 
Ohio to reflect the results of a new depreciation study. This 

change resulted in a decreaseof $8 rnillion ($5 million after-tax) 
in depreciation and amortization expense in Dominion Gas' 
Consolidated Statements of Income: 

Dominion's nonutility property, plant and equipment is 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Asset Estimated Useful Lives 

Merchant generation-nuclear 
Merchant generation-other 
General and other 

44 years 
15-36 years 
5 - 59 years 

Depreciation and amortization related ro Virginia. Power's ,. 
and Dominion Gas'nonutil i ty property, plant and equipment • 

and E&P properties \yas immaterial for the years ended 
December 31 , 2015, 2014 and 2013. : 

Nuclear fuel used In electric generation is ainorrized over its 
estimated service liife on a units-of-production basis. Dominion 

and Vitginia Power report the amortization of nuclear fiiel in 
electric fiiel and other energy-related purchases expense in their 
Consolidated Statements of Income and in depreciarion and 

amortization in theit Consolidated Stateinents of Cash Flows. 

Long-Lived and Intangible Assets 
The Companies perform an evaluation for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 

of long-lived assets or intangible assets with finite lives may not be 

recoverable. A long-lived or intangible asset is written down to fair 

value if the sum of its expected future undiscounted cash flows is less 

than its carrying amount. Intangible assets with finite lives are amor­

tized over their estimated useful lives. See Note 6 for a discussion of 

impairments related to certain long-lived assets. 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
The accounting for Dominion's and Dominion Gas' regulated , 

gas and Virginia Power's regulated electric operations differs from, 
the accounting for nonregulated operations in that they are 

required to, reflect the effect of rate regulation in, their Con­

solidated Fitiancial Statements. For regulated businesses subject to 

federal or state cost-of-service rate regulation, regulatory practices ' 

that assign costs to accounting periods may differ from accountT 

ing methods genetally applied by nonregulated companies. When 

it is probable that regulators will permit the recovery of current 

costs through future rates charged to customers, these costs that 
otherwise would be expensed.by nonregulated companies are 

deferred as regulatory assets. Likewise, regulatory liabilities are 

recognized when it is probable that regulators will require 
customer refunds through future rates or when revenue is col­
lected from customers for expenditures that have yet to be 

incurred. Generally, regulatory assets and Habilities are amortized 
into income over the period aulihorized by the regulator. 

The Companies evaluate whether or not recovery of their 
regulatory assets through future rates is probable and make vari­
ous assumptions in theiranalyses. The expectations of futute 

recovery are generally based on orders issued by regulatory com­
missions, legislation or historical experience, as well as discussions 

wirh applicable regulatory authoriries and legal counsel. If recov­
ery of a regulatory asset is determined to be less than probable, it 

will be written off in the petiod such assessment.is made. 

Asset Retirement Obligations 
The Companies recognize AROs at fair value as incurred or when 

sufficient information becomes available to determine a reasonable 
estimate of the fair value of future retirement activities to be per­

formed. These arnounts are generally capitalized as costs of the 
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related tangible long-lived assets. Since relevant market 

infotmation is not available, fair value is estimated, using dis­
counted cash flow analyses. At least annually, the Companies eval­

uate the key assumptions underlying their AROs including 
estimates of the amounts and timing of future cash flows asso­
ciated with retirement activities. AROs are adjusted when sig­

nificant changes in these assumptions are identified. Dominion 
and Dominion Gas report accretion of AROs and depreciation on 

asset retirement costs associated with their natural gas pipeline and 
storage well assets as an adjustment to the related regulatory 

liabilities when revenue is recoverable from customers for AROs. 
Virginia Power reports accretion of AROs and depreciation on 

asset retirement costs associated with decommissioning its nuclear 
power stations as an adjustment to the regulatory liability for cer­
tain jurisdictions. Additionally, Virginia Power reports accretion of 

AROs and depreciation on asset retirement costs associated with 
certain prospective rider projects as an adjustment to the regulatory 

asset for certain jurisdicrions. Accretion of all other AROs and 
depreciation of allother asset retirement costs are reported in other 

operations and maintenance expense and depreciation expense, 

respectively, in the Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Debt Issuance Costs 
The Companies defer and amortize debt issuance costs and debt 

premiums or discounts over the expected lives of the respective 

debt issues, considering maturity dates and, if applicable, 

redemption rights held by othets. Deferred debt issuance costs are 

recorded as an asset and classified in othet current assets and other 

deferred charges and other assets in the Consolidated Balance 

Sheets. Amortization of the issuance costs is reported as interest 
expense. Unamortized costs associated with redemptions of debt 

securities prior to stated maturity dates are generally recognized 

and recorded in interest expense immediately. Effective January 

2016, deferred debr issuance costs will be recorded as a reduction 

in long-term debt in the Consolidated Balance Sheers. As permit­

ted by regulatory authoriries, gains or losses resulting from rhe 

refinancing of debt allocable to utility operations subject to cost-

based rate regulation are deferred and amortized over the lives of 
the new issuances. 

Investments 

M A R K E T A B L E E Q U I T Y A N D D E B T S E C U R I T I E S 

Dominion accounts fot and classifies investments in matketable 

equity and debt securities as trading or available-for-saJe securities. 
Virginia Power classifies investments in matketable equity and 
debt securities as available-fbr-sale securities. 

• Trading securities include marketable equity and debt secu­

rities held by Dominion in rabbi trusts associated with certain 
deferred compensation plans. These securities are reported in 
other investments in the Consolidated'Balance Sheets at fair 

value with net realized and unrealized gains and losses 

included in other income in the Consolidated Statements of 
Income. 

• Availdble-for-sale seciirities include all other marketable equity 

and debt securities, primarily comprised of securities held in 

the nuclear decommissioning trusts. These investments are 
reported at fair value in nuclear decommissioning trust funds 
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Ne t realized and unreal­

ized gains and losses (including any other-than-temporary 

impairments) on investments held in Virginia Power's nuclear 
decommissioning trusts are recorded to a regulatory liability 
for certain jurisdictions subject to cost-based regulation. For 

all other available-for-sale securities, including those held in 
Dominion's merchant generation nuclear decommissioning 

trusts, net realized gains and losses (including any other-than-
temporary impairments) are included in other income and 

unrealized gains and losses are reported as a component of 
AOCI , after-tax. 

In determining realized gains and losses for marketable equity 
and debt securities, the cost basis of the security is based on the 

specific identification method. 

N O N - M A R K E T A B L E I N V E S T M E N T S 

The Companies account for illiquid and privately held g^ecurities 

for which market prices or quotations are not readily available 
under either the equity or cost method. Non-marketable invest­

ments include: 

Equity method investments when the Companies have the abil­

ity to exercise significant influence, but not control, over the 

investee. Dominion's investments are included in investments 

in equity method affiliates and Virginia Power's investments 

are included Jn other investments in their Consolidated Bal­

ance Sheets. The Companies record equity method adjust­
ments in other income in the Consolidated Statements of 

Income including: theit proportionate share of investee 

income or loss, gains or losses resulting from investee capital 

transactions, amortization of certain differences between the 

carrying value and the equity in the net assets of the investee 

at the date of investment and other adjustments required by 

the equity method. 

• Cost method investments when Dominion and Virginia Power 

do not have the ability to exercise significant influence over 

the investee. Dominion's and Virginia Power's investments 

are included in other investments and nuclear decommission­

ing trust funds. 

O T H E R - T H A N - T E M P O R A R Y I M P A I R M E N T 

Dominion and Virginia Power periodically review their invest­

ments to determine whether'a decline in fair value should be' 
considered other-than-temporary. If a decline in fair value of any 
security is determined to be other-than-temporary,, the security is 

written down to its fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

Decommissioning Trust Investments—Special Considerations 
• The recognition provisions of the FASB's other-than-

temporary impairment guidance apply only to debt securities 

classified as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity, while the 

presentation and disclosure requirements apply to both debt 
and equity securities. 

• Debt Securities—Using information obrained from their 

niiclear decommissioning trust fixed-income investment 

managers. Dominion and Virginia Power record in earnings 
any unrealized loss for a debt security when the manager 
intends to sell the debt security or it is more-likely-than-not 

that the mani^er will have to sell the debt security before 
recovery of its fair value up to its cost basis. If that is not the 

case, but the debt security is deemed to have experienced a 
credit loss. Dominion and Virginia Power record the credit 

loss in earnings and any remaining portion of the unrealized 
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loss in AOCI . Credit losses are evaluated primarily by consid­
ering the credit ratings of the issuer, prior instances of non­

performance by the issuer and other factors. 
Equity securities a n d other investments—Dominion's and Vir­

ginia Power's, method of assessing other-than-temporary 
declines requites demonstrating the ability to hold individual 

securities for a period of time sufficient to allow for the • 
anticipated recovery in their market value prior to the consid­
eration of the other criteria mentioned above. Since Domin­

ion and Virginia Power have limited ability to oversee the 
day-to-day management of nuclear decommissioning trust 

fund investments, they do not have the ability to ensure 
investments are held through an anticipated recovery period. 

Accordingly, they consider all equity and other securiries as 
well as non-marketable investments held in nuclear decom­
missioning trusts with market values below their cost bases to 

be other-than-remporarily impaired. 

Inventories 
Materials and supplies and fossil fuel inventories are valued pri­

marily using the weighted-average cost method. Stored gas 

inventory for Dominion Gas used in East Ohio gas distribution 
operations is valued using the LIFO method. Under the LIFO 

method, stored gas inventory was valued at $24 million and $12 

million at December 3 1 , 2015 and December 31 , 2014, 

respectively. Based on the average price of gas purchased during 

2015 and 2014, the cost of replacing the cutrent portion of stored 

gas inventory exceeded the amount stated on a LIFO basis by 

$109 miUion and $98 niillioni respectively. Stored gas inventory 

for Dominion held by Hope and certain nonregulated gas oper­
ations is valued using the weighted-avetage cost method. 

Gas imbalances 
Natural gas imbalances occur when the physical amount of natu­

ral gas delivered from, or received by, a pipeline system or storage 

facility differs from the contractual amount of natural gas deliv­

ered or received. Dominion and Dominion Gas value these 
imbalances due to, or from, shippers and operators at an appro­

priare index price at period end, subject to the terms of its tariff 

for regulated enrities. Imbalances are primarily settled in-kind. 

Imbalances due to Dominion and Dominion Gas from other, 
parties are reported in other current assets and imbalances that . 

Dominion and Dominion Gas owe to other parties are reported 
in other .current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Goodwill 
Dominion and Dominion Gas evaluate goodwill for impairment 
annually as of April 1 and whenever an event occurs or circum­

stances change in the interim that would more-likely-than-not 
reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying 

amount. 

New Accounting Standards 
In May 2014, the FASB issued revised accounting guidance for 
revenue recognition from contracts with customers. The core 
principle of rhis revised accounting guidance is that an entity 

should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods 
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consid­

eration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services. The amendments in this update also 

require disclosure of the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty 
of revenue and cash flows arising from contracrs with customers. 

For the Companies, the revised accounting guidance is effective 
for interim and annual periods beginning January 1, 2018. The 
Companies are currently in the preliminary stages of evaluating 

the impact ofthis guidance on their results of operarions and 
overall liquidity. TheCompanies plan to complete their prelimi­

nary assessment, .which includes a subset of represenrative con­
tracts, in 2016. Once their initial evaluation is complete, the 

Companies will expand the scope of their assessment to include 
ail contracts with customers. Other than increased disclosures, the 

impacts of the revised accounting guidance to the results of oper­
ations and cash flows ofthe Companies cannot be determined 
until.rheir assessment process is complete. 

In November 2015, the FASB issued revised accounting guid­
ance to simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes. This 
update requires that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified 

as noncurrent in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Companies 
have adopted this guidance on a prospective basis for the period 

ended December 3 1 , 2015. For prior periods, the Companies 
have presented deferred taxes in either the current or noncurrent 

sections of the Consolidated Balance Sheets based on the classi- ' 

fication ofthe related financial accounting assets or liabilities, or, 

for irems such as operating loss carryforwards, the period in which 

the deferred taxes were expected to reverse. 

In January 2016, the FASB issued revised accounting guid­

ance for the recognitiori, measurement^, presentation and dis­

closure of financial instruments.Most notably the update revises 
the accounting for equity securities, except for those accounted 

for under the equity method of accounting or resulting in con­

solidation, by requiring equity securities to be measured at feit 

value with the changes in fair value recognized in net income. 

However, an entity may measure equity investments that do not' 

have a readily determinable fair value at cost minus impairment, if 

any, plus changes from observable price changes iti orderly ttans-

actions for rhe identical or a similar investment of the same issuer. 

The guidance also simplifies the impairment assessment of equity 
investments without readily determinable fair values, revises the 

presentationof financial assets and liabilities and amends certain 

disclosute requirements associated with the fair value of financial 

instruments. The guidance is effective for the Companies' interim 

and annual reporting periods beginning January 1, 2018, with a 
cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet. Amendments 

related to equity securities without readily determinable fair values 
are to be applied prospectively to such.investments that exist as of 

the date of adoption. The Companies are currently evaluating the 
impact the adoption ofthe standard will have on their con^ 

solidated financial statements and disclosutes. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued revised accounting guidance 

for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 
leasing arrangements. The update requires the recognition of lease 
assets and liabilities for those leases currently classified as operating 

leases while also refining the definition of a lease. In addition, lessees 
will be requited to disclose key information about the amount, tim­

ing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leasing arrangements. 
The guidance is effective for the Companies' intetim and annual 

repotting periods beginning Januaiy 1, 2019, although It can be 
early adopted, with a modified retrospective approach for leases that 
comffi.enced prior to the date of adoption. The Companies are cur­

rently evaluating the impact the adoption of the standard will have 
on their consolidated financial statements and disclosures. 
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NOTE 3. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS 

DOMINION 

PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF QUESTAR 

Pursuant to the terms ofthe Questar Combination announced in February 2016, upon closing, each share of Questar common stock 
issued and outstanding immediately prior to the closing wifl be converted automatically into the right to receive $25 in cash per share, or 

approximately $4.4 billion in total. In addition,Questar 's debt, which currently totals approximately $1.6 billion is expected to remain 
outstanding. Addirionally, Dominion entered into agreements with several of its lending banks pursuant to which they have committed to 

provide temporary debt financing consisting of a $3.9 billion acquisition fiicility. Dominion intends to permanently finance the trans­
action in a manner that supports its existing credit ratings targets by issuing a combination of common stock, mandatory convertibles 

(including RSNs) and debt at Dominion, and indirecriy through an issuance of common units at Dominion Midstream, the proceeds of 
which will be applied to pay Dominion for certain assets of Questar, which are expected to be contributed to Dominion Midstream. 

The transaction requires approval of Questar's shareholders and clearance from the Federal Trade Commission under the Hart-Scott-
Rodino Act. Questar and Dominion also will file for review and approval, as required, from the Utah Public Service Commission and the 

Wyoming Pubhc Service Commission, and provide information regarding rhe rransacrion to the Idaho Public Utilities Commission. In 
February 2016, the Federal Trade Commission granted antitrusr approval of rhe Quesrar Combination under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act. 

The Questar Combination contains certain terminarion rights for both Dominion and Questar, and provides that, upon termination of 
the Questar Combination under specified circumsrances, Dominion would be required to pay a termination fee of $154 million to Ques­

tar and Questar would be required to pay Dominion a termination fee of $99 million. Subject to receipr of Quesrar shareholder and any 

required regulatory approvals and meeting closing conditions, Dominion targets closing by the end of 2016. 

W H O L L Y - O W N E D M E R C H A N T S O L A R P R O J E C T S 

Acquisitions 

The following table presents significant completed acquisitions of wholly-owned merchant solar projects by Dominion in 2014 and 2015. 

Long-term power purchase, interconnection and operation and maintenance agreements Have been executed for all o f the projects. 

Dominion has claimed and/or expects to claim federal investment tax credirs o n t h e projects. These projects are included in rhe Dominion 

Generation operating segment. 

Completed Acquisition Dale 

March 2014 

November 2014 
December 2014 

April 2015 
April 2015 

iune2015 

July 2015 
November 2015 

November 2015 

Seller 

Recurrent Energy 
Development Holdings, 
LLC 

CSi Project Holdco, LLC 
EDF Renewable 

Development, Inc. 
EC&R NA Solar PV, LLC 
EDF Renewable 

Development, Inc. 

£DF Renewable 

Development, Inc. 
SunPeak Solar, LLC 

EC&R NA Solar PV, LLC 
Community Energy, Inc. 

Number of 
Projects 

5 

1 

1 

1 
3 

1 

1 

1 
1 

Projecl 
Location 

California 

California 

California 

California 

California 

Caltlornia 

California 
California 

Virginia 

Project Name is) 

Camelot, Kansas, 
Kent South, Old 
River One, 
Adams East, 
Columbia 2 

West Antelope 
CID 

Alamo 

Cottonwood'3> 

Catalina 2 

Imperial Valley 2 
Maricopa West 

Eastern Shore 
Solar 

Initial 
Acquisition 

Cost 
(milliQns)ii) 

$ 50 

79 
71 

66 
106 

68 

42 
65 
34 

Project 
Cost 

(millionsjoi 

$428 

79 
71 

66 
106 

68 

71 
65 

212 

Date of Commercial 
Operations 

Fourtti quarter 2014 

November 2014 

January 2015 

May 2015 

May 2015 

luly2015 

August 2015 

December 2015 
October 2016 

MW 
Capacity 

139 

20 
20 

20 
24 

18 

20 
20 
80 

(1) The purchase price was primarily allocated to Property, Plant and Equipment. 
(2) Includes acquisition cost. 
(3) One of the projects, Marin Carport, is expected to begin commercial operations in 2016. 

Sale of Interest in Merchant Solar Projects 

In September 2015, Dominion signed an agreement to sell a • 
noncontrolling interest (consisting of 3 3 % of the equity interests) 

in all of its then currently wholly-owned merchant solar projects, 
24 solar projects totaling approximately 425 M W , to SunEdison 

for approximately $300 million. In December 2015, the sale of 
interest in 15 of the solar projects closed for $184 million with 

the sale of interest in the remaining projects completed in January 
2016. SunEdison subsequendy sold its interest in these projects to 

Terra Nova Renewable Partners. SunEdison has a future option 
to buy all or a porrion of Dominion's remaining 67% ownership 
in the projects upon the occurrence of certain events, none of 

which had occurred as of December 3 1 , 2015 nor are expected to 
occur in 2016. 
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N O N - W H O L L Y - O W N E D M E R C H A N T S O L A R P R O J E C T S 

Acquisitions of Four Brothers and Three Cedars 

In June 2015, Dominion acquired 50% of rhe units in Four 
Brothers from SunEdison for $64 million of consideration, con­

sisting of $2 rnillion in cash and a $62 million payable. As of • 
December 31 , 2015, a $43 million payable is included in other 

current liabilities in Dominion's Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
Four Brothers' purpose is to develop and operate four solar proj­
ects located in Utah, which will produce and sell electricity and 

renewable energy credits. The projects are expected to,cost . 
approximately $730 million to construct, including the initial 

acquisition cost. Dominion is obligated to contribute $445 mil­
lion of capital to fund the construction of the projects and had 

contributed $138 million through December 31 , 2015. The , 
facilities are expected to begin commercial operations in the third 

quarter of 2016, generating approximately 320 M W . 

In September 2015, Dominion acquired 50% of the units in 

Three Cedars from SunEdison for $43 million of consideration, 
consisting of $6 million in cash and a $37 million payable. As of 

December 31 , 2015, a $29 million payable is included in other 

current liabilities in Dominion's Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Three Cedars' purpose is to develop and operate three solar proj­

ects located in Utah, which will produce and sell electricity and 
renewable energy credits. The projects are expected to cost 

approximately $425 million to construct. Dominion is obligated 

to contribute $276 million of capital to fund the consttuction of 

rhe projecrs and had contributed $60 million through 

December 31 , 2015. The facihries are expectedto begin commer­

cial operations in the third quarter of 2016, generating approx­

imately 210 M W . 

Long-term power purchase, interconnection and operation 

and maintenance agreements have been executed for both Four 

Brothers and Three Cedars. Dominion expects to claim 9 9 % of 

the federal investment tax credits on the projects. 

Dominion owns 50% ofthe voting interests in Four Brothers 
and Three Cedars and has a controlling financial interest over the 

entities through its rights to control operations. The allocarion of 

the $64 million purchase price for Four Brothers resulted in $89 

milhon of property, plant and equipment and $25 million of 

noncontrolling interest. The allocation ofthe $43 million pur­

chase price for Three Cedars resulted in $65 million of property, 
plant and equipment and $22 million of noncontrolling interest; 
The noncontrolling interest for each enrity was measured at fair 

value using the discounted cash flow method, with the primary 
components of the valuation being future cash flows (both 

incoming and outgoing) and the discount rate. Dominion 
determined its discount rate based on the' cost of capital a utility-

scale investor vrt>uld expect, as well as the cost of capital an 
individual project developer could achieve via a combination of 
non-recourse project financing and outside equity partners. The 

acquired assets of Four Brothers and Three Cedars are included in 
rhe Y)ominion Generation operating segment. 

Four Brothers and Three Cedars have entered into agreements 
with SunEdison to provide administrative and suppott services in 

connecrion with the construction ofthe projects, operation and 
maintenance ofthe facilities, and administrative and technical ' 

management services of the solar facilities. In addition, Dominion 
has entered into contracts with SunEdison to provide services 

related to construction project management and oversight. Costs 
related to services to be provided under these agreements were 

immaterial for the year ended December 3 1 , 2015. Subsequent to 
Dominion's acquisition of Four Brothers and Three Cedars 

through December 3 1 , 2015, SunEdison made conrriburions to 
Four Brothers and Three Cedars of $103 million in aggregate, 
which are reflected as noncontrolling interests in the Con­

solidated Balance Sheets. 

In December 2015, SunEdison entered an agreement to sell 
its interest in Four Brothers and Three Cedars through the sale of 

Four Brothers Holdings, LLC, Granite Mountain Renewables, 
LLC and Iron Springs Renewables, LLC to DESRI. 

D O M I N I O N M I D S T R E A M A C Q U I S I T I O N O F I N T E R E S T I N 

IROQUOIS 

In September 2015, Dominion Midstream acquired from N G 
and NJNR a 25 .93% noncontroUing partnership interest in 

Iroquois, which owns and operates a 416-mile, FERC-regulared 
natura! gas transmission pipeline in New York and Connecticut. 

In exchange for this partnership interest, Dominion Midstream 

issued 8.6 million common units representing limited partnership 

interests in Dominion Midstream (6.8 million common units ro 

N G for its 20 .4% interest and 1.8 million common units to 
N J N R for its 5 .53% interest). The investment was recorded at -

$216 million based on the value of Dominion Midstream's 

common units at closing. These common units are reflected as 

noncontrolling interest in Dominion's Consolidated Financial 

Statements. Dominion Midstream'snoncontroiiing partnership 

inrerest is reflected in rhe Dominion Energy operating segment. 

In addition to this acquisition, Dominion Gas currenrly holds a 

24.72% noncontrolling partnership interest in Iroquois. Domin­

ion Midstream and Dominion Gas each account for their interest 
in Iroquois as an equity method investment. See Notes 9 and 15 

for more information regarding Iroquois. 

A C Q U I S I T I O N O F D C G 

In January 2015, Dominion completed the acquisition of 100% 

of the equity interests of D C G from SCANA Corporation for 

$497 million in cash, as adjusted for working capital. D C G owns 

and.operates nearly 1,500 miles of FERC-regulated intersrate 
natural gas pipeline in South Carolina and southeastern Georgia. 

This acquisirion supports Dominion's natural gas expansion into 
the southeastern U.S. The allocation of the purchase price 
resulted in $277 million of net property, plant and equipment, 

$250 million of goodwill, of which approximately $225 million is 

expected to be deducrible for income tax purposes, and $38 mil­
lion of regulatory habifities. The goodwill reflects the value asso­
ciated with enhancing Dominion's regulated gas position, 

economic value attributable to fijture expansion projects as well as 
increased opportunities for synergies. The acquired assets of D C G 

are included in the Dominion Energy operating segment. 

O n March 24, 2015, D C G converted to a limited liability 
company under the laws of South Carolina and changed its name 
from Carolina Gas Transmission Corporation to D C G . O n 
April 1, 2015, Dominion contributed 100% of the issued and 
outstanding membership interests of D C G to Dominion Mid­

stream in exchange for total considerarion of $501 million, as 

adjusted for working capital. Total consideration to Dominion 
consisted ofthe issuance of a two-year, $301 million senior 
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unsecured promissory note payable by Dominion Midstream at 
an annual interest rate of 0.6%, and 5,112,139 common units, 
valued at $200 million, represenring limited partner interests in 

Dominion Midstream. The number of units was based on the 
volume weighted average trading price of Dominion Midstream's 

common units for the ten trading days prior to April 1, 2015, or 
$39-12 per unit. Since Dominion consolidates Dominion Mid­

stream for financial reporting purposes, this transaction was 
eliminated upon consolidation and did not impact Dominion's 
financial position o t cash flows. 

S A L E O F E L E C T R I C R E T A I L E N E R G Y M A R K E T I N G B U S I N E S S 

In March 2014, Dominion completed the sale of its electric rerail 
energy marketing business. The proceeds were $187 million, net 

of transaction costs. The sale resulted in a gain, subject to post-
closing adjustments, of $100 million ($57 million after-tax) net of 

a $31 million write-off of goodwill, and is included in other oper­
ations and maintenance expense in Dominion's Consolidated 
Statements of Income. The sale of the electric retail energy 

marketing business did not qualify for discontinued operations 

classification. 

S A L E O F I L L I N O I S G A S C O N T R A C T S 

In June 2013, Dominion completed the sale of Illinois Gas Con­

tracts. The sales price was $32 million, subject to post-closing 

adjustments. The sale resulted in a gain of $29 million ($18 mil­

hon after-tax) net of a $3 million write-off of goodwill, and is 

included in other operations and maintenance expense in Domin­

ion's Consolidated Statement of Income. The sale of Illinois Gas 

Contracts did not qualify for discontinued operations classi­

fication as it is not considered a component under applicable 
accounting guidance. 

SALE O F B R A Y T O N P O I N T , K I N C A I D A N D E Q U I T Y M E T H O D 

I N V E S T M E N T I N E L W O O D 

In March 2013, Dominion entered inro an agreement with 

Energy Capital Partners to sell Brayton Point, Kincaid, and its 

equity method investment in Elwood. 

In the first and second quarters of 2013, Brayton Point's and 

Kincaid's assets and liabilities to be disposed were classified as 
held for sale and adjusted to their estimated fair value less cost to 

sell, resulting in impairmenr charges roraling $48 million ($28 
million after-rax), which are included in discontinued operarions 

in Dominion's Consolidated Sratements of Income. In both peri­
ods, Dominion used the market approach to esrimate the fair 

value of Brayton Point's and Kincaid's long-lived assets. These 
were considered Level 2 fair value measurements given that they 
were based on the agreed-upon sales price. 

Dominion's 50% interest in Elwood was an equity method 
investment and therefore, in accordance with applicable account­
ing guidance, the carrying amount ofthis investment was not 

classified as held for sale nor were the equity earnings from this 
investment reported as discontinued operations. 

In August 2013, Dominion completed the sale and received 
proceeds of $465 miflion, net of transaction costs. The sale 

resulted in a $35 million ($25 mfllion after-tax) gain attributable 
to its equity method investment in Elwood, which is included in 

other income in Dominion's Consolidated Statement of Income, 
which was partially offset by a $17 million ($18 million after-rax) 

loss attributable to Brayton Point and Kincaid, which includes a 
$16 miflion write-off of goodwfll and is reflected in loss from 
discontinued operations in Dominion's Consolidated Statement 

of Income. 

The following table presents selected information regarding 
the results of operations of Brayton Point and Kincaid, which are 

reported as discontinued operations in Dominion's Consolidated 
Statements of Income: 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 
(millions) 

Operating revenue 

Loss before income taxes 

$304 
(135)11) 

(1) Includes $64 million of charges related to the defeasance of Brayton 
Point debt and the early redemption of Kincaid debt in 2013-

Virginia Power 

A C Q U I S I T I O N O F S O L A R P R O J E C T 

In December 2015, Virginia Power completed the acquisirion of 

100% of a solar development project in North Carolina from 

Morgans Corner for $47 million, all of which was allocated to 

property, plant and equipment. The project was placed into serv­

ice in December 2015 with a total cost of $49 million, including 

the initial acquisition cost. The project generates approximately 

20 M W . The output generated by the project will be used to 

meet a ten year non-jurisdicrional supply agreement with the U.S. 
Navy, which has the unilateral oprion to extend for an addirional 

ten years. In October 2015, the North Carolina Commission 

granted the transfer of the existing C P C N from Morgans Corner 

to Virginia Power. The acquired asset is included in the Virginia 
Power Generation operating segment. 

Dominion and Dominion Gas 

B L U E R A C E R 

See Note 9 for a discussion of transactions related to Blue Racer. 

A S S I G N M E N T S O F S H A L E D E V E L O P M E N T R I G H T S 

See Note 10 for a discussion of assignments of shale development 

rights. 
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N O T E 4. OPERATING REVENUE 

The Companies' operating revenue consists of the following: 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Dominion 
Electric sales: 

Regulated 
Nonregulated 

Gas sales: 
Regulated 
Nonregulated 

Gas transportation and storage 
Other 

$ 7,482 $ 7,460 $ 7,193 
1,488 1,839 2,511 

218 
471 

1,616 
408 

334 
751 

1,543 
509 

323 
930 

1,535 
628 

Total operating revenue 

Virginia Power 
Regulated electric sales 
Other 

Totai operating revenue 

$11,683 

$ 7,482 
140 

$ 7,622 

$12,436 

$ 7,460 
119 

$ 7,579 

$13,120 

$ 7,193 
102 

$ 7,295 

Dominion Gas 
Gas sales: 

Regulated 
Nonregulated 

Gas transportation and storage 
NGL revenue 
Other 

122 

10 
1,366 

93 
125 

209 
26 

1,353 
212 

202 
32 

1,338 
292 

73 

Total operating revenue $ 1,716 $ l.i $ 1,937 

NOTE 5. INCOME TAXES 

Judgment and the use of estimates are required in developing the 
provision for income taxes and reporting of tax-related assets and 
liabilities. The interpretation of tax laws involves uncertainty, since 
tax authorities may interpret the laws dflferently. The Companies 
are routinely audited by federal and state tax authorities. Ultimate 
resolution of income tax matters maytesult in favorable or 
unfavorable impacts to net income and cash flows, and adjust­
ments to tax-related assets and liabilities.could be material. 

In December 2015, U.S. federal legislarion was enacted, pro­
viding an extension of the 50% bonus depreciation allowance for 
qualifying expenditures incurred in 2015, 2016 and 2017, and a 
phasing down of the allowance to 4 0 % in 2018 and 3 0 % In 2019 
and expirarion thereafter. In addirion,,rhe.legislarion extends the 
3 0 % investment tax credit for qualifying expenditures incurred 
through 2019 and provides a phase down ofthe credit to 2 6 % in 
2020, 2 2 % in 2021 and 10% iii 2022 and thereafter. U.S. fcdetal 
legislation had also been enacted in December 2014 to delay the 
expiration ofthe bonus depreciation allowance, but only for one 
year, so that it was available for qualifying expenditures incurred 
during20l4. 

Continuing Operations 
Derails of income tax expense for conrinuing operations including 
noncoritrofling inrerests were as follows: 

Dominian Virginia Power Dominion Gas 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Current: 
Federal 

State 

$ (24)$ (11}$317$3I6$. S5.$357$ 90% 86$15S 

75 14 110 92 67 62 30. 32 41 

Total current 
expense 51 3 427 408 152 419 120 118^ 199 

Deferred; 
Federal 

Taxes before 
operating loss 
carryfonwards and 
investment tax 
credits 

Tax utilization 
(benefit) of 
operating ioss 
carryfoHA'ards 

Investment tax 

384 956 563, 154.381 224 156 192 , 92 

539 (352) (18) 96 — 6 — 

credits 
State • 

Total deferred 
expense • 

(134) (152) 
66 (2) 

855 450 

(48) (11) — — — — — 
(31) 13 16 17 1 24 10 

466 252 397 241 163 216 102 

Amortization of 
deferred 
investment tax 
credits (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) — — 

Total income 
tax expense $ 905 $ 452 $892 $659 $548 $659 $283 $334 $301 

In 2015, Dominion's current federal income tax benefit 
includes the recognition of a $20 million benefit.related to a 
carryback to be filed for nuclear decommissioning expenditures 
included in its 2014 net operating loss. 
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For continuing operations including noncontrolling interests, the statutory U.S; federal income tax rate reconciles to the Companies' 

effective income tax rate as follows: 

Dominion Virginia Power - DominionGas 

Year Ended Dec^mtier 31. • 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 . 2013 

U.S. Statutory rate 35.0% 35,0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 

Increases (reductions) resulting from: ' 
State taxes, net of federal benefit 3.7 — 2.1 3.9 3.8 3.1 2.7 4.4 4.3 
Investment tax credits (4.7) (8.6) (1.8) (0.6) — ' — — — — 
Production tax credits (0.8) (1.2) (0.6) (0.6) (0,6) (0.2) — — — 
Valuation allowances (0.3) 0,7 (0,1) — — ' — — — — 
AFUDC-equity (0.3) — (0,6) (0.6) — (0,8) 0.2 — (0.1) 
Employee stock ownership plan deduction (0.6) (0.9) (0,6) _ _ _ _ _ _ 
Other, net — 0-4 (0.4) 0.6 0,8 (0-4) 0.3 0.1 0.3 

Effective tax rate 32.0% 25.4% 33,0% 37.7% 39.0% 36.7% 38.2% 39.5%. 39.5% 

Dominion's effective tax rate in 2014 reflects the recognition of state tax credits and previously unrecognized tax benefits due to the expira­

tion of statutes of limitations. Dominion Gas' effective tax rate in 2015 reflects a benefit resulting from the impact of changes in the 

allocation of income among states on existing deferred taxes. 

The Companies' deferred income taxes consist of the follow- At December 31 , 2015, Dominion had the following deduc­
ing: tible loss and credit carryforwards: 

' Federal loss carryforwards of $594 million that expire if 
° . ^ ! : : ! ^ Virginia Power DominionGas unutilized during the period 2021 through 2034; 

^'"^^^^'^^^^^ 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 . p^^^^^^ investment tax credirs of $407 miflion that expire if 

'"^'"'°'' ' unurihzed during the period 2033 throiigh 2035; 
Deferred income taxes: , federal producrion and other tax credits of $89 million that 

Total deferred income -̂ ^ if unutilized during the period 2031 through 2035; 
taxassetS $ 1,152$ 2,023$ 164$ 500$ 129$ 227 c i c J r<ri / L - I I - L • -c -i 

Total deferred income ' Srate loss carryforwards of $1.6 billion rhat expire jf unutil-
tax liabilities 8.552 8,663 4,805 4,915 2.343 2,289 '^^'^ * '̂̂ ^^"S ^^^ P^"°*^ ^^^^ through .2034. A valuation 
T , , , , , , allowance on $1.1 billion of these carryforwards has been 
Total net deferred k|- k ^ 

income tax liabilities $ 7.400 $ 6,640 $4.641 $4,415 $2,214 $2,062 established; , . 
• State minimum tax credits of $145 million that do not 

Total deferred income expire; and 
n, ,' . , ^ • Srate investment tax credits of $40 million that expire if 
Plant and equipment, . , . , , - . . , . , , , , ^ 

primarily depreciation unutilized dutmg the period 2019 through 2024. 
method and basis ^^ December 3 1 , 2015, Virginia Power had the following 

^djfferenc.s $ 6,299 $ 5,895 H 1 3 3 $3,965 $1,541 $1,417 ^^^^^^.^,^ ^̂ ^̂  ^^^^^^^.^ carryforwards: . 

decommissioning 1,158 1241 378 474 - - ' Federal loss carryforwards of $7 million that expire if unutil-
Deferred state income ''^^^ during the period 2031 through 2034; 

taxes 646 659 302 299 205 207 " Federal investment, production and other tax credits of $38 
Federal benefit of million that expire if unutilized during the period 2031 

deferred state income through 2035; and 

ta>:es (226) (231) (106) (105) (72) (72) . State investment tax credits of $9 miUlon that expire if unu-
Deferred fuel, purchased ^^^^^ . 2024. 

energy and gas costs (1) 27 (3) 18 1 7 
Pension benefits 291 272 (99) (77) 613 567 At December 3 1 , 2 0 1 5 , Dominion Gas had federal loss carry-
Other postretirement forwards of $10 million that expire if unutUized during the period 

^̂ "̂ f'̂ ^ (15) (17) 30 13 (7) (12) 2031 through 2034 and no credir carryforwards. 
Loss and credit • 

carryforwards (1,004) (1,434) (53) (116) (4) (10) 
Valuation allowances 73 87 — — — — 
Partnership basis 

differences 367 304 — — 41 42 
Other (188) (163) 59 (56) (104) (84) 

Total net deferred 
income tax liabilities $ 7,400 $ 6,640 $4,641 $4,415 $2,214 $2,062 
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C o m b i n e d N o t e s to Conso l ida ted Financial S ta tements , C o n t i n u e d 

A reconciliation of changes in the Companies' unrecognized 
tax benefits follows: 

Dominion Virginia Power Dominion Gas 

2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Balance at January! $145 $222 $293 $ 36 $ 39 $ 57 $29 $29 $30 
Increases-prior period 

positions 2 24 17 — 2 12 — — . — 
Decreases-prior period 

positions (40) (26) (99) (25) (16) (42) — —', (1) 

Increases-current period 
positions 8 16 30 i l l 14 — — . — 

Decreases-current 
period positions — — (5) — — — — — — 

Settlements with tax . 
authorities (5) — (2) — — (2) — — — 

Expiration of statutes of 
[imitations (7) (91) (12) — _ ^ _ — _ 

Balance at December 31 $103$I45$222$ 1 2 $ 3 6 $ 3 9 $29 $29 $29 

Certain unrecognized tax benefits, or portions thereof, if recog­

nized, would affect the effective tax rate. Changes in these 
unrecognized tax benefits may result from remeasurement of 

amounts expected to be realized, settlements with tax authorities 

and expiration of statutes of flmitations. For Dominion and its 

subsidiaries, these unrecognized tax benefits were $69 million, $77 

miflion and $126 million at December 31 , 2015, 2014 and 2013, 

respectively. For Dominion, the change in these unrecognized tax 

benefits decreased income tax expense by $6 milhon, $47 million 

and $29 miflion in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. For 
Virginia Power, these unrecognized tax benefits were $8 million at 

December 3 1 , 2015, 2014 and 2013. For Virginia Power, the 

change in these unrecognized tax benefits affected income tax 

expense by less than $1 million in both 2015 and 2014, and 

increased income tax expense by $4 miflion in 2013. For Domin­

ion Gas, these unrecognized tax benefits were $19 million at 

December 31 , 2015, 2014 and 2013. For Dominion Gas, the 

change in these unrecognized tax benefits afiected income rax • 
expense by less than $1 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013. 

The IRS examinationof taxyears 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 
concluded in late 2013, resulting in a payment of $46 million, 

and an adjustment to a refund previously received by Dominion 
for its carryback of 2008 losses to 2007. The loss carryback, as 

adjusted, was submitted to the U.S. Congressional Joint Commit­
tee on Taxation for review. Early in 2014, Dominion received 

notification that the matter had been resolved with no furrher 
adjustments. 

Effective for its 2014 tax year. Dominion was accepted into 
the CAP. Through the CAP, Dominion has the oppottunity to 

resolve complex tax matters with the IRS before filing its fedetal 
income tax returns, thus achieving certainty for such tax return 

filing positions agreed to by the IRS. Under a Pre-CAP plan, the 
IRS audit of tax years 2012 and 2013 began in early 2014 and 

concluded in late 2015. The IRS audit of CAP tax year 2014 also 
began in 2014. The IRS issued a partial acceptance letter in late 
2015 and completed its post-filing review ofthe 2014 tax year in 

early 2016. The IRS audit of CAP rax year 2015 began in 2015. 
Accordingly, Dominion's earliest tax year remaining open for 

federal examination is 2015. 

It is reasonably possible that settlement negotiations and 

expiration of statutes of limitations could result in a decrease in 
unrecognized tax benefits in 2016 by up to $30 miflion for 

Dominion and $22 million for Dominion Gas. If such changes 
were to occur, other than revisions of the accrual for interest on 

tax underpayments and overpayments, earnings could increase by 
up to $15 million for Dominion and $10 miflion for Dominion 

Gas. 

Otherwise, with r e ^ r d to 2015 and prior years, Dominion 

and Dominion Gas cannot estimate the range of reasonably 
possible changes to unrecognized tax benefits that may occur in 

2016. 

After considering the possibflity of potential changes in the 

status of its remaining unrecognized tax benefits, Virginia Power 

has concluded that no significant changes are reasonably possible 

to occur in 2016. -

For each ofthe major states in which Dominion operates, the 

earliest tax year remaining open for examination is as follows: 

Earliest 
Open Tax 

State Year 

2010 
2012 
2012 
2012 
2007 

Pennsylvania"* 
Connecticut 
Virginiais) 
West Virginia"! 
New Yorkii> 

(1) Considered a major state for Dominion Gas' operatiom. 
(2) Considered a major state for Virginia Power's operations. 

The Companies are also obligated to report adjustments result­
ing from IRS settlements to state tax authorities. In addition, if 

Dominion utilizes operating losses or tax credits generated in 

years for which the statute of limitations has expired, such 

amounts are generally subject to examination. 

Discontinued Operations 
Details of income tax expense for Dominion's discontinued 

operations were as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(millions) 

Current: 
Federal 
State" 

Total current benefit 

Deferred: 
Federal 
State 

Total deferred expense 

Total income tax benefit 

$(274) 
(41) 

(315) 

232 
40 

272 

$ (43) 
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Dominion's effective tax rate for 2013 reflects the impact of 
goodwill written off in the sale of Kincaid and Brayton Point that 
is not deductible for tax purposes. 

NOTE 6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly trans­

action between marker participants at the measurement date. 
However, the use of a mid-market pricing convention (the mid­
point between bid and ask prices) is permitted. Fair values are 

based on assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing an asset or liability, including assumprions about risk and 

the risks inherent in valuation techniques and the inputs to valu­
ations. This includes not only the credit standing of counter-

parries involved and the impact of credit enhancements but also 
the impact of the Companies' own nonperformance risk on their 

liabilities. Fair value measurements assume that the transaction 
occurs in the principal market for the asset or liability (the market 

with the most volume and activity for the asset or liability from 

the perspecrive of the reporting entity), or in the absence of a 

principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability (the market in which the reporting entity would be able 
to maximize the amount received or minimize the amount paid). 

Dominion and Virginia Power apply fair value measurements to 

ceftain assets and liabilities including commodity and interest rate 

derivative instruments, and nuclear decommissioning trust and 

other investments including those held in Dominion's rabbi, 

pension and other postreriremenr benefit plan trusts, in accord­

ance with the requirements described above. Dominion Gas 

applies fair value measurements to certain assets and liabflities 
induding commodity and interest rate derivative instruments and 

investments held In pension and other postretitement benefit plan 

trusts, in accordance with the requirements described above. The 

Companies apply credit adjustments to their derivative fair values 

in accordance with the requirements described above. These 

credit adjustments are currently not material to the derivative fair 

values. 

Inputs and Assumptions 
The Companies maximize the use of observable inputs and 
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair 

value. Fair value is based on actively-quoted marker prices, if 
available. In the absence of actively-quoted marker prices, price 

information is sought from external sources, including broker 
quotes and industry publications. When evaluating pricing 
information provided by brokers and other pricing services, the 

Companies consider whether the broker is willing and able to 

trade at the quoted price, if the broker quotes are based on an 
active market or an inactive market and the extent to which brok­
ers are utilizing a particular model if pricing is not readily avail­

able. If pricing informarion from external sources is not available, 
or if the Companies believe that observable pricing is not 

indicative of fair value, judgment is required to develop the esri­
mates of fair value. In those cases the Companies must estimate 

prices based on available historical and near-term future price 
informarion and certain statistical methods, including regression 

analysis, that reflect rheir market assumptions. 

T h e Companies' commodity derivative valuations are pre­
pared by Dominion's ERM department. The ERM department 
creates daily mark-to-marker valuations for the Companies' 

derivative transactions using computer-based statistical models. 
The inputs that go into the market valuations are transactional 

informarion stored in the systems of record and market pricing 
informarion that resides in data warehouse darabases. The 

majority of forward prices are automatically uploaded into the 
data warehouse databases from various third-party sources. Inputs 

obtained from third-party sources are evaluated for reflabfliry 
considering the reputation, independence, market presence, and 
methodology used by the third-party. If forward prices are not 

available from rhird-party sources, then the ERM department 
models the forward prices based on other available market data. A 

team consisting of risk management and risk quantitative analysts 
meets each business day to assess the vafldity of market prices and 

mark-to-market valuations. During this meeting, the changes in 

mark-to-market valuations from period to period are examined 

and qualified against historical expectations. If any discrepancies 

are identified during this process, the mark-to-market valuations 

or the market pricing information is evaluated further and 

adjusted, if necessary. 

For, options and contracts with option-like characteristics 

where observable pricing information is nor available from external 

sources, Dominion and Virginia Power generally use a modified 

Biack-Scholes Model that considers time value, the volatiflty of the 

underlying commodities and other relevant assumptions when 

esrimaring feir value. Dominion and Virginia Power use other 

option models under special circumstances, including a Spread 

Approximation Model when contracts include different commod­
ities or commodity locations and a Swing Option Model when 

contracts allow either the buyer or seller the ability to exercise 

within a range of quanrities. For contracts with unique character­

istics, rhe Companies may estimate fair value using a discounred 

cash flow approach deemed appropriate in the circumstances and 

applied consistently from period to period. For individual con­

tracts, the use of different valuation models or assumptions could 

have a significant effect on the contract's estimated fair value. 

The inputs and assumptions used in measuring fair value 
include the foflowing: 

For commodity derivative contracts: 

• Forward commodity prices 

" Transacrion prices 

" Price volatility 
' Price correlation 

• Volumes 

• Commodity locarion 
• Interest rates 

" Credit quality of counterparties and the Companies 
Credit enhancements 

• Time value 
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For interest rate derivative contracts: 
• Interest rate curves 

• Credit quality of counterparries and the Companies 
• Volumes 

• Credit enhancements 
• Time value 

For investments: 

• Quoted securities prices and indices 

• Securiries trading information including volume and 
restrictions 

• Maturity 
• Inrerest rares 

• Credit quality 

• NAV (for alternative investments and common/collective 

trust fiinds) 

The Companies regularly evaluate and validate the inputs 

used to estimate fair value by a number of methods, including 
review and verification of models, as well as various market price 

verification procedures such as the use of pricing services and 

multiple broker quotes to support the market price of the vatious 

cornmodities and investments in which the Companies transact. 

Levels 
The Companies also utilize the following fair value hierarchy, 
which prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to 

measure fair value into rhree broad levels; 

' Level 1—C^uoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 

identical assets and liabilities that they have the ability to 
access at the measurement date. Instruments categorized in 

Level I primarily consist of financial instruments such as cet-

tain exchange-traded derivatives, and exchange-listed equities, 

mutual funds and certain Treasury securities held in nuclear 

decommissioning tiust funds for Dominion and Virginia 

Power, benefit plan trust funds for Dominion and Dominion 

Gas, and rabbi trust funds for Dominiori. 

• Level 2—Inputs other than quoted prices included within 
Level 1 thar are either directly or indirectly observable for the 

asset or flability, including quoted prices for similar assers or 

liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or sim­
ilar assers or liabilities in Inactive markets, inputs other than 

quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and 

inputs that are derived from observable market data by 
correlation or orher means. Instruments categorized in Level 2 
primarily include commodity forwards and swaps, interest 

rate swaps, restricted cash equivalents, and certain Treasury 
securities, money market funds, common/collective ttust 

funds, and corporate, state and municipal debt securities held 
in nuclear decommissioning trust fijnds for Dominion and 

Virginia Power, benefit plan trust flinds for Dominion and 
Dominion Gas, and rabbi trust funds for Dominion. 
Level 3—Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, includ­

ing situations where there is flttle, if any, market activity for 
the asset or flability. Instruments categorized in Level 3 for the 

Companies consist of long-dated commodity derivatives, 
FTRs, natural gas peaking options and other modeled com­

modity derivatives. Additional insttuments categorized in 
Level 3 for Dominion and Dominion Gas include alternative 

investments, consisting of investments in partnerships, joint 
ventures and.other alternative investments, held in benefit 
plan trust funds. 

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted 

prices in active markets (Level 1) and-the lowest priority to 
unobservable data (Level 3). In some cases, the inputs used to 

measure fair value might fall in different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy. In these cases, the lowest level input that is significant to 
a fair value measurement in its entirety determines the applicable 

level in the fair value hierarchy. Assessing the significance of a par­
ticular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires 

judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability. 

For derivative contracts, the Companies recognize transfers 
among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 based on fair values as of the 

first day ofthe month in which the transfer occurs. Transfers out 
of Level 3 represent assets and liabilities that were previously 
classified as Level 3 for which the inputs became observable for 

classification in either Level 1 or Level 2. Because the activity and 

liquidity of commodity markets vary substantially between 

regions and time periods, the availability of observable inputs for 
substantially the full term and value of rhe Companies' over-the-

counter derivative contracts is subject to change. 

Level 3 Valuations 
Fair value measurements are categotized as Level 3 when price or 

other inputs that are considered to be unobservable are significant 

to their vaJuarions. Long-dated commodity derivatives are gen­

erally based on unobservable inputs due to the length of time to 

settlement and the absence of market activity and are therefore 

caregorized as Level 3. FTRs are categotized as Level 3 fait value 

measurements because the only relevant pricing avaflable comes 

from ISO auctions, which are generally not considered to be liq­

uid markets. Other modeled commodity derivatives have 
unobservable inputs in their valuation, mostly due to non- trans­

parent and illiquid marke:ts. Alternative investments are catego­

rized as Level 3 due to the absence of quoted market prices, 

ifliquidity and the long-term nature of these assets. These invest­

ments are generally valued using NAV based on the proporrionate 

share of the fair value as determined by reference to the most 

recent audited fair value financial statements or fair value state­

ments provided by the investment manager adjusted for any sig­
nificant events occurring between the investment manager's and 
the Companies' measurement date. 

The Companies enter into certain physical and financial 

forwards, fiitures, options and swaps, which are considered Level 
3 as they have one or more inputs that are not observable and are 
significant to the valuation. The discounted cash flow method is 

used to value Level 3 physical and financial forwards and futures 
contracts. An oprion model is used to value Level 3 physical and 

financial options. The discounted cash flow model for forwards 
and futures calculates mark-ro-marker valuations based on for­

ward market prices, original transaction prices, volumes, risk-free 
rate of return, and credit spreads. The option model calculates 
mark-to-market valuations using vatiations of the Black-Scholes 

option model. The inputs into the models are the forward market 
prices, implied price volatilities, risk-free rate of return, the option 

expiration dates, the option strike prices, rhe original sales prices. 
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and volumes. For Level 3 fair value measurements, fotward matr' 

ket prices, credit spreads and implied price volarilities are consid­

ered unobservable. The unobservable inputs are developed and 

substantiated using historical information, available market data. 

third-party data, and statisricaJ analysis.. Periodically, inputs to 

vaJuarioh models are reviewed and revised as needed, based on 

historical informarion, updated market dara, marker liquidity and 

relationships, and changes in third-party pricing sources. 

The following table presents Dominion's quantitative information about Level 3 fair value measurements at December 3 1 , 2015. The 

range and weighted avetage are presented in dollars for market price inpurs and percentages for price volatility and credit spreads. 

Assets: 
Physical and Financial Fonwards and Futures; 

Natural Gasi2> 

Liquldsi3) 
FTRs 

Physical and Financial Options; 
Natural Gas 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Ptiysical and Financial Forwards and Futures: 

Natural Gas'S' 
FTRs 

Physical and Financial Options: 
Natural Gas 

Total liabilities 

Fair Value (millions) 

$ 97 

4 
9 

4 

$114 

$ 9 
3 

7 

$ 19 

Valuation Techniques 

Discounted Cash Flow 

Discounted Cash Flow 
Discounted Cash Row 

Option Model 

Discounted Cash Flow 
Discounted Cash Flow 

Option Model 

Unobservable Input 

Market Price (per Dth)w> 
Credit Spreadi5) 

Market Price (per GaD^i 
Market Price (per MWh)"' 

Market Price (per Dth}w 
Price Volatilityiei 

Market Price (per Dth)'-« 
Market Price (per MWh)'* 

Market Price (per Dth)W 
Price Volatility's' 

Range 

( 2 ) - 8 ' 
1% - 6% 

0 - 2 
(2} -14 

2 - 3 
25% - 58% 

(2 ) -3 
(9 ) -9 

2 - 5 
25% - 58% 

Weighted 
Average"! 

(1) 
3% 
1 
1 

3 
37% 

2 
2 

3 
35% 

(1) Averages weighted by volume. 
(2) Includes basts. 
(3) Includes NGLs and oil 
(4) Represents market prices beyond defined terms for Levels 1 and 2. 
(5) Represents credit spreads unrepresented in published markets. 
(6) Represents volatilities unrepresented in published markets. 

Sensitivity of the fair value measurements to changes in the 

significant unobservable inputs is as follows: 

Significant Unobservable 
Inputs 

Market Price 
Market Price 
Price Volatility 
Price Volatility 
Credif Spread 

Position 

Buy 
Sell 
Buy 
Sell 
Asset 

Change to Input 

Increase (decrease) 
Increase (decrease) 
Increase (decrease) 
Increase (decrease) 
Increase (decrease) 

Impact on Fair Value 
Measurement 

Gain (loss) 
Loss (gain) 
Gain (loss) 
Loss (gain) 
Loss (gain) 

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements 

DOMINION 

See Note 3 for information regarding the sale of Brayton Point, 

Kincaid and Dominion's equity method investment in Elwood. 

DOMINION GAS 

Natural Gas Assets 

In the fourth quarter of 2014, Dominion Gas recorded an 

impairment charge of $9 million ($6 miUion after-tax) in other 

operations and maintenance expense in its Consolidated State­

ments of Income, to write off previously capitalized costs foflow­

ing the canceflarion of a development project. 

In June 2013, Dominion Gas purchased certain natural gas 

infrastructure facilities that were previously leased from third par­

ties. The purchase price was based on terms in the lease, which 

exceeded current market pricing. As a result of the purchase price 

and expected losses. Dominion Gas recorded an impairment 

charge of $49 miflion ($29 million after-tax) in other operations 

and maintenance expense in its Consolidated Statements of 

Income, to write down the long-lived assets to their estimated fair 

values of less than $1 million. As management was not aware of 

any recent market rransacrions for comparable assers wirh suffi­

cient transparency to develop a market approach to fair value. 

Dominion Gas used the income approach (discounted cash flows) 

to estimate the fair value of the assets in this impairment test. 

This was considered a Level 3 fair value measurement due to the 

use of significant unobservable inputs, including estimates of 

futute production and other commodity prices. 
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Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued 

Also in June 2013, Dominion Gas recorded an impairment 
charge of $6 million ($4 million after-rax) in other operations and 
maintenance expense in its Consolidated Statements of Income, 
to write off previously capitalized costs follovwing the cancellation 
of two development projects. 

Recurring Fair Value Measurements 
Fair value measurements are separately disclosed by level within 
the fair value hierarchy with a separate reconciliation of fair value 
measurements categorized as Level 3. Fair value disclosures for 
assets held in Dominion's and Dominion Gas' pension and other 
postretirement benefit plans are presented in Note 21. 

DOMINION 

The following table presents Dominion's assets and liabilities that 
are measured at fair valiie on a recurring basis for each hierarchy 
level, including both current and noncurrent portions: " 

(mill ions) • • 

At December 31, 2015 
Assets: 

Derivatives: 
Commodity 
Interest rate 

Investments"'-. 
Equity securities: 

U.S.: 
Large Cap 
Other 
REIT 

Non-U.S.: 
Large. Cap 

Fixed Income: 
Corporate debt 

instruments 
U.S. Treasury securities 

anti agency debentures 
State and municipal 
Other 

Cash equivalents and other 

Total assets 
Liabilities: 

Derivatives; 
Commodity 
Interest rate 

Total liabilities 

At December 31,2014 
Assets: 

. Derivatives-. _ . . , 
Commodity 

... interest rate 
Investments'": 

Equity securities: 
U.S.: 

Large Cap 
..•-.. Other 

Non-U.S.: 
Large Cap :• --:: 

Fixed Income: 
Corporate debt 
i instruments .' 

• U.S. Treasury securities . 
and agency debentures 

State and municipal 
Other 

Cash equivalents and other 

Total assets 
Liabilities: ^ 

Derivatives; 
Commodity 

Interest rate 

Total liabilities 

Level 1 • 

} 1 
— 

2,547 
5 

63 

10 

— 

458 

— 
— 
2 

$3,086 

$ -
— 

$ -

$ 3 

— . 

2,669 
.6 

: 12 

. —̂  

419 

— 
— 
3 

. $3,112 

$ 3 

— 
$ 3 

' Level 2 

$ 249 
24 

. — 
— 
— 

—.. 

437 

201 
376 
100 

2 

$1,389 

$ 141 
183 

$ 324 

$ 567 
.24 

— 
— 

• - - ^ — : . 

; -441 

190 
395 

74 
10 

,$1,701 • 

$ 571 

202 

$ 773 

Level 3: 

$114 
— • 

_ — 
— 
"— 

^ 

— 

— . 
_ • 

— 
_ 

$114 

$ 19 
— -

$ 19 

$125 

, .— 

— -
.— 

- — • • 

— 

— 
•" — 

— 
— 

$125 

$ 18 

— 
$ 18 

- • Tolal 

$ 364 
24 

2,547 
5 

63 

10 

437 

659 
376 
100 

4 

$4,589 

$ ISO 
183 

$ 343 

$ 695 
24 

2,669 
• 6 

-•- 12 

441 

609 
•395 

74 
13 

$4;938 

$ 592 

202 

$ 794 

(1) Includes investments held in the nuclear decommissioning and rabbi 
trusts. 
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The following table ptesents the net change in Dominion's 
assets and liabilities measured at fiiir value on a recurring basis and 
included in the Level 3 fair value category: 

2015 2014 2013 
(millions) 

Balance at January 1, 
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses): 

Included in earnings 
Included in other comprehensive income 

(loss) 
Included in regulatoiy assets/liabilities 

Settlements 
Transfers out of Level 3"> 

$107 $(16) $ 2 5 

(5) 97 (9) 

(9) 7 1 

(4) 109 (9) 
9 (88) (23) 

(3) (2) (1) 

Balance at December 31, $ 95- $107 $(16) 

The amount of tolal gains (losses) for the period 
included in earnings attributable to the 
change in unrealized gains (losses) relating to 
assets still held at the reporting date $ 2 6 $ — 

(1) In March 2015, Dominion changed the classification of certain short 
term NGL derivatives from Level 3 to Level 2 due to an increase in liq­
uidity in financial forward markets. The transfers out of Level 3 that 
relate to NGLs for the year ended December 31, 2015 were $9 million. 

The following table presents Dominion's gains, and losses 
included in earnings in the Level 3 fair value category: 

Electric 
-Fuel and -

Other 
Energy-

Operating Related Purchased. 

Revenue Purchases Gas Total 

(millions) 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 
Total gains (losses) included in 

earnings 
The amount of total gains (losses) for 

the period included in earnings 
attributable to the change in 
unrealized gains (losses) relating to 
assets still held at the reporting date 

$ 6 $(J1) $ - ${5) 

1 1 — 2 

Year Ended December 31,2014 
Total gains (losses) included in 

earnings $ 4 .%91 $(4) $97 
The amount of total gains (losses) for 

the period included in earnings 
attributable to the change in 
unrealized gains (losses) relating to 
assets still held at the reporting date -4 1 1 6 

Year Ended December 31,2013 
Total gains (losses) included in 

earnings 
The amount of total gains (losses) for 

the period included in earnings 
attributable to the change in 
unrealized gains (losses) relating to 
assets still held at the reporting date 

$11 $(19) $(1) $(9) 

(1) 

99 



Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued 

VIRGINIA POWER . 

The following table presents Virginia Power's quantitative information about Level 3 fair,value measurements at December 3 1 , 2015. The 

range and weighted average are presented in dollars for market price inputs and percentages for credit spreads. 

Assets: 
Physical and Financial Forwards and Futures: 

FTRs 
Natural gasi^i 

total assets 

Fair Value 
Imillions) 

$ 9 
92 

$101 

Valuation Techniques 

Discounted Cash Flow 
Discounted Cash Flow 

Unobsen/able Input 

Ivlarket Price (per MWh)i3' 
Market Price (per Dth)(3' 

Credit Spread^ 

Range 

(2) -14 • 
(2 ) -4 

l % - 6 % 

Weighted Average"* 

1 

(1) 
3% 

Liabilities: 
Physical and Financial FonA'ards and Futures: 

FTRs 
Physical and Financial Options: 

Natural gas 

$ 3 Discounted Cash Flow Market Price (per MWh)i3) - (9) - 9. 

5 Discounted Cash Flow Market Price (per Dth)i3i 2 - 5 

Price Volatilityis' 32% - 38% 

3 
35% 

Total liabilities $ 8 

(1) Averages weighted by volume. 
(2) Includes basis. 
(3) Represents market prices beyond defined terms for Levels 1 and 2. 
(4) Represents credit spreads unrepresented in published markets. 
(5) Represents volatilities unrepresented in published markets. 
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Sensirivity of the fair value measurements to changes in the 
significant unobservable inputs is as follows; 

Significant Unobservable 
Inputs 

Market Price 
Market Price 

Price Volatility 

Price Volatility 

Credit Spread 

Position 

Buy 
Sell 

Buy 

Sell 

Asset 

Change to Input 

Increase (decrease) 
Increase (decrease) 

Increase (decrease) 

Increase (decrease) 

Increase (decrease) 

Impact on Fair Value 
Measurement 

Gain (loss) 
Loss (gain) 

Gain (loss) 
Loss (gain) 

Loss (gain) 

The following table presenrs Virginia Power's assets and 
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis for each 
hierarchy level, including both current and noncurrent poitions: 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

(miJlions)_ 

AtDecemberSl, 2015 
Assets: 

Derivatives: 
Commodity 

Interest rate 
Investments*!': 

Equity securities: 

U.S.: 

Large Cap 
REIT 

Fixed Income: 
Corporate debt instruments 
U.S. Treasury securities and 

agency debentures 
State and municipal 
Other 

— 238 — 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 

Derivatives: 

Commodity 

Interest rate 

Total liabilities — $ 78 

At December 3 1 , 2014 
Assets: 

Derivatives: 

Commodity 
Investments"': 

Equity securities: 
U.S.: 

Large Cap 
Fixed Income: 

Corporate debt instruments 
U.S. Treasury securities and 

agency debentures 
State and municipal 
Other 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Derivatives: 

Commodity 
Interest rate 

Total liabilities 

Total 

— $ 13 $101 $ 114 
— 13 — 13 

1,100 — — 1,100 
63 — — 63 

238 

180 79 — 259 
— 175 — 175 
— 34 — 34 

$1,343 $552 $101 $1,996 

— $ 19 $ 8 $ 27 
— 59 — 59 

8 $ 86 

i — $ 7 $106 $ 113 

1,157 — — 1,157 

— 250 ~ 250 

137 61 — 198 

— 211 — 211 
— 23 — 23 

$1,294 $552 $106 $1,952 

$11 $ 4 $ 15 
72 — 72 

$ 83 $ 4 $ 87 

(!) Includes investments held in the nuclear decommissioning and rabbi 
trusts. 

The following table presents the net change in Virginia Pow­
er's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis 

and included in the Level 3 fair value category: 

(millions) 

Balance at January 1, 

Total realized and unrealized gains (losses): 

Included in earnings 

Included in regulatory assets/liabilities 
Settlements 

Transfers out of Level 3 

Balance at December 3 1 , 

2015 

$102 

(13) 
(5) 
13 
(4) 

$ 93 

2014 

$ (7) 

96 
109 
(96) 

„ 

$102 

2013 

$ 2 

(17) 

(9) 
17 
— 

$ (7) 

The gains and losses included in earnings in the Level 3 fair 

value category were classified in electric fuel and other energy-
related purchases expense in Virginia Power's Consolidated 

Statements of Income for the years ended December 31 , 2015, 
2014 and 2013. There were no unrealized gains and losses 

included In earnings in the Level 3 fait value category relating to 

assets/habihties still held at the reporting date for the years ended 

December 3 1 , 2015, 2014 and 2013. 

DOMINION GAS 

The following rable presents Dominion Gas' quantitative 
information about Level 3 fair value measurements at 

December 3 1 , 2015. The range and weighted average are pre­

sented in dollars for market price inputs and percentages for 

credit spreads. 

Fair Value Valuation Unobservable Weighted 
(millions) Techniques Input Range Average"! 

Assets: 
Physical and Financial 

Fonwards and Futures: 
NGLs $6 Discounted Market 0 - 1 1 

Cash Flow Price 
(per Gal)f2i 

Total assets $6 

(1) Averages weighted by volume. 
(2) Represents market prices beyond defined terms for Levels I and 2. 
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C o m b i n e d N o t e s to Conso l ida ted Financial S ta tements , C o n t i n u e d 

, The following table presents Dominion. Gas' assets and 
liabilities for commodity and interest rate derivatives that are 

measured at fair value on a recurring basis for each hierarchy level, 
including both current and noncurrent portions: 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

(millions) 

At December 31,2015 
Assets: 

Commodity $— $ 5 $ 6 $11 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Interest rate 

Total liabilities 

At December 31,2014 
Assets: 

Commodity 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Interest rate 

Total liabilities 

$ -

$ -
$ -

$ -
^~ 

$ -
^ 

$ 5 

$14 

$14 

$ -
$ -

$ 9 

$ 9 

$ 6 

$_ 

$ -

$ 2 

$ 2 

$ -
$ -

$11 

$14 

$14 

$ 2 

$ 2 

9 

$ 9 

The following table presents the net change in Dominion 

Gas' derivative assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a 

recurring basis and included in the Level 3 fair value category: 

2015 2014 2013 
(millions) 
Balance at January 1, $ 2 $ (6) $(12) 

Total realized and unrealized gains (losses): 

Included in earnings 1 2 1 
Included in other comprehensive income 

(loss) (5) 10 3 
Settlements (1) (4) 2 
Transfers out of Level B^D 9 — — 

Balance at December 3 1 , $ 6 $ 2 $ (6) 

(!) In March 2015, Dominion Gas changed the classification of certain 
short term NGL derivatiees from Level 3 to Level 2 due to an increase in 
liquidity in financialfonpard markets. The transfers out of Level 3 that 
relate to NGLs for the year ended December 31, 2015 were $9 million. 

The gains and losses included in earnings in the Level 3 fair 
value category were classified in operating revenue in Dominion 
Gas' Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended 

December 3 1 , 2015, 2014 and 2013. There were no unrealized 
gains and losses included in earnings In the Level 3 fair value 

category relating to assets/liabilities still held at the reporting date 
for the years ended December 3 1 , 2015, 2014 and 2013. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Substanrially all of the Companies' fmancial instruments are 
recorded at fair value, with the exception ofthe instruments 
described below, which are reported at historical cost. Estimated 

lair values have been determined using available marker 
information and valuation methodologies considered appropriate 

by management. The carrying amounr of cash and cash equiv-
alenrs, restricted cash (which is recorded in other current assets), 

customer and other receivables, short-term debt, affiliated current 
borrowings, payables to affiliates and accounts payable are repre­

sentative of fair value because of the short-term nature of these 
instruments. For the Companies' fmancial instruments that are 
not recorded at fair value, the carrying amounts and estimated fair 

values are as follows: . 

AtDecemberSl, 2015 2014 
Carrying Estimated Fair 
Amount ValueC) 

Carrying Estimated 
Amount FairValue'i' 

(millions) 

Dominion 
Long-term debt, including 

securities due within one 
year'2i $21,998 $23,210 $19,723 $21,881 

Junior subordinated 
notes® 1,358 1,192 1,374 1,396 

Remarketable 
subordinated notesi3> 2,086 2,129 2,083 2,362 

Virginia Power 
Long-term debt, including 

securities due within one 
yeari3i $ 9,425 $10,400 $ 8,937 $10,293 

Dominion Gas 
Long-term debt, including 

securities due within one 
year'3) $ 3,292 $ 3,299 $ 2,594 $ 2,672 

(1) Fair value is estimated using market prices, where available, and interest 
rates currently available for issuance of debt with similar terms and 
remaining maturities. All fair value measurements are classified as Level 
2. The carrying amount of debt issues with short-term maturities and 
variable rates refinanced at current market rates is a reasonable estimate 
of their fair value. 

(2) Carrying amount includes amounts which represent the unamortized 
discount and/or premium. At December 3 ! . 2015, and 2014, includes 
the valuation of certain fair value hedges associated with Dominion's 
fixed rate debt, of $7 million and $19 million, respectively. 

(3) Carrying amount includes amounts which represent the unamortized 
discount and/or premium. 
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NOTE 7. DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE 
ACCOUNTING ACTIVITIES 

The Companies are exposed to the impact of marker flucruarions 
in the price of electricity, natural gas and other energy-related 

products they market and purchase, as well as interest rate risks of 
their business operations. The Companies use derivative instru­

ments to manage exposure to these risks, and designate certain 
derivative insttuments as fair value or cash flow hedges for 
accounting purposes. As discussed in Note 2, for jurisdictions 

subject to cost-based rate regularion, changes in the fair value of 
derivatives are deferred as regulatory assets ot regulatory liabilities 

until the related rransacrions impact earnings. See Note 6 for 
further informarion abour fair value measurements and associated 

valuation methods for derivatives. 

Derivative assets and liabilities are presented gross on the 
Companies' Consolidated Balance Sheets. Dominion's derivative 

contracts include both over-the-counter transactions and those 
that are execured on an exchange or other trading platform 

(exchange contracts) and centrally cleared. Virginia Power's and 

Dominion Gas' derivative contracts include over-the-counter 

rransacrions. Over-the-counter contracrs are bilateral contracts 
that are transacted directly with a third party. Exchange contracts 

urilize a fmancial intetmediary, exchange, or clearinghouse to 
enter, execute, or clear the transactions. Certain over-rhe-counter 

and exchange contracts contain contractual rights of setoff 
through master netting arrangements, derivative clearing agree­

ments, and contract default provisions. In addirion, the contracts 
are subject to conditional rights of setoff through counterparty 

nonperformance, insolvency, or other conditions. 

In general, most over-the-counter transactions and all 
exchange contracts are subject to collateral requirements. Types of 

collateral for over-the-counter and exchange contracts include 
cash, letters of credit, and other forms of security, none of which 
are subject to restrictions. Cash collateral is used in the table 

below to offset derivative assets and liabilities. Certain accounts 
receivable and accounts payable recognized on the Companies' 

Consolidated Balance Sheets, as well as letters of credir and other 
forms of security, all of which are not included in the tables 

below, are subject to offset under master netting or similar 

arrangements and would teduce the net exposure. 
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DOMINION 

Balance Sheet Presentation 
The tables below present Dominion's derivative asser and liability balances by type of financial instrument, before and after the effects of 

offsetting: 

December 31, 2015 December 31,2014 

Gross 
Amounts of 
Recognized 

Assets 

Grass Amounts 
Offset in the 

Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

Net Amounts of 
Assets 

Presented in the 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

Gross 
Amounts of 
Recognized 

Assets 

Gross Amounts 
Offset in ttie 

Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

Net Amounts of 
Assets 

Presented in ttie 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

(millions) 

Interest rate contracts: 
Over-the-counter 

Commodity contracts: 
Over-the-counter 
Exchange 

$ 24 

217 
138 

$ 24 $ 24 $ -

217 
138 

379 

9 

382 
298 

704 

15 

$ 24 

382 
298 

Total derivatives, subject to a master netting or similar 
arrangement 

Total derivatives, not subject to a master netting or similar 
arrangement 

379 

9 

704 

15 

Total $388 $— $388 $719 %— . $719 

December 31,2015 

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2014 

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Net Amoutits of 
Assets Presented 

in the 
Consolidated 

Balance Sfieet 
Financial 

(nstruroents 

Cash 
Collateral 
HeceiVBti 

Net 
Amounts 

Net Amounts of 
Assets Presented in 

the Consolidated 
Balance SJieet 

Financial 
Iristruments 

Cash 
Collateral 
Received 

Net 
Amounts 

Imillions) 

Interest rate contracts: 
Over-the-counter 

Commodity contracts: 
Over-the-counter 
Exchange 

$ 24 

217 
138 

$ 22 

37 
82 

E - $ 2 

— 180 
— 56 

$ 24 

382 
298 

$ 16 

34 
298 

34 314 

Total $379 $141 f— $238 $704 $34 $322 

December 31, 2015 December 31. 2014 

Gross 
Amounts of 
Recognized 

UatiilHies 

Gross Amounts 
Offset in the 

Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

Net Amounts of 
Liabilities 

Presented in the 
Consolidated 

Balance Street 

Gross 
Amounts of 
Recognized 

Liabilities 

Gross Amounts 
Offset in the 

Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

Net Amounts of 
Liatjilities 

Presented in the 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

(millions) 

Interest rate contracts: 
Over-the-counter 

Commodity contracts: 
Over-the-counter 
Exchange 

$183 

70 
82 

$ - $183 $202 $ -

70 

82 

335 

S 

87 
493 

782 

12 

$202 

87 
493 

Total derivatives, subject to a master netting or similar 
arrangement 

Total derivatives, not subject to a master netting or similar 
arrangement 

335 

6 

782 

12 

Total $343 $ - $343 $794 $794 
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December 31,2015 December 31, 2014 

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Net Amounts of 
Liabilities 

Presented in the 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 
Financial 

Instruments 

Cash 
Collateral 

Paid 
Net 

Amounts 

Net Amounts of 
Liabilities Presented 
in the Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 
Financial 

Instruments 
Cash Collateral Net 

Paid Amounts 

(millions) 

Interest rate contracts : 

Over-the-counter 

Commodity contracts: 

$183 $ 22 $— $161 $202 $ 16 

Over-the-counter 
Exchange 

Total 

70 
82 

$335 

37 
82 

$141 

— 

$_ 

33 

$194 

87 
493 

$782 

34 
298 

$348 

1 
195 

$196 

52 

$238 

Volumes 
The following table presents the volume of Dominion's derivative 
activity as of December 3 1 , 2015- These volumes are based on 
open derivative positions and represent the combined absolute 

value of rheir long and short positions, except in the case of off­

setting transactions, for which they represent the absolute value of 

the net volume of their long and short positions. 

Current Noncurrent 

Natural Gas (bcf): 
Fixed phce'" 
Basis 

Electricity (MWh): 
Fixed phce 
FTRs 

Capacity (MW) 
Liquids (Gal)f2> 
Interest rate 

80 
216 

15,661,078 
33,350,993 

7,600 
83,076,000 

$2,950,000,000 

19 
554 

18,606,000 
$3,100,000,000 

(!) Includes options. 
(2) Includes NGD and oil 

Ineffectiveness and AOCI 
For the years ended December 3 1 , 2015, 2014 and 2013, gains or 

losses on hedging instruments determined to be ineffective and 
amounts excluded from the assessment of effectiveness were not 

material. Amounts excluded from the assessment of effectiveness 

include gains or losses attributable to changes in the time value of 
options and changes in the differences between spot prices and 
forward prices. 

The following table presents selected information related to 

gains (losses) on cash flow hedges included in AOCI in Domin­
ion's Consohdated Balance Sheet at December 31 ,2015 : 

AOCI 
After-Tax 

$ (7) 

76 
6 

(251) 

Amounts Expected 
to be Reclassified 

to Earnings during 
the next 12 

Months After-Tax 

$(7) 
76 
6 

(9) 

Maximum 
Term 

22 months 

12 months 
15 months 

387 months 

(milliohs) 

Commodities: 
Gas 
Electricity 
Other 

Interest rate 

Total $(176) $66 

The amounts that will be reclassified from AOCI, to earnings 

will generally be offset by the recognition ofthe hedged trans­

actions {e.g., anticipated sales) in earnings, rhereby achieving the 
realization of prices contemplated by the underlying risk 

management strategies and will vary from the expected amounts 

presented above as a result of changes in marker prices and inter­

est rates. 
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Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued 

Fair Value and Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments 
The following tables present the fair values of Dominion's 

derivatives and where they are presented in its Consolidated Bal--

ance Sheets: 

Fair Value -
Derivatives 

under 
Hedge 

Accounting 

Fair Value -
Derivatives 
not under 

Hedge 
Accounting 

Total 
Fair 

Value 

(millions) 

At December 3 1 , 2015 
ASSETS 
Current Assets 
Commodity 
Interest rate 

Total current derivative assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Commodity 
Interest rate 

Total noncurrent derivative assets'" 

Total derivative assets 

$101 
3 

104 

3 
21 

24 

$128 

$151 

151 

109 

109 

$260 

$252 
3 

255 

112 
21 

133 

$388 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 
Commodity 
Interest rate 

Total current derivative liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Commodity 
Interest rate 

Total noncurrent derivative 
Iiabilitiesi2i 

Total derivative liabilities 

$ 32 
164 

196 

19 

19 

$215 

$116 

116 

12 

12 

$128 

$148 
164 

312 

12 
19 

31 

$343 

At December 31,2014 
ASSETS 
Current Assets 
Commodity 
Interest rate 

Totai current derivative assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Commodity 
Interest rate 

Total noncurrent derivative assets^n 

Total derivative assets 

$281 
13 

294 

71 
11 

82 

$376 

$242 

242 

101 

101 

$343 

$523 
13 

536 

172 
11 

183 

$719 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Commodity 
Interest rate 

$224 

100 

$267 $491 

— 100 

Total current derivative liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Commodity 
Interest rate 

Totai noncurrent derivative 
liabilities<2i 

Total derivative liabilities 

324 

55 
102 

157 

$481 

267 

46 

46 

$313 

591 

101 
102 

203 

$794 

(1) Noncurrent derivative assets are presented in other deferred charges and 
other assets in Dominion's Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

(2) Noncurrent derivative liabilities are presented in other deferred credits 
and other liabilities in Dominion's Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

The following tables present the gains and losses on Domin­

ion's derivatives, as well as where the associated activity is pre­

sented in its Consohdated Balance-Sheets and Statements of 

Income: 

Derivatives in cash flow hedging relationships 

Amount of 
Gain (Loss) Increase 
Recognized Amount of (Decrease) in 
in AOCI on Gain (Loss) Derivatives 
Derivatives Reclassified Subject to 

(Effective from AOCI Regulatory 
Portion)"! to Income Treatment*^' 

(millions) 

Year Ended December 31,2015 

Derivative Type and Location of Gains 
(Losses) -. 
Coni'modity: 

Operating revenue 
Purchased gas 
Electric fuel and other energy-reiated 

$203 
(15) 

purchases 

Totai commodity 

Interest rate'^' 

Total 

$230 

(46) 

$184 

: (1) 

$ 187 

(11) 

$ 176 

$ 4 

(13) 

$ (9) 

Year Ended December 3 1 , 2014 

Dehvative Type and Location of Gains 
(Losses) 
Commodity: 
. Operating revenue 

Purchased gas 
Electric fuel and other energy-related 

$(130) 
(13) 

purchases 

Total commodity 

Interest rate'^i 

Total 

$245 

(208) 

$ 37 

7 

$(136) 

(16) 

$(152) 

$ (4) 

(81) 

$(85) 

Year Ended December 31,2013 

Derivative Type and Location of Gains 
(Losses) 
Commodity: 

Operating revenue 
Purchased gas 
Eiecthc fuel and other energy-related 

$ (58) 
(47) 

purchases 

Totai commodity 

Interest rateP' ' 

Total 

$(481) 

77 

. • $(404) 

(10) 

$(115) 

(15) 

$(130) 

$ 5 

8 1 

$ 8 6 

(1) Amounts deferred into AOCI have no associated effect in Dominion's 
Consolidated Statements of Income. 

(2) Represents net derivative activity deferred into and amortized out of 
regulatory assets/liabilities. Amounts deferred into regulatory assetsl 
liabilities have no associated effect in Dominion's Consolidated State­
ments of Income. 

(3) Amounts recorded in Dominion's Consolidated Statements of Income are 
classified in interest and related charges. 

Derivatives not designated as hedging 
instruments 

Amount of Gam (Loss) Recognized in 
Income on Derivativesm 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Derivative Type and Location of Gains 
(Losses) 
Commodity: 

Operating revenue 
Purchased gas 
Electric fuel and other energy-related 

purchases 
Interest rate'^i 

$ 24 $(310) $(45) 
(14) (51) (9) 

(14) 
(1) 

113 (29) 

Total $ (5) $(248) $(83) 
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(1) Includes derivative activity amortized out of regulatory assetslHabilities. Amounts deferred into regulatory assetsl liabilities have no associated effect in Domin­
ion's Consolidated Statements of Income. 

(2) Amounts recorded in Dominion's Consolidated Statements of Income are classified in interest and related charges. 

VIRGINIA POWER 

Balance Sheet Presentation 
The tables below present Virginia Power's derivative asset and liability balances by type of financial insttument, before and after the effects 
of offsetting: 

December 31,2015 December 31, 2014 

Gross 
Amounts of 
Recognized 

Assets 

Gross Amounts 
Offset in ttie 

Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

Hex Amounts of 
Assets Presented 

in the 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

Gross 
Amounts of 
Recognized 

Assets 

Gross Amounts 
Offset in ttie 

Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

Net Amounts ot 
Assets Presented 

in the 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

(millions) 

Interest rate contracts: 
Over-the-counter 

Commodity contracts: 
Over-the-counter 

$ 13 

101 

$ - $ 13 

101 106 106 

Total derivatives, subject to a master netting or similar 
arrangement 

Total derivatives, not subject to a master netting or similar 
arrangement 

114 

13 

114 

13 

106 

7 

106 

7 

Total $127 $ - $127 $113 $— $113 

December31,2015 

Gross Amounts Not Offset 
in the Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2014 

Gross Amounts Not Offset in 
the Consolidated Balance 

Sheet 

Net Amounts of 
Assets Presented 

in fhe 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 
Financial 

Instruments 

Cash 
Collateral 
Received 

Net 
Amounts 

Net Amounts of 
Assets Presented iri 

the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

Financial 
Instruments 

Cash Collateral 
Received Net Amounts 

(millions) 

Interest rate contracts: 

Over-the-counter 

Commodity contracts-. 

$ 13 $10 $ _ $ 3 

Over-the-counter 

Total 

101 

$114 

3 

$13 

— 
$ -

98 

$101 

106 

$106 

4 

$ 4 

— 102 

$— $102 

December 31,2015 December 31, 2014 

Gross 
Amounts of 
Recognized 

Liabilities 

Gross Amounts 
Offset in the 

Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

Net Amounts ol 
Liabilities 

Presented in the 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

Gross 
Amounts of 
Recognized 

Liabilities 

Gross Amounts 
Offset in the 

Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

Net Amounts of 
Liabilities 

Presented in the 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

(millions) 

Interest rate contracts: 

Over-the-counter 

Commodity contracts: 
Over-the-counter 

$59 

5 

$59 

5 

$72 $ - $72 

Total derivatives, subject to a master netting or similar 
arrangement 

Totai derivatives, not subject to a master netting or similar 
arr3r\gement 

Total 

64 

22 

$86 $ -

64 

22 

$86 

80 

7 

$ -
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Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued 

December 3t , 2015 December 31, 2014 

(milfions) 

Interest rate contracts: 
Over-the-counter 

Commodity contracts: 
Over-the-counter 

Gross Amounts Nat Offset 
in the Consolidated Balance 

Sheet 

Gross' Amounts Not Offset 
In the Consolidated Balance 

Sheet 

Net Amounts of 
Liabilities 

Presented in the 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

$59 

5 

Financial 
Insttuments 

$10 

3 

Cash 
Collateral 

Paid 

$ -

_ 

Net 
Amounts 

$49 

2 

Net Amounts of 
Liabilities Presented 
in the Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

$72 

S 

-Financial 
Instruments 

$ -

4 

Cash Collateral 
Paid 

$ -

_ 

Net Amounts 

$72 

4 

Total $64 $13 .$- $51 . $ 4 ^ . $76 

Volumes 
The following table presents the volume of Vitginia Power's 

derivative activity at Decembet 31 , 2015. These volumes are 

based on open derivative positions and represent the combined 

absolute value of their long and short positions, except in the case 

of offsetting transactions, for which they represent rhe absolute 

value ofthe net volume of their long and shott positions. 

Current Noncurrent 

Natural Gas (bcf) : 

Fixed price!" 
Basis 

Electhcity (MWh): 
FTRs 

Capacity (MW) 
Interest rate 

32 
102 

30,383,934 
7,600 

$900,000,000 

10 
509 

$1,100,000,000 

(1) Includes options. 

Ineffectiveness 
For rhe years ended December 3 1 , 2015, 2014 and 2013, gains or 

tosses on hedging instruments determined to be ineffective were 

not material. 

Fair Value and Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments 
The following tables present the fair values of Virginia Power's 

derivatives and where they are presented in its Consolidated Bal­

ance Sheets: 

(millions) 
At December 31,2015 
ASSETS 
Current Assets 

LtABILITlES 
Current Liabilities 
Commodity 

Interest rate 

FgirValue - Fair Value-
Derivatives Derivatives 

under not under Total 
Hedge Hedge Fair 

Accounting Accounting Value 

Commodity 

Totai current derivative assets'^' 

Noncurrent Assets 
Commodity 

Interest rate 

Total noncurrent derivative assets'^' 

Total derivative assets 

$ -
— • 

13 

13 

$13 

$ 18 $ 18 

18 18 

96 96 

— 13 

96 109 

$114 $127 

57 

23 $ 23 

~ 57 

Total current derivative liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Commodity 
Interest rate 

Total noncurrent derivative liabilitiesi^t 

Total derivative liabilities 

At December 31,2014 
ASSETS 
Current Assets 
Commodity 

Total current derivative assets'" 

Noncurrent Assets 
Commodity 

Total noncurrent derivative assets'^' 

Total derivative assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 
Commodity 
Interest rate 

Total current derivative liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Interest rate 

Total noncurrent derivative liabilitiesi^' 

Total dehvative liabilities 

57 

2 -

2 

$59 

$ -
— 

_ 
— 

$ -

$ 3 
45 

48 

27 

27 

$75 

23 80 

4 4 
— 2 

4 6 

$ 27 $ 86 

$ 51 $ 51 

51 51 

62 $ 62 

62 62 

$113 $113 

$ 12 $ 15 
— 45 

12 60 

— 27 

— 27 

$ 12 $ 87 
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( 0 Current derivative assets are presented in other current assets in Virginia 
Power's Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

(2) Noncurrent derivative assets are presented in other deferred charges and 
other assets in Virginia Power's Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

(3) Noncurrent derivative liabilities are presented in other deferred credits 
and other liabilities in Virginia Power's Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

The following tables present the gains and losses on Virginia 
Power's derivatives, as well as where the associated activity is pre­

sented in its Consolidated Balance Sheets and Statements of Income: 

Derivatives not designated as hedging 
instruments 

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized 
in Income on Derivatives'" 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Derivative Type and Location of Gains 
(Losses) 
Commodity'^' $(13) $105 $(16) 

Total $(13) $105 $(16) 

Derivatives in cash flow hedging 
relationships 

Amount of 
Gain (Loss) 
Recognized 
in AOCI on 
Derivatives 

(Effective 
Portion)"' 

Amount of 
Gain (Loss) 

Reclassified 
from AOCI to 

Income 

Increase 
(Decrease) in 

Derivatives 
Subject to 
Regulatory 

Treatment'^) 

(1) Includes derivative activity amortized out of regulatory assetslHabilities. 
• Amounts deferred into regulatory assetslHabilities have no associated 

effect in Virginia Power's Consolidated Statements of Income. 
(2) Amounts recorded in Virginia Power's Consolidated Statements of 

Income are classified in electric fitel and other energy-related purchases. 

(millions) 

Y0ar Ended December 31,2015 

Dehvative Type and Location of Gains 
(Losses) 
Commodity: 

Eiecthc fuel and other energy-
related purchases 

Total commodity 

Interest rate'S' 

Total 

$ -
(3) 

$ (3) 

$(1) 

$(1) 

— 
$(1) 

$ 4 

(13) 

$ (9) 

Year Ended December 3 1 , 2014 

Dehvative Type and Location of Gains 
(Losses) 
Commodity: 

Electric fuel and other energy-
related purchases $ 5 

Total commodity 

Interest rate'^) 

Total 

$ 4 

(10) 

$ (6) 

$ 5 

— 
$ 5 

$ (4) 

(81) 

$(85) 

Year Ended December 31,2013 
Dehvative Type and Location of Gains 

(Losses) 
Commodity: 

Electric fuel and other energy-
related purchases 

Totai commodity 

Interest rate'^' 

Total 

$ -
9 

$ 9 

$ -
— 

$ -

$ 5 

81 

$85 

(1) Amounts deferred into AOCI have no associated effect in Virginia Pow­
er's ConsolldatedStatements of Income. 

(2) Represents net derivative activity deferred into and amortized out of 
regulatory assets/liabilities. Amounts deferred into regulatory assets/ 
liabilities have no associated effect in Virginia Power's Consolidated 
Statements of Income. 

(3) Amounts recorded in Virginia Power's Consolidated Statements of 
Income are classified in interest and related charges. 
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DOMINION GAS 

Balance Sheet Presentation 

The tables below present Dominion Gas' derivarive asset and liability balances by type of financial instrument, before and after rhe effects 
of offsetting: 

0ecem()er31,20T5 December 31, 2014 

Gross 
Amounts of 
Recognized 

Assets 

Gross Amounts 
Offset in ttie 

Consolidated 
SaiancB Sheet 

Net Amounts of 
Assets Presented 

In the 
Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

Gross 
Amounts of 
Recognized 

Assets 

Gross Amounts 
Offset in the 

Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

Net Amounts of 
Assets Presented 

in tile Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

(millions) 

Commodity contracts: 
Over-the-counter 

Totai derivatives, subject to a master netting ot slmWar 
arrangement 

$11 $ -

$11 $— 

$11 

$11 

$2 

$2 

$ -

^ 

$2 

$2 

December 31, 2015 

Gross Amounts Not Offset 
in the Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2014 

Gross Amounts Not 
Offset in the Consolidated 

Balance Stieet 

Net Amounts of 
Assets Presented 

in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 

Financial 
Instruments 

Cash 
Collateral 
Received 

Net 
Amounts 

Net Amounts of 
Assets Presented 

- in the O^nsolidated 
Balance Slieet 

Financial 
Instruments 

Cash 
Collateral 
Received 

Net 
Amounts 

(millions) 

Commodi ty contracts: 

Over- the-counter 

Total 

$11 

$11 

$ -
$ -

3^ 
$_ 

$11 

$11 

$2 

$2 

$ -
$ -

$ - $2 

$ - $2 

December 3 t , 2015 December 31, 2014 

Gross 

Net Amounts 
Gross of Liabilities 

Amounts Presented in 
Offset in the the Gross 

Net 
Amounts of 

Gross Liabilities 
Amounts Presented In 

Offset in the the 
Amounts of Consolidated Consolidated Amounts of Consolidated Consolidated 
Recognized Balance Balance Recognized Balance Balance 

(millions) 

Interest rate contracts: 
Over-the-counter 

Total derivatives, subject to a 

Liabilities 

$14 

master netting or similar arrangement $14 

Sheet Sheet 

$ - $14 

$— $14 

Liabilities Sheet 

- $9 ^ 

$9 $ -

Sheet 

$9 

$9 

(millions) 

Interest rate contracts: 
Over-the-counter 

Net Amounts of 
Liabilities Presented 
in the Consolidated 

Balance Sheet 

$J4 

December 31,2015 

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Financial Cash Collateral 
Instruments Paid 

$ - $ -

Net Amounts of 
Liabilities Presented 

Net In ttieConsolidaled 
Amounts Balance Sheet 

$14 $9 

December 31, 2014 

Gross Amounts Not Offset in 
the Consolidated Balance 

Sheet 

Financial Cash Collateral 
Instruments Paid 

$ - s -

Net 
Amounts 

$9 

Total $14 $ - $ - $14 $-. 
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Volumes 
The following table presents the volume of Dorninion Gas' 
derivative activity at December 3 1 , 2015. These volumes are 

based on open derivative positions and represent the combined 
absolute value of rheir long and short positions, except in the case 
of offsetting transactions, for which they represent the absolute 

value of the net volume of their long and short positions. 

Current Noncurrent 

NGLs (Ga!) 
Interest rate 

77,364,000 
$250,000,000 

13,818,000 

Ineffectiveness and AOCI 
For the years ended December 3 1 , 2015, 2014 and 2013, gains or 
losses on hedging instruments determined to be ineffective were 

not material. 
The following table ptesents selected information related to 

gains (losses) on cash flow hedges included in AOCI in Domin­

ion Gas' Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 3 1 , 2015: 

AOCI 
After-Tax 

Amounts Expected 
to be Reclassified 
to Earnings during 

the next 12 
Months After-Tax 

Maximum 
Term 

(millions) 

Commodities: 
NGLs 

Interest rate 
$ 7 

(24) 
$ 6 1Smontt)S 

— 348 months 

Total $(17) $ 6 

The amounts that will be reclassified from A O C I to earnings 

will generally be offset by the recognirion of the hedged trans­

actions (e.g., anticipated sales) in earnings, thereby achieving rhe 

realization of prices contemplated by the underlying risk 

management strategies and will vary from the expected amounts 
presented above as a result of changes in market prices and inter­

est rates. 

Fair Value and Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments 
The following tables present the fair values of Dominion Gas' 
derivatives and where they are presented in its Consolidated Bal­

ance Sheets: 

Fair Value -
Derivatives 

under 
Hedge 

Accounting 

Fair Value -
Derivatives 
not under 

Hedge 
Accounting 

Total 
Fair 

Value 

(millions). 

At December 3 1 , 2015 
ASSETS 
Current Assets 
Commodity 

Total current derivative assets'" 

Noncurrent Assets 
Commodity 

Total noncurrent derivative assets'^' 

Total dehvative assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 
Interest rate 

Total current derivative liabilities^^) 

Tolal derivative liabilities 

$10 

10 

1 

1 

$11 

$14 

14 

$14 

$ -
— 

— 
$ -

$ -
— 

$ -

$ 1 0 

w 

1 

1 

$11 

$14 

14 

$14 

At December 31,2014 
ASSETS 
Current Assets 
Commodity 

Total current derivative assets'" 

Total derivative assets 

LIABILITIES 
Noncurrent Liabilities 

Interest rate 

Tota! noncurrent derivative liabilities''*! 

Tota! derivative liabilities 

$ 2 

2 

$ 2 

$ 9 

9 

$ 9 

$ -
— 

$ -

$ -
— 

^ 

$ 2 

2 

$ 2 

$ 9 

9 

$ 9 

(1) Current derivative assets are presented in other current assets in Domin­
ion Gas' Consolidated Balance Sheets. • 

(2) Noncurrent derivative assets are presented in other deferred charges and 
other assets in Dominion Gas' Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

(3j Current derivative liabilities are presented in other current liabilities in 
Dominion Gas' Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

(4) Noncurrent derivative liabilities are presented in other deferred credits 
and other liabilities in Dominion Gas' Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
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C o m b i n e d N o t e s to Conso l ida ted Financia l S ta tements , C o n t i n u e d 

The following rabJes present the gains and losses on Domin­
ion Gas' .derivatives, as well as where the associated activity is 
presented in its Consolidated Balance Sheets and Statements of 
Income: 

Derivatives not designated as hedging 
instruments 

Amount of Gairi,(Loss) Recognized 
in Income on Derivatives 

Derivatives in cash flow hedging 
relationships 

(millions) 

Year Ended December 3 1 , 2015 
Derivative Type and Location of Gains (Losses) 

Commodity: 
Operating revenue 

Total commodity 

Interest rate'^i 

Total 

Amount of Gain 
(Loss) 

Recognized in 
AOCI on 

Derivatives 
(Effective 
Portion)! n 

$ 1 6 

(6) 

$ 10 

Amount of 
Gain (Loss) 
Reclassified 
rom AOCI to 

Income 

$ 6 

$ 6 

— 
$ 6 

Year Ended December 31, 

(millions) 

Derivative Type and Location of Gains 
(Losses) 
Commodity 

Operating revenue 

Total 

201S 

$6 

$6 

2014 

$ -
$ -

2013 

$ -
$ -

Year Ended December 3 1 , 2014 
Derivative Type and Location of Gains (Losses) 

Commodity: 
Operating revenue 
Purchased gas 

$ 2 
(14) 

Total commodity 

Interest rate's 

Total 

$ 1 2 

(62) 

${50) 

$(12) 

(1) 

${13) 

Year Ended December 31,2013 
Derivative Type and Location of Gains (Losses) 

Commodity: 
Operating revenue 
Purchased gas 

$ (2) 
(14) 

Total commodity 

Interest rate'^* 

Total 

$ (2) 

68 

$65 

$(15) 

— 
$(16) 

(1) Amounts deferred into A OCl have no associated effect in Dominion Gas' 
Consolidated Statements of Income. 

(2) Amounts recorded tn Dominion Gas' Consolidated Statements of Income 
are classified in interest and related charges. 

N O T E 8. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

T h e follov^ing table presents the calculat ion o f D o m i n i o n ' s basic and d i lu ted EPS: 

(millions, exceotEPS) 
Net income attributable to Dominion 

Average shares of common stock outstanding-Basic 
Net effect of dilutive securities'" 

Average stiares of common stoci< outstanding-Diluted 

Earnings Per Common Share-Basic 
Earnings Per Common Share-Diluted 

2015 

$1,899 

592.4 
1.3 

593.7 

$ 3.21 
$ 3.20 

2014 

$1,310 

582.7 
1.8 

584.5 

$ 2.25 
$ 2.24 

2013 

$1,697 

578.7 
0.8 

579.5 

$ 2.93 
$ 2.93 

(1) Dilutive securities consist primarily ofthe 2013 Equity Units for 2015, ^he 2013 Equity Units and contingently convertible senior notes for 2014, and con­
tingently convertible senior notes for 2013. Dominion redeemed all of its contingently convertible senior notes in 2014. See Note 17 for more information. 

The 2014 Equity Unlrs are potentially dilutive secuiities but were excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS for rhe year ended 
December 31 , 2015 as inclusion would have been antidilutive. The 2014 Equity Units were excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS 
for the year ended December 31 , 2014, as the dilutive stock price Threshold was not met. The 2013 Equity Units are potentially dilutive 
securities but were excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS fot the year ended December 31 , 2013. See Note 17 for more 
information. 
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NOTE 9. INVESTMENTS 

DOMINION 

Equity and Debt Securities 
RABBI T R U S T SECURITIES 

iVlarketabie equity and debt securities and cash equivalents held in Dominion's rabbi trusts and classified as trading totaled $100 million 

and $110 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

DECOMMISSIONING T R U S T SECURITIES 

Dominion holds marketable equity and debt securities (classified as available-for-sale), cash equivalents and cost method investments in 

nuclear decommissioning trust funds to fund future decommissioning costs for its nuclear plants. Dominion's decommissioning trust 

funds are summarized below; 

Amortized 
Cost 

Total 
Unrealized 

Gains") 

Total 
Unrealized 

Losses'" 
Fair 

Value 

imillions) 

At December 31, 2015 
Marl<etable equity securities: 

U.S. large cap 
REIT 

IVlarketabie debt securities: 
Corporate debt instruments 
U.S. Treasury securities and agency debentures 
State and municipal 
Other 

Cost method investments 
Cash equivalents and otî er̂ î 

$1,295 
59 

433 
654 
312 

99 
70 
14 

$1,213 
4 

11 
8 

22 

— 
— 
— 

$ -
— 

(7) 

(4) 

— 
— 
— 
— 

$2,506 
63 

437 
658 
334 

99 
70 
14 

Total $2,936 $1,258 $(11)0) $4,183 

At December 31, 2014 
Marketable equity securities: 

U.S. large cap 
IVlarketabie debt securities: 

Corporate debt Instruments 
U.S. Treasury securities and agency debentures 
State and municipal 
Other 

Cost method investments 
Cash equivalents and other's) ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 

$1,273 $1,353 — $2,626 

424 
597 
332 

56 

19 
13 
23 

— 

(2) 
(4) 

— 
— 

441 
606 
355 

56 

16 16 

Total $2,794 $1,408 $ (6)'3i $4,196 

(1) Included in AOCI and the nuclear decommissioning trust regulatory liability as discussed in Note 2. 
(2) Includes pending sales of securities of $12 million and $3 million, at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
(3) The fair value of securities in an unrealized loss position was $592 million and $379 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

The fair value of Dominion's marketable debt securities held 

in nuclear decommissioning trust funds at December 3 1 , 2015 by 

contractual maturity is as follows: 

Amount 

Presented below is selected informadon regarding Dominion's 

marketable equity and debt securiries held in nuclear decom­

missioning trust funds: 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Due in one year or less 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years ttirough ten years 
Due after ten years 

208 
396 
412 
512 

(millions) 

Proceeds from sales 
Realized gains'" 
Realized losses"' 

$1,340 
219 
64 

$1,235 
171 
30 

$1,475 
157 
33 

Total $1,528 
(1) Includes realized gains and losses recorded to the nuclear decommission­

ing trust regulatory liability as discussed in Note 2. 
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Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued 

Dominion recorded other-than-temporary impairment losses 

on investments held in nuclear decommissioning trust funds as 

follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Total other-than-temporary impairment losses"' 
Losses recorded to nuclear decommissioning 

trust regulatory liability 
Losses recognized in other comprehensive 

income (before taxes) 

$ 66 • $21 $ 31 

(26) (5) (13) 

(9) (3) (10) 

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings $ 31 $13 $ 

(1) Amounts include other-than-temporary impairment losses for debt secu­
rities of $9 million, $3 million and $18 million at December 31, 2015, 
2014and2013, respectively. 

VIRGINIA POWER 

Virginia Power holds marketable equity and debt securities 

(classified as available-for-sale), cash equivalents and cost method 

investments in nuclear decommissioning trust funds to fund 

future decommissioning costs for its nuclear plants. Virginia 

Power's decommissioning trust funds are summarized below: 

Amortized 
Cost 

Total 
Unrealized 

Gains"! 

Total 
Unrealized 

Losses"' 
Fair 

Value 

(millions) 
At December 31,2015 
Marketable equity securities: 

U.S. large cap 
REIT 

Marketable debt securities: 

Corporate debt instruments 
U.S. Treasury securities and 

$ 574 
59 

237 

$525 
4 

$— $1,099 
— 63 

(4) 238 

agency debentures 
State and municipal 
Other 

Cost method investments 
Cash equivalents and other'^i 

Total 

At December 31,2014 

Marketable equity securities: 
U.S. large cap 

Marketable debt secuhties: 
Corporate debt iristruments 
U.S. Treasury secuhties and 

agency debentures 
State and municipal 

-Other • • 
Cost method investments 
Cash equivalents and other's' 

260 
162 
34 
70 

8 

$1,404 

$ 553 

242 

197 
197 

23 
86 

6 

1 
13 

— 
— 
— 

$548 

$594 

9 

3 
13 

— 
— 
— 

(2) 

( I ) 

— 
— 
— 

259 
174 
34 
70 

8 

$(7)" ' $1,945 

$ -

(1) 

(2) 
• — 

— 
— 
— 

$1,157 

250 

198 
210 

23 
86 

6 

Total $1,314 $519 $(3)(5) $1,930 

(1) Included in AOCI and the nuclear decommissioning trust regulatory 
liability as discussed in Note 2. 

(2) Includes pending sales of securities of $8 million and $6 million at 
December 31, 2015 and 20l4, respectively. 

(3) The fair value of securities in an unrealized loss position was $281 mil­
lion and $170 million at December 31, 2015 and2014, respectively. 

The fair value of Virginia Power's marketable debt securities 

at December 31 , 2015, by contractual maturity is as follows: 

Amount 

(millions) 

Due in one year or less 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 

$ 67 
166 
236 
236 

Total $705 

Presented below is selected information regarding Virginia 

Power's marketable equity and debt securities held in nuclear 

decommissioning trust funds. 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Proceeds from sales 
Realized gains'" 
Realized losses'" 

$639 $549 $572 
110 73 52 
43 12 14 

(1) Includes realized gains and losses recorded to the nuclear decommission­
ing trust regulatoiy liability as discussed in Note 2. 

Virginia Power recorded other-than-temporary impairment 

losses on Investments held in nuclear decommissioning trust 

funds as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 201S 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Total Other-than-temporary impairment losses'" $ 36 $ 8 $ 15 
Losses recorded to nuclear decommissioning 

trust regulatory liability (26) (4) (13) 
Losses recorded in other comprehensive income 

(before taxes) (6) (2) (1) 

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings $ 4 $ 2 $ 1 

(1) Amounts include other-than-temporary impairment losses for debt secu­
rities of $6 million, $2 million and $9 million at December 31, 2015, 
20l4and2013. respectively. 

EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS 

Dominion and Dominion Gas 
Investments that Dominion and Dominion Gas account for 

under rhe equity method of accounting are as follows: 

Company Ownersliip% 
Investment 

Balance Description 

Asof December 31," 2015 2014 

(millions) 
Dominion 
Blue Racer 

Iroquois 
Fowler Ridge 

NedPower 

Atlantic Coast 

. 50% $ 661 $ 671 Midstream gas and 
related sen/ices 

50.55%<" 324 107 Gas transmission system 
50% 125 134 Wind-powered merchant 

generation facility 
50% 119 128 Wind-powered merchant 

generation facility 

Pipeline 
Othert^' 

Total 
Dominion Gas 
Iroquois 

Total 

45% 59 19 Gas transmission system 
various 32 22 

$1,320 $1,081 

24.72% $ 102 $ 107 Gas transmission system 

$ 102 $ 107 

(1) Comprised of Dominion Midstream's interest of25.93% and Dominion 
Gas'interest of 24.72%. See Note 15 for more information. 

(2) Dominion has a $50 million commitment to Invest in clean power and 
technology businesses through 2018. 
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Dominion's equity earnings on its investments totaled $56 

million, $46 million and $14 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively. Dominion received distributions from these invest­

ments of $83 million, $60 million and $33 million in 2015, 
2014, and 2013, respectively. As of December 3 1 , 2015 and 
2014, the carrying amount of Dominion's investments exceeded 

its share of underlying equity in net assets by $234 million and 
$ 126 million, respectively. These differences are comprised at 

December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014, of $72 miUion and $87 miUion, 
respectively, related ro basis difllerences from Dominion's invest­

ments in Blue Racer and wind projects, which are being amor­
tized over the useful Uves of the underlying assets, and $162 

million and $39 million, respectively, reflecting equity method 
goodwill that is not being amortized. 

Dominion Gas' equity earnings on its investment totaled $23 

million, $21 million and $22 milhon in 2015, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively. Dominion Gas received distributions from its 

investment of $28 million, $20 milhon and $19 million in 2015, 
2014, and 2013, respectively. As of December 3 1 , 2015 and 

2014, the carrying amount of Dominion Gas' investment 

exceeded its share of underlying equity in net assets by $8 million. 

The diffetence reflects equity method goodwill and is not being 

amortized. 

Equity earnings are recorded in other income in Dominion's 

and Dominion Gas' Consolidated Statements of Income. 

B L U E R A C E R 

In December 2012, Dominion formed a joint venture with 

Caiman to provide midstream services to natural gas producers 

operaring in the Utica Shale region in Ohio and portions of 
Pennsylvania. Blue Racer is an equal partnership between Domin­

ion and Caiman, with Dominion contributing midstream assets 

and Caiman contributing private equity capital. 

In Match 2013, Dominion Gas sold Line TL-404 to an affili­
ate, that subsequently sold line TL-404 to Blue Racer for cash 

proceeds of $47 million. The sale resulted in a gain of $25 million 

($14 million after-tax) net of a $2 milUon write-off of goodwill, 

and is incltided in other operations and maintenance expense in 

both Dominion Gas' and Dominion's Consolidated Statement of 

Income. 

Phase 1 of Natrium was completed in the siscond quarter of 
2013 and was contributed by Dominion to Blue Racer in the 
third quarter of 2013 , resulting in an increased equity method 

investment in Blue Racer of $473 million. Also in the third quar­
ter of 2013, Dominion Gas sold Line TPL-2A to an affdiate, that 

subsequently sold Line TPL-2A to Blue Racer, and sold Line TL-
388 to Blue Racer and received $78 million in cash proceeds. The 

sales resulted in a $74 million ($41 million after-tax) gain which 
is included in other operations and maintenance expense in both 
Dominion Gas' and Dominion's Consolidated Statements of 

Income. 

In the fourth quarter of 2013, Dominion Gas sold the West­
ern System to an affiliate, that subsequently sold the Western 
System to Blue Racer for cash proceeds of $30 milUon. The sale 

resulted in a gain of $3 million ($2 milUon after-tax) for Domin­
ion Gas and $4 million ($2. million after-tax) for Dominion and 

is included in other operations and maintenance expense in both 
Dominion Gas' and Dominion's Consolidated Statement of 

Income, 

Dominion N G L Pipelines, LLC was contributed in January 
2014 by Dominion to Blue Racer, prior to commencement of 
service, resulting in an increased equity method investment of 

$155 million, including $6 milUon of goodwill allocated from 
Dominion's goodwill balance to its equity method investment in 

Blue Racer. 

In March 2014, Dominion Gas sold the Northern System to 
an affiliatCi that subsequently sold the Northern System to Blue 

Racer fbr consideration of $84 million. Dominion Gas' consid­
eration consisted of $17 million in cash proceeds and the 

extinguishment of affiliated cutrent boctowings of $67 million 

and Dominion's consideration consisted of cash proceeds of $84 

milhon. The sale resulted in a gain of $59 million ($35 million 
after-tax for Dominion Gas and $34 million after-tax for Domin­

ion) net of a $3 million write-off of goodwill, and is included in 

other operations and maintenance expense in both Dominion 

Gas' and Dominion's Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Dominion 

A T L A N T I C C O A S T P I P E L I N E 

In September 2014, Dominion, along with Duke Energy, Pied­

mont and AGL, announced the formation of Atlantic Coast Pipe­

line. The members, which are subsidiaries of the above-referenced 

parent companies, hold the following membership interests: 

Dominion, 4 5 % ; Duke Energ)', 40%; Piedmont, 10%; and AGL, 

5%. In October 2015, Duke Energy entered into a merger 

agreement with Piedmont. The Atlantic Coast Pipeline partner­
ship agreement Includes provisions to allow Dominion an option 

to purchase additional ownership interest in Atlantic Coast Pipe­

line to maintain a leading ownership percentage. Atlantic Coast 

Pipeline is focused on constructing an approximately 600-mile 

natural gas pipeline running from West Virginia through Virginia 

to North Carolina. Subsidiaries andafTiliates of all four members 
plan to be cusromers of the pipeline under 20-year contracts. 
Public Service Company of North Carolina, Inc. also plans to be 

a customer of the pipeline under a 20-year contract. Atlantic 
Coast Pipeline is considered an equity method investment as 

Dominion has the ability to exercise significant influence, but not 
control, over the investee. See Note 15 for more information. 
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Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued 

N O T E 10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Major classes of property, plant and equipment and their 
respective balances for the Companies are as follows: 

AtDecemberSl, 

(mjliionsl 

Dominiott 
Utility: 

Generation 
Transmission 
Distribution 
Storage 

Nuclearfuel 
Gas gathering and processing 
General and other 
Other-including plant under construction 

Total utility 

Nonutility: 

Merchant generation-nuclear 
Merchant generation-other 
Nuclear fuel 

Other-including plant under construction 

Total nonutility 

Total property, plant and equipment 

Virginia Power 
Utility; 

Generation 
Transmission 
Distribution 
Nuclear fuel 
General and other 

Other-including plant under construction 

Total utility 

Nonutility-other 

Total property, plant and equipment 

Dominion Gas 
Utility: 

Transmission 
Distribution 
Storage 

Gas gathering and processing 
General and other 

Plant under construction 

Total utility 

Nonutility: 

E&P properties being amortized and other 

Total nonutility 

Total property, plant and equipment 

2015 

$15,656 
11,461 

13,128 
2,460 
1,464 

799 

927 
5,550 

51,445 

1,339 
2,683 

938 
1,371 

6,331 

$57,776 

$15,656 
6,963 

10,048 
1,464 

709 
2,793 

37,633 

6 

$37,639 

$ 3,804 
2,765 
1,583 

797 
165 
443 

9,557 

136 

136 

$ 9,693 

2014 

$15,193 
9,897 

12,354 
2,350 
1,411 

791 
845 

3,633 

45,474 

• 1,267 
2,023 

860 
782 

4,932 

$51,406 

$15,193 
5,884 

9,526 
1,411 

697 
2,464 

35.175 

. 5 

$35,180 

$ 3,690 
2,530 
1,466 

786 
111 
179 

8,762 

140 

140 

$ 8,902 

There were no significant E&P properties under development, 
as defined by the SEC, excluded from Dominion Gas' amor­
tization ac December 31 , 2015. As gas and oil reserves are proved 
through drilling or as properties are deemed to be impaired, 
excluded costs and any related reserves are ttansfetred on an 
ongoing, welJ-by-well basis into the amortization calculation. 

In 2015, Dominion Gas recorded a ceiUng test impairment 
charge of $16 million ($10 million after-tax) in other operations 
and maintenance expense in its Consohdated Statement of 
Income. Dominion sold substantially all its Appalachian E&P 

properties in April 2010, retaining only wells in and around 
DTI 's storage faciUties. The net book basis of the remaining 
properties as of December 3 1 , 2015 is $ l 4 miUion. 

Jointly-Owned Power Stations 
Dominion's and Virginia Power's proportionate shate of jointly-

owned power stations at December 3 1 , 2015 is as follows: 

(millions, except percentages) 

Ownership interest 
Plant in service 
Accumulated depreciation 
Nuclearfuel 
Accumulated amortization 

of nuclearfuel 
Plant under construction 

Bath 
-County 

Pumt>ed 
Storage 

Station™ 

60% 
$1,049 

(567) 

— 

— 
12 

Nortti 
Anna 

Units 1 
and2">' 

88.4% 
$ 2,452 

(1,177) 
621 

(502) 
1J6 

Clover 
Power 

Stationi» • 

50% 
$576 

(214) 

— 

— 
16 

Millstone 
Unit3ia 

93.5% 
$1,149 

(320) 
521 

(364) 
55 

(1) Units jointly owned by Virginia Power. 
(2) Unit jointly owned by Dominion. 

The co-owners are obligated to pay their share of all future 
construction expenditures and operating costs of the joindy-
owned facilities in the same proportion as their respective owner­
ship interest. Dominion and Virginia Power report their share of 
operaring cosrs in the appropriate operaring expense (electric fuel 
and orher energy-related purchases, other operations and main­
tenance, depreciation, depletion and amortization and other taxes, 
etc.) in the Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Assignments of Stiale Development Rights 
In December 2013, Dominion Gas closed on agreements with 
two natural gas producers to convey over time approximately 
100,000 acres of Marcellus Shale development rights underneath 
several of its natural gas storage fields. The agreements provide for 
payments to Dominion Gas, subject to customary adjustments, of 
approximately $200 million over a period of nine years, and an 
overriding royalty interesr in gas produced from the acreage. In 
2013, Dominion Gas .received approximately $100 million in 
cash proceeds, resulting in a $20 million ($12 million after-tax) 
gain, recorded to operations and maintenance expense in Domin­
ion Gas' Consolidated Statements of Income. In 2014, Dominion 
Gas received $16 miUion in additional cash proceeds resulting 
from post-closing adjustments. At December 31 , 2014, deferred 
revenue totaled $85 million. In March 2015, Dominion Gas and 
one of the natural gas producers closed on an amendment to the 
agreement, which included the.immediate conveyance ofapprox­
imately 9,000 acres of Marcellus Shale development rights and a 
two-year extension ofthe term ofthe original agreement. The 
conveyance of development rights resulted in the recognition of 
$43 miUion ($27 miUion after-tax) of pteviously deferred revenue 
to operations and maintenance expense in Dominion Gas' Con­
solidated Statements of Income. At December 3 L 2015, deferred 
revenue totaled $37 miUion, which is expected to be recognized 
over the remaining term of the agreement. 

In November 2014, Dominion Gas closed an agreement with 
a natural gas producer to convey over rime approximately 24,000 
acres of MarceUus Shale development rights underneath one of its 
natural gas storage fields. The agreement provides for payments to 
Dominion Gas, subject to customary adjustments, of approx-
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imately $ 120 million over a period of four years, and an over­
riding royalty interest in gas produced from the acreage. In 
November 2014, Dominion Gas closed on the agreement and 
received proceeds of $60 miUion associated with an initial 
conveyance ofapproximately 12,000 acres, resulting in a $60 
milUon ($36 million after-tax) gain, recorded to operations and 
maintenance expense in Dominion Gas' Consolidated Statements 
of Income. 

In March 2015, Dominion Gas conveyed to a natural gas 
producer approximately 11,000 acres of MarceUus Shale 
development rights underneath one of its natural gas storage fields 
and received proceeds of $27 million and an overriding royalty 
interest in gas produced from the acreage. This transaction 
resulted in a $27 milUon ($16 miUion after-tax) gain, included in 
other opetations and maintenance expense In Dominion Gas' 
Consolidated Statements of Income. 

In September 2015, Dominion Gas closed on an agreement 
with a natural gas producer to convey approximately 16,000 acres 
of Utica and Point Pleasant Shale development rights underneath 
one of its natural gas storage fields. The agreement provided for a 
payment to Dominion Gas, subject to customary adjustments, of 
$52 -million and an overriding royalty interest in ^ produced 
from the acreage. In September 2015, Dominion Gas received 
proceeds of $52 milUon associated with the conveyance ofthe 
acreage, resulting in a $52 million ($29 million after-tax) gain, 
included in other operations and maintenance expense in Domin­
ion Gas' Consolidated Statements of Income. 

NOTE 11. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
Goodwill 
The changes in Dominion's and Dominion Gas' carrying amount 
and segment allocation of goodwill are presented below: 

Dominion Dominion 
Generation Energy OVP 

Corporate 
and 

Ottier'n Totai 

(millions) 
Dominion 
Balance at 

December 3 1 , 
2013*21 

Asset disposition 
adjustment 

$1,454*31 $706!3i $926 

(32)M' (10)(5' — 

$— $3,086 

~ (42) 
Balance at 

December 3 1 , 
201412)-

DCG acquisition 

Balance at 
December 3 1 , 
2015*21 

$l,422ra 

— 

$1,422 

$69&3) $926 
250 — 

$946 $926 

$ -
— 

%~ 

$3,044 
250 

$3,294 

Dominion Gas 
Balance at 

December 3 1 , 
2013*21 

Asset disposition 
adjustment 

Balance at 
December 3 1 , 
2014*21 

^ 0 events affecting 
goodwill 

$ 

$ 

— 

— 

— 

— 

$545 $ — 

(3)(5) „ 

$542 $ — 

— — 

%-

— 

$ -

— 

$ 545 

(3) 

$ 542 

— 
Balance at 

December 31, 
2015*2) 

(1) Goodwill recorded at the Corporate and. Other segment is allocated, to 
the primary operating segments for goodwill impairment testing purposes. 

(2) Goodwill amounts do not contain any accumulated impairment losses. 
(3) Recast to reflect nonregulated retail energy marketing operations in the 

Dominion Energy segment. 
(4) See Note 3 for a discussion of Dominion's dispositions and related good­

will write-offs. 
(5) Related to assets sold or contributed to an affiliate or Blue Racer. 

Other Intangible Assets 
The Companies' other intangible assets are subject to amor­
tization over their estimated useful lives. Dominion's amor­
tization expense for intangible assets was $78 miUion, $71 million 
and $72 miUion for 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In 2015, 
Dominion acquired $78 million of intatigible assets, priiharily 
representing software, with an estimated weighted-average amor­
tization period ofapproximately 8 years. Amortization expense for 
Virginia Power's intangible assets was $25 million, $24 million 
and $22 mUUon for 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In 2015, 
Virginia Power acquired $34 million of intangible assets, primar­
ily representing software, with an estimated weighted-average 
amortization period of 6 years. Dominion Gas' amortization 
expense for intangible assets was $18 million, $17 mUlion and 
$16 miUion for 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In 2015, 
Dominion Gas acquired $24 miUion of intangible assets, primar­
ily representing software, with an estimated weighted-average 
amortization period ofapproximately l4 years. The components 
of intangible assets are as follows: 

AtDecemberSl, 

(millions) 
Dominion 
Software, licenses and 

other 

Total 

Virginia Power 
Software, licenses and 

other 

Total 

Dominion Gas 
Software, licenses and 

other 

Total 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

$942 

$942 

$301 

$301 

$211 

$211 

Annua l amort izat ion expense 

estimated to be as fol lows; 

(millions) 

Dominion 

Virginia Power 

Dominion Gas 

2015 

Accjmulated 
Amonization -

$372 

$372 

$ 88 

$ 88 

$128 

$128 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

$887 

$887 

$286 

$286 

$192 

$192 

2014 

Accumulated 
Amortization 

$317 

$317 

$ 81 

$ 81 

$113 

$113 

for these intangible assets is 

2016 

$79 

$25 

$18 

2017 

$68 

$22 

$15 

2018 

$57 

$19 

$14 

2019 

$47 

$15 

$13 

2020 

$35 

$ 9 

$13 

— $542 $ — $— $ 542 
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NOTE 12. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Regulatory assets and liabilities include the following: 

At Decern tier 31, 2015 2014 

AtDecemberSl, 2015 

Regulatory assets-current 351 

Provision for future cost of removal and AROs"i' 
-Nuclear decommissioning trust*! '̂ 
Deferred cost of fuel used in electric generation!" 
Derivatives'S) 
Other 

,2014 

(millions) 

Dominion 
Regulatory assets: 

Deferredcost of fuel used in electric generation"! , „ $ . . I l l $ 79 
Deferred rate adjustment clause costs*2i . ' 90 " 124 
Deferred nuclear refueling outage costs'̂ i 75 44 
Unrecovered gas costs*''' 12 36 
Other • • - 63 64 

347 

LInrecognized pension and other postretirement 
benefit costs*5' 1,015 1,050 

Deferred rate adjustment clause costs'̂ ' 295 250 
PJM transmission rates'̂ ) , . 192 ^ 
Income taxes recoverable through futureTates*^ - '126 ' 133 
Derivatives'si • 110 . 101 
Other . . 127 108 

Regulatory assets-non-current 

Total regulatory assets 

Regulatory liabilities: 
pippO) 
Other 

Regulatory liabilities-currenf^f* 

1,865 

$2,216 

$ 46 
54 

100 

1,642 

$1,989 

$ 71 
99 

170 

1,120 
804 
97 
79 

185 

1,072 
815 

. 6 
— 
98 

Regulatory liabilities-non-current 

Total regulatory liabilities 

Virginia Power 
Regulatory assets: _ 

Deferred cost of fuel used in eiecthc generation"' 
Deferred rate adjustment clause costs*̂ ' 
Deferred nuclear refueling outage costs* '̂ 
Other 

Regulatory assets-current 

Deferred rate adjustment clause costs*2i 
PSU transmission rates*̂ ' 
Derivatives'̂ ! 
)ncome taxes recoverable ttirough future rates*'' 
Other 

Regulatory assets-non-current 

Total regulatory assets 

Regulatory liabilities: 
Other 

Regulatory liabilities-current 

Provision for future cost of removal"^' 
Nuclear decommissioning trust*i^' 
Deferred cost of fuel used in electric generation'̂ ' 
Derivatives'̂ ' 
Other 

Regulatory liabilities-non-current 

Total regulatory liabilities 

2,285 

$2,385 

$ 111 
80 
75 
60 

326 

213 
192 
110 
97 
55 

667 

$ 993 

$ 35 

35 

890 
804 

97, 
79 
59. 

1,929 

$1,9G4 

• 1,991 

$2,161 

$ 79 
117 
44 
58 

298 

179 
— 

101 
100 
59 

439 

$ 737 

$ 90 

90 

852 
815 
. 6 
" — 

... 10 

1,683 

$1,773 

(ntiilions) : . ' . . . 

Dominion Gas 
Regulatory assets: • 

Unrecovered gas'costsw 
Deferred rate adjustment clause costs* '̂ 
Other , , . 

11 
10 
2 

$ 29 
7 
2 

Regulatory assets-current 23 38 

Unrecognized pension and other postretirement 
benefit costs'̂ ' 282 242 

Deferred rate aditistment. clause costs'̂ ' • , 82 71 
Income taxes recoverable through future ratesi" 20 24 
Other 65 42 

Regulatory assets-non-current 

Totai regulatory assets 

Regulatory liabilities: , . . 
Ptpprai 
Other .. . ,' 

Regulatory liabilities-current 

Provision for future cost.of removal and AR6S*II> -
Otfier 

Regulatory liabilities-non-current 

Total regulatory liabilities 

449 

$472 

$ 46 
9 

55 

170 
31 

201 

$256 

379 

$417 

$ 7 1 
4 

75 

172 
20 

192 

$267 

(1) Primarily reflects deferred fuel expenses for the Virginia jurisdicHon of 
Dominion's and Virginia Pouter's generation operatiom. See Note 13 
for more information. 

(2) Reflects deferrals under the electric transmission FERC formula rate 
and the deferral ofcosts associated with certain current and prospective 
rider projects for Virginia Power. Reflects deferrals of casts-associated-
with certain current and prospective rider projects for Dominion Gas. 
See Note 13 for more information. 

(3) Legislation enacted in Virginia in April i2014 requires Virginid Power 
to defer operation and maintenance costs incurred in connection; with -
the refueling of any nuclear-powered generating plant. These deferred 
costs will be amortized over the refueling cycle, not to exceed 18 
months. • - • ; • • . 

(4) Reflects unrecovered gas costs at regulated gas oj>erations, which are 
recovered through filing with the applicable regulatory authority. 

(5) Represents unrecognized pension and other postretirement employee 
benefit costs expected to he recovei-ed through future rates generally'over 
the expected remaining service period of plan participants by certain of 
Dominion's and Dominion Gas' rate-regulated subsidiaries. 

(6) Reflects amount related to the PfM transmission cost allocation matter. 
See Note 13 for more information. 

(7) Amounts to be recovered through future rates to pay income taxes that . 
become payable when rate revenue is provided to recover AFUDC- , 
equity-and depreciation of property, plant and equipment for which 
deferred income taxes were not recognized for ratemaking purposes, 
including amounts attributable to tax rate changes. 

(8) As discussed under Derivative Instruments in Note 2, for jurisdictions 
subject to cost'based rate regulation, changes in the fair value of 
derivative instruments result in the recognition of regulatory assets or 
regulatory liabilities as they are expected to be recovered from or 
refunded to custoniers. . • , 

(9) Under PIPP, eli^ble customers can make reducedpaymenu based on 
their ability to pay. The difference between the customer's total bill and 
the PIPP plan amount is deferred and collected or returned armually 
under the PIPP rate adjustment clause according to East Ohio tariff 
provisions. See Note 13 for more information. 

(10) Current regulatory liabilities are presented in other current liabilities 
in Dominion's Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

(11) Rates charged to customers by the Companies' regulated businesses,. 
include a provision for the cost of fiiture activities to remove assets that 
are expected to be incurred at the time of retirement. 

(12) Primarily reflects a regulatory liability representing amounts collected 
from Virginia jurisdictional customers and placed in external trusts 
(including income, losses and changes in fair value thereon) for the 

future decommissioning of Virginia Power's utility nuclear generation 
stations, in excess ofthe related AROs. 
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At December 3 1 , 2015, $131 mUlion of Dominion's, $100 
million of Virginia Power's and $29 miUion of Dominion Gas' 
regulatory assets represented past expenditures on which they do 

not currently earn a return. The majority of these expenditures 
are expected to be recovered within the next two years. 

NOTE 13. REGULATORY MATTERS 

Regulatory Matters Involving Potential Loss Contingencies 

As a result of issues generated in rhe ordinary course of business, 

the Companies are involved in various regulatory matters. Certain 
regulatory matters may ultimately result in a loss; however, as 
such matters are in an initial procedural phase, involve 

uncertainty as to the outcome of pending reviews or orders, and/ 
or involve significant factual issues that need to be resolved, it is 

not possible for the Companies to estimate a range of possible 
loss. For matters for which the Cojnpanies cannot estimate a 

range of possible loss^astatement to this effect is made in the 

description ofthe matter. Other matters may have progressed 

sufficiently through the regulatory process such that the Compa­

nies are able to estimate a range of possible loss. For regulatory 

matters for which the Companies are able to reasonably estimate a 

range of possible losses, an estimated range of possible loss is prO' ' 

vided, in excess of the accrued liability (if any) for such matters. 
Any estimated range is based o n currently available information, 

involves elements of judgment and significant uncertainties and 

may not represent the Companies' maximum possible loss 

exposure. The circumstances of such regulatory matters will 

change from time to time and actual results may vary significantly 

from the current estimate. For current matters not specifically 

reported below, management does not anticipate that the out-

Come from such matters would have a material effect'on the 
Corripanies' financial position, liquidity or results of operadons. 

F E R C — E L E C T R I C 

Under the Federal Power Act, FERC regulates wholesale sales and 

transmission of electricity in interstate commerce by public util­
ities. Dominion's merchant generators sell electricity in the PJM, 
MISO, CAISO and ISO-NE wholesale markets, and to wholesale 

purchasers in the states of Tennessee, Georgia, California and 

Utah; under Dominion's market-based sales tariffs authorized by 
FERC. Virginia Power purchases and, under its FERC market-
based rate authority, sells electricity in the wholesale market. In 

addirion, Virginia Power has FERC approval of a tariff to seU 
wholesale power at capped rates based on its embedded cost of 

generation. This cost-based sales tariff could be used to sell to 
loads within or outside Virginia Power's service territory. Any 

such saies would be voluntary. 

Rates 

In April 2008, FERC granted an application for Virginia Power's 
electric transmission operations to establish a forward-looking 
formula rate mechanism that updates transmission rates on an 

annual basis and approved an R O E of 11.4%, effective as of 
January 1, 2008. The formula rate is designed to recover the 

expected revenue requirement for each calendar year and is 
updated based on actual costs. The FERC-approved formula 

method, which is based on projected costs, allows Virginia Power 

to earn a current return on its growing investment in electric 
transmission infrastructure. 

In March 2010, O D E C and North Carolina Electric Member­

ship Corporation filed a complaint with FERC against Virginia 
Power claiming that $223 miUion in transmission costs related to 

specific projects were unjust, unreasonable and unduly discrim­
inatory or preferential and should be excluded from Virginia 

Power's transmission formula rate. In October 2010, FERC 
issued an order dismissing the complaint in part and established 
hearings and settlement procedures on the remaining part of the 

complaint, in.February 2012, Virginia Power submitted to FERC 
a settlement agreement to resolve all issues set for hearing. The 

settlement was accepted by FERC in May 2012 and provides for 
payment by Virginia Power to the transmission customer parties 

collectively of $250,000 per year for t en years and resolves all 
matters other than allocation of the incremental cost of certain 

underground transmission faciliries. 

In March 2014, FERC issued an order excluding from 

Virginia Power's transmission rates for wholesale transmission • 

customers located outside Virginia the incremental costs of 

undergrounding certain transmission line projecrs. FERC found it 
is not just and reasonable for non-Virginia wholesale transmission 

customers to be allocated the incremental costs of under-

grounding the facilities because the projects are a direct result of 

Virginia legislation and Virginia Comrnission pilot programs 

intended to benefit the citizens of Virginia. The order is retro­

actively effective as of March 2010 and wiU cause rhe reaUocation 

ofthe costs charged to wholesale transmission customers with 

loads outside Virginia to wholesale transmission cusromers with 
loads in Virginia. FERC determined that there was not sufficient 

evidence on the record to determine the magnitude ofthe undetr 

ground increment and held a hearing to determine the appro­

priate amount of undergrounding cost to be allocated to each 

wholesale- transmission customer in Virginia. While Virginia 

Power cannot predict the outcome ofthe hearing, it is not 

expected to have a.material effect on results of operations. 

P f M Transmission Rates 

In April 2007, FERC issued an order regarding its transmission 

rate design for the allocation ofcosts among PJM transmission 
customers, including Virginia Power, for transmission service 
provided by PJM. For new PJM-planned transmission facilities 

that operate at or above 50Q kV, FERC established a PJM 

regional rate design where customers pay according to each cus­
tomer's share of the region's load. For recovery ofcosts of existing 
faciliries, FERC approved the exisring methodology whereby a 

customer pays the cost of faciUties located in the same zone as the 
customer. A number of parries appealed the order to the U.S. 

Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit. 

In August 2009, the court issued its decision affirming the 
FERC order with regard to the existing facilities, but remanded to 

FERC rhe issue of the cosr allocation associated with the new 
facilities 500 kV and above for further consideration by FERC. 

O n remand, FERC reaffirmed Its earlier decision to allocate the 
costs of new facilities 500 kV and above according to the custom­

er's share of the region's load. A number of parties filed appeals of 
the order to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit. In 
June 2014, the court again remanded the cost allocation issue to 

FERC. In December 2014, FERC issued an order setting an evi­
dentiary hearing and settlement proceeding regarding the cost 
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allocation issue. The hearing only concerns the costs of new facili­
ties approved by PJM prior to February 1, 2013. Transmission 

facilities approved afi:er February 1, 2013 are allocated on a 
hybrid cost aUocarion method approved by FERC and not subject 
to any court review. 

Virginia Power expects that a settlement ^ c e m e n t will be 
executed regarding this matter. Under the terms of the settlement, 
Virginia Power would be required to pay $200 milUon to PJM 

over the next 10 years. Although no FERC order has been issued 
and the expected settlement agreement has not been filed and 

accepted by FERC, Virginia Power believes it is probable it will 
be required to make payment as an outcome ofthe hearing and 

settlement proceedings. Accordingly, as of December 3 1 , 2015, 
Virginia Power has recorded a contingent liability of $200 miUion 

in other deferred credits and other liabilities, which is offset by a 
$ 192 million regulatory asset fot the zreionnt char will be recov­
ered through retail rates in Virginia. The remaining $8 million 

was recorded in other operations and maintenance expense in the 
Consolidated Statement of Income. 

Other Regulatory Matters 

E L E C T R I C R E G U L A T I O N I N V I R G I N I A 

The Regulation Act enacted in 2007 instituted a cost-of-service 

rate model, ending Virginia's planned transition to retail 

competition for electric supply service to most classes of custom­

ers. 
The Regulation Act authorizes stand-alone rate adjustment 

clauses for recovery ofcosts for new generation projects, FERC-

approved transmission costs, underground distribution lines, 

environmental compliance, conservation and energy efficiency 

programs and renewable energy programs, and also contains stat-

utoty provisions directing Virginia Power to file annual fiiel cost 

recovery cases with the Virginia Commission. As amended, it 

provides for enhanced returns on capital expenditures on specific 

newly-proposed generation projects. 

If the Virginia Commission's fiitute rate decisions, including 

actions relating to Virginia Power's rate adjustment clause filings, 

differ matetially from Virginia Pow;er's expectations, it may 

adversely affect its results of operarions, financial condirion and 

cash flows. 

Regulation Act Legislation 
In February 2015, the Virginia Governor signed legislation into 

law which wUl keep Virginia Power's base rates unchanged untU 
at least December 1, 2022. In addition, no biennial reviews will 

be conducted by the Virginia Commission for the five successive 
12-month test periods beginning January 1, 2015, and ending 
December 31 ,2019 . The legislation states chat Virginia 

Power's 2015 biennial review! filed in March 2015, would pro­
ceed for the sole purpose of reviewing and determining whether. 

any reftinds are due to customers based on earnings petformance 
for generation and distribution services during the 2013 and 2014 

test petiods. In addition the legislation requires the Virginia 
Commission to conduct pioceedings in 2017 and 2019 to 
determine the utility's R O E for use in connection with rate 

adjustrhent clauses and requires utilities to file integrated resource 

plans annually rather than biennially. However, in November 
2015, the Virginia Commission ordered testimony, briefs and 

separate bifurcated hearing in Virginia Power's currently pending 
Rider B, Rider R, Rider S and Rider W cases on whether the 

Virginia Commission can adjust the ROE applicable to these rate 
adjustment clauses prior to 2017. The legislation also required • 
Virginia Power to write-off $85 million of prior-period deferred 

fuel costs during the first quarter of 2015. In addition, the legis­
lation required the Virginia Commission to implement a fuel rate 

reduction for Virginia Power as soon as practicable based on this 
non-recovery as well as any over-recovery for the 2014-2015 fuel 

year and projected fuel expense for the 2015-2016 fuel year. The 
legislation also deems the construction or purchase of one or more 
utility-scale solar facilities located in Virginia up to 500 M W in 

total to be in the public interest. 

2 0 1 5 Biennial Review 
Pursuant to the Regulation Act, in March 2015, Virginia Power 

filed its base rate case and schedtdes for the Virginia Commis­
sion's 2015 biennial review of Virginia Power's rates, terms and 

condirions. Per legislation enacted in February 201-5, this biennial 
review was limited to reviewing Virginia Power's earnings on rates 

for generation and distribution services for the combined 2013 

and 2014 test period, and determining whether credits are due to 

customers in the event Virginia Power's earnings exceeded the 

earnings band determined in the 2013 Biennial Review Order. In 
November 2015, the Virginia Commission Issued the 2015 

Biennial Review Order, 

After deciding several contested regulatory earnings adjust­

ments, the Virginia Commission ruled that Virginia Power earned 

on average an R O E ofapproximately 10.89% on its generation . 

and distribution services for the combined 2013 and 2014 test 

periods. Because this ROE was more than 70 basis points above 

Virginia Power's authorized R O E of 10.0%, the Virginia Com­
mission ofdered that approximately $20.mUlion in excess earnings 

be credited to customer bills based on usage in 2013 and 2014 

over a six-month period beginning within 60 days of the 2015 

Biennial Review Order. Based upon 2015 legislation keeping 

Virginia Power's base rates unchanged until at least December 1, 

2022, the Virginia Commission did not order certain exisring rate 

adjustment clauses to be combined with Virginia Power's base 

rates. The Virginia Commission did not determine whether Vir­
ginia Power had a revenue deficiency or sufficiency when projec­

ting the annual revenues generated by base rates to the revenues 

required to recover costs of service and earn a fair return. In 
December 2015, a group of large industrial customers filed 
notices of appeal with the Supreme Court of Virginia from both 

the 2015 Biennial Review Order and the Virginia Commission's 
order denying their petition for jehearing or reconsideration. This 

appeal is pending. 

Virginia Fuel Expenses 

In February 2015, Virginia Power submitted its annual fuel factor 
fiUng to'the Virginia Commission. In August 2015, the Virginia 

Commission approved Virginia Power's annual fijel factor filing 

to recover an estimated $1.6 billion in Virginia jurisdictional 
projected fuel expenses for the rate year beginning; July 1, 2015. 
Virginia Power's new approved fijel rate, in effect on an interim 

basis since April I, 2015, represents a fuel revenue decrease of 
$512 million when applied to-projected kilowatt-hour sales for 

the period AprU 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016. 
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Solar Facility Projects 
In January 2015, Virginia Power applied for a C P C N to con­

struct and operate a 20 M W utility-scale solar faciliry near its 
existing Remington power station in Fauquier County, 
Virginia. The total estimated cost of the Remington solar facility 

was approximately $47 million, excluding financing costs. 
Virginia Power also applied for approval of Rider US-1 to recover 

the projected costs of the facility. In October 2015, the Virginia 
Commission denied approval of the C P C N and Rider US-1 

based on the evidence in the record but stated that an applicafion 
could be re-filed to address the concerns cited by the Virginia 

Commission. Virginia Power is assessing its options fot ce-fiUng. 

In October 2015, Virginia Power filed a C P C N with the 

Virginia Commission lo construct three solar facilities. Wood­
land, Scott Solar and Whitehouse would increase Dominion's 

renewable generation by a combined 56 M W and are estimated to 
cost approximately $130 million, excluding financing costs. Vir­
ginia Power also appUed for approval of Rider US-2. This case Is 

pending. The faciliries are expected to commence commercial 

operarions, subject to regulatory approvals. In the fourth quarter 

of 2016. 

Rate Adjustment Clauses 

Below is a discussion of significant riders associated with various 

Virginia Power projects; 

• The Virginia Commission previously approved Rider T l 

concerning transmission rates. In May 2015, Virginia Power 

proposed a $668 million total revenue requirement for the 

rate year beginning September 1, 2015, which represents a 
$ 130 million increase over the previous year. Virginia Power 

also presented a mitigation proposal to defer $96 million of 

this revenue requirement to the rate year beginning Sep­

tember 1, 2016, which would reduce by 50% the one-year 

rate impact on residential customers. In August 2015, the 

Virginia Commission rejected the mitigation proposal and 

approved full recovery of the proposed revenue requirement. 

• The Virginia Commission previously approved Rider S in 

conjunction with the Virginia City Hybrid Energy Center. In 

June 2015, Virginia Power proposed a $250 million revenue 

requirement forthe rate year beginning April I, 2016, which 
represents a $5 million Increase over the previous year. This 

' case is pending. 

• The Virginia Commission previously approved Rider W in 
Conjunction-with Warren County. In June 2015, Virginia 

Power proposed a $ 118 million revenue requirement for the 
rate year beginning April 1, 2016, which represents a $ 17 

mUlion decrease versus the previous year. This case is pending. 

• The Virginia Commission previously approved Rider R in 

conjunction with Bear Garden. In June 2015, Virginia Power 
proposed a $74 mUlIon revenue requirement for the rate year 

beginning April 1, 2016, which represents a $10 million 
decrease versus the previous year. This case is pending. • 

' The Virginia Commission previously approved Rider B in 
conjunction with the conversion of three power stations to 

biomass. In June 2015, Virginia Power proposed a $30 mil­
lion revenue requirement for thera te year beginning April 1, 
2016, which represenrs a $21 million Increase over rhe pre­

vious year. This case is pending. 

• Virginia legislarion which provides for the recovery of cosrs to 
move certain electric distribution facilities underground 

became effective in July 2014. In October 2014, Virginia • 
Power filed for approval of Rider U, which proposed a revenue 

requirement of $28 miUion during the initial rate year begin­
ning September 1, 2015. In May2015 , Virginia Power revised 
the revenue requirement to $24 miUion. In July 2015, the 

Virginia Commission denied approval of Rider U based on the 
evidence In the record, but found that an alternative plan • 

addressing certain concerns, such as the lack of a cost-benefit 
analysis, could reasonably satisfy the regulatory requirements 

for approval. In December 2015, Virginia Power filed for 
approval of a more limited undergrounding program, along 
with a revised- Rider U proposing a revenue requirement of 

$24 milUon for the inirial rate year beginning September 1, 
2016. This case is pending. 

• The Virginia Commission previously approved Riders C l A 
and C2A In connecrion with cost recovery for DSM pro­

grams. In August 2015, Virginia Power proposed a total rev­

enue requiremenr of $50 million for the rare year beginning 

May 1, 2016. Virginia Power further proposed two new 
energy efficiency programs for Virginia Commission approval 

with a requested five-year cost cap of $51 miUion for those 

programs, and to extend an existing peak-shaving program for 

an additional five years under current fiinding. This case is 

pending. 
" The Virginia Commission previously approved Rider BW in 

conjunction with Brunswick County. In October.2015, Vir­

ginia Power proposed a $156 miUion total revenue require- • 

ment for the rate year beginning September 1, 2016, which 

represents a $45 million increase versus the previous year. 

This case is pending. 

• In July 2015, Virginia Power filed an application with the 

Virginia Commission for a C P C N to construct and operate 

GreensviUe County and related transmission interconnection 

faciUries. Virginia Power also applied for approval of Rider 

G V to recover the costs of Greensville County, and proposed 
a total revenue requirement of $42 mllUon for the rate year ' 

beginning April 1, 2016. This case is pending. 

Electric Transmission Projects 

In November 2013, the Virginia Commission issued an order 

granting Virginia Power a C P C N to construct approximately 7 
miles of new overhead 500 kV transmission line from the existing 

Surry switching station in Surry County to a new Skiffes Creek-
switching station in James City County, and approximately 20 

mUes of new 230 kV transmission line in James City Countyj 
York County, and the City of Newport News from the proposed 
new Skiffes Creek switching station to Virginia Power's existing 

Whealton substarion in the City of Hampton. In February 2014,. 

the Virginia Commission granted reconsideration requested by 
Virginia Power and issued an Order Amending Certificate. Sev­
eral appeals were filed with the Supreme Court of Virginia. In 

April 2015, the Supreme Court of Virginia issued its opinion in 
the consolidated appeals of the Virginia Commission's order . 

granting a C P C N for the Skiffes Creek transmission Une and 
related faciUties. The Supreme Court of Virginia unanimously 

affirmed all but one of the alleged grounds for appeal. The court 
approved the proposed project including the proposed route for a 
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500 kV overhead transmission line from Surry to the Skiffes 

Cteek switching station site. The court reversed and remanded 
the Virginia Commission's determination in one set of appeals 
that the Skiffes Creek switching station was a transmission line for 

purposes of statutory exemption from local zoning ordinances. In 
May 2015, the Supreme Court of Virginia denied separate peti­

tions filed by Virginia Power and the Virginia Commission to 
rehear its ruling regarding the Skiffes Creek switching station. 

Pending receipt of remaining required permits and approvals, 
Virginia Power expects to construct rhe projecr. 

In May 2015, Virginia Power filed an application with the 

Virginia Commission for a CPCN. to construct and operate in 
Loudoun County, Virginia, a new approximately 230 kV Poland 

Road substation, and a new approximately four mile overhead 
230 kV double circuit transmission line between the existing 230 
kV Loudoun-Bramblecon line and the Poland Road substation. 

The total estimated cost of the projecr is approximately $55 mil­
lion. This case is pending. 

In November 2015, Virginia Power filed an application with 

the Virginia Commission for a C P C N to convert an existing 

transmission Une to 230 kV in Prince WiUiam County, Virginia, 

and houdoun County, Virginia, and to construct and operate a 

new approximately five mile overhead 230 kV double circuit 

rransmlssion line between a tap point near the Gainesville sub­

station and a new to-be-constructed Haymarket substation. The 

total estimated cost of the project is approximately $51 milUon. 

This case is pending. 

In November 2015, Vli^inia Power filed an application with 

the Virginia Commission for a C P C N to construct and operare in 

multiple Virginia counties an approximately 38 mile overhead 

230 kV transmission Une between the Remington and Gordons­

ville substations, along with associated facilities. The total esti­

mated cost of the project is approximately $104 miUion. This case 

is pending. 

In February 2016, the Virginia Commission issued an order 

granting Virginia Power a-CPGN to construct and operate the 

Remington CT-Warrenton 230 kV double circuit.transmission 

Une, the Vint Hill-Wheeler and Wheeler-Gainesville 230 kV lines 

and the 230 kV Vint Hill and Wheeler switching stations along 

Virginia Power's proposed route. The total estimated cost of the 
project is apptoximately $105 mllUon. 

North Anna 

Virginia Power is considering the construction of a third nuclear 
unit at a site located at North Anna. If Virginia Power decides to 

build a new unit, it must first receive a C O L from the N R C , 
approval of rhe Virginia Commission and certain environmental 
permits and other approvals. The C O L is expected in 2017. Vir­

ginia Power has not yet committed to building a new nuclear unit 
at Nor th Anna. 

The motions and petitions filed by BREDL ptior ro April 
2015 have been dismissed, and under a previous ruling ofthe 
N R C , the contested portion of the C O L proceeding remains 

terminated. The N R C is required to conduct a hearing in all 
C O L proceedings, and if a new contention is not admitted, the 

mandatory N R C hearing will be uncontested. 

In April 2015, BREDL filed a new motion-and petition seek--

ing to object to the NRC's reliance on the continued storage rule 
in licensing proceedings. The BREDL filings are substantially the 

same as those filed in other C O L proceedings in which final envi­

ronmental impact statements were issued prior to promulgation 
ofthe conrinued storage rule, like North Anna 3 . In June 2015, 

the N R C denied the AprU 2015 motion and petition. 
In August 2015, BREDL filed a perition In the U.S. Court of 

Appeals for the D.C. Circuit seeking review of the NRC' s June 
2015 decision. Along with the petition for judicial review, 
BREDL also filed a morion to hold rhis judicial review in abey­

ance pending the outcome of the ongoing judicial review of the 
NRC's rule pertaining to the continued onsite storage of spent 

nuclear fuel in litigation pending before the same court. Similar 
petitions were filed seeking judicial review ofthe NRC's decision 

as it applies to other C O L and license renewal proceedings. 
Virginia Power has filed a morion with- the court to inrervene in 

the proceeding. This case is pending. 

North Anna a n d Offihore Wind Legislation 

In April 2014, legislation was enacted in Virginia rhat permits 
Virginia Power to recover 7 0 % of the costs previously deferred or 

capitalized relared to the de-yelopment of a third nuclear, unit 

located at Nor th Anna and offshore wind facilities through 

December 3 1 , 2013 as parr of the 2013 and 2 0 ] 4 base rates. Vir­

ginia Power had deferred or capitalized costs totaling $577 mil­
lion for these projects as of December 3 1 , 2013, substanrially all 

of which relate to North Anna. For the 7 0 % portion of these 

previous!)' deferred or capitalized costs allocable to customers in 

Virginia, Virginia Power recognized such amounts as charges 

againsr ner income beginning in the second quarter of 2014 and 

for the remainder of the year. During 2014, Virginia Power 

recognized $374 million ($248 million aiter-cax) in charges 

against income representing the cumulative recovery ofcosts from 

January 2013 through December 2014, which are primarily 
included in other operations and maintenance expense in the 

Consohdated Statements of Income. The remaining deferred or 

capitalized costs, as well as costs incurred after December 31 , 

2013, continue to be eligible for inclusion in a future rate 

adjustment clause. . . 

NORTH CAROUNA REGULATION 

In December 2012, the North Carolina Commission appro-s'ed a 
$36 million increase in Virginia Power's annual non-fuel base 

revenues based on an aurhorized ROE of 10.2%, and a $14 mil­
lion decrease in annual base fuel revenues for a combined total 

base revenue increase of $22 miUion. These rare changes became 
effective on January 1, 2013. Following an appeal to the Supreme 

Court of North Carolina, the North Carolina Commission issued 
an opinion reaffirming its 10.2% R O E determination In July 
2015. 

In August 2015, Vitginia Power submitted Its annual filing to 

the North Carolina Commission to adjust the fuel component of 
its electric rates. Virginia Power proposed an $11 million decrease 
to the fuel component of its electric rates for the rate year b ^ i n -

ning January 1, 2016. This decrease includes the North Carolina 
Commission's previous approval to defer recovering 50% of Vir­

ginia Power's estimated $17 million jurisdictional deferred fuel 
balance to the 2016 fijel year, without interest. In December 

2015, the Nor th Carolina Commission approved Virginia Pow­
er's proposed fuel charge adjustment. 
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PIR Program 

In 2008, East Ohio began PIR, aimed at replacing approximately 

2 5 % of its pipeline system. In March 2015, Easr Ohio filed an 

application with the Ohio Commission requesting approval to 

extend the PIR program for an addirional five years and to increase 

the annual capital investment, with corresponding increases in the 

annual rate-Increase caps. In its application. East Ohio proposed 

rhat PIR investments for 2016 should fall under the existing 

authorization and that the new five-year period should include 

investment through December 3U 2021. East Ohio also proposed 

that the PIR investment should be increased by $20 million in 

2017 and another $20 miUion In 2018, bringing the total annual 

investment to $200 miUion. Thereafter, East Ohio proposed capi­

tal investment increases of 3 % per year for 2019 through 2021 to 

mitigate inflation and other cost pressures experienced to date, 

which will continue into the fiiture. This case is pending. 

In February 2015, East Ohio filed an application to adjust the 

PIR cost recovery for 2014 costs. The fiUng reflects gross plant' 

Investinent for 2014 of $155 miUion, cumulative gross plant -

Investment of $829 million and a tevenue requirement of $108 

million. This application was approved by the Ohio Commission 

in April 2015. 

A M R Program 

In 2007, East Ohio.began installing automated meter reading 

technology for its 1.2 mUIIon customers in Ohio. The AMR 

program approved by the Ohio Commission was completed in 

2012, Although no further capital investment wiU be added. East 

Ohio is approved to recover depreciation, property taxes, carrying 

charges and a return until East Ohio has another rate case. 

In February 2015, East Ohio filed its apphcation with the 

Ohio Commission to adjust its AMR cost recovery charge to 

recover costs for calendar year 2014 associated with AMR -

deployment. The filing reflects a projected revenue requirement of 

approximately $8 million. This application was approved by the 

Ohio Commission in April 2015. 

P I P P Plus Program: 

Under the Ohio PIPP Plus Program, eligible customers can make 

reduced payments based on their ability to pay their bill. The 

difference between the customer's total bill and the PIPP amount 

is deferred and collected under the PIPP Rider in accordance with 

the rulesof the Ohio Commission. In July 2015, East Ohio's 

annual update of the PIPP Rider was automatically approved by 

the Ohio Commission after a 45-day waiting period from the 

date of the filing. The revised rider rate reflects the refund for the 

twelve-month period from July 2015 through June 2016 ofan 

over-recovery of accumulated arrearages ofapproximately $57 

mUlion as of March 3 1 , 2015, net of projected deferred program 

costs ofapproximately $35 million from April 2015 through June 

2016. 

UEXRider 

East Ohio has approval for a UEX Rider through which it recov­

ers the bad debt expense of most customers not participating In 

the PIPP Plus Program. The UEX Rider is adjusted annually to 

achieve dollar for dollar recovery of East Ohio's actual write-offs 

of uncollectible amounts. In July 2015, the Ohio Commission 

approved East Ohio's application to decrease its UEX Rider, 

which reflects a refund of over-recovered accumulated bad debt 

expense of $14 miUion as of March 3 1 , 2015, and recovery of 

prospective net bad debt expense:projected to total approximately 

$20 million for the twelve-month period from April 2015 to 

March 2016. 

P S M P . -

In October 2015, Easr Ohio requested approval from the Ohio 

Conimission to defer the operation and maintenance costs asso­

ciated with implementing a proposed PSMP. The costs are not . 

expected to exceed $15 million per year. 

WEST VIRGINIA REGULATION 

In September 2015, Hope requested approval of PREP from the 

West Virginia Commission. In rhe appUcation, Hope proposed a 

projected capital investment for 2016 of $24 miUion as part of a 

total five-year projected capital investment of $158 miUion. In 

January 2016, Hope and the West Virginia Commission reached 

a settlement allowing Hope to include costs related to capital 

invesrment for 2016 of $20 mUlion in new PREP customer rates 

effective March 1,2016. 

F E R C — G A S 

During the second quarter of 2013, D C G executed binding prece­

dent agreements for the approximately $35 million Edgemoor 

Project. FERC approved the Edgemoor Project in February 2015, 

construcrion commenced in March 2015 and the project was 

placed into service in December 2015 

In April 2014, D C G executed a binding precedent agreement 

for the approximately $35 miUion Columbia to Eastover Project. 

In May 20l5> D C G filed an applicarion to request FERC author­

ization to construct and operate the project facilities, which are 

expected to be in service in the third quarrer of 2016. 

In October 2015, Cove Point received authorizarion to con­

struct the approximately $30 mUlion St. Charles Transportation 

Project and the approximately $40 million Keys Energy Project. 

Construction on each project commenced in the fourth quarter of 

2015. The St. Charles Transportation Project is anticipated to be 

placed into service in June 2016. The Keys Energy Project Is 

anticipated to be placed into service in March 2017. 

NOTE 14. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS 

AROs represent obligations that resulr from laws, statutes, con­

tracts and regulations related to the eventual retirement of certain 

of the Companies' long-lived assets. Dominion's and Virginia 

Power's AROs are primarily associated with the decommissioning 

of their nuclear generation facilities and also Include those for ash 

pond closures and the future abatement of asbestos expected to be 

disturbed in their generation Bclllries. Dominion Gas' AROs 

primarily include plugging and abandonment qf gas and oil wells 

and the interim retirement of natural gas gathering, transmission, 

distribution and storage pipeline components. 

The Companies ha-ve also idenrified, but not recognized, AROs 

related to the retirement of Dominion's LNG facility. Dominion 

Gas' storage wells in Its underground natural gas storage network, 

certain Virginia Power electric transmission and distribution assets 

located on property with easeiiients, rights of way, franchises and 
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lease agreemerits, Virginia Power's hydroelectric generation facilities: 
and the abatement of certain asbestos not expected to be disturbed in 
Dominion's and Vii^nia Power's generation facilities. The Compa­
nies currently do not have sufficient information to estimate a 
reasonable range of expected retirement dates for any of rhese . 
assets since the economic lives of these assets can be extended indef­
initely through regular repair and maintenance and they currently 
have no plans to retire or dispose of any of these assers. As a result, a 
setdementdate is not determinable for these assets and AROs for 
these assets will not be reflected in the Consolidated Financial State­
ments unril sufficient informarion becomes a-vailable to deterniihe a 
reasonable estimate of the fair-valtie of the activities to be performed. 
The Companies continue to monitor operational and strategic 
developments to identify If sufficient information exists to reasonably 
estimate a retirement date for these assets;. The changes to AROs 
during 2014 and 2015 were as follows: 

(millions) 
Dominion 
AROs at December 31 ; 2013 
Obligations incurred during the period 
Obligatioris settled during the period 
Revisions in estimated cash flows'" 
Accretion 
Other 

$1,578 
- 40 
. (82) 

102 
81 
(5) 

AROs at December 31,201412) $1,714 
Obligations incurred^during the period'^) 
Obligations settled during the period 
Revisions iii'estimated cash flowsi3> 
Accretion 
Other 

315 
(106) 

88 
93 
(1) 

AROs at December 31 , 2Q15I2) $2,103 

Virginia Power 
AROs at December 31,,2013 .. 
Obligations incurred .during the period 
Obligations settled diiring the period 
Revisions in estimated casti .flows'^' 
Accretion 
Other 

689 
28 
(1) 

108 
37 
(6) 

AROs at December 3 1 ; 2014 $ 855 

Obligations incurred during the periodf^' 
Obligations settled during the period-
Revisions in estimated cash,f.lows<3i 
Accretion ' . 

289 
(39) 
92 
50 

AROs at December 31 , 2015.. $1,247 

Dominion Gas 
AROs at December 3 1 , 2013 
Obligations incurred during the period 
Obligations settled during the period. . 
Accretion ••- • -
Other 

13? 
. 2 

(8) 

ARpsat.December.31,.2014M) $ 147 
Obligations incurred dijring the period 
Obligatioris settled during the period 
Revisions' in festirnated Cash flows 
Accretion • ; -. 
Other, . , . , , . , 

5 
(6) 
(5) 
9 

(1) 

AROs at December 31 , SOl^-" $ 149 

(1) Relates primarily to a shift ofthe delayed planned date on which the 
. DOE is.expectedto begin accepting spent nuclear fuel. ' 

(2) Includes $81 million and $216 million reported in other current 
liabilities at December 31, 2014, and 2015, respectively.. 

(3) Primdrily reflects fiiture ash pond and IdUdflll closure costs iii certain 
utility generation focilitiesi See Note 22 for fiirther information. ' 

(4) Includes.$140 million and $137 million reported in other deferred cred­
its and. ofher liabilities, with the remainder recorded in other current , 
liabilities, at December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively. 

Dominion and Virginia Power have established trusts dedi­
cated to funding the future decommissioning of their nuclear 
plants: At both December 31 , 20.15 and 2014, t h e a ^ r e g a t e fair 
value of Dominion's trusts, consisting primarily of equity.and 
debt securiries, totaled $4.2 biUion.At both December 31 , 2015. 
and 2014, the f^gregate feir value of Virginia Power's rrusts', cour-. 
sisting primarily of debt and equity, securiries, totaled $ 1.9 bUlion. 

N O T E 15, VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES 

The primary beneficiary of a VIE is required to consoUdate the 
VIE and to disclose certain information abouti ts significant 
variable intetests in the ViE. The primary beneficiary of a VIE is 
the entity-that has both 1) the power to direct the activities that 
most significantly impact the'entity's economic performance and 
2) the obUgation to absorb losses or receive benefits frohi the 
entity that could potentially be significant to'the VIE, 

Dominion , 
Through August 2013, Dominion leased the Fairless generating 
facility in Pennsylvania, which began commercial operations in 
June 2004, .from Juniper, rhe lessor. In August 2013 , the lease _; -
expired and Dominion purchased Fairless for $923 mUliqn from. 
Juniper per the terms ofthe lease agreement. However, as 
Dominion had previously consolidated Juniper, the purchase was 
accounted for.as an equity transaction to acquire rhe non-
controlling interests from Juniper for $923 miUion, while :. < -
Dominion retained control of Fairless. 

Dominion has-an initial 4 5 % membership inrerest in Atlantic 
Coast-Pipeline. See Note 9 for moredetalls regarding the natuire 
of this entity. Dominion concluded that Atlantic Coast Pipeline is 
a VIE becatise it has insufficient equity to finance its activities: 
without addirional subordinated financial support. Dominion ihas 
concluded that it is not the primary beneficiary of Atlantic Coast 
Pipeline as it does not have the power .to direct the acrivities of -
Atlantic Coast Pipeline rhat mosr significantly impacr irs .- - -. 
economic petfotmance, as the power'tb direct is shared among • 
multiple unrelated parties. Dominion is obligated to provide capi­
tal conrriburions based on its ownership percentage. Dominion's 
maximum exposure to loss is limited to its current and fijtiire 
investment.- • • 

Dominion and Dominion Gas 
Dominion Midstrearn and Dorninion Gas own a 25 .93% and 
24.72% noncontrolling partnership intetest in Iroquois, 
respectively.,See Note3,fot futther details.regarding the nature of 
this enrity. Dominion concluded that Iroquois is a VIE because a 
non-;affiUated Iroquois equity holder has.the abUity during a Um-
ited period of time to transfer its ownetship interests to another 
Iroquois equity.holder or its affUiate. At-December 31,.2015, 
Dominion concluded that neithet Dominion Midstrearn nor 
Dominion Gas is the primary beneficiary of Iroquois as they do: -
not have the power to direct the activities of Iroquois that most 
significantly Impact Its economic performance, as the power to 
direct is shared among multiple unrelated patties. If Iroquois 
determiiies capital contributions are required, DominioniMld- , _ 
stream and Dominion Gas each would be obligated to provide 
the portion of capital 'contributions based on its ownership per­
centage. Dominion Midstream's and Dominion Gas' maximum 
exposure to loss is limited to their current and fiiture investment. 
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DominionGas 
D T I has been engaged to oversee the construcrion of, and to 
subsequently operate and maintain, the projects undertaken by 

Atlantic Coast Pipeline based on the overaU dlrectlon'and over­
sight of Atlantic Coasr Pipeline's members. An affiUate of D T I 

holds a membership interest in Adantic Coast Pipeline, therefore ' 
DTI is considered to have a vatiable interest in Atlantic Coast 

Pipeline. The members of Atlantic Coast PipeUne hold the power 
to direct the construction, operations and maintenance activities 
of the entity. DTI has concluded It is not the primary beneficiaty 

of Atlantic Coast Pipeline as it does not have the power to direct 
the activities of Atlantic Coast Pipeline that most significantly . 

impact its economic performance. D T I has no obligation to 
absorb any losses of the VIE. See Note 24 for Information about 

associated related patty receivable balances. 

Virginia Power 
Virginia Power had long-term power and capacity contracts with 

five non-urillty generators, which contain certain variable pricing 

mechanisms in the form of partial ftiel reimbursement that 

Virginia Power considers to be variable interests. Contracts with 
two of these non-utUity generators expired during 2015 leaving a 

remaining aggregate summer generation capaciry of approx­

imately 4 l 8 M W . After an evaluation ofthe informarion pro­

vided by these entitles, Virginia Power was unable to determine 

whether they were VIEs. However, the information they pro­

vided, as well as Virginia Power's knowledge of generation facili­

ties in Virginia, enabled Virginia Power to coilclude that, if they 

were y iEs , it would not be the primary beneficiary. This con­
clusion reflects Virginia Power's determination that its variable 

inreresrs do nor convey the power to direcr the most significant 

activities that impact the economic performance of the entities 

during the remaining terms of Virginia Poy/er's contracts and for 

the years the entities are expected to operate after its contractual 

relationships expire. The remaining contracts expire at various 

dates ranging from 2017 to 2021. Virginia Power Is not subject to 

any risk of loss from these potential VIEs other rhan its remaining 
purchase commitments which totaled $439 miUion as of 

December 3 1 , 2015. Virginia Power paid $200 mlUion, $223 

mUlIon, and $217 million for electric capacity and $83 million, 
$138 million, and $98 million for elecrric energy to these entitles 

for the years ended December 31 , 2015, 2014 and 2013, 

respecrively. 

Virginia Power and Dominion Gas 
Virginia Power and Dominion Gas purchased shared services 

from DRS, an affiliated VIE, of $318 million and $115 mUlion, 
$335 milUon and $ 106 million, and $331 million and $ 115 mil­

lion for the years ended December 3 1 , 2015, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively. Vitginia Power and Dominion Gas determined that 
each Is not the most closely associated entity with DRS and there­

fore neither is the primary beneficiary. DRS provides accounring, 
legal, finance and certain administrarive and technical services to 

all Dominion subsidiaries, including Virginia Power and Domin­

ion Gas. Virginia Power and Dominion Gas have no obligation to 
absorb more than their allocated shares of DRS costs. 

NOTE 16. SHORT-TERM DEBT AND CREDIT 
AGREEMENTS 

The Companies use short-term debt to fund working capital 

requirements and as a bridge to long-term debt financings. The 
levels of borrowing may vary significanrly during the course of the 

year, depending upon the timing and amount of cash require- ' 
ments not satisfied by cash from operations. In January 2016, 

Dominion expanded its short-term funding resources through a 
$1.0 biUion increase to one of its joint revolving credit faciUty 
limits, In addition, Dominion utUizes cash and letters of credit ro 

fund collateral requirements. Collateral requirements are 
impacted by commodity prices, hedging levels, Dominion's credit 

rarings and the credit quality of Its counterparries. 

Dominion 
Commercial paper and letters of credir ourstandlng, as well as 

capacity available under credit facUitles, were as follows: 

(millions) 

At December 31,2015 
Joint revolving credit 

facilityii'2) 
Joint revolving credit 

facility!" 

Total 
AlDecember31,2014 
Joint revoiving credit 

facilityiii 
Joint revolving credit 

facilityiii 

Total 

Facility 
Limit 

$4,000 

500 

$4,500 

$4,000 

500 

$4,500 

Outstanding 
Commefcial 

Paper 

$3,353 

156 

$3,509(31 

$2,664 

111 

$2,775i3> 

Outstanding 
Letters of 

Credit 

$ -

59 

$59 

$ -

48 

$48 

Facility 
Capacity 
Available 

$ 647 

285 

$ 932 

$1,336 

341 

$1,677 

(1) These credit facilities mature in April 2019, and can be used to support 
bank borrowings and the issuance of commercial paper, as well as to 
support up to a combined $2.0 billion of letters of credit. 

(2)Infanuary20l6, this facility limit was increased from $4.0 billion to 
$5.0 biUion. 

(3) The weighted-average interest rates ofthe outstanding commercial paper 
supported by Dominion's credit facilities were 0.62% and 0.38% at 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

Virginia Power 

Virginia Power's short-term financing is supported through Irs 
access as co-borrower to the two joint revolving credit facilities. 
These credit facilities can be used for working capital, as support 

for the combined commercial paper programs of rhe Companies 
and for other general corporate purposes. 
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Virginia Power's share of commercial paper and letters of 
credit outstanding under its joint credit faciliries with Dominian 
and Dominion Gas were as foUows; 

Facility. 
Limit <i> 

Outstanding 
. Commercial 

Paper 

Outstanding 
Letters of 

Credit 

{millions} 

At December 31,2015 
Joint revolving credit facility<in2) 
Joint revolving credit facility^" 

Total 
At December 31,2014 
Joint revolving credit facilityii' 
Joint revolving credit facility*" 

$4,000 
500 

$4,500 

$4,000 
500 

$1,500 
156 

$1,656") 

$1,250 
111 

• $ -

— 
$ -

$ -
. — 

Total $4,500 $1,36113) ^ 

(1) The full arnount of the facilities is available to Virginia Power, less any 
amounts outstanding to co-borrowers Dominion and Dominion Gas. 
Sub-limits for Virginia Power are set within the facility limit but can be 
changed at the option ofthe Companies multiple times per year. At 
December 31, 2015, the sub-limit for Virginia Power was an aggregate 
$1.75 billion. If Virginia Power has liquidity needs tn excess of its sub­
limit, the sub-limit may be changed or such needs may be satisfied 
through short-term intercompany borrowings from Dominion. These 
credit facilities mature in April 2019, and can be used to support bank 
borrowings and the issuance of commercial paper, as well as to support 
up to $2.0 billion (or the sub-limit, whichever is less) of letters of credit. 

(2) In fanuary 2016, this facility limit was increased from $4.0 billion to 
$5.0 billion. 

(3) The weighted-average interest rates ofthe outstanding commercial paper 
supportedby these credit facilities were 0.60% and 0.36% at 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

In addition to the credit facility commitments mentioned 

above, Virginia Power also has a $ 120 million credit facility with 

a mamrity date of April 2019. As of December 31, 2015, this 
facUity suppons $119 miUion of certain variable rate tax-exempt 
financings of Virginia Power. 

Dominion Gas 
Dominion Gas' short-rerm financing is supported-by its access as 

co-borrower to the two joint revolving credit facilities. In 
December 2014, Dominion Gas entered into a commercial paper 

program pursuant to which it began accessing the commercial 
paper markets in-January 2015. 

Dominion Gas' share of commercial paper and letters of 
credit outstanding under irs joint credit faciliries with Dominion 

and Virginia Power were as follows: 

Outstanding 'Outstanding 
Facility Commerciai " Letters of 
Limit u) Paper Credit 

(millions) 

At December 31, 2015 
Joint revolving credit facility'i* 
Joint revolving credit facility'" 

Total 
AtDecemberSl,2014 
Joint revolving credit facility'" 
Joirit revolving credit facility") 

$1,000 
500 

$1,500 

• $1,000 
500 

$391 
— 

, $391(21 

$ -
— 

$ -
— 

$ -

$ -
— 

Total $1,500 $ -~ 

(1) A maximum of a combined $1.5 billion of the facilities is available to 
Dominion Gas, assuming adequate capacity js available afier giving 
effect to uses by co-borrowers Dominion and Virginia Power. Sub-limits 
for Dominion Gas are set within the facility limit but can be changed at 
the option ofthe Companies multiple times per year. At December 31, 
2015, the sub-limit for Dominion Gas was an aggregate $500 million. 
Infanuary 2016, the aggregate sub-limit for Dominion Gas was 
increased to $1.0 billion. I f Dominion Gas has liquidity needs in excess 
of its sub-limit, the sub-limit may be changed or such needs may be sat­
isfied through short-term intercompany borrowing from Dominion. 
These credit facilities mature in April 2019.. and can be used to support 
bank borrowings and, the issuance of commercial paper, as well as to 
support up to $1.5 billion (or the sub-limit, whichever is less) of letters of 
credit. 

(2) The weighted-average interest rate ofthe outstanding commercial paper 
supported by these credit facilities was 0.63% at December 31, 2015-

126 
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At December 31, 

2015 
Weigtited-

average 
Coupon<'> 2015 2014 

(millions, except percentages) 

Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC: 
Unsecured Senior Notes: 

1.05% to 2,8%, due 2016 to 2020 
3.55% to 4.8%, due 2023 to 2044 

Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC total principal 

Securities due within one year 
Unamortized discount 

Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC total long-term debt 

2.26% $ 1,550 
4.15% 1,750 

$ 3,300 

1.05% (400) 
(8) 

$ 2,892 

$ 850 
1,750 

$ 2,600 

(6) 

$ 2,594 

Virginia Electric and Power Company: 
Unsecured Senior Notes: 

1.2% to 8,625%, due 2015 to 2019 
275% to 8.875%, due 2022 to 2045 

Tax-Exempt Financings'̂ ): 

Dominion Resources, Inc.: 
Unsecured Senior Notes: 

Variable rates, due 2015 and 2016 
1.25% to 6.4%, due 2015 to 2019 
2.75% to 7.0%, due 2021 to 2044'3) 

Tax-Exempt Financing, variable rate, due 2041 
Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trust, 8.4%, due 2031 
Enhanced Junior Subordinated Notes: 

5.75% and 7.5%, due 2054 and 2066 
Variable rate, due 2066 

Remarketable Subordinated Notes, 1.07% to 1.50%, due 2019 to 2021 
Unsecured Debentures and Senior NotesW: 

6.8% and 6.875%, due 2026 and 2027 
Dominion Energy, Inc.-. 

Tax-Exempt Financing, 2.375%, due 2033 
Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC total principal (from above) 
Virginia Electric and Power Company total principal (from above) 

5.03% $ 2,261 $ 2,471 
4.91% 6,292 5,592 

Variable rates, due 2015 to 2041 
0.70% to 5.6%, due 2023 to 2041 

Virginia Electric and Power Company total principal 
Securities due within one year 
Unamortized discount and premium, net 

Virginia Electric and Power Company total long-term debt 

0.79% 194 
2.19% 678 

$ 9,425 
5.24% (476) 

$ 8,949 

606 
266 

$ 8,935 
(211) 

2 

$ 8,726 

1.11% $ 600 
3.05% 3,400 
4.80% 5,099 
1.16% 75 
8.40% . 10 

6.27% 971 
2.90% 377 
1.30% 2,100 

6.81% 

2.38% 

89 

$ 400 
3,150 
4,449 

75 
10 

985 
380 

2,100 

89 

27 
3,300 
9,425 

27 
2,500 
8,935 

Dominion Resources, Inc. total principal $25,473 $23,200 

Fair value hedge valuation'̂ ' 
Securities due within one year's' 
Unamortized discount and premium, net 

2.38% 
7 

(1,826) 
(38) 

19 
(1,375) 

(39) 

Dominion Resources, Inc. total long-term debt $23,616 $21,805 

(1) Represents weighted-average coupon rates for debt outstanding as of December 31, 2015. 
(2) These financings relate to certain pollution control equipment at Virginia Power's generating facilities. Certain variable rate tax-exempt financings are sup­

ported by a $120 million credit facility ihat terminates in April 2019. 
(3) At the option of holders, $510 million of Dominion's 5.25% senior notes due 2033 were subject to redemption at 100% of the principal amount plus 

accrued interest in August 2015. As a result, at December 31, 2014, the notes were included in securities due within one year in Dominion's Consolidated 
Balance Sheets. • The option to redeem the notes expired in fune 2015. At December 31, 2015, the notes are included in long-term debt in Dominion's Con­
solidated Balance Sheets. 

(4) Represents debt assumed by Dominion from the merger of its former CNG subsidiary, 
(5) Represents the valuation of certain foir value hedges associated with Dominion's fixed rate debt. 
(6) Includes $4 million for foir value hedge valuation in 20l4. Excludes $100 million of variable rate short-term notes scheduled to mature in May 2016 that 

were purchased and cancelled using the proceeds from the February 2016 issuance of senior notes that mature in 2018. 
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Based on stated maturity dates rather than early redemption dates that could be elected by instrument holders, the scheduled principal 

payments of long-term debt ar December 31 , 2015, were as follows: 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter Tola) 

(millions, except percentages) 

Dominion Gas $ 400 $ — $ — 

Weighted-average Coupon 1.05% 

Virginia Power $ 476 $ 679 $ 850 

Weighted-average Coupon 5,24% 5.44% 4.17% 

$ 450 $ 700 $ 1,750 $ 3,300 

2.50% 2.80% 4.15% 

$ 350 $ — $ 7,070 $ 9,425 

5.00% 4.59% 

Dominion 
Unsecured Senior Notes"' 
Tax-Exempt Financings 
Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trusts 
Entranced Junior Subordinated Notes 

$1,907 
19 

$1,354 
75 

$1,850 $2,000 $ 700 $13,230 $21,041 
880 974 

10 10 
1,348 1,348 

Remarketable Subordinated Notes 

Total 

Weighted-average Coupon 

— — — 550 1,000 550 2,100 

$1,926 $1,429 $1,850 $2,550 $1,700^ $16,018 $25,473 

2.31% 3.2S% 4.16% 3.09% 2.04% 4.54% 

(J) In February 2016, Dominion purchased and cancelled $100 milUon of variable rate short-term notes that would have otherwise matured in May 2016 
using the proceeds fiom the February 2016 issuance of senior notes that mature in 2018. As a result, at December 31. 2015, $100 million ofthe notes were 
included in long-term debt in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

The Companies' short-term credit facilities and long-rerm 

debt agreements contain customary covenants and default provi­

sions. As of December 3 1 , 2015, there were no events of defeult 

under these covenants. 

In January 2016, Virginia Power issued $750 million of 

3.15% senior notes that mature in 2026. 

In February 2016, Dominion issued $500 miUion of 2 .125% 

senior notes in a private placement. The notes mature in 2018. 

Senior Note Redemptions 
As part of Dominion's Liability Management Exercise, in December 

2014, Dominion redeemed five outstanding series of senior notes 

with an aggregate outstanding principal of $1.9 billion. The 

a^regate redemption price paid in December 2014 was S2.2 billion 

and represents the principal amount outstanding, accrued and 
unpaid interest and the applicable make-whole premium of 

$263 million. Totel charges for the Liability M a n ^ e m e n t Exercise 

of $284 million, including the make-whole premium, were recog­

nized and recorded in interest expense in Dominion's Consolidated 
Statements of Income. Vroceeds from Dominion's issuance of senior 
nores in November 2014 were used to offset the payment ofthe 

redemption price. Also see Convertible Securities called for 
redemption below. 

Convertible Securities 
As part of Dominion's Liability Managemenr Exercise, in 
Novembei 2014, Dominion provided notice to redeem all $22 
million of outsranding contingent convertible senior nores. The 

senior nores were eligible for conversion during 2014. However, 

in heu of redemption, holders elected to convert rhe remaining 
$22 million of notes in December 2014 into $26 million of 
common stock. Proceeds from Dominion's issuance of senior 

nores in November 2014 were used to offset the portion ofthe 
conversions paid in cash. At December 3 1 , 2014, all of the senior 

notes have been converted and none remain outstanding. 

Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trusts 
In previous years, Dominion established several subsidiary, capital 

trusts, each as a finance subsidiary of Dominion,, which holds . 

100% ofthe voting interests. The trusts sold capital securities, 

represenring preferred beneficial interests and 9 7 % beneficial 

ownership in the assets held by thetmsts . In exchange for the 
funds realized from the sale of the capital securities and common 

securities that represent the remaining 3 % beneficial ownership 

interest in the assets held by the capital trusts. Dominion issued 

various junior subordinated libtes. The junior subordinated notes 

consritute 100% of each capital trust's assets. Each trust must 

redeem its capital securities when their respective junior sub­

ordinated notes are repaid at maturity or if redeemed prior to 

maturity. 

In January 2013, Dominion repaidits $258 million 7 .83% 

unsecured junior subordinated debentures and redeemed all 

250 thousand units of the $250 million 7.Hd% Dominion 

Resources CapiralTrust Icapital secutities due December 1, 

2027. The securities were redeemed at a price of $1,019.58 per 

capital security-plus accrued and unpaid distributions. 

Interest charges related to Dominion's junior subordinated 
notes payable to affiliated trusts were $1 million for the yeats 

ended December 3 1 , 2015, 2014 and 2013. 

Enhanced Junior Subordinated Notes 
In June 2006 and Seprember 2006, Dominion issued $300 mil­
lion of June 2006 hybrids and $500 niillion of September 2006 

hybrids, respectively. The June 2006 hybrids bear interest at •. 
7 .5% per year until June 30, 2016. Thereafter, they will bear 
interest at the three-month LIBOR plus 2.825%, reset quarterly. 

The September 2006 hybrids bear interest.at the three-montJi 
LIBOR plus 2 .3%, reset quarterly. 

In June 2009, Dominion issued $685 million of 8.375% June 

2009 hybrids. The June 2009 hybrids were listed on the NYSE 
under rhe symbol DRU. 
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In October 2014, Dominion issued $685 million of October 
2014 hybrids that will bear interest at 5.75% per year until 

October 1, 2024. Thereafter, they will bear interest at the three-
month LIBOR plus 3.057%, reset quarterly. 

Dominion may defer interest payments on the hybrids on one 
or more occasions for up to 10 consecutive yeats. If the intetest 

payments on the hybrids are deferred, Dominion may not make 
distributions related to its capital stock, including dividends, 

redemptions, repurchases, liquidation payments ot guarantee 
payments duting the deferral period. Also, during the deferral 

period, Dominion may not make any payments on or redeem or 
repurchase any debt securities that are equal in right of payment 
with, or subordinated to, the hybrids. 

Dominion executed RCCs in connection with its issuance of 

the June 2006 hybrids, the September 2006 hybrids, and the June 
2009 hybrids. Under rhe terms of the RCCs, Dominion cove­

nants to and for the benefit of designated coveted debtholders, as 
may be designated from time to time, that Dominion shall not 

redeem, repurchase, or defease all or any part of the hybrids, and 

shall not cause its majority owned subsidiaties to putchase all or 

any part of the hybrids, on or before their applicable RCC termi­

nation date, unless, subject to certain limitations, during the 180 

days prior to such activity. Dominion has received a specified 

amount of proceeds as set forth in the RCCs from the sale of 
quaUfying securities that have equity-hke chatacteristics that are 

the same as, or more equity-like than the applicable characteristics 

of the hybrids at that time, as more fully described in the RCCs. 

In September 2011 , Dominion amended the RCCs of the June 

2006 hybrids and September 2006 hybrids to expand the 

measurement period for consideration of proceeds from the sale 

of common stock issuances ftom 180 days to 365 days. In July 

2014, Dominion amended the R C C o f the June 2009 hybrids to 

expand the measurement period for consideration of proceeds 
from the sale of common stock or other equity-like issuances from 

180 days to 365 days. The proceeds Dominion receives from the 

replacement offering, adjusted by a predetermined factor, must 

equal or exceed the redemption or repurchase price. 

As part of Dominion's Liability Management Exercise, in 

October 2014, Dominion redeemed all $685 million ofthe June 

2009 hybrids plus accrued interest with the net proceeds from the 
issuance ofthe October 2014 hybrids. In 2015, Dominion pur­

chased and canceled $14 million and $3 million ofthe June 2006 

hybrids and the September 2006 hybrids, respectively. In the first 
quarter of 2016, Dominion purchased and cancelled $37 million 
and $2 million of the June 2006 hybrids and the September 2006 

hybrids, respectively. The redemption and all purchases were 
conducted in compliance with the RCCs. 

Remarketable Subordinated Notes 
In June 2013, Dominion issued $550 million of 2013 Series A 

6.125% Equity Units and $550 million of 2013 Series B 6% 
Equity Units, initially in the form of Corporate Units. In July 

2014, Dominion issued $1.0 billion of 2014 Series A 6.375% 
Equity Units^ initially in the form of Corporate Units. The 

Corporate Units are listed on the NYSE under the symbols 
DCUA, D C U B and D C U C , respectively. 

Each Corporate Unit consists of a stock purchase contract and 
1/20 interest in a RSN issued by Dominion. The stock purchase 

contracts obligate the holders to purchase shares of Dominion 
common stock at a future settlement date prior to rhe relevant 

RSN maturity date. The purchase price to be paid under the 
stock putchase contracts is $50 per Corporate Unit and the 

number of shares to be purchased will be determined under a 
formula based upon the average closing price of Dominion 
common stock near the settlement date. The RSNs are pledged as 

collateral to secure the purchase of common stock under the 

related stock purchase contracts. 

Dominion makes quarterly interest payments on the RSNs 

and quarterly contract adjustment payments on the stock pur­

chase contracts, at the rates described below. Dominion may defer 

payments on the stock purchase contracts and the RSNs for one 

or more consecutive periods but generally not beyond the pur­
chase contract settlement date. If payments are deferred. Domin­

ion may not make any cash distributions related to its capital 

stock, including dividends, redemptions, repurchases, liquidation 

payments or guarantee payments. Also, duting the deferral period, 

Dominion may not make any payments on or redeem or 

repurchase any debt securities that are equal in right of payment 

with, or subordinated to, the RSNs. 

Dominion has recorded the present value of the stock pur­

chase contract payments as a liability offset by a charge to equity. 

Interest payments on the RSNs are recorded as interest expense 

and stock purchase contract payments are charged against the 

liability. Accretion of the stock purchase contract liability is 
recorded as imputed interest expense. In calculating diluted EPS, 

Dominion applies the treasury stock method to the Equity Units. 

Pursuant to the terms of the 2013 Equity Units and 2014 

Equity Units, Dominion expects to remarket the 2013 Series A, 
2013 Series B and 2014 Series A RSNs during the first and sec­
ond quarters of 2016, and the second quarter of 2017, 

respecrively. Following a successful remarketing, the interest rate 
on the RSNs will be reset, interest will be payable on a semi­

annual basis and Dominion will cease to have the ability to 
redeem the RSNs at its option or defer interest payments. Pro­

ceeds of each remarketing will belong to the investors in the 
related equity units and will be held and applied on their behalf at 
the settlement date of the related stock purchase contracts to pay 

the purchase price to Dominion fot issuance of its common stock. 
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Under the terms of the stock purchase contracts, assuming no anti-dilution or other adjustments, Dominion will issue between 

8.5 million and 10.0 million shares of its common stock in both April 2016 and July 2016 and between 11.5 million and l4 .4 million 
shares in July 2017. A total of 40.3 million shares of Dominion's common stock has been reserved for issuance in connection with the 

stock purchase contracts. 

Selected information about Dominion's Equity Units is presented below: 

Issuance Dale 

(millions, except interest rates) 

6/7/2013 
6/7/2013 
7/1/2014 

Units 
Issued' 

11 
11 
20 

Total Net 
Proceeds 

$533.5 
$553.5 
$982.0 

Total 
Long-term Debt 

$ 550.0 
$ 550.0 
$1,000.0 

RSN Annual 
Interest Rate 

1.070% 
1.180% 
1.500% 

Stock Purctiase 
Contract Annuaf 

Rate 

5.055% 
4.820% 
4.875% 

Stock Purchase 
Contract Liability'!'. 

$ 76.7 
$ 79.3 
$142.8 

Stock Purchase 
Settlement Date 

4/1/2016-
7/1/2016 
7/1/2017 

RSN Maturity 
Date 

4/1/2021 
7/1/2019 
7/1/2020 

(1) Payments of$lOl million and $66 miUion were made in 2015 and 2014, respectively. The stock purchase contract liability was $115 iniUion and $216 
million af December 31, 2015 and2014, respectively. 
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NOTE 18. PREFERRED STOCK 

Dominion is authorized ro issue up ro 20 million shares of pre­

ferred stock; however, none were issued and outstanding at 

December 3 1 , 2015 or 2014. 

Virginia Power is authorized to issue up to 10 million shares 

of preferred stock, $100 liquidation preference. During 2014, 

Virginia Power redeemed 2.59 million shares, which represented 

all outstanding series of its preferred stock, some of which were 

redeemed as a part of Dominion's Liability Management Exercise 

in September 2014. Upon redemption, each series was no longer 

outstanding for any purpose and dividends ceased to accumulate. 

Virginia Power had no preferred stock issued and outstanding at 

December 3 1 , 2015 or 2014. 

NOTE 19. EQUITY 

Issuance of Common Stock 
DOMINION 

Dominion maintains Dominion Direcr® and a number of 

employee savings plans through which contributions may be 

invested in Dominion's common stock. These shares may either 

be newly issued or putchased on the open market with proceeds 

contributed to these plans. In January 2014, Dominion began 

purchasing its common stock on the open market for these plans. 

In April 2 0 l 4 , Dominion began issuing new common shares for 

these direct stock purchase plans. 

During 2015, Dominion received cash proceeds, net of fees 

and commissions, of $783 million from the issuance ofapprox­

imately 11 million shares of common stock through various pro­

grams resulting in approximately 596 million of shares of 

common stockoutstanding at December 3 1 , 2015. These pro­

ceeds include cash of $284 million received from the issuance of 

4.1 million of such shares through Dominion Direct® and 

employee savings plans. 

In December 2014, Dominion filed an SEC shelf registration 

for the sale of debt and equity securities including the ability to sell 

common stock through an at-the-market program. Also in 

December 2014, Dominion entered into four separate sales agency 

agreements to effect sales under the program and pursuant to 

which ir may offer from time to time up ro $500 million aggregate 

amount of its common stock. Sales of common stock can be made 

by means of privately negotiated transactions, as transactions on 

the NYSE at market prices or in such other transactions as are 

agreed upon by Dominion and the sales agents and in con­

formance with applicable securities laws. During the first and 

second quarters of 2015, Dominion provided sales instructions to 

the sales agents and issued 4.0 million shares through at-the-

market issuances and received cash proceeds of $297 million, net 

of fees and commissions paid of $3 million. Following these issu­

ances. Dominion has the ability to issue up to approximately $200 

million of stock under the 2014 sales agency agreements. How­

ever, Dominion completed its 2015 planned market issuances of 

equity in May 2015 with the issuance of 2.8 million shares and 

receipt of proceeds of $202 million through a registered under­

written public offering. 

VIRGINIA POWER 

In 2015, 2014 and 2013, Virginia Power did not issue any shares 

of its common stock to Dominion. 

DOMINION GAS 

O n September 30, 2013, Dominion contributed its wholly-

owned subsidiaries D T I , East Ohio and Dominion Iroquois to 

Dominion Gas in exchange for 100% of its limited liability 

company membership Interests. 

Shares Reserved for Issuance 
Ar December 3 1 , 2015, Dominion had approximately 50 million 

shares reserved and available for issuance for Dominion Direct®, 

employee stock awards, employee savings plans, director stock 

compensation plans and issuance in connection with stock pur­

chase contracts. See Note 17 for more information. 

Repurchase of Common Stock 
Dominion did not repurchase any shares in 2015 or 2014 and 

does not plan to repurchase shares during 2016, except for shares 

tendered by employees to satisfy tax withholding obligations on 

vested restricted stock, which do not count against its stock 

repurchase authorization. 

Purchase of Dominion Midstream Units 
In September 2015, Dominion initiated a program to purchase 

from the market up to $50 million of common units representing 

limited partner interests in Dominion Midstream. The common 

units may be acquired by Dominion over the 12 month period 

following commencement of the program at the disctetion of 

management. Thtough December 3 1 , 2015, Dominion pur­

chased approximately 887,000 common units for $25 million. In 

the first quarter of 2016, Dominion purchased approximately 

377,000 additional common units for approximately $10 million. 

At February 23, 2016, Dominion still has the ability to purchase 

up to $ !5 million of common unirs under rhe program. 
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 
Presented in the table below is a summary of AOCI by compo­

nent: 

At Decemt)er31, 2015 2014 

(millions) 

Dominion 
Net deferred losses on derivatives-hedging activities, 

netoftaxof$110and$116 
Net unrealized gains on nuclear decommissioning tnjst 

funds, net of tax of $(281) and ${333) 
Net unrecognized pension and ottier postretirement 

benefit costs, net of tax of $525 anti $530 
Other comprehensive loss from equity method 

investees, net of tax of $4 and $3 

$(176) $(178) 

504 548 

(797) (782) 

(5) (4) 

Total AOCI $(474) $(416) 

Virginia Power 
Net deferred losses on derivatives-hedging activities, 

netoftaxof$4and$4 $ (7) $ (7) 
Net unrealized gains on nuclear decommissioning trust 

funds, net of tax of $(30) and $(35) 47 57 

Total AOCI $ 40 $ 50 

Dominion Gas 
Net deferred losses on derivatives-hedging activities, 

netoftaxofSlOandSll 
Net unrecognized pension costs, net of tax of $56 and 

$ t17) $ (20) 

(82) (66) 

Total AOCI $ (99) $ (86) 

DOMINION 

The following table presents Dominion's changes in AOCI by 

component, net of tax: 

Deferred 
. gains and Unrealized' Unrecognized • Other 

losses on gains and pension and comprehensive 
derivatives- losses on other loss from 

hedgir^g investment postretirement equity metiiod 
activities securities. benefit costs investees Total 

(millions) 

Year Ended 
December 31,2015 

Beginning balance $(178) $548 $(782) $(4) $(416J 
Other comprehensive 

income before 
reclassifications: 
gains (losses) 110 6 (66) . (1) 49 

Amounts reclassified 
from AOCI; (gains) 
losses'ii 

Net current period 
other comprehensive 
income (ioss) 

Ending balance 

(108) 

2 

$(176) 

(50) 

(44) 

$504 

51 

(15) 

$(797) 

- (107) 

(1) (58) 

$(5) $(474) 

Yeat Ended 
December 31, 2014 

Beginning balance 
Other compretiensive 

income before 
reclassifications: 
gains (losses) 

Amounts reclassified 
from AOCI: (gains) 

$(288) $474 

17. 128 

$(510) 

(305) 

$ - $(324) 

(4) (164) 

losses'" 

Net current period 
ottier comprehensive 
income (loss) 

Ending balance 

93 

110 

$(178) 

(54) 

74' 

$548 

33 

(272) 

$(782) 

— 72 

(4) (92) 

. $(4) $(416) 

(1) See table below for detaih about these reclassifications. 
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The following table presents Dominion's reclassifications out 
)f AOCI by component: 

details about AOCI components 

Amounts Affected line item in the 
reclassified Consolidated Statements of 
from AOCI Income 

imillions) 

Year Ended December 3 1 , 2015 
Deferred (gains) and losses on 

derivatives-hedging activities: 
Commodity contracts 

Interest rate contracts 

$(203) 
15 

1 

11 

Operating revenue 
Purchased gas 
Electric fuel and other 
energy-related purchases 
Interest and related 
charges 

Total 
Tax 

(176) 
68 Income tax expense 

Total, net of tax $(108) 

Unrealized (gains) and losses on 
investment securities: 
Realized (gain) loss on sale of 

securities 
Impairment 

Total 
Tax 

Total, net of tax 

$(110) Other income 
31 Other income 

(79) 
29 Income tax expense 

$ (50) 

Unrecognized pension and other 
postretirement benefit costs: 
Prior-service costs (credits) 

Actuarial losses 

(12) Other operations and 
maintenance 

98 Other operations and 
maintenance 

Total 
Tax 

86 
(35) I ncome tax expense 

Total, net of tax $ 51 

Year Ended December 31,2014 
Deferred (gains) and losses on 

derivatives-hedging activities: 
Commodity contracts 

Interest rate contracts 

130 Operating revenue 
13 Purchased gas 
(7) Electric fuel and other 

energy-related purchases 
16 Interest and related 

charges 

Total 

Tax 

152 

(59) Income tax expense 

Total, net of tax $ 93 

Unrealized (gains) and losses on 
investment securities: 
Realized (gain) loss on sale of 

securities 
Impairment 

Tota) 
Tax 

Total, net of tax 

$(100) Other income 
13 Other income 

(87) 
33 1 ncome tax expense 

$ (54) 

Unrecognized pension and other 
postretirement benefit costs: 
Prior-sen/ice costs (credits) 

Actuarial losses 

(12) Other operations and 
maintenance 

69 Other operations and 
maintenance 

Total 
Tax 

57 
(24) Income tax expense 

Total, net of tax $ 33 

VIRGINIA POWER 

The following table presents Virginia Power's changes in AOCI 
by component, net of tax: 

(millions) 

Year Ended December 3 1 , 2015 
Beginning balance 

Other comprehensive income 
before reclassifications: 

losses 
Amounts reclassified from 

AOCI: (gains) losses"' 

Deferred gains 
and losses on 

derivatives-
iiedging 

activities 

$(7) 

(1) 

1 

Unrealized gains 
and losses on 

investment 
securities 

$57 

(4) 

(6) 

Total 

$50 

(5) 

(5) 

Net current period other 
comprehensive income (loss) (10) 

Ending balance $(7) $47 

(10) 

$ 4 0 

Year Ended December 31,2014 
Beginning balance 

Other comprehensive income 
before reclassifications: gains 

(losses) 
Amounts reclassified from 

AOCI:gainsii> 

$ -

(4) 

(3) 

$48 

15 

(5) 

$48 

11 

(9) 

Net current period other 
comprehensive income (loss) (7) 

Ending balance $(7) $57 

2 

$ 5 0 

(1) See table below for details about these reclassifications. 
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The following table presents Virginia Power's reclassifications' 

out of A O C I by component: .; --

Amounts Affected line item in the 
reclassified Consolidated Statements of 

Details about AOCI components from AOCI Income 

(millions) 

Year Ended December 31,2015 

(Gains) losses on cash flow hedges: -

Commodity contracts 1 Electric fuel and other 

energy-related 

purchases 

Total 

Tax 

1 

— Income fax expense 

Total, net of tax $ 1 

Unrealized (gains) and losses on 

investment securities: 

Realized (gain) loss on sale of 

securities . ., 

Impairment 

$(14) . Other income 

4 Other income 

Total 

Tax 

(10) 

4 Income tax expense 

Total, net of tax (6) 

Year Ended December 31,2014 

(Gains) losses on cash i\ow hedges: 

Commodity contracts (5) Electric fuel and other 

energy-related 

purchases 

Total 

Tax 

Total, net of tax 

Unrealized (gains) and losses on 
investment securities: 
Realized (gain) loss on sale of 

securities 

Total 

Tax 

Total, net of tax 

(5) 

2 

$ (3) 

$(10) 

(10) 

4 

$ (6) 

Income tax expense 

Other income 

Income tax expense 

DOMINION GAS 

The following table presents Dominion Gas' changes in AOCI by 
componenr, net of tax: - . 

Deferred gains 
and losses on 

derivatives-
hedging , Unrecognized 
activities pension costs Total, 

(millions) 

Year Ended December 3 1 , 2015 

Beginning balance 
Other comprehensive income 

before reclassifications: gains 

(losses) 
Amounts reclassified from AOCI: 

(gains) losses'" • 

$(20) 

6 

(3) 

$(66) $(86 

(20) 

4 

(14; 

1 

Net current period other 

comprehensive income (loss) (16) (13} 

Ending balance $(17) $(82) $(99) 

Year Ended December 31,2014 
Beginning balance 

Other comprehensive income 

before reclassifications-, losses 
Amounts reclassified from AOCI: 

$ 3 

(31) 

$(61) 

(10) 

5 

$(58) 

(41) 

13 losses'" 

Net current period other 

comprehensive loss 

Ending balance 

8 

(23) 

$(20) 

5 

(5) 

$(66) 

13 

(28) 

$(86) 

(1) See table below for details about these reclassifications. 
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The following rable presents Dominion Gas' reclassifications 
:jut of AOCI by component: 

î etatls about AOCI components 

Imillions) 

Year Ended December 31, 
2015 • 

Deferred (gains) and losses 
on derivatives-hedging 
activities: 
Commodity contracts 

Total 

Tax 

Total, net of tax 

Unrecognized pension costs: 
Actuarial losses 

Total 
Tax 

Totai, net of tax 

Year Ended December 31, 
2014 

Deferred (gains) and losses 
on derivatives-hedging 
activities; 
Commodity contracts 

Interest rate contracts 

Total 
Tax 

Total, net of tax 

Unrecognized pension costs: 
Prior sen/ice costs 

Actuarial tosses 

Total 
Tax 

Tota), net of tax 

Amounts 
reclassified 
from AOCI 

$(6) 

(6) 

3 

$(3) 

$ 7 

7 
(3) 

$ 4 

$(2) 
14 
1 

13 
(5) 

$ 8 

$ 1 

7 

8 
(3) 

$ 5 

Affected line item in the 
Consolidated Statements of Income 

Operating revenue 

Income tax expense 

Other operations and 
maintenance 

Income tax expense 

Operating revenue 
Purchased gas 
Interest and related charges 

Income tax expense 

Other operations and 
maintenance 
Other operations and 
maintenance 

Income tax expense 

Stock-Based Awards 
The 2005 and 20l4 Incentive Compensation Plans permit stock-
based awards that include restricred stock, performance grants, 
goal-based stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. 
The Non-Employee Directors Compensation Plan permits grants 
of restricted stock and stock options. Under provisions of these 
plans, employees and non-employee directors may be granted 
options to purchase common stock at a price not less than Its fair 
market value at the date of grant with a maximum term of eight 
years. Option terms are set at the discretion ofthe CGN 
Committee ofthe Board of Directors or the Board of Directors 
itself, as provided undereachplan. At December 31, 2015, 
approximately 25 million shares were available for fiiture grants 
under these plans. . 

Dominion measures and recognizes compensation expense 
relating to share-based payment transactions over the vesting 
petiod based on the fitir value of the equity or Habillty instru­
ments issued. Dominion's results for the years ended 
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 include $39 million, $39 
million, and $31 million, respectively, of compensation costs and 
$14 million, $14 million, and $11 million, respectively of income 
tax benefits related to Dominion's stock-based compensation 
arrangements. Stock-based compensation cost is reported in other 
operations and maintenance expense in Dominion's Consolidated 
Statements of Income. Excess Tax Benefits are classified as a 
financing cash flow. Dominion realized $3 million of excess tax 
benefits from the vesting of restricted stock awards and exercise of 
stock options during the year ended December 31, 2015, and less 
than $1 million during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 
2013. 

RESTRICTED STOCK 

Restricted stock grants are made to officers under Dominion's 
LTIP and may also be granted to certain key non-officer employ­
ees from time to time. The feir value of Dominion's restricted 
stock awards is equal to the closing price of Dominion's stock on 
the date of grant. New shares are issued for restricted stock awards 
on the date of grant and generally vest over a three-year service 
period. The following table provides a summary of restricted 
stock activity for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 
2013: 

Weighted 
- average 

Grant Date 
Shares Fair Value 

Nonvested at December 31, 2012 
Granted 
Vested 
Cancelled and forfeited 

Nonvested at December 31, 2013 
Granted 
Vested 

(thousands) 

1,085 
312 
(356) 
(34) 

1.007 
354 
(278) 

$44.46 
54.70 
39.00 
51.11 

$49.35 
67.98 
44.50 

Cancelled and forfeited 
Nonvested at December 31, 2014 
Granted 
Vested 
Cancelled and forfeited 
Nonvested at December 31, 2015 

(18) 

1,065 
302 

(510) 
(2) 

855 

53.61 
$56.74 
73.26 
50.71 
62.62 

$66.16 

Asof December 31, 2015, unrecognized compensation cost 
related to nonvested restricted stock awards totaled $27 million 
and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period 
of 2.0 years. The fair value of restricted stock awards that vested 
was $37 million, $19 miUion, and $20 million in 2015, 2014 and 
2013, tespectively. Employees may elect to have shares of 
restricted stock withheld upon vesring to satisfy tax withholding 
obligations. The number of shares withheld will vary for each 
employee depending on the vesring date fair market value of 
Dominion stock and the applicable federal, state and local tax 
withholding rates. 

GOAL-BASED STOCK 

Goal-based stock awards are granted under Dominion's LTIP to 
officers who have not achieved a certain targeted level of share 
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ownership, in Heu of cash-based performance grants. Goal-based 
stock awards may also be made to certain key non-officer 
employees from time to time. Current outstanding goal-based 
shares include awards granred to officers in February 2014 and 
Febmary 201.5. • 

. The issuance of awards is based on the achievement of two 
performance metrics during a two-year period: TSR relative to 
that of companies listed as members of the Philadelphia Utility 
Index as of the end ofthe performance period and R O I C . The 
actual number of shares issued will vary between zero and 200% 
of targeted shares depending on the level of performance metrics 
achieved. The fair value of goal-based stock is equal to the closing 
price of Dominion's stock on the date of grant. Goal-based stock 
awards granted to key non-officer einployees convert to restricted, 
stock at the end of the two-year performance period and generally 
vest three years from the original grant date. Awards to officers 
vest at the end of the two-year performance period. All goal-based 
stock awards are setded by issuing new shares. 

The following table provides a summary of goal-based stock 
activity for the years ended December 3 1 , 2015, 2014 and 2013: 

Nonvested at December 31 
Granted 
Vested 
Cancelled and forfeited 

[Nonvested at December 31 
Granted 
Vested 

Nonvested at December 31 
Granted 
Vested 

Nonvested at December 31 

2012 • 

2013 

2014 

2015 

Targeted 
Number of 

Shares 

(thousands) 

4 
4 
(2) 
(1) 

5 
13 
(1) 

17 
14 
(7) 

24 

Weighted 
- average 

Grant 
Dale Fair 

Value 

$45.60 
54.17 
43.54 
43.54 

$53.85 
68.83 
52.48 

$65.15 
72.72 
56.22 

$72.27 

At December 3 1 , 2015, the targered number of shares 
expected to be issued under the February 2014 and February 
2015 awards was approximately 24 thousand. In January 2016, 
the C G N Committee determined rhe actual performance against 
metrics established for the February 2014 awards with a perform­
ance'period/that ended December 3 1 , 2015. Based on that , , 
deterrnination, the total number of shares ro be issued under the 
February 20f 4 goal-based stock awards was approximately " 
10 thousand. . _ . 

As of December 31> 2015, unrecognized conapensalion cost 
related to nonvested goal-based stock a,wards was not rnaterial. . 

CASH-BASED PERFORMANCE GRANTS 

Cash-based performance grants are made to Dominion's officers , 
under Dominion's LTIP. The actual payout of cash-based per­
formance grants will vary between zero and 200% ofthe targeted 
amount based on the level of performance metrics achieved. 

In February 2012, a.cash-based performance grant was made 
to officers. A porrion of the grant, representing the initial payout 
of $8 million was paid in December 2013, based on the achieve­
ment of two performance metrics during 2012 and 2013; T S R ; •; 
relative to that of companies listed as members of the Philadelphia 

Utility Index as of the end ofthe performarice.period and ROIC. 
The total amount of the award under the grant was $12, million 
and the remaining portion,of the grant was paid in January 2014. 

In February 2013, a cash-based performance grant was made to 
officers. A portion of the grant, representingtheinitlalpayout of $14 
million was paid in Decernbef 2014, based on the achievement of 
two performance metrics during 2013 and 2014: TSR relative to 
that of companies listed as members ofthe Philadelphia Utility 
Index as ofthe end ofthe performance period and ROIC. The total 
amount ofthe award under rhe grant was $20 million and the 
remaining portion of the grant was paid in February 2015-

In February 2014, a cash-based performance grant was made 
to officers. Payout ofthe performance grant is expected to occur 
by March 15, 2016 based o n t h e achievement of two performance 
metrics during 2014 and 2015: TSR relative to that of companies 
listed as members of the Philadelphia UtiHty Index as of the end 
of the performance period and R O I C . The total expected award 
under the grant is $10 million and the grant is expected to be 
paid by March 15, 2016. At December 31 , 2015, a liability of 
$10 million had been accrued for this award. 

In February 2015, a cash-based performance grant was made 
to officers. Payout of the performance grant is expected to occur 
by March 15, 2017 based on the achievement of rwo performance 
metrics during 2015 and 2016: TSR relative to that of companies 
listed as members of the Philadelphia Utility Index as of the end 
ofthe performance period and ROIC. At December 3U 2015, 
the targered amount of the grant was $14 miOion and a liability 
of $7 miHion had been accrued for this award. 

NOTE 20. DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS 

The Virginia Commission may prohibit any pubHc service com­
pany, including Virginia Power, from declaring or paying a divi­
dend to an affiliate if found to be detrimental to the public 
interest. At December 31 , 2015, the Virginia Commission had 
not restricted the payment of dividends by Virginia Power. 

The Ohio Commission may prohibit any public service 
company, including East Ohio, from declaring or paying a divi­
dend to an affiliate if found to be detrimental to rhe public inter-
est.At December 31 , 2015, the Ohio Commission had nor 
restricted the payment of dividends by East Ohio. _ . 

Certain agreements associated with the Companies' credit 
facilities contain resttictions on the ratio of debt to total capital­
ization. These limitations did not restrict the Companies' ability 
to pay dividends or receive dividends from their subsidiaries ar 
December 3 1 , 2 0 1 5 . ' , 

See Note 17 for a description of potential restrictions on divi­
dend payments by Dominion in connection with the deferral of 
interest payments on junior subordinated notes and equity units, 
initially in theform of corporate units. 

N O T E 21 . EiyiPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

Dominion and Dominion Gas—Defined Benefit Plans 

Dominion provides certain retirement benefits to eligible active 
employees, retirees and qualifying dependents. Dominion Gas 
participates in a number of the Dominion-sponsoted retirement 
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plans. Under the tetms of its benefit plans. Dominion reserves the 

right to change, modify or terminate the plans. From time to time 
in the past, benefits have changed, and some of these changes 

have reduced benefits. 

Dominion maintains qualified noncontributory defined bene­

fit pension plans covering virtually all employees. Retitement 
benefits are based primarily on years of service, age and the 

employee's compensation. Dominion's funding policy is to con­
tribute annually an amount that is in accordance with the provi­
sions of ERISA. The pension program also provides benefits to 

certain retired executives under a company-sponsored non­
qualified employee benefit plan. The nonqualified plan is funded 

through contributions to a grantor trust. Dominion also provides 
retiree heaithcate and life insurance benefits with annual 

employee premiums based on several factors such as age, retire­
ment date and years of service. 

Pension benefits for Dominion Gas employees not repre­
sented by collective bargaining units are covered by the Domin­

ion Pension Plan, a defined benefit pension plan sponsored by 

Dominion that provides benefits to multiple Dominion sub­

sidiaries. Pension benefits for Dominion Gas employees repre­
sented by collective bargaining units are covered by separate 

pension plans for East Ohio and, for DTI , a plan rhat provides 

benefits to employees of both D T I and Hope. Employee 

compensation is the basis for allocating pension costs and obliga­

tions between D T I and Hope and determining East Ohio 's shate 

of total pension costs. 

Retiree healthcare and life insurance benefits for Dominion 
Gas employees not represented by collective bargaining units are 

covered by the Dominion Retiree Health and Welfate Plan, a 

plan sponsored by Dominion that provides certain retiree health­

care and Hfe insurance benefits to multiple Dominion sub­

sidiaries. Retiree healthcare and Hfe insurance benefits for 

Dominion Gas employees represented by collective bargaining 

units are covered by separate other postretirement benefit plans 

fot East Ohio and, for D T I , a plan that provides benefits to both 

D T I and Hope. Employee headcount is the basis for allocating 
other postretirement benefit costs and obligations between D T I 

and Hope and determining East Ohio's shate of total other post­

retitement benefit costs. 

Pension and other postretirement benefit costs are affected by 

employee demographics (including age, compensation levels and 
years of service), the level of contributions made to the plans and 
earnings on plan assets. These costs may also be affected by 

changes in key assumptions, including expected long-term rates of 

return on plan assets, discount rates, healthcare cose trend rates, 
mortality rates and the rate of compensation increases. 

Dominion uses December 31 as the measurement date for all 

of its employee benefit plans, including rhose in which Dominion 

Gas participates. Dominion uses the marker-related value of pen­
sion plan assets to determine the expected return on plan assets, a 
component of net periodic pension cost, for all pension plans, 

including those in which Dominion Gas participates. The 
market-related value recognizes changes in fair value on a straight-

line basis over a four-year period, which reduces year-to-year vola­
tility. Changes in fair value are measured as the difference 

between the expected and actual plan asset teturns, including 
dividends, interest and realized and unrealized investment gains 
and losses. Since the market-related value recognizes changes in 

fair value-over a four-year period, the.future market-related value 
of pension plan assets will be impactedas previously unrecognized 

changes in fair value are recognized.' . ;' 
Dominion's pension and other postretirement benefit plans 

hold investments in trusts to fund employee benefit payments. 
Dominion's pension and other posttetirement plan assets experi-.-
enced aggregate actual losses of $72 million in 2015 and aggregate 

actual retutns of $706 million in 2014, versus expected returns of. 
$648 milHon and $610 milHon, respectively. Dominion Gas' 

pension and other postretirement plan assets for employees repre­
sented by collective bargaining units experienced a^regate actual 

losses of $13 million in 2015 andaggregate actual.returns of,$157. 
million in 20l4i versus expected returns of $150 million and .:,•.•. 
$I38miiHon, respectively. Differences between actual and 

expected returns on plan assets are accumulited.and amortized '' 
during future periods. As such, any investment-related declines in • 

these trusts will result in future increases in the rict periodiccost. : 
recognized for such employee benefit plans and will be included 

in the determination of the amount of cash to be contributed to 

rhe employee benefit plans. , , - • . : 

TheMedicare Act introduced a federal subsidy to sponsors of, 

retiree healthcare benefit plans, rhat provide a prescription drug 

benefit that is at least actiiarially equivalenr to Medicare Parr-D. 

Dominion determined that the prescriprion drug benefir offered 

under its other postretirement benefit plans is at least actuarially 
equivalent to Medicare Part D . Dominion and Dominion Gas 

receivedafederal subsidyof $4 million and $1 milHon, 

respectively, for-2014. Effective January 1, 2013, Dominion 

changed its method of receiving the subsidy undet Medicare Part 

D for retiree prescriprion drug coverage from the Retiree Drug 

Subsidy to the EGWP. This change reduced other postretirement 

benefit costs by approximately $20 million annually beginning in 

2012. As a result of the adoption ofthe EGWP, Dominion 
begins to receive an increased level of-Medicare Part D.subsidies 

in the form of reduced costs rather.than a direct'reimbursement. •• 

In October 2014, the Society of Actuaries published new. 

mortality tables and mortality improvement scales. Such tables 
and scales are used to develop mortality assumptions for use in 

determining pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities 

and expense. Following evaluation ofthe new tables, Dominion 

changed its assumption for mortality rates to reflect a generational 
improvement scale. As a result ofthis change in assumption, at 
December 3 1 , 2014 Dominion and Dominion Gas (for employ­

ees represented by collective bargaining units) increased their 
pension benefit obligarions by $331 million and $10 million, 

respectively, and increased their accumulated postreriremenr 
benefir obligations by $32 million and $7 million, respecrively. 

This change increased net periodic benefir cost for Dominion and 
Dominion Gas (for employees represented by collective bargain­
ing units) by $25 million and $3 million, respectively, for 2015. 

Dominion remeasured all of its pension and other postretire­
ment benefit plans in the second quarter of 2013. The 

remeasurement resulted in a reduction in the pension benefit 

obligation of $354 million and a reduction in the accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligation of $78 miHion. For Dominion 
Gas employees represented by collective bargaining units, the 

remeasurement resulted in a reduction in the pension benefit 
obligation of $28 million and a reduction in the accumulated 

postretirement benefit obligation of $9 million. The impact of the 
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remeasurement on netperiodic benefit (credit) cost was recog­
nized prospectively from the.remeasurement date and reduced net 
periodic benefit cost for 2013 by $36 million, excluding rhe 
impacts of curtailments, and for Dominion Gas employees repre­
sented by collecrive bargaining units by$2 million. The discount 
rate used for the remeasurement was 4.80% for the pension plans 
and 4.7.0% for the other postretirement benefit plans. All other. 
assumptions used for the remeasurement were consistent with the 
measurement as of December 31, 2012. 

In rhe fourth quarter of 2013, Dominion remeasured its other 
postretirement benefit plans as a result of a plan amendment that 
changed medical coverage for certain Medicare-eligible retirees 
effective Aprir20l4. The remeasurement resulted in a reduction 
in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation of $220 
million. The impact of the remeasurement on net periodic benefit 
(credit) cost was recognized prospectively from the remeasure-
ment;dateand reduced net periodicbenefit cost for 2013 by $8 
million. The amendment is expected to reduce net periodic bene­
fit cost by $40 million to $60 million for each ofthe next five 
years. The discount rate used for the remeasuiement was 4.80%. 
All other assumptions used for the remeasurement were consistent 
with the measurement as of December 31, 2012. . 

. In the third-quarter of 2014y East Ohio remeasured its other 
postretirement benefit plan as a result of an amendment that 
changed medical coverage upon the attainment of age 65 for cer­
tain fiiture retirees effective January 1, 2016. For employees 
represented by collective bargaining units, the remeasurement 
resulted in an increase in the accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligation of $22 milHon. The impact of the remeasurement on 
net periodic benefit credir was recognized prospectively from the 
remeasurement date and reduced net periodic benefit credit for' 
2014, for employees represented by collective bargaining units, by 
less than $1 million. The discount rateused for the remeasure­
ment was 4.20% and the expected long-term rateof return used 
was.8.50%. Ail other assumptions used for the remeasurement 
were consistent with the measurement as of December 31,2013. 
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F u n d e d Status 
The following table siimmarizes the changes in pension plan and other postretirement benefit plan obligations and plan assets and includes 
a statement of the plans' funded status for Dominion and Dominion Gas (for employees represented by collective bargaining units): 

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2015 2014 

(millions, except percentages) 
DOMINION 
Cfianges in benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 
Sen/ice cost 
Interest cost 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial (gains) losses during the year 
Plan amendments'" 
Settlenients and curtailments'^' 
Medicare Part D reimbursement 

6,667 
126 
287 

(246) 
(443) 

$ 5,625 
114 
290 

(236) 
887 

(13) 

1,571 
40 
67 

(79) 
(138) 
(31) 

$ 1,360 
32 
67 
(78) 
177 

9 

Benefit obligation at end of year 8,391 $ 6,667 $ 1,430 $ 1,571 

Changes in fair value of plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 
Actual return (loss) on plan assets 
Employer contributions 
Benefits paid 
Settlements'2) 

6,480 $6,113 
(71) 601 

3 15 
(246) (236) 

— (13) 

1,402 
(1) 
12 

(31) 

$ 1,315 
105 

12 
(30) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 6,166 $6,480 $ 1,382 $1,402 

Funded status at end, of year (225) $ (187) $ (48) $ (169) 

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Stieets at December 31: 
Noncurrent pension and other postretirement benefit assets 
Other current liabilities 
Noncurrent pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities 

931 $ 946 
(14) (13) 

(1,142) (1,120) 

12 
(3) 

(57) 

$ 10 
(3) 

(176) 
Net amount recognized (225) $ (187) $ (48) $ (169) 

Significant assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as of December 31: 
Discount rate 
Weighted average rate of increase for compensation 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 

4.96%-4.99% 4.40% 
4.22% 4.22% 
8.75% 8.75% 

4.93%-4.94% 4.40% 
4.22% 4.22% 
8.50% 8.50% 

DOMINION GAS 
Changes in benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 
Sen/ice cost 
interest cost 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial (gains) losses during the year 
Plan amendments 
Medicare Part D reimbursement 

638 
15 
27 

(29) 
(43) 

$ 563 
12 
28 

(29) 
64 

320 
7 

14 
(18) 
(31) 

$ 269 
6 

13 
(16) 
38 

9 
1 

Benefit obligation at end of year 608 $ 638 $ 292 $ 320 

Ctianges in fair value of plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 
Actual return (loss) on plan assets 
Employer contributions 
Benefits paid 

1,510 $1,403 
(14) 136 

(29) (29) 

288 $ 273 
1 21 

12 10 
(18) (16) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 

Funded status at end of year 

Amoutits recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31: 
Noncurrent pension and other postretirement benefit assets 
Noncurrent pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities'̂ ! 

Net amount recognized 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

1,467 

859 

859 

859 

$ 1,510 

$ 872 

$ 872 

$ 872 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

283 

(9) 

(9) 

(9) 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

288 

(32) 

(32) 

(32) 

Significant assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as of December 31: 
Discount rate 
Weighted average rate of increase for compensation 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 

4.99% 4.40% 
3.93% 3.93% 
8.75% 8.75% 

4.93% 4.40% 
3.93% 3,93% 
8.50% 8.50% 
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(1) 2015 amount relates primarily to apian amendment that changed 
retiree medical benefits for certain nonunion employees afier Medicare 
eligibility. 

(2) Relates primarily to a settlement charge for certain executives. 
(3) Reflected in-other deferred credits and other liabilities in Dominion Gas' 

Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

The ABO for all of Dominion's defined benefit pension plans 
was $5.8 billion and $6.0 billion at December 3 1 , 2015 and 

2014, respectively. The ABO for the defined benefit pension 
plans covering Dominion Gas employees represented by collective 

bargaining units was $578 million and $604 million at 
December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

Under its fimding policies. Dominion evaluates plan funding 
requiremenrs annually, usually in the fourth quarter after receiv­

ing updated plan information from its actuary. Based on the 
funded status of each plan and other factors. Dominion 

determines the amount of contributions for the current year, if 
any, at that time. During 2015, Dominion and Dominion Gas 

made no contributions to the qualified defined benefit pension 
plans and no contributions are currently expected in 2016. In 

July 2012, the MAP 21 Act was signed into law. This Act 

includes an increase in rhe Interesr rates used to determine plan 

sponsors' pension contributions for required funding purposes. In 

2014, rhe H A T F A o f 2 0 l 4 was signedrinto law. SimUar to the 

MAP 21 Act, the HATFA of 2014 adjusts the rules for calculating 

interest rates used in determining fiinding obligations. It is esti­
mated that the new interest rates will reduce required pension 

contributions through 2019. Dominion believes that required 

pension contributions will rise subsequent to 2019, resulting in 

an estimated ?200 milHon reduction in net cumulative required 

contributions over a 10-year period. 

Certain regulatory authorities have held that amounts recov­

ered in utility customers' rates for other postretiremenr benefits, 
in excess of benefits actually paid during rhe year, must be 

deposited in trust funds dedicated for the sole purpose of paying 

such benefits. Accordingly, certain of Dominion's subsidiaries, 

including Dominion Gas, fiind orher postretirement benefit costs 

through 'VEBAs. Dominion's remaining subsidiaries do not pre-

fund other postretirement benefit costs but instead pay claims as 

presented. Dominion's contributions to 'VEBAs, all of which 
pertained to Dominion Gas employees, totaled $12 mUHon for 

both 2015 and 2014, and Dominion expects to contribute 
approximately $12 million to the Dominion VEBAs in 2016, all 

of which pertains to Dominion Gas employees. 

Dominion and Dominion Gas do not expect any pension or 
other posrretirement plan assets to be rerurned during 2016. 

The following table provides information on the benefit obli­

gations and fair value of plan assets for plans with a benefit 
obHgation in excess of plan assets for Dominion and Dominion 
Gas (for employees represenred by collective bargaining units): 

other Postretiremenl 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

Asof December 31, 2015 2014 2015 2014 

(millions) 

DOMINION 
Benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

$5,728 $5,970 $359 $1,564 
4,571 4,838 299 1,385 

DOMINION GAS 

Benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

$ — • 

— 
$ -

-
- $292 

283 
$ 320 

288 

The following table provides information oh the ABO and iair 
value of plan assers for Dominion's pension plans with an ABO in 

excess of plan assets; " : 

Asof Decemt)er31, 2015 2014 

(millions) 

Accumulated benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

$5,198 

4,571 
$5,370 

4,838 

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future 

service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid for Dominion 's • • . 

and Dominion Gas' (for employees represented by collective 
bargaining units) plans: 

Estimated Future Benefit Payments 

••- • • - other Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

Imillions) 

DOMINION 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021-2025 

DOMINION GAS 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021-2025 

$288 
,303 
324 
337 
359 

2,023 

$ 35 
37 
39 
40 
41 

208 

$ 92 
96 
99 

100 
102 

, 512 

$ 18 
19 
21 

- 21 
21 

107 

Plan Assets 
Dominion's overall objective for investing its pension and other 
posrretirement plan assets is to achieve appropriate long-term 

rates of return commensurate with prudent levels of risk. As a 
participating employer in various pension plans sponsored by 

Dominion, Dominion Gas is subject to Dominion's investment 
policies for such plans. To minimize risk, funds are broadly 

diversified among asset classes, investment strategies and Invest­
ment advisors. The strategic target asset aHocations for Domin­
ion's pension fiinds are 2 8 % U.S. equity, 18% non-U.S- equity, 

3 5 % fixed income, 3.%Teal estate and.16% other alternative 

investments. U.S. equity includes investments in large-cap. 
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tiiid-cap and small-cap companies located in the United States. 
Non-U.S. equity Includes investments in large-cap and small-cap 

Companies located outside of the United States including both 
developed and emerging markets. Fixed income includes corpo­

rate debt instruments of companies from diversified industries 
and U.S. Treasuries. The U.S. equity, non-U.S. equity and fixed 

income investments are in individual securities as well as mutual 
funds. Real estate includes equity REITs and investments in part­
nerships. Other alternative investments include partnership 

invesrments in private equity, debt and hedge funds that follow 
several different strategies. 

Dominion also utilizes common/collective trust funds as an 

investment vehicle for its defined benefit plans. A common/ 
Collective trust fimd is a pooled fimd operated by a bank or trust 

company for investment of the assets of various organizations and 
individuals in a well-diversified portfolio. Common/collective 
trust fiinds are funds of grouped assets that follow various invest­

ment strategies. 

Straregic investment policies are established for Dominion's 

prefiinded benefit plans based upon periodic asset/Habllity studies. 

Factors considered in setting the investment policy include 

employee demographics, HabiHty growth rates, future discount 

rates, the funded status of the plans and the expected long-term 

rate of teturn on plan assets. Deviations from the plans' strategic 
allocation are a function of Dominion's assessments regarding 

short-term risk and reward opportunities in the capital markets 

and/or short-term market movements which result in the plans' 

actual asset allocations varying from rhe strategic target asset alio-

cations. Through periodic rebalancing, actual aHocations are 

brought back in line with the target. Future asset/liability studies 

wiH focus on strategies to further reduce pension and other post-

retirement plan risk, while stiU achieving attractive levels of 
returns. Financial derivatives may be used to obtain or manage 

market exposures and ro hedge assers and liabilities. 

For fair value measurement policies and ptocedures related to 

pension and other postretirement benefit plan assets, see Note 6. 
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The fair values of Dominion's and Dominion Gas' (for employees represented by collective bargaining unirs) pension plan assets by 
asset category are as follows: 

AtDecemberSl, 2015 2014 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

[millions) 

DOMINION 
Cash equivalents 
LI.S. equity: 

Large Cap 
Other 

Non-U.S. equity; 

Large Cap 
Other 

Common/collective trust funds"' 
Fixed income: 

Corporate debt instruments 
U.S. Treasury securities and agency debentures 
State and municipal 
Other securities 

Real estate-REITs 

16 $ — $— $ 16 $ 13 $ 25 

1,178 — . — 1,178 
475 — — 475 

286 — — 286 
493 — — 493 

— 330 — 330 

40 672 — 712 
60 298 — 358 
20 54 — 74 
9 61 — 70 
90 _ _ 90 

1,313 . — 
,530 . — 

234 — 
403 —. 
— 360 

45 • 666 
-74 342 
10 . 60 
6 80 
40 .— 

t— $ 38 

— 1,313 
— , .530 

— , 234 
,— ' 403 
— 360. 

— 7ir 
— 416 
— .-..'̂o 
—, , 86 
— 40 

Total recorded at fair value $2,667 $1,415 $— $4,082 •- $2,668 $1,533 $-^ .$4,201. 

Assets recorded at NAV'^': 
Common/collective trust funds'" 
Real estate-Partnerships 
Othet alternative investments: 

Private equity 
Debt 
Hedge funds 

1,200 
153 

465 
170 
86 

1,235 
209 

518 
144 
162 

Total recorded at NAV $2,074 $2,268 

Tota 1131 $6,156 $5,469 

DOMINION GAS 
Cash equivalents 
U.S. equity: 

Large Cap 
Other 

Non-U.S. equity: 

Large Cap 
Other 

Common/collective trust 1undŝ ''> 
Fixed income: 

Corporate debt instruments 
U.S. Treasury securities and agency debentures 

State and municipal 
Other securities 

Real estate-REITs 

_ • $ _ ^ 

280 
113 

68 
117 
— 

9 
14 
5 
2 
22 

— 
— 

— 
78 

160 
71 
13 
14 
— 

— 
— 

—. 
— 

— 
— 
— 
— 

280 
113 

68 
117 
78 

169 
85 
18 
16 
22 

306 
124 

.54 
94 

11 
17 
2 
1 
9 

84 

155 
80 
14 
19 

306 
124 

•• 5 4 

-94 
84 

166 
97 
16 
20 

9 

Tota! recorded at fair value $ 634 $ 335 $— $ 970 $ 621 $ 358 $— $ 979 

Assets recorded at NAV'^': 
Common/coflective trust funds'"' 
Real estate-Partnerships 
Other alternative investments: 

Private equity 
Debt 
Hedge funds 

286 
36 

111 
40 
21 

288 
48 

121 
34 
38 

Total recorded at NAV $ 494 $ 529 

Totah5) $1,464 $1,508 

(1) Commonlcollective trust funds include $330 million and $360 million of John Hancock insurance contracts held at December 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. See below for a description ofthe individual investments included within this line item, and the nature and risk of each respective fund. 

(2) These investments that are measured atfiiir value using fhe NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been classified in the foir value 
hierarchy. The foir value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the foir value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
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'3) Includes net assets related to pending sales of securities of$l 12 million, net accrued income of$16 million, and excludes net assets related to pending pur­
chases of securities of$118.million at December 31, 2015. Includes net assets related to pending sales of securities of$31 million, net accrued income of$18 
miUion, arid excludes net assets r-elated to pending purchases of securities of$38 million at December 31, 2014. 

(4) Common/collective trust funds include $78 miUion and $84 miUion of John Hancock insurance contracts held at December 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. See below for a description ofthe- individual investments included within this line item, and the nature.and risk of each respective find. 

(5) Includ£s net assets related to pending sales of securities of$27 million, net accrued income of$4 million, and excludes net assets related to pending purchases 
of securities of $28 miUion at December 31, 2015- Includes net assets related to pending sales of securities of$7 million, net accrued income of$4 million, 
and excludes net assets related to pending purchases of securities of$9 million at December 31, 2014. 

The feir values of Dominion's and Dominion Gas' (for employees represented by collective bargaining units) other postretirement plan 

assets by asset category are as follows: 

At December 31, 2015 2014 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

(millions) 

DOMINION 
Cash equivalents 
U.S. equity: 

Large-Cap 
Other - • 

Non-U.S. equity:. 
Large Cap 
Other 

Common/collective trust funds'i ' 
Fixed income: 

Corporate debt instruments 
U.S. Treasury securities and agency debentures 
State and municipal 
Other securities 

Real estate-REITs 

$ 1 $ 1 $ - 7 $ -

468 — — 468 
26 — — 26 

107 — — 107 
27 — — 27 
— 18 — 18 

2 37 — 39 
3 17 — 20 
1 3 — 4 
1 3 — 4 

37 — — 37 

514 — 
28 — 

102 — 
21 — 
- 19 

3 35 
4 18 
1 3 

— 4 
2 — 

514 
28 

102 
21 
19 

38 

22 
4 
4 
2 

Total recorded at fair value $673 $79 V - $ 752 $676 E— $ 762 

Assets recorded at HkWh 
Common/collective trust funds") 
Real estate-Partnerships 
Other alternative investments: 

Private equity 
Debt 
Hedge funds 

543 
14 

54 
14 

5 

536 
19 

58 
18 
9 

Total recorded at NAV $ 630 $ 640 

Total $1,382 $1,402 

DOMINION GAS 

Cash equivalents 
U.S, equity-Large Cap 
Non-U.S. equity-Large Cap 
Reai estate-REITs 

102 
24 
11 

$ - $ - $ -
— 102 113 
— 24 26 
~ 11 ^ 

$ 2 $— 2 
113 
26 

Total recorded at fair value $137 $— $— $ 137 $139 $ 2 $— $ 141 

Assets recorded at NAV'^); 
Common/collective trust funds'^' 
Real estate-Partnerships 
Other alternative investments: 

132 
2 

129 
2 

Private equity 
Debt 

Total recorded at NAV 

Totai 

11 
1 

$ 146 

$ 283 

12 
4 

$ 147 

$ 288 

(1) Common/collective trust fitnds include $18 million and $19 million offohn Hancock insurance contracts held at December 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. See below for a description ofthe individual investments included within this line item, and the nature and risk of each respective fund. 

(2) These investments that are measured at fair value using the NA Vper share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value 
hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

(3) See below for a description ofthe individual investments induded within this line item, and the nature and risk of each respective fi^nd. 
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C o m b i n e d N o t e s to Conso l ida ted Financial S ta tements , C o n t i n u e d 

Investments in Common/Collective Trust Funds in Domin­
ion's pension and other postretirement plans, including those in 
which Dominion Gas participates, are srated at fair value as 

determined by the issuer of the Common/Collective Trust Funds 
based on the fair value of rhe underlying investments. The 

Common/Collective Trusts do not have any unfimded commit­
ments, and do not have any applicable liquidation periods or 

defined terms/periods to be held: The majority of the Common/ 
Collective Trust Funds have limited withdrawal or redemption 

rights during rhe tetm ofthe investment. Strategies of the 
Common/Collective Trust Funds are as follows: 

Dominion a n d Dominion Gas 

• Wells Fargo Closed End Bond Trust-The Fund invests in 
stocks, bonds or a combination of both. Shares ofthe Fund are 

traded on a stock exchange and are subject to market risk like 
stocks, bonds and mutual firnds. The Fund may invest in a less 

liquid portfolio of stocks and bonds because the fimd does not 
need to sell securities to meet shareholder redemptions as 

mutual fijnds in otder to keep a percentage of its portfolio in 

cash to pay back investors who withdraw shares. 

• JPMorgan Core Bond Trust-The Fund seeks to maximize 

total return by investing primarily in a diversified porrfolio 

of inrermediate- and long-term debt securities. The Fund 

invests primarily in investment-grade bonds; it generally 

maintains an average weighted maturity between four and 

12 years. It may shorten its average weighted maturity if 

deemed appropriate for temporary defensive purposes. 

• SSgA Russell 2000 Value Index Common Trust-The Fund 
measures the performance of the small-cap value segment of 

the U.S. equity universe. The Russell 2000 Value Index is 

constructed to provide a comprehensive and unbiased bar­

ometer for the small-cap value segment. The Index is com­

pletely reconstituted annually to ensure larger stocks do not 

distott the performance and characteristics of the true small-

cap opportunity ser and that the represenred companies 

continue to reflect value characteristics. 

• N T Common Shott-Term Investment Fund-The Fund 

seeks to maximize current income on cash reserves ro the 

extent consistent with principal preservation and main­
tenance of liquidity from a portfolio of approved money 
market Instruments with short maturities. Liquidity is 

emphasized to provide for redemption of units at par on any 
business day. Principal preservation is a primary objective. 

Within quality, maturity, and sector diversification guide­
lines, investments are made in those securities with the most 

attractive yields. 

Dominion 

• SSgA Daily MSCI Emerging Markets Index Non-Lending 

Fund-The Fund seeks an Investment return that approximates 
as closely as pracricable, before expenses, the performance of 
the MSCI Emerging Markets Index over the long tetm. The 

Fund may invest directly or indirectly in securities and other 
instruments, including in other pooled Investment vehicles 

sponsored or managed by, or otherwise affiliated with the 
Ttustee (State Street Bank and Tmst Company). 

• SSgA DaUy MSCI ACWI Ex-USA Index Non-Lending Fund-
The Fund seeks an investment return rhar approxiraares as 

closely as pracricable, before expenses, the performance ofthe 
MSCI ACWI Ex-USA Index over the long term. Th t Fund 

niay invest directly or Indirecdy in securities and other instru-. 
ments, including in other pooled investment vehicles spon­

sored or mant led by, or otherwise afiiliated with the Trustee • 
(State Street Bank and Trtist Conipany). 
SSgA S&P 400 MidCap Index—^The Fund seeks an invest­

ment remrn that approximates as closely as pracricable, before 
expenses, the performance of its benchmark index (the Index) 

over the long term. The S&P MidCap 400 iscomprised of 
approximately 400 U.S. mid-cap secutities and accounts for • 

approximately 7 % coverage ofthe U.S. stock market-capital­
ization. SSgA will typically attempt to invest in the equity ' 

securities comprising the Index, in approximately the same 
proportions as rhey are represented in the Index. 
SSgA S&P 500 Flagship Non-Lending Fund—^The Fund 

seeks an investment return thar approximates as closely as 
practicable, before expenses, the performance ofthe S&P 500 

Index over the long term. The S&P 500 is comprised of 

approximately 500 large-cap U.S. equities and captures 

approximately 80% coverage of available market capital­

ization. SSgA will typically attempt to invest in the equity 

securities comprising the S&P 500 Index, in approximately 

the same proportions as they are represented in the Index. 

C F Goldman Sachs G S T C O Long Durarion Fund-The 

Fund seeks to generate total retutn and prudent investment 
management through investments in fixed income secu- : 

rities. The Fund is actively managed and benchmarked ver­

sus the Barclays U.S. Long Government /Credit Index. At 

least 7 5 % of the Fund's total assets wiH be rated investment 

grade or better by a NRSRO at the time of purchase. The 

Fund may invest up to 2 5 % of its total assets at the time of 

purchase in non-investment grade securities. The Fund may 

invest in non-dollar denominated securities that are fully 

hedged, unhedged or parrially hedged. 
JPMorgan Chase Bank U.S. Acrive Core Plus Equity Fund-

The Fund seeks to outperform rhe S&P 500 Index (the 

Benchmark), gtoss of fees, over a market cycle. The Fund 

invests primarily in a porrfolio of long and short positions in 

equity securiries of large and mid capiralizarion U.S. compa­
nies with characterisrics similar to those of the Benchmark. 

N T Collective Russell 2000 Growth Index—The Fund seeks 
an investment return that approximates the overall perform­

ance ofthe common srocks included in the Russell 2000 
Growth Index. The Fund primarily invests in common 

stocks of one or more companies that are deemed to be 
representative of the industry diversification ofthe entire 
Russell 2000 Growth Index. 

N T Collective Short-Term Investment Fund-—The Fund is 
composed of high-grade money market insttuments with 
short-term maturities. The Fund's objective is to ptovide an 

investment vehicle for cash reserves while offering a com­
petitive rate of return. Liquidity is emphasized to provide for 

redemption of units on any business day. Principal preserva­
tion is also a prime, objective. Admissions and withdrawals are 

made daily. Interest is accrued daily and distributed monthly. 
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Investments in Group Insurance Annuity Contracts with John Hancock were entered Into after 1992 and are stated at fair value based on 

Jie fair value ofthe tmderlying securities as provided by the maiiagers and Include invesrmenrs in U.S. government securities, corporate debt 
.ristruments, and state and municipal debt securities. • . 

f^et Periodic Benefit (Credit) Cost 

Met periodic benefit (credit) cost is reflected in other operations and maintenance expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The 
components ofthe provision for net periodic benefit (credit) cost and amounts recognized in'other coniprehensive income and regulatory 

assets and liabilities for Dominion's and Dominion Gas' (for employees represented by collecrive bargaining units) plans are as follows: 

Pension Benefits Ottier Postretirement Benefits 

/ear Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 

(rriillions, except percentages} 

DOMINION 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
E îpecteb return on plan assets 
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost 
Amortization of net actuarial loss 
Settlements and curtailments'" 
Special termination benefits 

$ 126 $ 
287 

(531) 
2 

160 
— 
— 

114 $ 
290 

(499) 
3 

111 
1 

— 

131 
271 

(462) 
3 

165 
(2) 

— 

$ 40 $ 
67 

(117) 
(27) 

6 
— 
— 

32 $ 
67 

(111) 
(28) 

2 

— 
— 

43 
73 

(92) 
(15) 

7 
(15) 

1 

Net periodic benefit (credit) cost $ 44 20 • $ 106 $ (31) $ (38) $ 

Ctianges in plan assets and benelit obligations recognized in othet 
comprehensive Inconie and regulatory assets and liabilities: 

Current year net actuarial (gain) loss 
Prior sen/ice (credit) cost 
Settlements and curtailments'" 
Less amounts included in net periodic benefit cost: 

$ 159 784 $ 

(1) 

(968) $ (18) $ 
1 (31) 

(22) -

183 
9 

— 

$ (255) 
(215) 

(7) 

Amortization of net actuarial loss 
Amortization of prior service credit (cost) 

Total recognized in other comprehensive income and regulatory 
assets and liabilities 

(160) 
(2) 

$ (3) $ 

(111) 
(3) 

669 $ 

(165) (6) 
. (3) 27 

(1,157) $ (28) $ 

(2) 
28 

218 $ 

(7) 
15 

(469) 

Significant assumptions used to determine periodic cost: 
Discount rate 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 
V^eighted average rate of increase for compensation 
Healthcare cost trend rate'̂ > 
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate 

trend rate)'̂ ! 
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rateî KS) 

4.40% 
8.75% 
4.22% 

$ 15 
27 

(126) 
1 

20 

5.20%-5.30% 
8.75% 
4.21% 

$ 12 
28 

(115) 
1 

19-

4.40%^.8Q% 
8.50% 
4.21% 

$ 13 
27 

(106) 
1 

26 

4.40% 
8.50% 
4.22% 
7.00% 

5.00% 
2019 

$ 7 
14 

(24) 
(1) 
2 

4.20%-5.10% 
8.50% 
4.22% 
7.00% 

5.00% 
2018 

$ 6 
13 

(23) 
(1) 
— 

4.40%-4.80% 
7.75% 
4.22% 
7.00% 

4.60% 
2052 

$ 7 
12 

(19) 
(3) 
2 

DOMINION GAS 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost 
Amortization of net actuarial loss 

Net periodic benefit (credit) cost $ (63) (55) $ (39) $ (2) $ (5) $ (1) 
Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other 

comprehensive income and regulatory assets and liabilities: 
Current year net actuahal (gain) loss 
Prior service cost 
Less amounts included in net periodic benefit cost: 

Amortization of net actuarial loss 
Amortization of prior sen/ice credit (cost) 

$ 97 

(20) 
(1) 

43 $ 

(19) 
(1) 

(127) $ (9) $ 40 
10 

(26) 
(1) 

(2) 
1 

(40) 

(2) 
3 

Total recognized in other comprehensive income and regulatory 
assets and liabilities $ 76 23 $ (154) $ (10) $ 51 $ (39) 

Significant assumptions used to determine periodic cost: 
Discount rate 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 
Weighted average rate of increase for compensation 
Healthcare cost trend rate'̂ ) 
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate 

trend rate)'« 
Year that the rate reaches fhe ultimate trend rate'̂ KS) 

4.40% 
8.75% 
3.93% 

• 5.20% 
8.75% 
3.93% 

4.40%-4.80% 
. 8,50% 

3.93% 

4.40% 
8.50% 
3.93% 
7.00% 

5.00% 
2019 

4.20%-5.00% 
8.50% 
3.93% 
7.00% 

5.00% 
2018 

4.40%-4.70% 
7.75% 
3.93% 
7.00% 

4.60% 
2052 

(1) 2013 amounts relate primarily to the decommissioning of Kewaunee. 
(2) Assumptions used to determine netperiodic cost for the following year. 
(3) The Society of Actuaries model used to determine healthcare cost trend rates was updated in 2014. The new model converges to the ultimate trend rate much 

more quickly than previous models. 
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Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued 

The components of AOCI and regulatory assets and liabilities 
for Dominion's and Dominion Gas' (for employees represented 

by collecrive bargaining units) plans that have not been recog­
nized as components of net periodic benefit (credit) cost are as 

follows: 

Other 
Postretirement 

Pension Benefits ..Benefits 

AtDecemberSl, 2015 2014 2015 2014. 

(millions) 

DOMINION 
Net actuarial loss 
Prior service (credit) cost 

Total"' 

DOMINION GAS 

Net actuarial loss 
Prior sen/ice (credit) cost 

Tota|(2i 

$2,381 
5 

$2,386 

$ 380 
1 

$ 381 

$ 2,382 
7 

$2,389 

$ 303 
1 

$ 304 

$ 114 
(237) 

$(123) 

$ 33 
7 

$ 40 

$ 139 
(233) 

$ (94) 

$ 43 
7 

$ 50 

(1) As of December 31, 2015. ofthe $2.4 billion and $(123) million 
related to pension benefits and other postretirement benefits, $1.4 billion 
and $(90) million, respectively, are included in AOCI, with the 
remainder included in regulatory assets and liabilities. Tis of 
December 31, 2014, of the $2.4 biUion and $(94) million relatedto 
pension benefits and other postretirement benefits, $1.4 billion and 
$(81) million, respectively, are included in AOCI, with the remainder 
included in regulatory assets arid liabilities. 

(2) As of December 31, 2015, ofthe $381 million related to pension bene­
fits, $138 million is included in AOCI, with the remainder included in 
regulatory assets and liabilities; the $40 million relatedto other post-
retirement benefits is included entirely in regulatory assets and liabilities. 
As of December 31, 2014, of the $304 miUion related to pension bene­
fits, $112 miUion is included in AOCI, with the remainder included in 
regulatory assets and liabilities; the $50 million related to other post-
retirement benefits is included entirely in regulatory assets and liabilities. 

The following rable provides the components of A O C I and 
regulatory assets and liabilities for Dominion's and Dominion 

Gas' (for employees represented by collective bargaining units) 

plans as of December 31 ,2015 that are expected to be amortized 

^ componentsof net periodicbenefit (credit) cosr In 2016: 

Oilier Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

(millions) 

DOMINION 
Net actuaria Moss $111 $ 5 
Prior service (credit) cost I (28) 

DOMINIONGAS 
Net actuarial loss 
Prior sen/ice (credit) cost 

$ 13 $ 1 
1 

The expected long-term rates of teturn on plan assets, dis­
count tates, healthcare cost trend rates and mortality are critical, 
assumprions in derermining net periodic benefit (credit) cost. 

Dominion develops assumptions, which, are then compared to the 
forecasts of an independenr investment advisor (except for the 

expected long-term rates of return) to ensure reasonableness. An 
internal committee selects rhe final assumprions used for Domin­

ion's pension and other postretirement plans, including those in 
which Dominion Gas participates, including discount rates, 
expected Jong-term rates of return, healthcare cost trend rates and 

mortality tates. 

Dominion determines the expected long-term rates of return 

on plan assets for its pension plans and other postretirement 
benefir plans, including rhose in which Dominion Gas partic­

ipates, by using a combination of: 

• Expected inflation and risk-free interest rate assumptioris; 

• Historical rerurn analysis to determine long term hisroric 
returns as well as historic risk premiums for various asset 

- classes; 
• Expected fiiture risk premiums, asset volatilities and correla-

rions; . . . . . 
• Forecasts ofan independent investment advisor; 

• Forward-looking rerurn expectations derived from the yield 
on long-term bonds and the expected long-term returns of 

major stock market indices; and 
• Investment allocation of plan assets. 

Dominion determines discount rates from analyses of AA/Aa 
rated bonds with cash flows rnatching the expected payments to 
be made under Its plans. Including those In which Dominion Gas 

parricipates.i 

Dominion develops its mOrrality assumption using plan-

specific studies and projects mortality improvement using scales 

developed by the Society of Actuaries for aH its plans, including, 

those in which Dominion Gas participates. 

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect 

on rhe amounts reported for Dominion's reriree healthcare plans, 

including those in which Dominion Gas participates. A one per­

centage point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates 

would have had rhefoJJowingeffectsfor Dominion's and Domin­

ion Gas' (for employees represented by collective bargaining 
units) other postretirement benefit plans: 

Other Postretirement Benefits 

(millions)' ' 

DOMINION 
Effect on net periodic cost for 2016 
Effect on other postretirement benefit 

obligation at December 3 1 , 2015 

DOMINION GAS 
Effect on net periodic cost for 2016 
Effect on other postretirement benefit 

obligatiohat December 3 1 , 2015 

One percentage 
point increase 

$ 21 

157 

$ 5 

34 

One percentage 
point decrease 

$ (13) 

(129) 

$ (3) 

(26) 

Dominion Gas (Employees Not Represented by Collective 
Bargaining Units) and Virginia Power-Participation in 
Defined Benefit Plans 
Virginia Power employees and Dominion Gas employees nor 

represented by collective bargaining units are covered by the 
Dominion Pension Plan described above. As parricipating 
employers, Virginia Power and Dominion Gas are subject to 

Dominion's funding poHcy, which is to contribute annually an 
amount that is in accordance with ERISA. During 2015, Virginia 

Power and Dominion Gas made no contributions to the Domin­
ion Pension Plan, and no contributions to this plan are currently 

expected in 2016. Virginia Power's net periodic pension cosr 
related to th i sp lan was $97 million, $75 mHHon and $96mill ion 
in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Dominion Gas' het peri­

odic .pension .credit related.to this plan, was $(38) million, 
$(37) milHon and $(27) miHion in 2015, 2014 and 2013, 
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•espectively. Net periodic pension (credit) cost is reflected in 

Jther operarions and maintenance expense in their respecrive 
Consolidated Statements of Income. The funded status of vatious 

Dominion subsidiary groups and employee compensation are the 
oasis for determining the share of total pension costs for 

participating Dominion subsidiaries. See Note 24 for Virginia 
Power and Dominion Gas amounts due to/from Dominion 
related to this plan. 

Retiree healthcare and life insurance benefirs, for Virginia 

Power employees and for Dominion Gas employees not repre­
sented by collective bargaining units, are covered by the Dominion 
Retiree Health and Welfare Plan described above. Virginia Power's 

net periodic benefit (credit) cost related to this plan was $(16) 
miUion, $(18) miHion and $5 milHon in 2015, 2014 and 2013, 

respectively. Dominion Gas' net periodic benefit (credit) cost 
related to this plan was $(5) mllHon, $(5) million and less than $1 

mHHon for 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Net periodic bene­
fit (credit) cost is reflected in other operations and maintenance 
expenses in theit respective Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Employee headcount is the basis for determining the share of total 

other postretirement benefit costs for participating Dominion 

subsidiaries. See Note 24 for Virginia Power and Dominion Gas 
amounts due to/from Dominion related to this plan. 

Dominion holds investments in trusts to fund employee bene­

fit payments for the pension and other postretirement benefit 

plans in .which Virginia Power and Dominion Gas' employees 
participate. Any investment-related decHnes in these trusts wiH 

result in fiiture increases in the net periodic cost recognized for 

such employee benefit plans and wHI be included In the determi­

nation of the amount of cash that Virginia Power and Dominion 

Gas wfll provide to Dominion for their shares of employee benefit 

plan contributions. 

Certain regulatory authorities have held that amounts recov­

ered in rates for orher postreriremenr benefirs, in excess of benefits 
actually paid during the year, must be deposited in trust funds 

dedicated for the sole putpose of paying such benefits. Accord­

ingly, Virginia Power and Dominion Gas fund other postretire­

ment benefit costs through VEBAs. During 2015 and 2014, 

Virginia Power made no contributions to the VEBA and does not 

expect to contribute to the VEBA in 2016. Dominion Gas made 

no contributions to the VEBAs for employees not represented by 
collective bargaining units during 2015 and does not expect to 
contribute in 2016. Dominion Gas' contributions to VEBAs for 

employees not represented by collective bargaining units were $1 
milHon for 2014. 

Defined Contribution Plans 
Dominion also sponsors defined contribution employee savings 

plans that cover substantially all employees. During 2015, 2014 
and 2013, Dominion recognized $43 mfllion, $4l milHon and 

$40 million, respectively, as employer matching conrriburions to 
these plans. Dominion Gas participates in these employee savings 

plans, both specific to Dominion Gas and that cover multiple 
Dominion subsidiaries. During 2015, 2014 and 2013, Dominion 
Gas recognized $7 million as employer marching contributions to 

these plans. Virginia Power also participates in these employee 

savings plans. During 2015, 2014 and 2013, Virginia Power 
recognized $18 miHion, $17 million and $ I 6 miHion, 
respectively, as employer matching contributions to these plans. 

NOTE 22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

As a resulr of issues generated in the ordinary course of business, 

the Companies are involved in legal proceedings before various 
courts and are periodically subject to governmental examinations 
(including by regulatory authorities), inquiries and investigations. 

Certain legal proceedings and governmental examinations involve 
demands for unspecified amounrs of damages, are In an initial 

procedural phase, involve uncertainty as to the outcome of pend­
ing appeals or motions, or involve significant factual issues that 

need to be resolved, such that it is not possible for the Companies 
to estimate a range of possible loss. For such matters for which rhe 
Companies cannot estimate a range of possible loss, a statemenr 

to this effect is made in the description ofthe matter. Other mat­
ters may have progressed sufficiently through the litigation or 

investigative processes such that the Companies are able to esti­
mate a range of possible loss. For legal proceedings and gov­

ernmental examinations fot which the Companies are able to 
reasonably estimate a range of possible losses, an esrimated range 

of possible loss is provided, in excess of the accrued liability (if 

any) for such matters. Any accrued liability Is recorded on a gross 

basis wirh a receivable also recorded for any probable insurance 

recoveries. Estimated ranges of loss are inclusive of legal fees and 

ner of any anticipated insurance recoveries. Any estimated range is 

based on currentiy available information and involves elements of 
judgment and significant uncertainties. Any estimated range of 

possible loss may not represent the Companies' maximum possi­

ble loss exposure. The circumstances of such legal proceedings 

and governmental examinations wifl change from time to rime 

and actual results may vary significantly from the current esti­

mate. For current proceedings nor specifically reporred below, 

management does not anticipate that the liabilities, if any, arising 

from such proceedings would have a material effect on the finan­
cial position, liquidity or results of operations of the Companies. 

Environmental Matters 
The Companies are subject to costs tesulting from a number of 

federal, state and local laws and regulations designed to protect 

human health and the environment. These laws and regulations 

affect future planning and existing operations. They can result in 

increased capital, operating and other costs as a result of com­
pliance, remediation, containment and monitoring obligarions. 

A I R 

CAA 

The CAA, as amended, is a comprehensive program utilizing a 
broad range of regulatory rools to protect and preserve the 
nation's air quality. At a minimum, states are required to establish 

regulatory programs to address all requirements of the CAA. 
However, states may choose to develop regulatory programs that 

are more restrictive. Many ofthe Companies' faciliries are subject 
to the CAA's permitring and other requirements. 

MATS 

In December 2011 , the EPA issued MATS for coal and oil-fired 
elecrric utiHty steam generaring unirs. The rule establishes strict 
emission iimirs for mercury, particulate matter as a surrogate 

for toxic metals and hydrogen chloride as a surrogate for acid 
gases. The rule Includes a limited use provision for oil-fired units 
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Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued 

with annual capacity factors under 8% that provides an exemp­

tion from emission limits, and aflows compliance with operational 
work practice standards. Compliance was required by April 16, 
2015, with certain limited exceptions. However, in June 2014, 

the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality granted a 
one-year MATS compliance extension for two coal-fired units at 

Yorktown to defer planned retirements and aflow for continued 
operation ofthe units to address reliability concerns whfle neces­

sary electric transmission upgrades are being completed. These 
coal units wfll need to continue operating unril at least April 2017 

due to delays in transmission upgrades needed to maintain electric 
reliability, which based on assumprions about the riming for 
required agency actions and consttuction schedules are expected 

to be completed by no earlier rhan the second quarter of 2017. 
Therefore, in October 2015 Virginia Power submitted a request 

to the EPA for an addirional one year compliance extension under 
an EPA Adminisrrative Order. 

In June 2015, the U.S. Supreme Court issued a decision hold­
ing that the EPA failed to take cost into account when the agency 

first decided to regulate the emissions from coal- and oil-fired 

planrs, and remanded the MATS rule back to the D.C. Circuit 

Court. However, the Supreme Court did not vacate ot stay the 

effective date and implementation of the MATS rule. O n 

November 20, 2015, in response to the Supreme Court decision, 

the EPA proposed a supplemental finding that consideration of 

cost does not alter the agency's previous conclusion that it is 

appropriate and necessary to regulate coal- and oil-fired electric 
UtiHty steam generating units under Section 112 ofthe CAA. O n 

December 15, 2015, the D.C. Court of Appeals issued an order 

remanding the MATS rulemaking proceeding back to the EPA 

without setting aside judgment, noting that EPA had represented 

it was on track to issue by April 15, 2016, a final finding regard­

ing its consideration of cost. These actions do not change Virginia 

Power's plans to close coal units at Yorktown or the need to 

complete necessary electricity transmission upgrades by 2017. 

Since the MATS rule remains in effect and Dominion is comply­
ing with, the requirements of the rule. Dominion does not expect 

any adverse impacts to its operations at this time. 

CAIR 

The EPA established CAIR with.the intent to require significant 

reductions in SOj and N O x emissions ftom electtic generating 

faciliries. In July 2008, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C.-̂  
Cifcuit issued a ruling vacating CAIR. In December 2008, the 
Court denied rehearing, but also issued a decision to remand 

CAIR ro the EPA. In July 2011 , the EPA issued a replacement 
rule for CAIR, called CSAPR, that required 28 states to reduce 

power plant emissions that cross state Hnes. CSAPR established 
new S O ; and N O x emissions cap and trade programs that were 

completely independent of the current ARP. Specifically, CSAPR 
required reductions in SO2 and N O x emissions from fossfl fuel-
fired electric generaring units of 25 M W or more through annual 

N O x emissions caps, N O x emissions caps during the ozone sea­
son (May 1 through September 30) and annual SO2 emission 

caps with differing requirements for two groups of affected states. 

.CSAPR -

FoHowing numerous petitions by industry participants for 
review and a successful morion for stay, in October 2014, the 

U.S. Court of Appeals for rhe D.C. Circuit ordered that the 

EPA's motion to lift the stay of CSAPR be granted. Further, the 
Court granted the EPA's request to shift the CSAPR compliance 

deadlines by three years, so that Phase 1 emissions biidgets (which 
would have gone into effect in 2012 and 2013) will apply in 2015 

and 2016, and Phase 2 emissions budgets will apply in 2017 and . 
beyond. CSAPR replaced CAIR beginning in January 2015. The 
cost to comply is not expected to be material to the Consolidated 

Financial Statements. Future outcomes' of any additional liti­
gation and/or any action to issue a revised rule could affect the 

assessment regarding cost of compliance. 

Ozone Standards . 

In October 2015, the EPA issued a final rule tightening the ozone 

standard from 75-ppb to 70-ppb. The EPA isexpected to com­
plete attainment designations for a new srandard by December 

2017 and Slates will have until 2020 or 2021 to develop plans to 
addtess the new standard. Until the states have developed 

implementation plans, the Companies are unable to predict 
whether or to what extent the new rules will ultimately require 

additional controls. However, if significant expenditures are 

required to implement additional controls, it could adversely 

affect the Companies' results of operations and cash flows. 

Hazardous Air Pollutants Standards 

In August 2010, the EPA issued revised National Emission Stan­

dards for Hazardous Air Pollurants for Reciprocating Interna! 

Combustion Erigines, which was amended in Match 2011 and 

January 2013. The rule establishes emission standards for control 

of hazardous air pollutants for engines at smaller facilities, known 

as area sources. As a resulr of these regularions. Dominion Gas has 
spent $2 milHon to InstaH emissions controls on several compressor 

engines. Furthet capital spending is not expected to be material. 

NSPS 

In August 2012, the EPA issued the first NSPS impacting the 

natural gas production and gathering sectors and made revisions 

to the NSPS for natural gas processing and transmission facilities. 
These rules establish equipment performance specifications and 

emissions standards for control of V O C emissions for natural gas 
production weHs, tanks, pneumatic controHers, and compressors 
in the upstream sector. In September 2015, the EPA issued a 

proposed NSPS to regulate methane and V O C emissions from 

transmission and storage, gathering and boosting, production and 
processing facilities. All projects which commence construction 
after September 2015 will be required to comply with this regu­

lation. Dominion is evaluating the proposed regulation and can­
not currenrly estimate the potential impacts on results of 

operations, financial condition and/or cash flows related to this 
matter. 

Methane Emissions 

In January 2015, as part of its CHmate Action Plan, the EPA 

announced plans to reduce methane emissions from the oil and 
gas sector including natutal gas processing and transmission sour­
ces. In July 2015, the EPA announced the next generation of its 

voluntary Natural Gas STAR program, the Narural Gas STAR 
Methane Challenge Program. The proposed program covers the 

entire natural gas sector from production to distribution, wirh 
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nore emphasis on transparency and increased reporting for both 
.nnual emissions and reducrlons achieved rhrough 

mplementation measures. Dominion is evaluating the proposed 
)rogram and cannot currently estimate the potential impacts on 

•esults of operations, financial condition and/or cash flows related 
.0 this matter. 

C L I M A T E C H A N G E L E G I S L A T I O N A N D R E G U L A T I O N 

-n October 2013, the U.S.-Supreme Court granted petitions filed 
-yy sevetal industry groups, states, and the U.S. Chamber of 
Commerce seeking review of the D.C. Circuit Court 's June 2012 
leclsion upholding the EPA's regulation of G H G emissions from 
itationary sources under rhe CAA's permitring programs. In June 
2014, the U.S. Supreme Courr ruled that the EPA lacked the 
luthority under the CAA to require PSD or Tide V permits for 
stationary sources based solely on G H G emissions. However, the 
Court upheld the EPA's ability to require BAtCT for G H G for 
sources.rhar are otherwise subject to PSD or Title V permitting 
for conventional pollutants. In July 2014, the EPA issued a 
memorandum specifying that it will no longer apply or enforce 
federal regulations or EPA-approved PSD state implementation 
plan provisions that require new and modified stationary sources 
to obtain a PSD permit when G H G s are rhe only pollutant that 
would be emitted at levels that exceed the permitting thresholds. 
In August 2015, the EPA published a final rule rescinding the 
requirement for all new and modified major sources to obtain 
permits based solely on their G H G emissions. In addition, the 
EPA stated that it will conrinue to use the existing thresholds to 
apply to sources that are otherwise subject ro PSD for conven­
tional poHutants until it completes a new rulemaking either. 
jusrifying and upholding those thresholds or setring new ones. 
Some stales have issued interim guidance that follows the EPA 
guidance. Due to uncertainty regarding what additional actions 
states may take to amend their existing regulations and what 
action the EPA ultimately takes to address the Court ruling under 
a new rulemaking, the Companies cannot predict the impact to 
their financial statements at this rime. 

In July 2011 , the EPA signed a final rule deferring the need 
for PSD and Title V permitring for.C02 emissions for biomass . 
projects. This rule temporarily deferred for a period of up to three 
years the considerarion of CO2 emissions from biomass projects 
when determining whether a stationary source meets the PSD and 
Tide V applicability thresholds, including those for the applica­
tion of BACT. The deferral.poHcy expired in July 2014. In July 
2013, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit vacated rhis 
rule; however, a mandate making this decision effective has not 
been issued. Virginia Power converted'three coal-fired generating 
Stations, Altavista, Hopewell and Southampton, to biomass dur­
ing the CO2 deferral period. It Is unclear how the court's decision 
or the EPA's final policy regarding the treatment of specific feed­
stock will affect biomass sources that were permitted during the 
deferral period; however, the expenditures to comply with any 
new requirements could be material to Dominion's and Virginia 
Power's financial sratements. 

W A T E R 

The CWA, as amended, is a comprehensive program requiring a 

broad range of regulatory tools including a permit program to 

amhorize and regulate discharges to surface waters with strong 

enforcement mechanisms. The Companies must comply with 
applicable aspects of the (CWA programs at their operaring facili­
ties. 

In October 2014, the final regulations under Section 316(b) of 
the C W A that govern existing facilities and new units at existing 

facilities that employ a cooling water intake structure and that have 
flow levels exceeding a minimum thieshold became effective. The 

rule establishes a national standard for impingement based on 
seven compliance oprions, but forgoes the creation of a single 

technology standard for entrainment. Instead, the EPA has dele­
gated entrainment technology decisions to state regulators. State 
regulators are to make case-by-case entrainment technology 

determinations after an examination of five mandatory facility-
specific factors, including a social cost-benefit test, and six optional 

facility-specific factors. The rule governs all electric generating sra­
tions with water withdrawals above rwo M G D , with a heightened 

entrainment analysis for those facilities over 125 M G D . Dominion 
and Virginia Power have l 4 and 11 facilities, respectively, that 
may be subject to the fmal regulations. Dominion anticipates that 

it will have to install impingement control technologies at many of 

these stations that have once-tHrough cooling systems. Dominion 

and Virginia Power are currently evaluating the need or potential 
for entrainment controls under the final rule as these decisions will 

be made on a case-by-case basis after a thorough review of detailed 

biological, technology^ cost and benefit studies. While the impacts 

ofthis rule could be material to Dominion's and Virginia Power's 

results of operarions, financial condition and/or cash flows, rhe 

existing regulatory framework in Virginia provides rare recovery 

mechanisms that could substantially mitigate any such impacts for 

Virginia Power. 

In Seprember 2015, the EPA released a final rule to revise the 

Effluent Limitations Guidelines for the Steam Electric Power 

Generating Category. The final rule establishes updated standards 

for wastewater discharges that apply primarily at coal and oil 

steam generaring stations. Affected facilities are required ro con­

vert from wet to dry or closed cycle coal ash management, 

improve existing wastewater treatment systems and/or install new 

wastewater treatment technologies in order to meet the new dis­
charge limits. Virginia Power has eight facilities that may be sub­
ject to additional wastewater treatment requirements associated 

with the final rule. The expenditures to comply with these new 

requirements are expected to be material. 

SOLID AND HAZARDOUS WASTE 

The CERCLA, as amended, provides for Immediate response and 

removal actions coordinated by the EPA in the event of threat­
ened releases of hazardous substances into the environment and 

authorizes rhe U.S. government either to clean up sites at which 
hazardous substances have created actual or potential environ­
mental hazards or to order persons responsible for the situarion to 

do so. Under the CERCLA, as amended, generators and trans­
porters of hazardous substances, as well as past and present owners 

and operators of contaminated sites, can be jointly, severally and 
strictly liable for the cost of cleanup. These potentially responsible 

parties can be ordered to perform a cleanup, be sued for costs 
associated with an EPA-ditected cleanup, voluntarily settle with 
the U.S. government concerning theit liabfllcy for cleanup costs, 

or voluntarily begin a site Investigation and sire remediarion 
under state oversight. 
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Combined Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements, Continued 

From rime to rime. Dominion, Virginia Power, or Dominion 
Gas may be idenrified as a potenriaUy responsible party to a Super-

fund site. The EPA (or a state) can either allow such a party to 
conduct and pay for a remedial investigafion, feasibility study and 
remedial aaion or condua the remedial invesrigarion and acrion 

itself and then seek reimbursement from the potentially responsible 
parties. Each party can be held joindy, severally and stricdy liable for 

the cleanup costs. These parties can also bring contribution actions 
against each other and seek reimbursement from their insurance 

companies. As a result. Dominion, Virginia Power, or Dominion 
Gas may be responsible for the costs of remedial investigation and 
actions under the Superfiind law or other laws or regulations regard­

ing the remediation of waste. Except as noted below, the Companies 
do not believe this will have a material efiect on results of operations, 

financial condition and/or cash flows. 

in September 2011, the EPA issued a UAO to Virginia Power 
and 22 other parties, ordering specific remedial acrion of certain 

areas at the Ward Transformer Superfund site located in Raleigh, 
North Carolina. Virginia Power does not believe it is a liable 

part}' under CERCLA based on its alleged connection to the 

site. In November 2011, Virginia Power and a number of other 

parties notified the EPA that they are declining to undertake the 

work set forth in the UAO. 

The EPA may seek to enforce a UAO in court pursuant to its 

enforcement authority-undei CERCLA, and may seek recovery of 

its costs in undertaking removal or remedial action. If the court 

determines that a respondent failed to comply with the UAO 
without sufficient cause, the EPA may also seek civil penalties of 

up to $37,500 per day for the violation and punitive damages of 

up to three times the costs incurred by the EPA as a result of the 

party's fellure to comply with the UAO. Virginia Power Is cur­

rently unable to make an estimate of the potential financial 

statement impacts related to the Ward Transformer matter. 

Dominion has determined that it is associated with 17 former 

manufactured gas plant sites, three of which perrain to Virginia 
Power and 12 of which pertain to Dominion Gas. Studies con­

ducted by other utiliries at their former manufactured gas plant 

sites have Indicated that those sites contain coal tar and other 

potentially harmfiil materials. None of the former sites with 
which the Companies are associated is undet investigation by any 

state or federal environmental agency. At one of the former sites. 
Dominion is conducting a state-approved post closure ground-

warer monitoring program and an environmental land use 
restriction has been recorded. Another site has been accepted into 

a state-based voluntary remediation program. Vitginia Power is 
currently evaluating the nature and extent.of the contamination 
from this site as weU as potential remedial options. Preliminary 

costs for options under evaluation for the site range from $1 mil­

Hon to $22 million. Due to the uncertainty surrounding the other 
sites, the Companies are unable to make an estimate of the poten­
tial financial statement impacts. 

See below for discussion on ash pond and landfill closure, cosrs. 

Other Legal Matters 
The Companies are defendants in a number of lawsuits and claims 
involving unrelated Incidents of ptoperty damage and persona! 
injury. Due to the.uncertainty surrounding these matters, the 
Companies are unable to make an estimate of the potential finan­
cial statement impacts; however, rhey could have a material impact 
on results of operations, financial condition and/or cash Rows. 

APPALACHIAN GATEWAY 

Following the completion of the Appalachian Gateway project in 
2012, D T I received multiple change order requests and other 
claims for additional payments from a pipeline contractor for the 
project. In July 2013, D T I filed a complaint in U.S. District 
Court for the Eastern District of Virginia for breach of contract a 
well as accounring and. declaratory relief. The contractor filed a 
morion to dismiss, or in the alternative, a motion ro transfer 
venue ro Pennsylvania and/or West Virginia, where the pipeHnes 
were constructed. D T I filed an opposition to the contractor's 
motion In August 2013. In November 2013, the court granted 
the contractor's motion on the basis that D T I must first comply 
with the dispute resolution process. In July 2015, the contractor 
filed a complaint against D T I in U.S. Disttlct Court for the 
Western District of Pennsylvania. In August 2015, D T I filed a 
motion to dismiss, or in the alternative, a motion to ttansfer 
venue to Virginia. This case is pending. D T I has accrued a 
HabiHty of $6 million for this matter. Dominion Gas cannot cur­
rently estimate additional financial statement impacts, bur there 
could be a material impact to its financial condition and/or cash 
flows. 

A S H P O N D A N D L A N D F I L L C L O S U R E C O S T S 

In September 2014, Virginia Power received a norice from the 
SELC on behalf of the Potomac Riverkeeper and Sierra Club 
alleging C W A violations at Possurh Point. The notice alleges 
unpermitted discharges to surface water and groundwater from 
Possum Point's historical and active ash storage facilities. A sim-
Har notice from the SELC on behalf of the Sierra Club was sub­
sequently received related to Chesapeake. In December 2014, 
Virginia Power offered to close all of its coal ash ponds and land­
fills at Possum Point, Chesapeake and Bremo as settlement of the 
potential litigation. While the issue Is open to potential fiirther 
n^ot ia t ions , the SELC declined the offer as presented in January 
2015 and, in March 2015, filed a lawsuit related ro irs claims of 
the alleged CWA violations at Chesapeake. Virginia Power filed a 
motion to dismiss in Aprfl 2015, which was denied in November 
2015. As a result of the December 2014 settlement offer, Virginia 
Power recognized a charge of $121 mfllion in orher operations 
and maintenance expense in its Consolidated Statements of 
Income In the Companies* Annual Report on Form lO-K for the 
year ended December 3 1 , 2 0 l 4 . 

In April 2015, the EPA's final rule regulating the manage­
ment of CCRs stored in impoundments (ash ponds) and landfills 
vvas ptiblished In the Federal Register. The final rule regulates 
CCR landfills, existing ash ponds that still receive and manage 
CCRs, and inactive ash ponds that do not receive, but still store 
CCRs. Virginia Power currently operates inactive ash ponds, 
exisring ash ponds, and CCR landfills subject to the final rule at 
eight different faciliries. The enactment of the final rule in April 
2015 created a legal ob l i^ t ion for Virginia Power to retrofit or 
close afl of its inactive and existing ash ponds over a cenain period 
of time, as well as perform required monitoring, corrective action, 
and post-closure care activities as necessary. In 2015, Virginia 
Power recorded a $386 miHion ARO related to future ash pond 
and landfill closure costs. Recognition ofthe ARO also resulted in 
a $99 miHion incremental charge recorded in other operations 
and maintenance expense in its Consolidated Statement of 
Income, a $166 mfllion increase in property, plant, and equip-
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nent associated with asset retirement costs, and a.$121 million 
eduction In other noncurrenr liabflities relared to reversal of the 

;onringent HabJHty described above since the A R O obligation 
:reated by the final C C R rule represents similar activities, 

/irginia Power Is In the process of obtaining the necessary permits 
o complete the work. The actual AROs relared to the C C R tule 
nay vary substantially from the estimates used to record the 

ncreased obligation in 2015. 

COVE POINT 

Dominion is constructing the Liquefaction Project at the Cove 
point facility, which would enable the facility to liquefy 

iomestically-produced natural gas and export It as LNG. In Sep­
tember 2014, FERC issued an order granting aurhorization for 

Cove Point to construct, modify and operate the Liquefaction 
project. In October 2014, several parties filed a motion with 

FERC ro stay the order and requested rehearing. In May 2015, 
FERC denied rhe requests for stay and rehearing. 

Two parties have separarely filed petitions for review.of the 

FERC order in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C; Circuit, 

which petitions have been consolidated. Separately, one party 
requested a stay of the FERC order untfl the judlcial.proceedings 

are complete, which the court denied in June 2015. 

In May 2014, the Maiyland Commission granted the C P C N 

authorizing the construction of a generating station In connection 
with the Liquefaction Project. The C P C N obligates Cove Point 

to make payments totaling $48 mfllion. These payments consist 

of $40 million to the Strategic Energy Investments Fund over a 

five-year period beginning in 2015 and $8 mllHon to Maryland 

low income energy assistance programs over a twenty-year period 

expected to begin in 2018. In December 2014, upon receipt of 

applicable approvals to commence construction of the generating 

station. Dominion recorded the present value of the obHgation as 
an increase to property, plant and equipment and a corresponding 

liability. 

In June 2014, a party filed a notice of petition for judicial 

review ofthe C P C N with the Circuit Court for Baltimore City In 

Maryland. In September 2014, the party filed with the Maryland 

Commission a motion to stay the C P C N pending judicial review 

ofthe C P C N . In December 2014, the Circuit Court issued an 

order affirming the Maryland Commission's grant of the C P C N 
and dismissing the appeal, and rhe motion for stay was denied by 
the Maryland Commission. In January 2015, the same party filed 

a Notice of Appeal of the Baltimote Circuit Court 's Order affirm­
ing the Maryland Commission's grant of the C P C N with the 
Court of Special Appeals of Maryland. In February 2016, the 

Court of Special Appeals of Maryland issued an order affirming 
the judgment of the Circuit Court for Baltimore City In Mary­

land which affirmed the decision ofthe Maryland Commission 
granting the C P C N . 

Nuclear Matters 
In March 2011 , a magnitude 9.0 earthquake and subsequent 
tsunami caused significant damage at the Fukushima Dallchi 

nuclear power starlon In northeast Japan. These events have 
resulted in significant nuclear safety reviews required by the N R C 

and Industry groups such as I N P O . Like other U.S. nuclear oper-

atofs, Dominion has been gathering supporting data and partic­
ipating in Industry initiatives focused on the ability to respond to 

and mitigate the consequences of design-basis and beyond-deslgn-

basls events at Its stations. 

In July 2011, an N R C task force provided inirial recom­

mendations based on Its review of the Fukushima Daiichi accident 
and in October 2011 the N R C staff prioritized these recom­
mendations into Tiers 1, 2 and 3, with the Tier 1 recom­

mendations consisting of actions which the staff determined 
should be started without unnecessary delay. In December 2011, 

the N R C Commissioners approved the agency staffs prioritization 
and recommendations, and that same month an appropriations act 

directed the N R C to require reevaluation of external hazards (not 
limited to seismic and flooding hazards) as soon as possible. 

Based on the priorlrized recommendations. In March 2012, 

the N R C Issued orders and Information requests requiring 
specific reviews and actions to all operating reactors, construction 

permit holders and combined license holders based on the lessons 
learned from the Fukushima DailchI event. The orders applicable 
to Dominion requiring Implementation of safety enhancements 

related to mitigation strategies to respond ro extreme natural 

events resulting in'the loss of power at plants, and enhancing 
spent fuel pool instrumentation have been implemented. The 

information requests issued by the N R C request each reactor to 

reevaluate the seismic and external flooding hazards at their site 

using preisent-day methods and information, conduct walkdowns 

of their faclHties to ensure protection against the hazards In their 

current design basis, and to reevaluate their emergency communi­

cations systems and staffing levels. The walkdowns of each unit 

have been completed, audited by the N R C and found to be 
adequate. Reevaluation of the seismic and external flooding haz­

ards is expected to continue through 2018. Dominion and 

Virginia Power do not currently expect that compliance with the 

NRC's information requests wfll materially Impact their financial 

position, results of operations or cash flows during the 

implementation period. The N R C staff is evaluating the 

Implementation ofthe longer term Tier 2 and Tier 3 recom­

mendations. Dominion and Virginia Power are currently unable 

to estimate the potential financial impacts related to compliance 
with Tier 2 and Tier 3 recommendarions. 

Nuclear Operations 

N U C L E A R D E C O M M I S S I O N I N G — M I N I M U M F I N A N C I A L 

A S S U R A N C E 

The N R C requires nuclear power plant owners to annually 
update minimum financial assurance amounts for the future 

decommissioning of their nuclear facflities. Decommissioning 
Involves the decontamination and removal of radioactive con­
taminants from anuclear power station once operarions have 

ceased, in accordance, with standards established by the N R C . 
The 2015 calculation for the N R C minimum financial assurance 

amounr, aggregated for Dominion's and Virginia Power's nuclear 
units, excluding joint ownets' assurance amounts and Millstone 

Unit 1 and tCewaunee,.as those units are in a decommissioning 
state, was $2.9 billion and $1.8 billion, respectively, and has been 
satisfied by a combination ofthe funds being collected and 

deposited in the nuclear decommissioning trusts and the real 

annual rate of return growth ofthe funds allowed by the N R C . 
The 2015 NR,C minimum financial assurance amounts above 
were calculated using preliminary December 3 1 , 2015 U.S. 

Bureau of Labor Statistics indices. Dominion believes that the 
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C o m b i n e d N o t e s to Conso l ida ted Financial S ta tements , C o n t i n u e d 

amounts currently available in its decommissioning trusts and 

their expected earnings will be sufficient to cover expected • 
decommissioning costs for the Millstone and Kewaunee units: 

Virginia Power also believes thar the decojnmissioning fijnds and 
their expected earnings for the Surry arid North Anna units will 

be sufficient to cover decommissioning costs, particularly when 
combined with fiiture ratepayer collections and contributions to 
rhese decommissioning trusts, if such future collections and con­

rriburions are required. This reflects a posirive long-term outlook -
for trust fund investment returns as the decommissioning of the 

units will not be complete for decades. Dominion and Virginia 
Power will continue to monitor these trusts to ensure rhey meet 

the N R C minimum financial assutance requirement, which may 
include, if needed, the use of parent company guarantees, surety 

bonding or orher financial instrumenrs recognized by the N R C . 
See Note 9 for additional information on nucleat decommission­
ing trust investments. 

NUCLEAR INSURANCE 

The Price-Anderson Amendmems Act of 1988 provides rhe pub­

Hc up to $13-5 biHion of liabiliry protection per nuclear Incident, 

via obligations required of owners of nuclear power plants, and 

allows for an inflatlonaiy provision adjustment every five years. 

Dominion and Virginia Power have purchased $375 million of 

coverage from commercial insurance pools for each reactor site 

with the remainder provided through a mandatory Indusrry retro­

spective rating plan. In rhe evenr of a nuclear incident at any 

Hcensed nuclear reactor in the U.S., the Companies could be 
assessed up to $127 million for each of their licensed reacrors not 

to exceed $19 milHon per year per reactor. There is no limit to 

the number of Incidents for which this retrospective premium can 

be assessed. However, the N R C granted .an exemption in March 

2015 to remove Kewaunee from the Secondary Financial Pro­

tection program. 

The current levels of nuclear property insurance coverage for 
Dominion's and Virginia Power's nuclear units is as follows: 

• ••' Coverage 

(billions) 

Dominion 
Millstone " ' ' • " $1.70 
Kewaunee ., . ^ : . .- 1.06 

Virginia Powero 
Surry 
North Anna 

$1.70 
1.70 

(I) Surry and North Anna share a blanket property limit of$200 miUion. 

Dominion's and Virginia Power's nuclear property insurance 
coverage for Millstone, Surry and Norrh Anna'exceeds the N R C 

minimum requirement for nuclear power plant licensees of $1.06 
billion per reactor site. Kewaunee meets the N R C minimum 
requirement of $1.06 blHIOn. This includes coverage for pre-

marure decommissioning and functional total loss. The N R C 
requires that the proceeds from'this insurance be used first, to 

rerurn the reactor to and maintain it in a safe and stable condition 
and second, to decontaminate the reactor and station site in 

accordance with a plan approved by the N R C . Nuclear property 
insurance Is provided by NEIL, a murual insurance company, and 
Is subject to retrospective prei^iiiim assessments in any policy year 

in which losses exceed the fiinds available ro the insurance com­
pany. Dominion's and Virginia Power's maximum retrospective 

premium assessment for the current poHcy period is $84 mfllion 
and $48 milHon, respectively. Based on the severity of the 

incident, the Board of Directors of the nuclear Insurer has the 
discretion to lower or eliminate the maximum rerrospecrive pre­

mium assessmenr. Dominion and Virginia Power have the finan­
cial responsibflity for any losses that exceed the limits or for whic^ 
insurance proceeds are not available because they must first be 

used for stabfllzation and decontamination. 

Millsrone and Virginia Power also purchase accidental ourage 
insurance from NEIL to mitigate certain expenses, including 

replacement power costs, associated with the prolonged outage of 
a nuclear unit due to direcr physical damage. Under this program. 

Dominion and Virginia Power are subjecr ro a retrospective pre­
mium assessment for any policy year in which losses exceed funds 
available ro NEIL. Dominion's andVirginia Power's maximum 

retrospective premium assessmenr for the current policy period is 
$23 miHion and $10 mfllion, respectively. 

O D E C , a patt owner of North Anna, and Massachusetts' 

Municipal and Green'Mountain, part owners of Millstone's Unit 

3, are responsible to Dominion and Virginia Power for their share 

of rhe nuclear decommissioning obligation and insurance p r ^ ̂  

miums on applicable units, including any retrospective premium 

assessments and any losses not covered by Insurance. 

SPENT NUCLEAR FUEL 

Dominion and Virginia Power enrered into contracts with the 

D O E for the disposal of spent.nuclear fuel under provisions of the 

Nuclear Waste PoHcy Act of 1982.. The D O E fafled to begin 

accepting the spent fuel on January 3 1 , 1998, the date provided . 

by the Nuclear Wasre Policy Act and by Dominion's and Virginia 

Power's contracts with the D O E . Dominion and Virginia Power 

have previously received damages award payments and settlement 

payments related to these contracts. 

In 2012, Dominion and Virginia Power resolved additional 

claims for damages incurred at Miflstone, Kewaunee, Surry and 

North Anna with the Authorized Representative of the Attorney 

General. Dominion and Virginia Power entered into settlement 
agreements that resolved claims for damages incurred through 

December 3 1 , 2010, and also provided for periodic payments 

after that date for damages incurred through December 31,. 2013. 

By mutual agreement of .the parties, the settlement agreements 
are extendable to provide for resoturion of damages incurred afier 

2013. The settlement agreements for the Surry, Nor th Anna and 

Millstone plants have been extended to provide for periodic 
payments for damages Incurred through December 31 , 2016, 
Possible extension of the Kewaunee settlement agreement is being 

evaJuated. 

In 2015, Virginia Power and Dominion received payments of 
$8 mfllion for resolution of claims incurred at North Anna and 

Surry for the period of January 1, 2013 through December 3 1 , 
2013, and $17 miHion for resolution of claims Incurred ar Mfll-

stone for the period of July I, 2013 rhrough June 30, 2014. 

In 2014, Virginia Power and Dominion received payments of 
$27 million for the.resolution of claims incurred at North Anna 
and Surry for the period January 1,2011 through December 3 1 , 

2012 and $17 mllHon fot the resolution of claims incurred at 
Millstone for the period of July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013. 
In 2014, Dominion also received payments totaling $7 mfllion 

for the resolution of claims incurred at Kewaunee for periods 
from January 1, 2011 through December31 , 2013. 
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Dominion and Virginia Power continue to recognize receiv-
bles for cerrain spent nuclear fuel-related costs that they believe 

re probable of recovery from the D O E . Dominion's receivables 
br spent nuclear fuel-related costs totaled $87 million and $69 

nilHon at December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014, respectively. Virginia 
^ower's receivables for spent nuclear fuel-related cosrs totaled $54 
nfllion and $41 miUion at December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014, 

espectively. 

Pursuant to a November 2013 decision of the U.S Court of 
Vppeals for the D.C. Circuit, in January 2014 the Secretary of the 

3 0 E sent a recommendation to the U.S. Congress to adjust to 
;ero the current fee of $1 per M W h for electricity paid by civilian 

luclear power generatots for disposal of spent nuclear fuel. The 
Processes specified In the Nuclear Waste Policy Act for adjusr-
nent of the fee have been completed, and as of May 2014, 

Dominion and Virginia Power are no longer required to pay the 
ivaste fee. In 2014, Dominion and Virginia Power recognized fees 

3f $16 million arid $10 million, respectively. 

Dominion and Virginia Power wifl continue to manage their 

jpeiit fuel until it is accepted by the D O E . 

Long-Term Purchase Agreements 
At December 3 1 , 2015, Virginia Power had the foflowing long-
term commitments that are noncancelable or are cancelable only 

under certain conditions, and that third parties have used to 

secure financing for the facilities that will provide the contracted 

goods or services; 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter Total 

(milh'ons) 

Purchased electric 
capacity'll $249 $157 $104 $65 $52 $46 $673 

(1) Commitments represent estimated amounts payable for capacity under 
power purchase contracts with qualifying facilities and independent 
power producers, the last of which ends in 2021. Capacity payments 
under the contracts are generally based on fixed dollar amounts per 
month, subject to escalation using broad-based economic indices. At 
December 31, 2015, the present value of Virginia Power's total 
commitment for capacity payments is $577 million. Capacity payments 
totaled $305 million. $330 million, and $345 million, and energy 
payments totaled $198 million, $304 million, and $236 million for the 
years ended2015, 2014and2013, respectively. 

Lease Commitments 
The Companies' lease various facilities, vehicles and equipment 
primarily under operating leases. Payments under certain leases 

are escalated based on an Index such as the consumer price Index. 
Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating 

and capital leases that have initial or remaining lease terms in 
excess of one year as of December 3 1 , 2015 are as follows: 

(millions) 

Oomtnlon 

Virginia 

Power 

Dominion Gas 

2016 

$67 

$30 

$26 

2017 

$62 

$27 

$25 

2018 

$54 

$23 

$23 

2019 

$43 

$17 

%-iS 

2020 

$25 

$14 

$ 6 

Thereafter 

$153 

$ 27 

$ ^B 

Total 

$404 

$138 

$1J7 

Rental expense for Dominion totaled $99 mllHon, $92 mil­
lion, and $101 miHion fot 2015, 2014 and 2013, tespectively. 
Rental expense for Virginia Power totaled $51 miHion, $43 mil­

lion, and $42 million for 2015, 2014, and 2013, respecrively. 

Rental expense fot Dominion Gas totaled $37 mfllion, $35 mfl­

lion and $15 mfllion for 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The 
majority of rental expense is reflected in other operations and 

maintenance expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Guarantees, Surety Bonds and Letters of Credit 
At December 3 1 , 2015, Dominion had Issued $74 mfllion of 

guarantees, primarily to support equity method investees. N o 

significant amounts related to these guarantees have been 

recorded. As of December 3 1 , 2015, Dominion's exposure under 

these guaranrees was $39 million, primarily related to certain 
reserve requirements associated with non-recourse financing. 

Dominion also enters Into guarantee arrangements on behalf 

of its consolidated subsidiaries, primarily to facilitate their 

commercial transactions with third parties. T o the extent that a 
liability subject to a guarantee has been Incurred by one of 

Dominion's consolidated subsidiaries, that liability is included In 

the Consolidated Financial Statements. Dominion is not required 

to recognize liabflities for guarantees issued on behalf of its sub­

sidiaries unless it becomes probable that it will have to perform 

under the guarantees. Terms of the guarantees typically end once 

obligations have been paid. Dominion currently believes it is 
unlikely that it would be required to perform or otherwise incur 
any losses associated with guarantees of its subsidiaries' obligations. 

At December 3 1 , 2015, Dominion had issued the following 

subsidiary guarantees: 

Stated Limit Vaiueiii 

(millions) 

Subsidiary debt'2> 
Commodity transactions'̂ ) 
Nuclear obligations"' 
Cove Point'si 
Solaris) 
Otheri" 

27 
2,371 

184 
1,910 
1,555 

515 

$ 27 
932 
75 

_ 
647 

31 

Total $6,562 $1,712 

(1) Represents the estimated portion of the guarantee's stated limit that is 
utilized as of December 31, 2015 based upon prevailing economic con­
ditions and fact patterns specific to each guarantee arrangement. For 
those guaratitees relatedto obligations that are recorded as liabilities by 
Dominion's subsidiaries, the value includes the recorded amount. 
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(2) Guarantee of debt of a DEI subsidiary. In the event of default by the 
subsidiary. Dominion would be obligated to repay such amounts. 

(3) Guarantees related to commodity commitments of certain subsidiaries, 
including subsidiaries (f Virginia Power, Dominion GasandDEI. 
These guarantees were provided to counterparties in order to facilitate 
physical and financial transactions in gas, oil, electricity, pipeline 
capacity, transportation and related commodities and services. If any of 
these subsidiaries fail to perform or pay under the contracts and the 
counterparties seek performance or payment, Dominion would be obli­
gated to satisfii such obligation. Dominion and its subsidiaries receive 
similar guarantees as collateral for credit extended to others. The value 
provided includes certain guarantees that do not have stated limits. 

(4) Guarantees relatedto certain DEI subsidiaries' potential retrospective 
premiums that could be assessed if there is a nuclear incident under 
Dominion's nuclear insurance pro-ams and guarantees for a DEI sub­
sidiary's and Virginia Power's commitment to buy nuclear fiiel Excludes 
Dominion's agreement to provide up to $150 mUlion and $60 million 
to two DEI subsidiaries to pay the operating expenses of Millstone (in the 
event of a prolonged outage) and Kewaunee, respectively, ai part of sat­
isfying certain NRC requirements concerned with ensuring adequate 
funding for the operations of nuclear power stations. The agreement for 
Kewaunee also provides for fiends through the completion of decom­
missioning. 

(5) Guarantees related to Cove Point, in support of terminal services, trans­
portation and construction. Two of the guarantees have no stated limit, 
one guarantee has a $150 million limit, and one guarantee has a $1.75 
billion aggregate limit with an annual draw limit of $175 million. 

(6) Includes guarantees to facilitate the development of solar projects includ­
ing guarantees that do not have stated limits. Also includes guarantees 
entered into by DEI on behalf of certain subsidiaries to facilitate the 
acquisition and development of solar projects. 

(7) Guarantees related to other miscellaneous contractual obligations such as 
leases, environmental obligations and construction projects. Also includes 
guarantees related to certain DEI subsidiaries' obligations for equity 
capital contributions and energy generation associated with Fowler Ridge 
and NedPower. As of December 31, 2015, Dominion s maximum 
remaining cumulative exposure under these equity fiinding agreements is 
$55 million through 2019 and its maximum annual future con­
tributions could range from approximately $4 million to $19 million. 
The value provided includes certain guarantees that do not have stated 
limits. 

Additionally, at December 31 , 2015, Dominion had pur­

chased $92 mfllion of surety bonds, including $34 mfllion at 

Virginia Power and $23 mfllion at Dominion Gas, and 

authorized the issuance of letters of credit by financial institutions 

of $59 miHion to facilitate commercial transactions by its sub­

sidiaries with third parties. Under the terms of surety bonds, the 

Companies are obligated to Indemnify the respective surety bond 

company for any amounts paid. 

As of December 3 1 , 2015, Virginia Power had issued $14 

mfllion of guaranrees primarily ro supporr tax-exempt debt Issued 

through conduits. The related debt matures in 2031 and is 

included in long-term debr In Virginia Power's Consolidated 

Balance Sheets. In the event of default by a conduits Virginia 

Power would be obligated to repay such amounts, which are lim­

ited to the principal and interest then outstanding. 

Indemnifications 
As part of commercial contract negotiations In the normal course . 

of business, the Companies may sometimes agree to make pay^ 

ments to compensate or indemnify orher parties for possible future 

unfavorable financial consequences resulring from specified events. 

The specified events may involve an adverse judgment in a lawsuit 

or the Imposition of additional taxes due to a change In tax law or 

interpretation ofthe tax law. The Companies are unable to 

develop an estimate ofthe maximum potential amount of any 

other flirure payments under these conrracts because events that 

would obhgate them have not yet occurred' or, if any such event 

has occurred, they have, not been notified of its occurrence. How­

ever, at December 3 1 , 2015, the Companies believe any other 

future payments, If any, that could ultimately become payable 

under these contract provisions,-would not have a material impact 

on their results of Operations, cash flows or financial position. 

NOTE 23. CREDIT RISK 
Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss If counterparties fafl to 

perform their contractual obligations. In order to minimize over­

all credit risk, credit policies are maintained. Including the evalua­

tion of counterparty financial condition, coHateral requirements 

and the use of standardized agreements that facilitate the netting 

of cash flows associated with a single counterparty. In addition, 

counterparties may make available collateral, including letters of 

credit or cash held as margin deposItSj as a result of exceeding 

agreed-upon credit limits, or may be required to prepay the trans­

action. 

The Companies maintain a provision for credit losses based 

on factors surrounding the credir risk of their customers, histor­

ical trends and other Information. Management believes, based on 

credit poHcIes and the December 3 1 , 2015 provision for credir 

losses, that ir is unlikely that a material adverse effect on financial 

position, results of operations or cash flows would occur as a 

result of counterparty nonperformance. 

GENERAL 

DOMINION 

As a diversified energy company. Dominion transacts primarily 

with major companies In the energy indusrry and with commer­

cial and residential energy consumers. These transactions princi­

pally occur in the Northeast, mid-Atlantic and Midwest regions 

of the U.S. Dominion does not believe that this geographic con­

centration contributes significantly to its overall exposure to credit 

risk. In addition, as a result of its large and diverse customer base, 

Dominion is not exposed to a significant concentration of credit 

risk for receivables arising from electric and gas utility operarions. 

Dominion's exposure ro credit risk is concentrared primarily 

within Its energy markering and price risk management activities, 

as Dominion transacts with a smaller, less diverse group of coun­

terparties and transactions may Involve large notional volumes 

and potentially volatile commodity prices. Energy markering and 

price risk management activities Include marketing of merchant 

generation output, structured transactions and rhe use of financial 

contracts for enterprise-wide hedging purposes. Gross credit 

exposure for each counterparty is calculated as outstanding receiv­

ables plus any unrealized on- or off-balance sheet exposure, taking 

into account contractual netting righrs. Gross credit exposure Is 

calculated prior to the application of any collateral. At 

December 3 1 , 2015, Dominion's credit exposure totaled $149 

million. Ofthis amount. Investment grade counrerparries, includ­

ing those internally rated, represented 7 9 % , and no single 

counrerparty, whether investment grade or non-Investment grade, 

exceeded $31 mfllion of exposure. 

VIRGINIA POWER 

Virginia Power sells electricity and provides distribution and 

transmission services to customers in Virginia and northeastern 
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•Jorth Carolina. Management believes that this geographic con-

entration risk is mitigated by the diverslry of Virginia Power's 

ustomer base, which includes residential, commercial and 

ndustrial cusromers, as well as rural electric cooperarives and 

nunicipaliries. Credit risk associated with rrade accounts receiv-

ble from energy consumers is limited due to the large number of 

:ustomers. Virginia Power's exposure to potential concentrations 

)f credit risk results primarily from sales to wholesale customers, 

/irginia Power's gross credit exposure for each counrerparty is 

:alculated as outstanding receivables plus any unrealized on- or 

jff-balance sheet exposure, taking into account conttactual net-

;ing rights. Gro.ss credit exposure is calciflated prior to the 

ippHcatlon ofcoilatetal. At December 31 , 2015, Virginia Power's 

:xposure to potential concentrations of credit risk was not consid­

ered material. 

DOMINION GAS 

Dominion Gas transacts mainly with major companies in the 

energy Industry and with residential and commercial energy 

consumers. These transactions principally occur In the Northeast, 

mid-Atlantic and Midwest regions of the U.S. Dominion Gas 

does not believe that this geographic concentration contributes to 

its overall exposute to ctedit risk. In addition, as a result of its 

large and diverse customer base. Dominion Gas is not exposed to 

a significant concentration of credit risk for receivables arising 

from gas utility operations. 

In 2015, D T I provided service to 266 customers with approx­

imately 94% of Its storage and transportation revenue being pro­

vided through firm services. The ten largest customers provided 

approximately 4 2 % ofthe total storage and transportation rev­

enue and the thirty largest provided approximately 7 2 % ofthe 

total storage and transportation revenue. 

East Ohio distributes natural gas to residential, commercial 

and industrial customers in Ohio using rates established by the . 

Ohio Commission. Approximately 9 8 % of East Ohio revenues 

are derived from its regulated gas distribution services. East 

Ohio's bad debt risk is mitigated by the regulatory framework 

established by the Ohio Commission. See Note 13 for further 

information about Ohio's PIPP and UEX Riders that mitigate 

East Ohio's overall credit risk. 

C R E D I T - R E L A T E D C O N T I N G E N T P R O V I S I O N S 

The majority of Dominion's derivarive instruments contain 

credit-related contingent provisions. These provisions require 

Dominion to provide collateral upon the occurrence of specific 

events, primarily a credit downgrade. If the credit-related con­

tingent features underlying these Instruments that are In a liabflity 

position and not fully collateralized with cash were fully triggered 

as of December 31 , 2015 and 2014, Dominion would have been 

required to post an additional $12 mfllion and $20 mfllion, 

respectively, ofcoilatetal to Its countetparties. The coHateral that 

would be required to be posted includes the impacts of any off­

setting asset poslrions and any amounts already posted for 

derivatives, non-derivarive contracts and derivatives elected under 

rhe normal purchases and normal sales exception, per conrractual 

terms. Dominion had posted no collateral at December 3 1 , 2015 

and $1 mfllion in collateral at December 3 1 , 2014, related to 

derivatives with credit-related conringent provisions that are in a 

liability position and not fully collateralized with cash. The 

collateral posted includes any amounts paid related to non-

derivative contracts and derivatives elected under the normal 

purchases and- normal sales exceprion, per contractual terms. The 

aggregate fair value of all derivarive instruments with credir-

related conringent provisions rhat are in a liabflity position and 

not fully collateralized with cash as of December 3 1 , 2015 and 

2014 was $49 mfllion, which does not include the impact of any 

offsetting asset positions. Credit-related contingent provisions for 

Virginia Power and Dominion Gas were not material as of 

December 31 , 2015 and 2014. See Note 7 for farther 

information about derivative instruments' 

NOTE 24. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Virginia Power and Dominion Gas engage In related parry trans­

actions primarily with other Dominion subsidiaries (affiliates). 

Virginia Power's and Dominion Gas' receivable and payable 

balances with affiliates are settled based on contractual terms or 

on a monthly basis, depending on the nature of the underlying 

rransacrions. Virginia Power and Dominion Gas are included in 

Dominion's consolidated federal income rax return. See Nore 2 

for further information. Dominion's transactions with equity 

method investments are described in Note 9. A discussion 

of significant telated party transactions follows. 

VIRGINIA POWER 

Transactions with Affiliates 
Virginia Power transacts with affiliates for certain quantities of 

natural gas and other commodities in the ordinary course of 

business. Virginia Power also enters into certain commodity 

detlvative contracrs with affiliates. Vitginia Power uses these con­

tracrs, which are principally comprised of commodity swaps, to 

manage commodity price risks associated with purchases of natu­

ral gas. See Notes 7 and 19 for more Informarion. As of 

December 3 1 , 2015, Virginia Power's derivarive assets and 

liabiliries wirh affiliates were $13 miflion and $22 mfllion, 

respecrively. As of December 3 1 , 2014, Vlrgiriia Power's 

derivative assets and liabilities with affiliates were not material. 

Virginia Power participates in cettain Dominion benefit plans 

as described in Note 2 1 . At December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014, 

Virginia Power's amounts due to Dominion associated with the 

Dominion Pension Plan and reflected In noncurrent pension and 

other postretirement benefit liabilities in the Consolidated Bal­

ance Sheets were $316 mfllion and $219 mllHon, respectively. At 

December 3 1 , 2015 and 2 0 l 4 , Virginia Power's amounts due 

from Dominion associated with the Dominion Reriree Health 

and Welfare Plan and reflected In other deferred charges and 

other assers m the Consolidated Balance Sheers were $77 million 

and $37 million, respecrively. 

DRS and other affiliates provide accounring, legal, finance 

and certain admlnisttatlve and technical services to Virginia 

Power. In addition, Virginia Power provides certain services to 

affiliates, including charges for facilities and equipment usage. 
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Presented below are significant transactions with DRS and 

other affiliates: 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013 

(millions) 

Commodity purchases from affiliates 

Services provided by affiliates"' 

Services provided to affiliates 

$555 . $543 $417 

422 . 432 415 

22 , 22 . 21 

(1) Includes capitalized expenditures. 

Virginia Power has borrowed fimds from Dominion under 

short-term borrowing arrangements. There were $376 million 

and $427 million in short-term demand note borrowings from 

Dominion as of Decembet 3 1 , 2015 and 2014, respectively. Vir­

ginia Power had no outstanding borrowings, net of repayments 

under the Dominion money pool for its nonregulated subsidiaries 

as of December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014. Interest charges related to 

Virginia Power's borrowings from Dominion were immarerlal for 

the years ended December 3 1 , 2015, 2014 and 2013. 

There were no issuances of Virginia Power's common stock to 

Dominion In 20l5> 2014 or 2013. 

DOMINION GAS 

Transactions with Related Parties 

Dominion Gas transacts with affiliates for certain quantities of 

natural gas and other commodities at market prices in the ordi­

nary course of business. Additionally, Dominion Gas provides 

transportation and storage services to affiliates. Dominion Gas 

also enters into certain other contracrs with affiliates, which are 

presenred separately from conrracts involving commodities or 

services. As of December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014, ail of Dominion 

Gas' commodity derivarives were with affiliates. See Notes 7 and 

19 for more informarion. See. Note 9 for Informarion regarding 

sales of assets to an affiliate. 

Dominion Gas participares in certain Dominion benefit plans 

as described in Nore 2 1 . At December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014, 

Dominion Gas' amounts due from Dominion associated with the 

Dominion Pension Plan and. reflected in noncurrent pension and 

other postretirement benefit assets in the Consolidated Balance 

Sheets were $652 milHon and $ 6 l 4 mfllion, respectively. At 

December 31 ,2015 and 2014, Dominion Gas' liablHries^to 

Dominion associated with the Dominion Retiree Health and 

Welfare Plan and reflected in other deferred credirs and other 

liabilities In the Consolidated Balance Sheets were $2 million and 

$7 million, respectively. 

DRS and other affiliates provide accounting, legal, finance 

and certain administrative and technical services to Dominion 

Gas. Dominion Gas ptovides cettain services to related parties, 

including technical services. The costs of these services follow; 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 2014 201.' 

(millions) 

Purchases of natural gas and transportation 
and storage services from affiliates 

Sales of natural gas and transportation and 
storage sen/ices to affiliates 

Services provided by related parties'!' 
Services provided to related parties'̂ ' 

J 10 $ 34 $ 31 

69 84 10̂  
133 106 lie 
101 17 ^ 

(1) Includes capitalized expenditures. 
(2) Amounts primarily attributable to Atlantic Coast Pipeline. 

The following rable presents affiliated and related party activ­

ity reflected in Dominion Gas' Consohdared Balance Sheets: 

Al December 31, 2015 20M 

(millions) 

Other receivables '̂* 

Customer receivables from related parties 

Imbalances receivable from affiliates'̂ * 

Affiliated notes receivable'̂ * 

$ 7 $17 

4 5 

1 3 

14 9 

(1) Represents amounts due from Atlantic Coast Pipeline, a related party 
VIE 

(2) Amounts are presented in other current assets in Dominion Gas'Con­
solidated Balance Sheets. 

(3) Amounts are presented in other defierred charges and other assets in 
Dominion Gas' Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Dominion Gas' borrowings under rhe IRCA wirh Dominion 

totaled $95 mfllion and $384 miflion as of December 3 1 , 2015 

and 2014, respectively. Interest charges related to Dominion Gas' 

total borrowings from Dominion were immaterial for the year 

ended December 3 1 , 2015 and $4 milHon and $35 milHon for 

rhe years ended December 3 1 , 2014 and 2013, respecrively. 
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NOTE 25. OPERATING SEGMENTS 

rhe Companies are organized primarily on the basis of products 

md services sold in the U.S. A description ofthe operations 
included in fhe Companies' primary operating segments is as fol­

lows: 

Primaiy Operating 
pegment 

DVP 

Dominion Generation 

Dominion Energ/ 

Description of Operations 

Regulated electric 
distribution 

Regulated electric 
transmission 

Regulated electric fleet 
Merchant electric fleet 

Gas transmission and 
storage 

Gas distribution and 
storage 

Gas gathering and 
processing 

LNG import and storage 
Nonregulated retail energy 

marketing^^' 

Dominion 

X 

X 

X 
X 

XO) 

X 

X 
X 

X 

Virginia Dominion 
Power Gas 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

(1) Includes remaining producer services activities. 
(2) As a result of Dominion's decision to realign its business units effective 

for 2015 year-end reporting, nonregulated retail energy marketing oper­
ations were moved from the Dominion Generation segment to the 
Dominion Energy segment. 

In addition to the operating segments above, the Companies 
also report a Corporate and Other segment. 

Dominion 

The Corporate and Other Segment of Dominion includes its corpo­

rate, service company and other functions (including unallocated 

debt) and the net impact of operations that are discontinued or 

sold. In addirion. Corporate and Other includes specific irems 
attributable to Dominion's operating segments that are not 

included In profit measures evaluated by executive management 

in assessing the segments' performance or allocating resources 

among the segmenrs. 

In March 2014, Dominion exited the electric retail energy 
marketing business. As a result, the earnings Impact from the 

electric retafl energy marketing business has been included in the 
Corporate and Other Segment of Dominion for 2014 firsr quar­

ter results of operations. 

In thesecondquat ter of 2013, Dominion commenced a 
restructuring of its producer services business, which aggregates 

natural gas supply, engages in natural gas t radlngand markering 
activities and natural gas supply management and provides price 
risk management services to Dominion affiliates. The restructur­

ing, which was completed in the first quarter of 2014, resulted in 
rhe terminarion of natural gas trading and certain energy market­

ing activities. As a result, the earnings impact from natural gas 
ttadlng and certain energy marketing activities has been included 

In the Corporate and Other Segment of Dominion for 2014. 

In 2015, Dominion reported after-rax net expense of $391 
mfllion In the Corporate and Other segment, with $136 million 
of these net expenses attributable to specific items related to its 

operating segments. 

The net expenses for specific items in 2015 primarily related 
to the impact of the following items: 

• A $99 million ($60 million after-tax) charge related to future 
ash pond and landfifl closure costs at certain utility generation 

facilities, attributable to Dominion Generation; and 
• An $85 million ($52 million after-tax) write-off of deferred 

fuel costs associated with Virginia legislation enacted in 

February 2015, attributable to Dominion Generation. 

In 2014, Dominion reported after-tax net expense of $970 
miHion In the Corporate and Other segment, with $544 miflion 

of these net expenses attributable to specific items related to its 
operating segments. 

The net expenses fot specific items in 2014 primarily related 
to the impact of the following items: 

• $374 million ($248 miflion after-tax) in charges associated 
with Virginia legislation enacted In April 2014 relating to the 

development of a third nuclear unit located at North Anna 
and offshore wind facilities, attributable to Dominion Gen­

eration; 

• A $319 million ($193 miflion after-rax) net loss related to the 

producer services business discussed above, attributable to 

Dominion Energy; and 

• A $121 mfllion ($74 miflion after-tax) charge related to a set-

dement offer to incur future ash pond closure costs at certain 

utflity genetation facflities, attributable to Dominion Gen­

eration. 

In 2013, Dominion reported after-tax net expense of $452 

mfllion in the Corporate and Other segment, with $184 million 

of these net expenses attributable to specific items relared to its 

operating segments. 

The net expenses for specific items in 2013 primarily related 
to the impact of the following items: 

• A $135 million ($92 mfllion after-tax) ner loss from dis­

continued operations of Brayton Point and Kincaid, including 

debt extinguishment of $64 miUion ($38 million after-tax) 
related to the sale, impairment chaiges of $48 miflion ($28 

million after-tax), a $17 million ($18 million after-tax) loss on 

the sale which includes a $16 mfllion write-off of goodwifl, 
and a $6 mfllion ($8 mfllion after-tax) loss from operations, 

attributable to Dominion Generation; and 

• A $ ] 82 million ($ 109 million after-tax) net loss, including a 
$55 miHion ($33 mfllion after-tax) impairment charge related 

to certain natural gas infrastructure assets and a $127 mfllion 
($76 million after-tax) loss related to the producer services 

business discussed above, attributable to Dominion Energy; 
partially offset by 

• An $81 miUion ($49 million after-tax) net gain on Invest­
ments held in nuclear decommissioning trust fimds, attribut-' 

able to Dominion Generation. 
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The following table presents segment information pertaining to Dominion's operations: 

Year Ended December 31, 
DoiTiinion Dominion 

DVP Generation"! Energy''' 
Corporate and Adjustmenls & Consolidatec 

other Efiminations'" Tota 

(millions) 

2015 
TotaJ revenue from external customers 
Intersegment revenue 

$2,091 
20 

2,111 
498 
— 
— 

230 
307 
490 
— 

1,607 
14.7 

$7,001 
15 

7,016 
591 
(15) 
64 

262 
465 

1,120 
245 

2,190 
25.6 

$1,877 
695 

2,572 
262 
60 
25 
27 

423 
680 

1,042 
2,153 

15.3 

(271 
554 

527 
44 
11 
13 

429 
(290) 
(391) 

33 
43 
9.0 

$ 741 
(1,284) 

(543) 
— 
— 

(44) 
(44) 
— 
— 
— 
— 

(5.8) 

$11,682 
— 

11,683 
1,395 

56 
58 

904 
905 

1,899 
1,320 
5,993 
58.8 

Total operating revenue 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 
Interest income 
Interest 3nd related charges 
Income taxes 
Net income (toss) attributable to Dominion 
Investment in equity method investees 
Capital expenditures 
Total assets (billions) 

2014 
Total tevenue from external, customers 
Intersegment revenue 

$1,918 
18 

$7,135 
34 

$2,446 
880 

$ (12) 
572 

$ 949 
(1,504) 

$12,436 
— 

Total operating revenue 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 
Interest income 
Interest and related charges 
Income taxes 
Net income (loss) attributable to Dominion 
Investment In equity method investees 
Capital expenditures 
Total assets (billions) 

1,935 
462 
— 
— 

205 
317 
502 

— 
1,652 

13.0 

7,169 
514 
(18) 
58 

240 
365 

1,061 
262 

2,466 
23.9 

3,326 
243 
54 
23 
11 

463 
717 
795 

1,329 
13.0 

560 
73 
10 
20 

770 
(693) 
(970) 

23 
104 
8.7 

555) 

— 
— 

(33) 
(33) 

— 
— 
— 
-— 

4.3) 

12,435 
1,292 

46 
58 

1,193 
452 

1,310 
1,081 
5,551 
54.3 

2013 
Totai revenue from external customers 
Intersegment revenue 

$1,825 
9 

$6,664 
283 

$3,566 
739 

• 3 

609 
I 1,062 
(1,640) 

$13,120 

Total operating revenue 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 
Interest income 
Interest and related charges 
Income taxes 
Loss from .discontinued operations, net of tax 
Net income (loss) attributable to Dominion 
Capital expenditures 

1,834 
427 

— 
— 

175 
287 

— 
475 

1,361 

-6,947 
511 
(14) 
59 

220 
436 

— 
963 

1,605 

4,305 
235 

21 
19 
26 

456 

— 
711 

1,043 

612 
35 

7 
42 

522 
(287) 

(92) 
(452) 

95 

(578) 
— • 

— 
(66) 
(66) 

— 
— 

• — " 

— ' • 

' 13,120 
1,208 

.14 
54 

877 
892 
(92) 

1,697 
4,104 

(J) Amounts have been recast to reflect nonregulated^ retail energy marketing operations in the Dominion Energy segment. 

Intersegment sales and transfers for Dominion are based on 

contractual arrangements and may result in intersegment profit or 
loss that is eliminated in consbHdatlori. 

VfRGiNiA POWER 

The majority of Virginia Power's revenue is provided through 
tariff rates. Generally, such revenue is allocated for management 

reporting based on an unbundled rate methodology among Vir­
ginia Power's DVP and Dominion Generation segments. 

The Corporate and Other Seffnent of Virginia Power primarily 

Includes specific items attributable to its operating segments that 
are not Included in profit measures evaluated by executive 

management In assessing the segments' performance or allocating 
resources among the segments. 

• In-2015, Virginia Power reported after-rax net expenses of 
$153 miHion for specific items attributable to its operating seg­

ments in the Corporate and Other segment. 
The net expenses forspeclfic Items in 2015 primarily relared ro 

the impact of the following: 
' A $99 miliion:($60 million after-tax) charge related to future 

ash pond and landfill closure cosrs at certain urfllty generarion 

faciliries, attributable to •Dominion Generation; and 

• An $85 million ($52 miflion after-tax) write-off of deferred 
fuel costs associated with Virginia legislation enacted in 
February 2015, artributable to Dominion Generarion. 

In 2014, Virginia Power reported after-tax net expenses of 

$342 mflflon for specific items attributable to its operaring seg­
ments in the Corporare and Orher segment. 
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The net expenses for specific items in 2014 primarily related 

o the impact of the foflowing; 

$374 million ($248 million after-tax) in charges associated 

with Virginia legislation enacted In April 2014 relating to 

the development of a third nuclear unit located at North 

Anna and offshore wind facilities, attributable to Dominion 

Generation; and 

: A $121 miflion ($74 million after-tax) charge related to a set­

tlement offer to incur furure ash pond closure costs at certain 

utility generation facflities, attributable to Dominion Gen­

eration. 

In 2013, Virginia Power reported after-tax net expenses of 

$47 million for specificitems attributable to its operating seg­

ments in the Corporate and Other segment. 

The net expenses for specific Items in 2013 primarily related 

to the impact of the following: 

• A $40 mfllion ($28 miflion after-tax) charge In connection 

with the 2013 Biennial Review Order, attributable to 

Dominion Generation. 

The following table presents segment Information pertaining to Virginia Power's operations: 

Dominion Corporate and Adjustments & Consolidated 
DVP Generation Ottier Eliminations Total /ear Ended December 31, 

irnillions) 

2015 
Operating revenue 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest income 
hterestand related charges 
Income taxes 
Met income (loss) 
Capital expenditures 
Total assets (billions) 

$2,099 
498 

230 
30S 
490 

1,569 
J 4.7 

$1,928 
462 

205 
317 
509 

1,651 
13.2 

$1,826 
427 

175 
286 
483 

1,360 

$5,566 
453 

7 
210 
437 
750 

1,120 
17.0 

$5,651 
416 

8 
203 
416 
591 

1,456 
16.4 

$5,475 
425 

6 
192 
399 
702 

1,173 

$ (43) 
2 

4 
(86) 

(153) 

— 
— 

$ -
37 

3 
(185) 
(342) 

— 
— 

$ (6) 
1 

2 
(26) 
(47) 

— 

(1) 

(0.1) 

$7,622 
953 

7 
443 
659 

1,087 
2,689 
31.6 

2014 
Operating revenue 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest income 
Interest and related charges 
Income taxes 
Net income (loss) 
Capital expenditures 
Total assets (billions) (0.1) 

$7,579 
915 

8 
411 
548 
858 

3,107 
29.5 

2013 
Operating revenue 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest income 
Interest and related charges 
Income (axes 
Net income (loss) 
Capital expenditures 

$7,295 
$ 853 
$ 5 
$ 369 
$ 659 
$1,138 
$2,533 

DOMINION GAS 

The Corporate and Other Segment of Dominion Gas primarily 

includes specific items attributable to Dominion Gas' operating 

segment that are not Included In profit measures evaluated by 

executive management in assessing the segment's performance 

and the effect of certain Items recorded at Dominion Gas as a 

result of Dominion's basis in the net assets contributed. 

In 2015, Dominion Gas reported after-tax net expenses of 

$21 milHon in its Corporate and Other segment, with $13 mil­

lion of these net expenses attributable to specific Items relared to 

Its operating segment. 

The net expenses for specific items In 2015 primarily related 

to the Impact of the following: 

• $16 miflion ($10 miflion after-rax) ceiling test impairment 

charge. 

In 2014, Dominion Gas reported after-tax net expenses of $9 

million in its Corporate and Other segment, with none of these 

net expenses attributable to specific items related to its operating 

segment. 

In 2013, Dominion Gas reported after-tax net expenses of 

$49 miHion In the Corporate and Other segmenr, with $41 mfl­

lion of these net expenses attributable to specific Items related to 

its operaring segment. 

The net expenses for specific items In 2013 primarily related 

to the Impact of the following: 

• $55 milHon ($33 million after-tax) of impairment charges 

related to certain natural gas infrastructure assets; and 

• A $14 milHon ($8 mfllion aftei-tax) charge primarily reflect­

ing severance pay and other benefits related to workforce 

reductions. 
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Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued 

The following table presents segment information pertaining to Dominion Gas' operarions: 

Dominion Corporate and Consolidatec 
Year £nded December 31, ' " ' • Energy Other Tota 

(millions) ' ' • ' • 

2015 
Operating revenue • • ' • • • 
Depreciation and amortization 
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 
Interest income 
interest and related charges 
Income taxes 
Net income (loss) 
Investment in equity method investees 
Capital expenditures 
Total assets (billions) ^ ' 

2014 
Operating revenue 
Depreciation and amortization 
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 
Interest income 
Interest and related charges 
Income taxes 
Net income (loss) 
Investment in equity method investees 
Capital expenditures 
Total assets (billions) 

2013 
Operating revenue 
Depreciation and amortization 
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 
Interest income 
Interest and related charges 
Income taxes 
Net income (loss) 
Capital expenditures 

$1,716 
213 
23 
1 
72 
296 
478 
102 
795 
9.7 

$1,898 
197 
21 
1 
27 
340 
521 
107 
719 
9.2 

$1,937 
188 
22 
2 
28 
333 
510 
650 

$ -
4 
— -
— 
1 

(13) 
(21) 
— 
— 
0.6 

$ -
— 
— 
— 
— 
(6) 
(9) 
~ 
— 
0.6 

$ -
— 
— 
__ 
— 
(32) 
(49) 
— 

$1,71E 
217 
23 
1 
72 
283 
457 
102 
795 
10.3 

$1,898 
-197 
21 
1 
27 
334 
512 
107 
719 
9.8 

$1,937 
188 
22 
2 
28 
301 
461 
650 
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MOTE 26. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL AND COMMON 
STOCK DATA (UNAUDITED) 

A. summary ofthe Companies' quarterly results of operations for 

the years ended December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014 follows. Amounts 

reflect all adjustments necessary In rhe opinion of management 

for a fair statement of the results for the Interim periods. Results 

for Interim periods may fluctuate as a result of weather con-, 

ditlons, changes in tares and other factors. 

OOMINION 

First Second Third Fourth 
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year 

(millions, except per 
Share amounts) 
2015 

Operating revenue 
Income from 

operations 
Net income 

including 
noncontrolling 
interests 

Income from 

continuing 
operations^' 

Net income 

attributable to 
Dominion 

3,409 $ 2,747 $ 2,971 $ 2,556 $ 11,683 

1,002 773 ,1,123 638 3,536 

540 4ia 599 366 1,923 

536 413 593 357 1,899 

536 413 593 357 1,899 

Basic EPS: 
Income from 

continuing 
operations'" 

Net income 
attributable to 
Dominion 

Diluted EPS: 
Income from 

continuing 
operations'" 

Net income 
attributable to 
Dominion 

0.91 0.70 1.00 0.60 3.21 

0.91 0.70 1.00 0.60 3.21 

0.91 0.70 1.00 0.60 3.20 

0.91 0.70 1.00 0.60 3.20 

Dividends declared 

per share 
Common stock 

prices (intraday 
high-low) 

0.6475 0.6475 0.6475 0.6475 2.5900 

$79.89 - $74.34 - $76.59 - $74.88 - $ 79.89 -

68.25 66.52 66.65 64.54 64.54 

(millions, except per 
share amounts) 

2014 
Operating revenue 
Income from 

operations 
Net income 

including 
noncontrolling 
interests 

Income from 
continuing 
operations'" 

Net income 
attributable to 
Dominion 

First Second Third Fourth 
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year 

3,630 $ 2,813 $ 3,050 $ 2,943 $12,436 

768 394 921 638 2,721 

385 161 531 249 1.326 

379 159 529 243 1,310 

379 159 529 243 1,310 

Basic EPS: 
Income from 

continuing 
operations'1' 

Net income 
atthbutable to 
Dominion 

Diluted EPS: 
Income from 

continuing 
operations'" 

Net income 
attributable to 
Dominion 

0.65 0.27 0.91 0.42 2.25 

0.65 0.27 0.91 0,42 2.25 

0.65 0,27 0,90 0.42 2.24 

0.65 0.27 0.90 0,42 2.24 

Dividends declared 
per share 

Common stock 

prices (intraday 
high-low) 

0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 

$72.22- $73.75- $71.62-
63.14 67,06 64.71 

2.40 

65,53 63.14 

(1) Amounts attributable to Dominion's common shareholders. 

There were no significant Items impacting Dominion's 2015 

quarterly results. 
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C o m b i n e d N o t e s to ConsoUdated Financial S ta tements , C o n t i n u e d 

Dominion's 2014 results Include the impact of the foflowing 
significant items: 

• Fourrh quarter results include $172 miflion In after-tax 
charges associated with the Liability Management Exercise In 

2014 and $74 million In after-tax costs related to Virginia 
Power's settlement offer to Incur furure ash pond closure costs 
at certain utiHty generation faclHties. 

• Second quarter results include $191 mllHon in after-tax 

charges associated with Virginia legislation enacted In Aprfl 
2014 relating to the development of a third nuclear unit 
located at North Anna and offshore wind faclHties. 

• First quarter results Include a $ 193 million after-tax reduction 

in revenues associated with the repositioning of Dominion's 
producer services business which was completed in the first 
quarrer of 2014. 

VIRGINIA POWER 

Virginia Power's quarterly results of operations were as follows: 

First Second Third Fourth 

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year 

(millions) 

2015 

Operating revenue $2,137 $1,813 $2,058 $1,614 $7,622 
Income from 

operations 525 481 741 374 2,121 
Net income 269 24S 385 187 1,087 
Balance available for 

common stock 269 246 385 187 1,087 

2014 
Operating revenue 
Income from 

operations 
Net income 
Balance available for 

common stock 

$1,983 $1,729 $2,053 $1,814 $7,579 

613 
324 

318 

205 
59 

67 

594 
314 

312 

312 1,724 
151 858 

148 845 

Virginia Power's 2015 results include the impact of the follow­

ing significant Items: 

" Fourth quarter resulrs include a $32 mfllion after-tax charge 

related to Incremental future ash pond and landfill closure 
costs at certain utiHty generation faclHties. 

' Second quarter results include a $28 miflion after-tax charge 
relared to incremental future ash pond and landfill closure 

costs at certain utility generation facilities due to the enact­
ment of the final CCR rule in Aprfl 2015. 

First quarter resulrs include a $52 miflion after-tax v/rlte-off of 

deferred fuel costs associated with Virginia legislation enacted 
in February 201$. 

Virginia Power's 2014 results Include the impact of the follow­

ing significant items: 
• Fourth quarter results include $74 million In after-tax costs 

related to Virginia Power's settlement offer to incur future ash 
pond closure costs ar certain utflity generation facflities. 

• Second quarter results include a $191 million after-tax charge 
associated with Virginia legislarion enacted in April 2014 

relating to the development of a third nuclear unit located at 
North Anna and offshore wind facilities. 

DOMINION GAS 

Dominion Gas' quarterly results of operations were as follows: 

First 
Quarter 

Second Third 
Quarter , Quarter 

Fourth 
Quarter Year 

(millions) 

2015 
Operating revenue $531 $395 $365 $425 $1,716 

Income from operations- , 271 . 153 202 163 789 
Net income 161 85 111 100 457 

2014 
Operating revenue $569 

Income from operations 265 

Net income 164 

154 
93 

$391 
177 
107 

$510 $1,898 
255 851 
148 512 

Dominion Gas' 2015 results Include the Impact of the follow­

ing significant items: 

• Third quarter results Include a $29 miflion after-tax gain from 

an agreement to convey shale development rights underneath 

a natural gas storage field. 

• . First quarter results Include a $43 million after-rax gain from 

agreements to convey shale development rights underneath 
several natural gas storage fields. 

Dominion Gas' 2014 results include the impact of the follow­

ing significant Item: 

• Fourth quarter results Include a $36 mfllion after-tax gain 

from agreements-to convey Marcellus Shale development 
rights underneath several natural gas storage fields. 
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements 
With Accountants on Accounting and 
Financial Disclosure 
None, 

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

DoMjwroN 

Senior management, including Dominion's C E O and C F O , 

evaluated the effectiveness of Dominion's disclosure controls and 
procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. 
Based on rhis evaluation process. Dominion's C E O and C F O 

have concluded that Dominion's disclosure controls and proce­
dures are effective. There were no changes in Dominion's internal 

control over financial reporting that occurred during rhe last fiscal 
quatter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to 

materially affect. Dominion's Internal control over financial 

reporring. 

MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FISIANCIAL 
REPORTING 

Management of Dominion understands and acceprs responsibility 

for Dominion's financial statements and related disclosures and 

the effectiveness of Internal control over financial reporting 

(internal control). Dominion continuously strives to identify 

opportunities to enhance the effectiveness and efficiency of 

internal control, just as Dominion does throughout all aspects of 
its business. 

Dominion maintains a system of Internal control designed to 

provide reasonable assurance, at a reasonable cost, that its assets 

are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized lise or disposition 

and that transactions are executed and recorded in accordance 

with established procedures. This system includes written policies, 

an Organizational structure designed to ensure appropriate 

segregation of responsibflitles, careful selection and ttainlng of 
qualified personnel and internal audits. 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Domin­
ion, composed enrirely of independent directors, meets periodi­

cally with the independent registered public accounting firm, the 
internal auditors and management to discuss auditing, internal 

control, and financial reporting matters of Dominion and to 
ensure that each is properly discharging its responsibiliries. Borh 

the independent registered public accounting firm and the 
internal auditors periodically meet alone with the Audit Commit­
tee and have free access to the Committee at any time. 

SEC rules implemenring Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 

Act of 2002 require Dominion's 2015 Annual Report to contain 
a management's report and a report of the independent registered 

public accounting firm regarding the effectiveness of internal 
control. As a basis for the report. Dominion tested and evaluated 

the design and operating effectiveness of internal conrrols. Based 
on its assessment as of December 3 1 , 2015, Dominion makes the 
following assertions: 

Managerhent is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting of Dominion. 

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any 
internal control, including the possibflity of human error and the 

circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effec­

tive internal controls can provide only reasonable assurance wirh 

respect to financial statement preparation. Further, because of ,, 

changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal control may 

vary over time. 

Management evaluated Dominion's internal control over 

financial reporting as of December 3 1 , 2015. This assessment was 
based on criteria for effective internal control over financial 

reporting described In Internal Control-Integrated Framework 

(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 

the Treadway Commissibii. Based oh this assessment, manage­

ment believes that Dominion maintained effective Internal con­

trol over financial reporting as of December 3 1 , 2015-

Dominion's independent registered public accounting firm is 

engaged to express an opinion on Dominion's internal control 
over financial reporting, as stated In their report which is Included 

herein. 

February 26, 2016 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To rhe Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Dominion Resources, Inc. 

Richmond, Virginia 

W e have audited the Internal control over financial reporting of 
Dominion Resources, Inc. and subsidiaries ("Dominion") as of 

December 3 1 , 2015, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of 

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis­
sion. Dominion's management Is responsible for maintaining 
effective Internal control over financial reporting and for its 

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting, included in rhe accompanying Management's Annual 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our 
responsibility Is to express an opinion on Dominion's internal 

control over financial reporting based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of 
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 

States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective 

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all 

material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding 

of internal control over financial reporring, assessing the risk that 

a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered 

necessary in the circumstances. W e believe that our audit provides 

a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's internal control over financial reporring is a. 
process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's 

principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons , 

performing similar flmctions, and effected by the company's . 

board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding rhe reliability of financial reporting 

and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal conrrol over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procediires that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflecr the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary ro permit preparation of financial statements inaccotd-

ance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures o f the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of 

the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Because of the inherenr limiratlons of internal control over 

financial reporting. Including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstate­
ments due to error or fraud may not be prevenred or detected on 

a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effective­

ness of the Internal control overfinancial reporting to future peri­

ods are subject to the risk that the controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion. Dominion maintained, in all material 

respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of 

December 3 1 , 2015, based on the criteria established in Internal 

Control 'Inte^ated Framework (2013) Issued by the Committee of 

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 

W e have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the 

Publ icCompany Accounring Oversight Board (United States), 

the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended 

December 3 1 , 2015 of Dominion and our report dated Febru­

ary 26, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial 
statements. 

Isl Deloitte & Touche LLP 

Richmond, Virginia 

February 26, 2016 
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VIRGINIA POWER 

Senior management, including Virginia Power's C E O and C F O , 
evaluated the effectiveness of Virginia Power's disclosure controls 

and procedures as of the end of the petiod covered by this report. 
Based on this evaluation process, Virginia Power's C E O and C F O 

have concluded that Virginia Power's disclosure controls and 
procedures are effective. There were no changes in Virginia Pow­

er's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during 
the last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reason­
ably likely to materially affect, Vitginia Power's internal control 

over financial reporting. 

MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING 

Management of Virginia Power understands and accepts responsi­

bility for Virginia Power's financial statements and related dis­
closures and the effectiveness of internal control over financial 

reporring (internal control). Virginia Power continuously strives 

to idenrify opportuniries to enhance the effectiveness and effi­

ciency of internal control, just as it does throughout afl aspects of 

its business. 

Virginia Power maintains a system of internal conttol 
designed to provide reasonable assurance, at a reasonable cost, 

that Its assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use 

or disposirion and that transactions are executed and recorded In 

accordance with established procedures. This system includes 

written policies, an organizarional structure designed to ensure 

appropriate segregation of responsibilities, careful selection and 

training of qualified personnel and internal audits. 

The Board of Directors also serves as Virginia Power's Audit 
Committee and meets periodically with the independent regis­

tered public accounring firm, the Internal auditors and manage­

ment to discuss Virginia Power's auditing, internal accounring 

control and financial reporring matters and to ensure that each is 

properly discharging its responsibilities, 

SEC rules implementing Section 404 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley 

Act require Virginia Power's 2015 Annual Report to contain a 

management's report tegarding the effectiveness of internal con­
trol. As a basis for the reporr, Virginia Power tested and evaluated 

the design and operaring effectiveness of internal controls. Based 
on the assessment as of December 31 , 2015, Virginia Power 

makes the following assertions: 

Management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining 

effective internal control over financial reporting of Virginia 
Power. 

There are Inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any 
internal control, including the possibility of human error and the 

circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effec­
tive internal controls can provide only reasonable assurance with 

respect to financial statement preparation. Further, because of 
changes In conditions, the effectiveness of internal control may 
vary over time. 

Management evaluated Virginia Power's internal control over 

financial reporring as o fDecember31 , 2015. This assessment was 
based on criteria for effective internal control over financial 
reporting described in Internal Control-Integrated Framework 

(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 

the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, manj^e-

ment believes that Virginia Power maintained effective internal 
control overfinancial reporring as of December 3 1 , 2015-

This annual report does not include an attestation report of 
Virginia Power's independent registered public accounting firm 

regarding internal control over financial reporting. Mans^ement's 
report is not subject to attestation by Virginia Power's 
independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to a 

permanent exemption under the Dodd-Frank Act. 

February 26, 2016 

DoMiNiON GAS 

Senior management, including Dominion Gas' C E O and C F O , 
evaluated the effectiveness of Dominion Gas' disclosure controls 

and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. 
Based on this evaluation process. Dominion Gas' C E O and C F O 

have concluded that Dominion Gas' disclosure controls and 
procedures are effective. There were no changes in Dominion 

Gas' internal control over financial reporting that occurred during 

the last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reason­

ably likely to materially affect. Dominion Gas' internal control 
over financial reporring. 

MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT O N 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING 

Management of Dominion Gas understands and acceprs responsi­

bility for Dominion Gas' financial statements and related dis­

closures and the effectiveness of internal control over financial 

reporting (internal control). Dominion Gas continuously strives 

to identify opportunities to enhance the effectiveness and effi­

ciency of internal control, just as it does throughout all aspecrs of 

irs business. 

Dominion Gas maintains a system of Internal control 

designed to provide reasonable assurance, at a reasonable cost, 

that its assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use 

or disposition and that transactions are executed and recorded in 

accordance with established procedures. This system includes 
written policies, an organizarional structure designed to ensure 

appropriate segregation of responsibilities, careful selection and 

training of qualified personnel and Internal audits. 

The Board of Directors also serves as Dominion Gas' Audit 

Committee and meets petiodically with the independent regis-
teted public accounting firm, the internal auditors and manage­

ment to discuss Dominion Gas' auditing. Internal accounting 
control and financial reporring matters and to ensure that each is 
properly discharging its responsibiliries. 

SEC rules implemenring Secrion 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act require Dominion Gas' 2015 Annual Report to contain a 

management's repott regarding the effectiveness of internal con­
trol. As a basis for the report, Dominion Gas tested and evaluated 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls. Based 

on the assessment as of December 3 1 , 2015, Dominion Gas 
makes rhe following assertions: 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporring of Dominion 
Gas. 
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There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any 
internal control, including the possibility of human error and the 

clrcumvenrion or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effec­
tive interna! controls can provide only reasonable assurance with 
respect to financial sratement preparation. Further, because of 

changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal control may 
vary over time. 

Management evaluated Dominion Gas' internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 3 1 , 2015. This assessment was 
based on criteria for effective Internal control over financial 

reporting described in Internal Control-Integrated Framework 
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 

the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessmenr, manage­
ment believes that Dominion Gas maintained effective internal 

control over financial reporting as of December 3 1 , 2015. 

This annual report does not include an attestation report of 
Dominion Gas' independent registered public accounting firm 
regarding inrernal conrrol over financial reporting. Management's 

report Is not subject to attestarion by Dominion Gas' 

independent registered public accounring firm pursuant to a 
permanent exemption under the Dodd-Frank Act. 

Februaiy 26, 2016 

Item 9B. Other Information 
None. 
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Part III 

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 
DOMINION 

The following information for Dominion is Incorporated by reference from the Dominion 2016 Proxy Statement, which wifl be filed on 
or around March 23, 2016: 
• Information regarding the directors required by this item is found under the heading Election of Directors. 
' Information regarding a material change in the procedures by which shareholders recommend director nominees required by this Item 

is found under the headings Flection of Directors and Shareholder Proposah and Director Nominations. 
• Information regarding compliance with Secrion 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, required by this item is found 

under the heading Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance. 
• Information regarding the Dominion Audit Committee Financial expert(s) required by rhis item is found under rhe heading Board of 

Directors Committees—Audit Committee. 
• Information regarding the Dominion Audit Committee required by this item is found under the headings Board of Directors Commit­

tees—Audit Committee and Audit Committee Report. 
• Informarion regarding Dominion's Code of Ethics required by this item is found under rhe heading Corporate Govemance and Board 

Matters. 

Tbe informarion concerning rheexecurive officers of Domlmpn required by this item is included in Parr I ofthis Form 10-K under 
the caption Executive Officers of Dominion. Each executive officer of Dominion is elected annually. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

DOMINION 

The following information about Dominion Is contained in the 
2016 Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference: the 
information regarding executive compensation contained under 
the headings Compensation Discussion and Analysis and Executive 
Compensation; the information regarding Compensation 
Committee Interlocks contained under the heading Compensation 
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation; The Compensation, 
Govemance and Nominating Committee Report, and the 
information regarding direcror compensation contained under the 
heading Compensation of Non-Employee Directors. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain 
Beneficial Owners and Management and 
Related Stockholder Matters 

DOMINION 

The information concerning stock ownership by directors, execu­
tive officers and five percent beneficial owners contained under 
the heading .Securities Ownership in the 2016 Proxy Sratement is 
incorporated by reference. 

The Information regarding equity securities of Dominion that 
are authorized for Issuance under irs equity compensation plans 

contained under the heading Executive Compensation-Equity 
Compensation Plans in rhe 2016 Proxy Statement is incorporated 
by reference. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and 
Related Transactions, and Director 
Independence 

DOMINION 

The Information tegarding related parry transactions required by 
rhis Item found under the heading Other Information-Related 
Party Transactions, and information regarding director 
independence found under the heading Corporate Govemance and 
Board Matters—Independence of Directors, in rhe 2016 Proxy 
Statement Is Incorporated by reference. 

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and 
Services 

DOMINION 

The information concerning principal accountant fees and serv­
ices contained under the heading Auditor Fees and Pre-Approval 
Policy in the 2016 Proxy Statement is Incorporated by reference. 
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VIRGINIA POWER AND DOMINION GAS 

The foflowing table presents fees paid to Deloitte & Touche LLP 
for services related to Virginia Power and Dominion Gas for the 

fiscal years ended December 3 1 , 2015 and 2014. 

Type of Fees 2015 2014 

(millions) 

Virginia Power 

Audit fees 
Audit-related fees 
Tax fees 
All other fees 

$1.87 $1.96 

Total Fees $1.87 $1.96 

Dominion Gas 

Audit fees 

Audit-related fees 

Tax fees 

All other fees 

$1.06 $0.52 

0.19 0,14 

Total Fees $1.25 $0.66 

Audit fees represent fees of Deloitte & Touche LLP for the 

audit of Virginia Power's and Dominion Gas' annual con­

solidated financial statements, the review of financial statements 

included in Virginia Power's and Dominion Gas' quarterly Form 

10-Q reporrs, and the services that an independenr auditor would 

customarily provide in connection with subsidiary audits, stat­

utory requirements, regulatory filings, and similar engagements 

for the fiscal year, such as comfort lerters, attest services, consents, 

and assistance with" review of documents filed with the SEC; 

Audit-related fees consist of assurance and related services rhar 
are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of 

Virginia Power's and Dominion Gas' consolidared financial 
statements or internal control over financial reporting. This cat­

egory may include fees related to the performance of audits and 
attest services not required by statute or regulations, due diligence 
related to mergers, acquisitions, and investments, and accounting 

consultations about the application of GAAP to proposed trans­
actions. 

Virginia Power's and Dominion Gas' Boards of Directors 
have adopted the Dominion Audit Committee pre-approval 

policy for their independent auditor's services and fees and have 
delegated the execution ofthis policy to the Dominion Audit 

Committee. In accordance with this delegation, each year the 
Dominion Audit Committee pre-approves a schedule that details 

the services to be provided for the following year and an estimated 
charge for such services. Ar Its January 2016 meeting, the Domin­

ion Audit Committee approved Virginia Power's and Dominion 
Gas' schedules of services and fees for 2016. In accordance with 

the pre-approval policy, any changes to the prc'approved schedule 

may be pre-approved by the Dominion Audit Committee or a 

member of the Dominion Audit Committee. 

The fees fbr Dominion Gas presented above for the year 

ended December 31 , 2014, were for professional services rendered 

during the period subsequent to Dominion Gas becoming an 

SEC registrant. Total audit fees and audit-related fees incurred ' 

prior to Dominion Gas becoming an SEC registrant were $680 

thousand and $70 thousand, respectively, and were paid by 

Dominion. 
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Part IV 
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 

(a) Certain documents are filed as part ofthis Form 10-K and are incorporated by reference and found on the pages noted. 

1. Financial Statements 

See Index on page 58. 

2. Afl schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, or the required Information is either not material or is shown in the financial 

statements or the related notes. 

3. Exhibits (incorporated by refereiice unless otherwise noted) 

Exhibit Virginia Dominion 
Number Description Dominion Power Gas 

2 Purchase and Sale Agreement between Dominion Resources, Inc., Dominion Energy, Inc., X 

Dominion Transmission, Inc. and C O N S O L Energy Holdings LLC VI (Exhibit 99 .1 , Form 
8-K filed March 15, 2010, File No . 1-8489). 

3.1.a Dominion Resources, Inc. Arricles of Incorporation as amended and restated, effective May 20, X 

2010 (Exhibit 3.1, Form 8-K filed May 20, 2010, File No . 1-8489). 

3.1 .b Virginia Electric and Power Company Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as in X 

effect on October 30, 2014 (Exhibit 3.1.b, Form 10-Q filed November 3, 2014, Ffle 

No . 1-2255). 

3.1 -c Articles of Organization of Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC (Exhlbir 3.1, Form S-4 filed April 4, X 

2014, File No . 333-195066). 

3.2.a Dominion Resources, Inc. Amended and Restated Bylaws, effective December 17, 2015 (Exhibit X 

3.1, Form 8-K filed December 17, 2015, File No . 1-8489). 

3.2.b Virginia Electtic and Power Company Amended and Restated Bylaws, effective June L 2009 X 

(Exhibit 3.1, Form 8-K filed June 3, 2009, File No . 1-2255). 

3.2.C Operating Agreement of Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC dated as of September 12, 2013 X 

(Exhibit 3.2, Form S-4 filed April 4, 2014, File No . 333-195066). 

4 Dominion Resources, Inc., Virginia Electric and Power Company and Dominion Gas Holdings, X X X 

LLC agree to furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request any other 
instrument with respect to long-term debt as to which the total amount of securities authorized 

does not exceed 10% of each of their total consolidated assets. 

4.1 .a See Exhibit 3.1 .a above. X 

4.1.b See Exhibit 3.1.b above. X 

4.2 Indenture of Mortgage of Virginia Electric and Power Company, dated November 1, 1935, as X X 
supplemented and modified by Fifty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture (Exhibit 4(il), Form 10-K 

for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 1985, File No . 1-2255); Ninety-Second Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2012 (Exhibit 4 .1 , Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 
2012 filedAugust i, 2012, File No. 1-2255). 

4.3 Form of Senior Indenrure, dated June 1, 1998, between Virginia Electtic and Power Company X X 
and The Bank of New York Mellon (as successor rrustee to JP Morgan Chase Bank (formerly 
The Chase Manhattan Bank)); as Trustee (Exhibit 4(ili), Form S-3 Registration Statement filed 

February 27, 1998, File No . 333-47119); Form of Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dared 

December 1, 2003 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed December 4, 2003, File No. 1-2255); Form of 
Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, dated January 1, 2006 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed 
January 12, 2006, File No. 1-2255); Form of Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 

January 1, 2006 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed Januao^ 12, 2006, Ffle No. 1-2255); Form of 
Fourteenrh Supplemental Indenture, dared May 1, 2007 (Exhlbir 4.2, Form 8-K filed May 16, 

2007, File No. 1-2255); Form of Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated September 1, 2007 
(Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed September 10, 2007, File No . 1-2255); Form of Seventeendi 

Supplemental Indenture, dated November 1, 2007 (Exhibit 4.3, Fotm 8-K filed November 30, 
2007, File No . 1-2255); Form of Eighteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated April 1, 2008 
(Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed April 15, 2008, Ffle No . 1-2255); Form of Nineteenth 

Supplemental and Amending Indenture, dated November 1, 2008 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed 

169 



Exhibit •• Virginia Dominion 
r^umber Description Dominion Power Gas 

November 5, 2008, File No . 1-2255); Form of Twentieth Supplemental Indenture, dated 
June 1, 2009 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed June 24, 2009, File No . 1-2255); Form of Twenty-
First Supplemental Indenture, dated August 1, 2010 (Exhibit 4 .3 , Form 8-K filed September 1, 
2010, File No. 1-2255); Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 1, 2012 
(Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed January 12, 2012, File No. 1-2255); Twenty-Third Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as of January 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-Kfiled January 8, 2013, Ffle No . 1-
2255); Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.4, Form 
8-K filed January 8, 2013, File No. 1-2255); Twenry-Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
March 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed March 14,- 2013, File No . 1-2255); Twenty-Sixth 
Supplemenral Indenture, dated asof August 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed August 15, 
2013 , Ffle No . 1-2255); Twenty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated Febtuary 1, 2014 
(Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed February 7, 2014, File No . 1-2255); Twenty-Eighth Supplemental 
Indenture, dated February 1, 2014 (Exhlbir 4.4, Form 8-K filed February 7, 2014, File No . 1-
2255); Twenty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dared May 1, 2015 (Exhibit 4 .3 , Forni 8-Kfiled 
May 13, 2015, File No . 1-02255); Thirtieth Supplemental Indenture, dated May 1, 2015 
(Exhibit 4.4, Form 8-K filed May 13, 2015, Ffle No. 1-02255); Thirty-FIrsr Supplemenral 
Indenture, dated January 1, 2016 (Exhibh 4.3, Form 8-K filed January l 4 , 2016, File N o . 000-
55337). 

4.4 Indenture, Junior Subordinated Debentures, dated December 1, 1997, between Dominion X 
Resources, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon (as successor trustee to JP Morgan Chase . 

Bank (formerly The Chase Manhattan Bank)) as supplemented by a Form of Second 
Supplemental Indenture, dated January 1, 2001 (Exhibit 4.6, Form 8-K filed January 12, 2001 , : 
File No . 1-8489). 

4.5 Indenture, dated April 1, 1995, between Consolidated Natural GasCompany and The Bank of X . . 
New York Mellon (as successor trustee to United States Trust Company o fNew York) .(Exhibit 

(4), Cerrificare of Norificarion No . 1 filed April 19, 1995, File No . 70-8107); Securities 
Resolution No . 2 effective as of October l 6 , 1996 (Exhibit 2, Form 8-A filed October 18, 1996, 
File No . 1-3196 and relating to the 6 7 8 % Debentures Due October 15, 2026); Securities 
Resolution No . 4 effective as of December 9, 1997 (Exhibit 2, Form 8-A filed December 12, 
1997, File No . 1-3196 and relaring to the 6.80% Debentures Due Deceinber 15, 2027). 

4 .6 Form of Senior Indenture, dated June 1, 2000, between Dominion Resources, Inc. and The - X 
Bank of New York Mellon (as successor rrustee to JP Morgan Chase Bank (formerly The Chase 
Manhattan Bank)), as Trustee (Exhibit 4(111), Form S-3 Regisrration Statement filed 
December 2 1 , 1999, File No . 333-93187); Form of Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated 
December 1, 2002 (Exhibit 4 .3 , Form 8-K filed December 13, 2002, File No . 1-8489); Form of 
Twenty-First Supplemental Indenture, dated March 1, 2003 (Exhibits 4.3, Form 8-K filed 
March 4, 2003, Ffle No . 1-8489); Form of Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated 
July 1, 2003 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed July 22, 2003, File N o , 1-8489); Form of Twenty-
Nlnrh Supplemental Indenture, dated June I, 2005 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed June 17, 2005, 
Ffle No . 1-8489); Forms of Thirty-Fifth and Thirty-Sixth Supplemental Indentures, dated 
June 1, 2008 (Exhibits 4.2 and 4.3, Form 8-K filed June 16, 2008, File H o . 1-8489); Form of 
Thirty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 1, 2009 (Exhibit 4.5, Form 8-K filed 
August 12, 2009, Ffle No . l-8489);Forrieth Supplemenral Indenture, dated August 1, 2010 
{Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed September 2, 2010, File N o . 1-8489); Forty-First Supplemental' 
Indenture, dated March 1, 2011 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K, filed March 7, 2011, Ffle No. 1-8489); 
Forty-Third Supplemental Indenture, dated Augiist 1, 2011 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K, filed 
August 5, 2011, File No . 1-8489); Forty-Fourrh Supplemental Indenture, dated August 1,2011 
(Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K, filed August 15, 2011, File No . 1-8489); Forty-Fifth Supplemental 
Indenture, dated September 1, 2012 (Exhibit 4 .3 , Fotm 8-K, filed September 13, 2012, File N o . 
l-S489);Forty-SixthSupplementalIndenmre, dated September 1,2012 (Exhibit 4.4, Form 8-K, 
filed Seprember 13, 2012, File No . 1-8489); Forry-Sevenrh Supplemental Indenture, dated 
September 1, 2012 (Exhibit 4.5, Form 8-K,. filed September 13, 2012, File No . 1-8489); Forty-
Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dared March 1, 2014 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8rK, filed March 24, 
2014, File No. 1-8489); Jor ty-Nlnth Supplemental Indenture, dated November 1, 2014 
(Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K, filed November 25, 2 0 l 4 , Ffle No . 1-8489); Flftiedi Supplemental 
Indenture, dated November 1, 2014, (Exhibit 4.4, Form 8-K, filed November 25, 2014, File No . 
1-8489); Fifty-First Supplemental Indenture, dated November 1, 2014 (Exhibit 4 .5 , Form 8-K, 
filed November 25, 2014, File N o . 1-8489). 
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Exhibit Virginia Dominion 
lumber Description Dominion Power Gas 

4.7 Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2015, between Dominion Resources, Inc. and Deutsche Bank X 
Trust Company Americas, as Trustee (Exhibit 4 .1 , Form 8-Kfiled June 15, 2015, File No . 1-

8489); First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2015 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed June 
15, 2015, File No. 1-8489); Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 2015 

(Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed September 24, 2015, File No . 1-8489); Third Supplemenral 
Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2016 (filed,herewith). 

4.8 Junior Subordinated Indenture II, dated June 1, 2006, between Dominion Resources, Inc. and X 

The Bank of New York Mellon (successor to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.), as Trustee (Exhibit 

4 . 1 , Form 10-Q for rhe quarter ended June 30, 2006 filed August 3, 2006, File No . 1-8489); 

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 2006 (Exhibit 4.2, Fotm 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30, 2006 filed August 3, 2006, File No . 1-8489); Second Supplemental Indenture, 

dated as of September 1, 2006 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 
2006 filed November 1, 2006, File N o . 1-8489); Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
June 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed June 7, 2013, File No . 1-8489); Fifth Supplemental 

Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.4, Form 8-K filed June 7, 2013, Ffle No . 1-

8489); Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2014 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-Kfiled July 
1, 2014, File No. 1-8489); Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September I, 2014 

(Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed October 3, 2013, File No . 1-8489). 

4.9 Replacement Capital Covenant entered into by Dominion Resources, Inc. dated June 23 , 2006 X 

(Exhibit 4.3, Fotm 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006 filed Augusr 3, 2006, File No. 1-

8489), as amended by Amendment No . 1 to Replacement Capital Covenant dated September 

2 6 , 2 0 1 1 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septembet 30, 2011 filed October 28, 

2011, File No . 1-8489). 

4.10 Replacement Capital Covenant entered Into by Dominion Resources, Inc. dated September 29, X 

2006 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 filed November 1, 

2006, File No. 1-8489), as amended by Amendment No . 1 to Replacement Capital Covenant 

dated September 26, 2011 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011 
filed October 28, 2011, File No. 1-8489). 

4 .11 Replacement Capital Covenant entered Into by Dominion Resources, Inc. dated June 17, 2009 X 

(Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-Kfiled June 15,2009, File N o . 1-8489), as amended by Amendment N o . 

1 to Replacement Capital Covenant dated July 18, 2014 (Exhibit 4.3, Fotm 10-Q for the 

quarter ended June 30, 2014 filed July 30, 2014, File No . 1-8489). 

4.12 Series A Purchase Contract and Pledge Agreement, dated as of June 7, 2013, between Dominion X 

Resources, Inc. and Deursche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Purchase Contract Agent, 
Collateral Agent, Custodial Agent and Securiries Intermediary (Exhibit 4.7, Form 8-K filed 

June 7, 2013, File No . 1-8489). 

4.13 Series B Purchase Contracr and Pledge Agreement, dated as of June 7, 2013, between Dominion X 

Resources, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Purchase Contract Agent, 
Collateral Agent, Custodial Agent and Securities Intermediary (Exhibit 4.8, Form 8-K filed 

June 7, 2013, File No . 1-8489). 

4.14 2014 Series A Purchase Contract and Pledge ^ r e e m e n t , dated as of July 1, 2014, between X 
Dominion Resources, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Purchase Contract 
Agent, Coflateral Agent, Custodial Agent and Securities Intermediary (Exhibit 4.5, Form 8-K 

filed July 1, 2014, File No . 1-8489). 

4.15 Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2013, between Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC and Deutsche X X 

Bank Trust Company Americas, as Trustee (Exhibit 4 .1 , Form S-4 filed Aprfl 4, 2014, Ffle No . 

333-195066); First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.2, Form S-4 
filed April 4, 2014, File No. 333-195066); Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of . 
October 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.3, Form, S-4 filed Aprfl 4, 2014, File No . 333-195066); Third 

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.4, Form S-4 filed April 4, 
2014, Ffle No . 333-195066); Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2014 

(Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed December 8, 2014, File No . 333-195066); Fifth Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2014 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed December 8, 2014, File 
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Exhibit Virginia Dominioi 
Number _ . . . . . Description Dominjon . Power Gas 

No. 333-195066); Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2014 (Exhibit 4.4, . , ; 

Form 8-K filed December 8, 2014, File No . 333-195066); Seventh Supplemental Indenture, 

dated as of November 1, 2015 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed November 17, 2015, Ffle No . 0 0 1 - . 

37591). .' . . . , 

10.1 $4,000,000,000 Five-Year Amended and Resrated Revolving Credit Agreement, dated May 19, X ' X X 

2014, among Dominion Resources, Inc., Virginia Electric and Power Company, Dominion Gas 

Holdings, LLC, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, The Royal Bank of 
Scotland pic, Bank of America, N.A., Barclays Bank PLC and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as 
Syndication Agents, and other lenders named therein (Exhlbir 10.1, Form.8-K filed May 19, 

2014, File No . 1-8489 and File No . 1-2255). 

10.2 $500,000,000 Five-Year Amended and Resrared Revolving Credit Agreement among Dominion X X X 

Resources, Iftc, Virginia Electric and Power Company, Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC, Keybank 
National Association, as Admlnisttatlve Agent, U.S. Bank National Association, as Syndication' 

Agent, and other lenders named therein (Exhibit 10.1, Form 8-Kfiled June 2 , ' 20 l4 , Ffle N o . 1-
8489 and File No. 1-2255). 

10.3 DRS Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2003, between Dominion Resources, Inc. and • X 

Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (Exhibit 10.1, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 

December 3 1 , 2011 filed February 28, 2012, Ffle No. 1-8489). 

10.4 DRS Services Agreement, dated as of January 2012, between .Dominion Resources Services,Tnc. X 
and Virginia Electric and Power Company (Exhibit 10.2, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 

December 3 1 , 2011 filed February 28 , 2012, File No . 1-8489 and File No . l-2255>. 

10.5 DRS Services Agreement, dated September 12, 2013, between Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC X 

and Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (Exhibit 10.3, Form S-4 filed April 4, 2014, File No. , 

333-195066). 

10.6 DRS Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2003, between Dominion Transmission, Inc. and X 
Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (Exhibit 10.4, Form S-4 filed Aprfl 4, 2014, File No . 333-

195066). 

10.7 DRS Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2003, between The East Ohio Company and . . X 

Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (Exhibit 10.5, Form S-4 filed April 4,. 2014, Ffle No . 333- , 

195066). 

10.8 DRS Service.* Agreement, dated January 1, 2003, berween Dominion Iroquois, Inc. and X 

Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (Exhibit 10.6, Form S-4 filed April 4, 2014, File No . 333-, . 

195066). 

10.9 Agreement between PJM Interconnection, L .LC. and Virginia Electric and Power Company • X X 

(ExhIb i r l0 .1 ,Fo rm8-Kf i l edApr f l26 ,2005 ,F I I eNo . 1-2255 and File No. 1-8489). 

10.10 Form of Settlement Agreement in the form of aptoposed Consent Decree among the United X X 
States of America, on behalf of the United States Environmental Protection Agency, the State of 

New York, the State of New Jersey, the State of Connecticut, the Commonwealth of Vitginia 

and theS ta teofWes t Virginia and Virginia Electric and Power Company (E,xhlbir 10, Form 10-

Q for the quarter ended March 31 , 2003 filed May 9, 2003, File No. 1-8489 and File No . 1-

2255). 

10.11* Dominion Resources, Inc. Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan, as amended and resrated X X X 
effective December 17, 2004 (Exhlbir 10.5, Form 8-K filed December 23 , 2004, File No . 1-
8489), as amended September 26, 2014 (Exhibit 10.1, Form 10-Qfor thefis,cal quarter ended 

September 30, 2014,-med November 3, 2014). -

10.12* Form of Employment Continuity Agreement for certain officers of Dominion Resources, Inc. 
and Virginia Electric and Power Company, amended and restated July 15, 2003 (Exhibit 10.1,' 
Form 10-Qfor the quatter ended June 30, 2003 filedAugust 11, 2003, File No . 1-8489 aiid 

F i leNo. 1-2255), as amended March 3 1 , 2006 (Form 8-K filed April 4, 2006, File No . 1-8489). X X X 
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Exhibit Virginia Dominion 
NumlDer Description Dominion Power Gas 

10.13* Form of Employment Continuity Agreement for certain officers of Dominion Resources, Inc. X X X 

and Virginia Electric and Power Company dated January 24, 2013 (effective for cerrain officers 

elected subsequent to February 1, 2013) (Exhibit 10,9, Form lO-K for rhe fiscal year ended 
December 3 1 , 2013 filed February 27, 2014, File No . 1-8489 and File No . 1-2255). 

I0 . I4* Dominion Resources, Inc. Rerirement Benefit Restorarion Plan, as amended and restated X X X 
effective December 17, 2004 (Exhibit 10.6, Form 8-K filed December 23 . 2004, File No . 1-
8489), as amended September 26, 2014 (Exhibit 10.2, Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended 

September 30, 2014 filed November 3, 2014). 

10.15* Dominion Resources, Inc. Execurives' Deferred Compensarion Plan, amended and resrated X X X 

effective December 17, 2004 (Exhibit 10.7, Form 8-K filed December 23 , 2004, File No . 1- • 

8489). 

10.16* Dominion Resources, Inc. New Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan, as amended and X X X 
restated effective July 1, 2013 (Exhibit 10:2, Form 10-Qfor the quarter ended June 30, 2013 

filed August 6, 2013 File No . 1-8489),' as amended September 26, 2014 (Exhibit 10.3, Form 

10-Qfor the fiscal quartet ended September 30, 2014 filed November 3, 2014). 

10.17'* Dominion Resources, Inc. New Retirement Benefit Restoration Plan, as amended and restated- X X X 

effective January 1, 2009 (Exhibit 10.17, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , , . 

2008 filed February 26, 2009, Ffle No . 1-8489 and Exhibit 10.20, Form 10-K for the fiscal year 

ended December 3 1 , 2008 filed February 26, 2009, File No . 1-2255), as amended September 

26, 2014 (Exhibit I0.4j Form 10-Qfor the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2014 filed 

November 3, 2014). 

10.18* Dominion Resources, Inc. Stock Accumulation Plan for Outside Directors, amended as of X 

February 27, 2004 (Exhlbir 10.15, Form 10-K for rhe fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 2003 filed 

March 1. 2004, File No. I-S489) as amended effective December 31 , 2004 (Exhibit 10. J, Form 

8-K filed December 23 , 2004, Ffle No . 1-8489). 

10.19* Dominion Resources, Inc. Directors Stock Compensation Plan, as amended February 27, 2004 X 

(Exhibit 10.16, Form 10-K for rhe fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 2003 filed March 1, 2004, 

File No. 1 -8489) as amended effecrive December 3 1 , 2004 (Exhibit 10.2, Form 8-K filed 
December 23 , 2004, File No. 1-8489). 

10.20* Dominion Resources, Inc. Directors' Deferred Cash Compensarion Plan, as amended and in X 

effect September 20, 2002 (Exhibit 10.4, Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002 

filed November 8, 2002, File No . 1-8489) as amended effective December 3 1 , 2004 (Exhibit 

10.3, Form 8-K filed December 23 , 2004, File No . 1-8489). 

10.21* Dominion Resources, Inc. Non-Employee Directors' Compensarion Plan, effecrive January 1, X 

2005, as amended and restated effective December 17, 2009 (Exhibit 10.18, Form 10-K filed for 

rhe fiscal year ended December 31 , 2009 filed February 26, 2010, File No . 1-8489). 

10.22* Dominion Resources, Inc. Executive Stock Purchase Tool Kit, effective September 1, 2001 , X X X 

amended and restated May 7, 2014 (Exhibit 10.4, Form 10-Q for rhe fiscal quarter ended 
J u n e 3 0 , 2014 filed July 30, 2014, File No. 1-8489 and File No . 1-2250). 

10.23* Dominion Resources, Inc. Security Oprion Plan, effecrive January I , 2003, amended December X X X 
31, 2004 and restated effective January 1, 2005 (Exhibit 10.13, Form 8-K filed December 23 , 
2004, File No. 1-8489). 

10.24* Letter agreement between Dominion Resources, Inc. and Thomas F. Farrell II, dated February X X X 

27, 2003 (Exhibit 10.24, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 2002 filed March 
20, 2003, File No . 1-8489), as amended December 16, 2005 (Exhibit 10.1, Form 8-K filed 
December 16, 2005, File No. 1-8489). 

10.25* Employment agreement dated February 13, 2007 between Dominion Resoutces Services, Inc. 

and Mark F. McGettrick (Exhibit 10.34, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 

2006 filed February 28, 2007, Ffle No . 1-8489). X X X 
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10.26* Supplemental Retirement Agreement dated October 22, 2003 between Dominion Resources, X X . " X 

Inc. and Paul D . Koonce (Exhibit 10.18, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 

2003 filed March 1, 2004, File No. 1-2255). 

10.27* Supplemental Retirement Agreement dated December 12, 2000, between Dominion Resources, X X X 

Inc. and David A. Christian (Exhibit 10.25, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 
2001 filed March 11, 2002, File No . 1-2255). 

10.28* Form of Advancement of Expenses for certain directors and officers of Dominion Resources, X X X 
Inc., approved by the Dominion Resources, Inc. Board of Directors on October 24, 2008 

(Exhibit 10.2, Form 10-Qfor rhe quarter ended September 30, 2008 filed October 30, 2008, 
File No . 1-8489 and Exhibit 10.3, Form 10-Qfor the quarter ended September 30, 2008 filed 
October 30, 2008, File No. 1-2255). 

10.29* Dominion Resources, InCi 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan, originally effective May 1, 2005, X X X 

as amended and restared effective December 20, 2011 (Exhlbir 10.32, Form 10-K for the fiscal 

year ended December 3 1 , 2011 filed February 28, 2012, File No . 1-8489 and File No. 1-2255). 

10.30* Supplemental Retirement Agreement with Mark F. McGettrick effective May 19, 2010 (Exhibit X X X 

10.1, Form 8-Kfiled May 20, 2010, File No . 1-8489). 

10.31* Form of Resrricted Stock Award Agreement under 2011 Long-Term Compensation Program X X X 
approved January 20, 2011 (Exhibit 10.2, Form 8-Kfiled January 2 1 , 2011, F i leNo. 1-8489). 

10.32* Form of Resrricted Stock Award Agreement for Mark F. McGettrick, Paul D . Koonce and David X X X 

A. Christian approved December 17, 2012 (Exhibit 10.1, Form 8-K filed December 2 1 , 2012, 

Fi leNo. 1-8489). 

10.33* 2012 Performance Grant Flan under the 2012 Long-Term Incentive Program approved X X X 

January 19, 2012 (Exhibit 10.1, Form 8-K filed January 20, 2012, Ffle No . 1-8489). 

10.34* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2012 Long-term Incenrive Program X X X 

approved January 19, 2012 (Exhibit 10.2, Form 8-K filed January 20, 2012, Fi leNo. 1-8489) 

10.35* 2013 Performance Grant Plan under 2013 Long-Term Incentive Program approved January 24, X - X X 

2 0 1 3 ( E x h I b I t l 0 . 1 , F o r m 8 - K f i [ e d J a n u a r y 2 5 , 2 0 1 3 , F f l e N o . 1-8489). 

10.36* Form of Restricred Stock Award Agreement under the 2013 Long-rerm Incentive Program X X X 

approved January 24, 2013 (Exhibit 10.2, Form 8-K filed January 25, 2013, Ffle No. 1-8489) 

10.37* Resrricted Stock Award . ^ r eemen t for Thomas F. Farrefl II, dated December 17, 2010 (Exhibit X X X 

10.1, Form 8-K filed December 17, 2010, File No . 1-8489). 

10.38* Retirement Agreement, dated as of June 20, 2013, between Dominion Resources, Inc. and Gary X 
L. Sypoh (Exhibit 10.1,.Form 8-Kfiled June 24, 2013, Ffle No. 1-8489). 

10.39* 2014 Performance Grant Plan under 2014 Long-Term Incentive Program approved January 16, X X X 

2014 (Exhibit 10.40, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 2013, File 

No. 1-8489). 

10.40* Form of Restricted Stock Award . ^ r eemen t under rhe 2014 Long-term Incentive Program X X X 

approved January 16,>2014 (Exhibit 10.41, Form 10-Kfor the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 
2013, F i l eNo . 1-8489). 
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10.4!* Form of Special Performance Granr for Thomas F. Farrefl II and Mark F..McGettrick approved X X X 
January 16, 2014 (Exhibit 10.42, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 2013, Ffle 
No. 1-8489). 

10.42* Dominion Resources, Inc. 2014 Incentive Compensarion Plan, effective May 7, 2014 (Exhibit . X X X 

10.1, Form 8-K filed May 7, 2014,-File No . 1-8489). 

10.43 Registrarion Righrs Agreemenr, dared as of Ocrober 22, 2013, by and among Dominion Gas X 

Holdings, LLC and RBC.Capital Markets, LLC, RBS Securities Inc. andScoriaCapital (USA) 

Inc., as rhe initial purchasers of rhe Nores (Exhibit 10.1, Form S-4 filed April 4, 2014, File No . 

333-195066). 

10.44 Inter-Company Credit Agreement, dated October 17 ,2013 , between Dominion Resoutces, Inc. X X 
and Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC (Exhibit 10.2, Form S-4 filed April 4, 2014, File No . 333-

195066). 

10.45* 2015 Performance Grant Plan under 2015 Long-Term Incenrive Program approved January 22, X X X 
2015 (Exhibit 10.42, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 2014, File 
No. 1-8489). 

10.46* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2015 Long-term Incenrive Program X X X 

approved January 22, 2015 (Exhibit 10.43, Form 10-Kfor the fiscal year ended December 31 , 

2014, Fi leNo. 1-8489). 

10.47* 2016 Performance Grant Plan under 2016 Long-Term Incentive Program approved January 2 1 , 

2016 (filed herewith). 

10.48* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2016 Long-term Incentive Program 

approved January 2 1 , 2016 (filed herewith). 

10.49* Base salaries for named executive officers of Dominion Resources, Inc. (filed herewith). 

10.50* Non-employee directors' annual compensarion for Dominion Resources, Inc. (filed herewith). 

12.a Ratio of earnings to fixed charges for Dominion Resources, Inc. (filed herewith). 

12.b Ratio of earnings to fixed charges for Virginia Electric and Power Company (filed herewith). X 

I2.C Ratio of earnings to fixed charges for Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC (filed herewith). X 

21 Subsidiaries of Dominion Resources, Inc. (filed herewith). X 

23 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (filed herewith). X X X 

31.a Ceruficatlon by Chief Executive Officer of Dominion Resources, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of X 
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 

31.b Certification by Chief Financial Officer of Dominion Resources, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of X 

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewirh). 

3I.C Cerrification by Chief Execurive Officer of Virginia Electric and Power Company pursuant to X 

Section 302 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 

31.d Certification by Chief Financial Officer of Virginia Electric and Power Company pursuant to X 
Section 302 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Acr of 2002 (filed herewirh). 

31.e Cerrification by Chief Executive Officer of Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC pursuant to Section X 

302 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 

31-f Certification by Chief Financial Officer of Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC pursuant to Section X 

302 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 

32.a Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commission by Chief Executive Officer and Chief X 

Financial Officer of Dominion Resources, Inc. as required by Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 (furnished herewith). 
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32.b Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commission by Chief Executive Officer and Chief X 
Financial Officer of Virginia Electric and Power Company as required by Section 906 ofthe 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished herewith). 

32.C Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commission by Chief Executive Officer and Chief X 
Financial Officer of Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC as required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 (fiirnished herewith). 

101 The following financial statements from Dominion Resources, Inc., Virginia Electric and Power X X X 
Company and Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2015, filed on February 26, 2016, formatted In XBRL: (I) Consolidated State­
ments of Income, (H) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Common 
Shareholders' Equity (iv) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (v) Consolidated 
Starements of Cash Flows, and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement 
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Signatures 

DOMINION 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securiries Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by rhe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

DOMINION RESOURCES, INC. 

gy. _ Isl Thomas F. Farrell II 
(Tliomas F. Farrell it, Cliairman, President and 

Chief Executive Officer) 

Date: February 26, 2016 

Pursuant to the requirements ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf 
of the registrant and in the capaciries indicated on rhe 26th day of February, 2016. 

Signature Title 

Isl 

Is! 

isl 

Isl 

Isl 

Isl 

Isl 

Thomas F. Farrefl II 

Thomas F. Farrell II 

William P. Barr 

William P. Barr 

Helen E. Dragas 

Helen E. Dragas 

James O. Ellis, Jr. 

James O. Ellis, Jr. 

John W. Harris 

John W. Harris 

Mark J. Kington 

Mark J. Kington 

Pamela). Royal 

Pamela J. Royal 

Isl Robert H. Spilman, ]r. 

Roben H. Spilman, Jr. 

Isl Michael E. Szymanczyk 

Isl 

Isl 

Isl 

Michael E. Szymanczyk 

David A. Wollard 

David A. WoUard 

Mark F. McGettrick 

Mark F. McGettrick 

Michele L. Cardiff 

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief 
Executive Officer 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Execurive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer 

Michele L, Cardiff 
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Virginia Power 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of.1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

VIRGINIA ELECTRIC A N D P O W E R C O M P A N Y 

gy. _ Isl T H O M A S F . FARRELL II 

(Thomas F, Farrell II, Chairman ofthe Board 
of Directors and Chief Executive Officer) 

Date; February 26, 2016 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf 

of the registrant and In the capaciries indicated on the 26th day of February, 2016. 

Signature Tide 

isl 

Isl 

Thomas F. Farrell II 

Thomas F. Farrell II 

Mark F. McGet t r ick 

Mark F. McGettrick 

Isl Mark O.Webb 

k l 

Mark O.Webb 

Michele L. Cardiff 

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer 

Direcror, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

Director 

Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer 

Michele L. Cardiff 
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Dominion Gas 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

DOMINION GAS HOLDINGS, LLC 

Isl THOMAS F. FARRELL II By: 
(Thomas F, Farrell ll. Chairman ofthe Board 

of Directors and Chief Executive OfBcer) 

Date: February 26,2016 . . 

Pursuant CO the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rhis reporr has been signed below by the following persons on behalf 
ofthe registrant and in the capacities Indicated on the 26th day of February, 2016. 

Signature Title 

Is! 

Isl 

Thomas F. Farrell II 
Thomas F, Farrell 11 

Mark F. McGettrick 
Mark F. McGettrick 

hi Mark O. Webb 

Isl 

Mark 0 . Webb 

Michele L. Cardiff 

Chairman of rhe Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer 

Director, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

Director 

Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer 

Michele L. Cardiff 
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2 Purchase and Sale Agreement between Dominion Resources, Inc., Dominion Energy, Inc., X 
Dominion Transmission, Inc. and C O N S O L Energy Holdings LLC VI (Exhibit 99 .1 , Form 

8-K filed March 15, 2010, F i l eNo . 1-8489). 

3.1.a Dominion Resources, Inc. Articles of Incorporarion as amended and restated, effective May 20, X 
2010 (Exhibit 3 .1 , Form 8-K filed May 20, 2010, File No . 1-8489). 

3.1.b Virginia Electric and Power Company Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as in X 
effect on October 30, 2014 (Exhibit 3.1.b, Form 10-Q filed November 3, 2014, File 

No. 1-2255). 

3.1.C Articles of Organization of Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC (Exhibit 3.1, Form S-4 filed Aprfl 4, X 

2014, F i leNo. 333-195066). 

3.2.a Dominion Resources, Inc. Amended and Restated Bylaws, effective December 17, 2015 (Exhibit X 

3.1, Form 8-K filed December 17, 2015, Ffle No . 1-8489). 

3.2.b Virginia Electric and Power Company Amended and Restated Bylaws, effective June 1, 2009 X 

(Exhibit 3 .1 , Form 8-K filed June 3, 2009, Ffle No . 1-2255). 

3.2.C Operating Agreement of Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC dated as of September 12, 2013 X 

(Exhibit 3.2, Form S-4 filed April 4, 2014, Ffle No . 333-195066). 

4 Dominion Resources, Inc., Virginia Elecrric and Power Company and Dominion Gas Holdings, X X X 

LLC agree to furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request any other 
instrument with respecr to long-term debt as to which the total amount of securities authorized 
does not exceed 10% of each of their total consohdated assets. 

4.1 .a See Exhibit 3-1 .a above. X 

4. L b See Exhibit 3.1.b above. X 

4.2 Indenture of Mortgage of Virginia Electric and Power Company, dated November 1, 1935, as X X 

supplemented and modified by Fifty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture (Exhlbir 4(11), Form 10-K 

for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 1985, File No. 1-2255); Ninety-Second Supplemental 

Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2012 (Exhibit 4 .1 , Form 10-Qfor the quarter ended June 30, 

2012 filed August 1, 2012, F i leNo. 1-2255). 

4.3 Form of Senior Indenture, dated June 1, 1998, between Virginia Electric and Power Company X X 

and The Bank of New York Mellon (as successor trustee to JP Motgan Chase Bank (formerly 

The Chase Manhattan Bank)), as Trustee (Exhibit 4(Iii), Form S-3 Registration Statement filed 

February 27, 1998, File No . 333-47119); Form of Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated 

December 1, 2003 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed December 4, 2003, File No . 1-2255); Form of 
Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, dated January 1, 2006 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed 
January 12, 2006, Ffle No . 1-2255); Form of Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 

January 1, 2006 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed January 12, 2006, Ffle No. 1-2255); Form of 
Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated May 1, 2007 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed May 16, 
2007, File No . 1-2255); Form of Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated September 1, 2007 

(Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed September 10, 2007, Ffle No. 1-2255); Form of Seventeenth 

Supplemental Indenture, dated November 1, 2007 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed November 30, 
2007, F i l eNo . 1-2255); Form of Eighteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated Aprfl 1, 2008 
(Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed April 15, 2008, File No. 1-2255); Form of Nineteenth 

Supplemental and Amending Indenture, dated November 1, 2008 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed 
November 5, 2008, File N o . 1-2255); Form of Twenrieth Supplemental Indenture, dated 

June 1, 2009 (Exhibit 4 .3 , Form 8-K filed June 24, 2009, File No . 1-2255); Form of Twenty-
First Supplemental Indenture, dated August 1, 2010 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-Kfiled September 1, 

2010, File No . 1-2255); Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 1, 2012 
(Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed January 12, 2012, File No . 1-2255); Twenty-Third Supplemental 
Indenture, dated asof January 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4 .3 , Form 8-K filed January 8, 2013, F i leNo. 1-

2255); Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.4, Form 
8-K filed January 8, 2013, Ffle No. 1-2255); Twenry-Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 

March 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed March 14, 2013, Ffle No . 1-2255); Twenty-Skth 
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Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed August 15, 
2013, File No. 1-2255); Twenty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated February 1, 2014 
(Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed February 7, 2014, File No. 1-2255); Twenty-Eighth Supplemental 
Indenture, dated February 1, 2014 (Exbibit 4.4, Form 8-K filed February 7, 2014, File No. 1-
2255); Twenty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated May 1, 2015 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-Kfiled 
May 13, 2015, File No. 1-02255); Thirtieth Supplemental Indenture, dated May 1, 2015 
(Exhibit 4.4, Form 8-K filed May 13, 2015, File No. 1-02255); Thirty-First Supplemental 
Indenture, dated January 1, 2016 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed January 14, 2016, File No. 000-
55337). 

4.4 Indenture, Junior Subordinated Debentures, dated December 1, 1997, between Dominion X 
Resources, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon (as successor trustee to JP Morgan Chase 
Bank (formerly The Chase Manhattan Bank)) as supplemented by a Form of Second 
Supplemental Indenture, dated January 1, 2001 (Exhibit 4.6, Form 8-K filed January 12, 2001, 
File No. 1-8489). 

4.5 Indenture, dated Aprfl 1, 1995, between Consolidated Natural Gas Company and The Bank of X 
New York Mellon (as successor trustee to United States Trust Company of New York) (Exhibit 
(4), Certificate of Norification No. 1 filed April 19, 1995, File No. 70-8107); Securities 
Resolution No. 2 effective as of October 16, 1996 (Exhibit 2, Form 8-A filed Ocrober 18, 1996, 
File No. 1-3196 and relating to the 6^18% Debentures Due October 15, 2026); Securities 
Resolution No. 4 effective as of December 9, 1997 (Exhibit 2, Form 8-A filed December 12, 
1997, Ffle No. 1-3196 and relating to the 6.80% Debenmres Due December 15, 2027). 

4.6 Form of Senior Indenture, dated June 1, 2000, between Dominion Resources, Inc. and The X 
Bank of New York Mellon (as successor trustee to JP Morgan Chase Bank (formerly The Chase 
Manhattan Bank)), as Trustee (Exhibit 4(111), Form S-3 Registration Statement filed 
December 21, 1999, File No. 333-93187); Form of Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated 
December 1, 2002 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed December 13, 2002, File No. 1-8489); Form of 
Twenty-First Supplemental Indenture, dated March 1, 2003 (Exhibits 4.3, Form 8-K filed 
Match 4, 2003, File No. 1-8489); Form of Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated 
July 1, 2003 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed July 22, 2003, File No. 1-8489); Form of Twenty-
Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated June 1, 2005 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed June 17, 2005, 
File No. 1-8489); Forms of Thirty-Fifth and Thirty-Sixth Supplemental Indentutes, dated 
June 1, 2008 (Exhibits 4.2 and 4.3, Form 8-K filed June 16, 2008, File No. 1-8489); Form of 
Thirty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 1, 2009 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed 
August 12, 2009, File No. 1-8489); Forrieth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 1, 2010 
(Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed September 2, 2010, File No. 1-8489); Forty-First Supplemental 
Indenture, dated March 1, 2011 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K, filed March 7, 2011, Ffle No. 1-8489); 
Forty-Third Supplemental Indentute, dated August 1, 2011 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K, filed 
August 5, 2011, Ffle No. 1-8489); Forty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 1, 2011 
(Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K, filed August 15, 2011, File No. 1-8489); Forty-Fifth Supplemental 
Indenture, dated September 1, 2012 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K, filed September 13, 2012, File No. 
1-8489); Forty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated September 1, 2012 (Exhibit 4.4, Form 8-K, 
filed September 13, 2012, File No. 1-8489); Forty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated 
September 1, 2012 (Exhibit 4.5, Form 8-K, filed September 13, 2012, File No. 1-8489); Forty-
Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated March 1, 2014 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K, filed March 24, 

2014, File No. 1-8489); Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenmre, dated November 1, 2014 
(Exhibit 4.3. Form 8-K, filed November 25, 2014, File No. 1-8489); Fiftieth Supplemental 
Indenture, dated November 1, 2014 (Exhibit 4.4, Form 8-K, filed November 25, 2014, File No. 
1-8489),- Fifty-First Suppleniental Indenture, dated November 1, 2014 (Exhibit 4.5, Form 8-K, 
filed November 25, 2014, File No. 1-8489). 

4.7 Indenmre, dated as of June 1, 2015, between Dominion Resources, Inc. and Deutsche Bank X 
Trust CompanyAmericas, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1, Form 8-K filed June 15, 2015, FileNo. 1-
8489); First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2015 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed June 
15, 2015, File No. 1-8489); Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 2015 
(Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed September 24, 2015, File No. 1-8489)-, Third Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2016 (filed herewith), 
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4.8 Junior Subordinated Indenture II, dated June 1, 2006; between Dominion Resources,.Inc. and X 
The Bank of New York Mellon (successor to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.), as Trustee (Exhibit 

4 . 1 , Form 10-Qfor the quarter ended June 30, 2006 filed Augus t3 , 2006, File No . 1-8489); 
First Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 2006: (Exhibit 4.2, Form 10-Qfor the quarter 

ended June 30, 2006 filed Augusr 3,-2006,-Ffle No. 1-8489); Second Supplemental Indenture, 
dated as of September 1, 2006 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 10-Qfor the quarter ended September 30, 
2006 filed November 1, 2006, File N o . 1-8489); Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of • 

June 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed June 7, 2013, File No. 1-8489); Fifth Supplemental 
I n d e n t u r e , d a t e d a s o f J u n e l , 2 0 1 3 ( E x h I b i t 4 . 4 , F o r m 8 - K f i l e d J u n e 7 , 2 0 1 3 , F I i e N o . 1-

8489); Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dared as of June 1, 2014 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 8-K filed July 
1, 2014, File No. 1-8489); Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 2014 . 

(Exhibit4.3, Form 8-K filed October '3, 2013, F i leNo. 1-8489). , , \ 

4 .9 Replacement Capital Covenant entered into by Dominion Resources, Inc. dated June 23 , 2006 . X 
(Exhibit 4.3, Form 10-Qfor the quartet ended June 30, 2006 filedAugust 3, 2006, File No . 1-

8489), as amended by Amendment No . 1 to Replacement Capital Covenant dated September 
2 6 , 2 0 1 1 (Exhibit 4 .2 'Fo rm l O - Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011 filed October 28 , 

2011 , F i leNo. 1-8489): . . 

4 .10 Replacement Capital Covenant entered iiito by Dominion Resources, Inc. dated Seprember 29, X 

2006 (Exhibit 4.3, Form lO-Q for the quarter ended September 30 ,2006 filed November 1,-

2006, F i leNo. 1-8489), as amended by Amendment N o . 1 to Replacement Capital Covenant 

dated September 26, 2011 {Exhibit 4.3, Form 10-Qfor the quarter ended September 30, 2011 
filed October 28, 2011, Ffle No . \ - l 

4.11 Replacement Capital Covenant entered Into by Dominion Resources, Inc. dated June 17, 2009 X 

(Exhibit 4 .3 . Form 8-Kfiled Jtine'15, 2009, Fi leNo. 1-8489), as amended by Amendment No. • ' -

1 to Replacement Capital Covenant dated July 18, 2014 (Exhibit 4.3, Form 10-Q for the 

qua r t e r ended june30 , 20 l4 f i l edJu ly30 , 2014, FIle.No. 1-8489);. 

4.12 Series A Purchase Conttact anfl Pledge Agreement, dated as of June 7, 2013, betweeri Dominion X 

Resources, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Ameticas, as.Purchase Contract Agent, . , , 

Coflateral Agent, Custodial Agent and Securities Intermediary (Exhibit 4.7, Form 8-K filed ^ 

J u n e 7 , 2 0 1 3 , F i leNo. 1-8489).. ' . , . 

4 .13 Series B Purchase Contract and Pledge Ag,reement, dated asof J u n e ? , 2013, between Dominion ' X 

Resources, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Purchase Contracr Agenr, 

Collateral Agent, Custodial Agent and Securities'Intermediary (Exhibit 4.8, Form 8-K filed 

June 7, 2013, File No . 1-8489). 

4 .14 2014 Series A Purchase Contract and Pledge Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2014, between X .. 
Dominion Resources, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust CompanyAmericas, as Purchase, Contract 

Agent, Collateral Agent, Custodial Agent and Securities Intermediary (Exhibit 4.5, Form 8-K 

filedJulyl,20l4,FileNo.-l-848?)., . '. 

4 .15 Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2013, betweenDominion Gas Holdings, LLC and Deutsche X ' X 

Bank Trusr Company Americas, as Trustee (Exhibit 4'. 1, Form S-4 filed Aprfl 4, 2014, F i leNo. 

333-195066); First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October I, 2013 (Exhibir4.2, Form S-4 

filed April 4, 2014, File N o : 333-195066); Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
October 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4.3, Form S-4 filed April 4, 2 0 l 4 , File No. 333-195066); Third 

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2013 (Exhibit 4A, Form S-4 filed April 4, 

2014, File No . 333-195066); Fourth-Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1,2014 . ' 
(Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed December 8, 2014, File No. 333-195066); Fifth^Supplemental • 
I n d e n t u r e , d a t e d a s o f D e c e m b e r l , 2 0 l 4 ( E x h i b i t 4 . 3 , Form 8-K filed December 8, 2014, File • 

No. 333-195066); Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated asof December 1,2014 (Exhibit 4.4, 

Form 8-K filed December 8, 2 0 1 ^ , Ffle No. 333-195066); Seventh Supplemental Indenture, 
dated as of November 1, 2015 (Exhibit 4.2, Form 8-K filed November 17, 2015, File No. 0 0 1 -

37591). 
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Exhibit Virginia Dominion 
Number Description Dominion Power Gas 

10.1 $4,000,000,000 Five-Year Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement, dared May 19, X X X 

2014, among Dominion Resources, Inc., Virginia Electric and Power Company, Dominion Gas 
Holdings, LLC, JPMorgan Chase Bank; N.A., as Administrative Agent, The Royal Bank of 
Scotland pic, Bank of America, N.A., Barclays Bank PLC and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as 

Syndication Agents, and other lenders named therein (Exhibit 10.1, Form 8-K filed May 19, 
2014, File No. 1-8489 and File No. 1-2255). 

10.2 $500,000,000 Five-Year Amended and Restated Revolving Credir Agreement among Dominion X X X 
Resources, Inc., Virginia Electric and Power Company, Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC, Keybank 

Narional Association, as Administrative Agent, U.S. Bank Narional Associarion, as Syndlcarion. 
Agent, and other lenders named therein (Exhibit 10.1, Form 8-K filed June 2, 2014, File No . 1-

8489 and Ffle No . 1-2255). 

10.3 DRS Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2003, between Dominion Resources, Inc. and X 
Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (Exhibit 10.1, Form 10-Kfor the fiscal year ended 
December 3 1 , 2011 filed Febmary 28, 2012, F i leNo. 1-8489). 

10.4 DRS Services Agreement, dated as of January 2012, between Dominion Resources Services, Inc. X 

and Virginia Electric and Power Company (Exhibit 10.2, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 

December 3 1 , 2011 filed Februaiy 28, 2012, File No . 1-8489 and Ffle No . 1-2255). 

10.5 DRS Services Agreement, dated September 12, 2013, between Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC X 

and Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (Exhibit 10.3, Form S-4 filed April 4, 2014, F i leNo. 

333-195066). 

10.6 DRS Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2003, berween Dominion Transmission, Inc. and X 
Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (Exhlbir 10^4, Form S-4 filed Aprfl 4, 2014, F i leNo. 333-

195066). 

10.7 DRS Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2003, between The East Ohio Company and X 
Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (Exhibit 10.5, Form S-4 filed April 4, 2014, File No. 333-

195066). 

10.8 DRS Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2003, betweenDominion Iroquois, Inc. and X 
Dominion Resources Services, Inc. (Exhibit 10.6, Form S'4 filed April 4, 2014, Ffle No. 333-

195066). 

10.9 Agreement berween PJM Interconnection, L .LC. and Virginia Electric and Power Company X X 

(Exhibit lOT, Form 8-K filed Aprfl 26, 2005, File No . 1-2255 and F i l eNo . 1-8489). 

10.10 Form of Serdement Agreement in theform of a proposed Consent Decree among the United X X 

States of America, on behalf of the United States Environmental Protecrion Agency, the State of 

New York, the State of New Jersey, the State of Connecticut, the Commonwealth qf Virginia 
and the State of West Virginia and Virginia Electric and Power Company (Exhibit 10, Form 10-
Q for fhe quarter ended March 3 1 , 2003 filed May 9, 2003, File No . 1-8489 and File No . 1-

2255). 

10,11* Dominion Resources, Inc. Execurive Supplemental Rerirement Plan, as amended and resrated X X X 
effecrive December 17, 2004 (Exhibit 10.5, Form 8-K filed December 23 , 2004, File No . 1-
8489), as amended Seprember 26, 2014 (Exhibit 10.1, Form 10-Qfor the fiscal quarter ended 
Seprember 30, 2014 filed November 3, 2014). 

10.12* Form ofEmploymentConrinuIty Agreement for certain oflBcers of Dominion Resources, Inc. X X X 
and Virginia Electric and Power Company, amended and restated July 15, 2003 (Exhibit 10.1, 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 filed August 11, 2003, File N o . 1-8489 and 

File N o . 1-2255), as amended March 31 , 2006 (Form 8-K filed April 4, 2006, File No . 1-8489). 
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Exhibit Virginia Dominion 
Number Description Dominion Power Gas 

10.13* Form of Employment Conrinulty Agreement forcerrain officers of DominionResources, Inc. . . . X . X X 

and Virginia Electric and Power Company dated January 24, 2013 (effective for certain officers 

elected subsequent to February 1, 2013) (Exhibit 10.9. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 

December 31 , 2013 filed February 27, 2014, Ffle No . 1-8489 and File No . 1-2255). 

10.14* Dominion Resources, Inc. Retirement Benefit Restotation Plan, as amended and restated X X X 

effective December 17, 2004 (Exhibit 10,6, Form 8-K filed December 23 , 2004, File No. 1-

8489), as amended September 26, 2014 (Exhibit 10.2, Form 10-Qfor the fiscal quarter ended 

September 30, 2014 filed November 3,. 2014). 

10.15* Dominion Resources, Inc. Executives' Deferred Compensation Plan, amended and restated X X X 

effecrive December 17, 2004 {Exhibit 10.7, Form 8-K filed December 23 , 2004, Ffle No. 1-

S489). 

10.16* Dominion Resources, Inc. New E.xecurive Supplemenral Rerirement Plan, as amended and X X X 

restated effecrive July I, 2013 (Exhibit 10.2, Form 10-Qfor the quarrer ended June 30, 2013 

filed August 6, 2013 File No. 1-8489), as amended September 26, 2014 (Exhibit 10.3, Form 
10-Qfor the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2014 filed November 3 , 2014). 

10.17* Dominion Resources, Inc. New Rerirement Benefit Restoration Plan, as amended and restated X X X 

effective January 1, 2009 (Exhibit 10.17, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 

2008 filed February 26, 2009, File No . 1-8489 and Exhibit 10.20, Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended December 3 1 , 2008 filed February 26, 2009, File No . 1-2255), as amended September 

26, 2014 (Exhibit 10,4, Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2014 filed 

November 3, 2014). 

10.18* Dominion Resources, Inc. Srock Accumularion Plan for Ourside Directors, amended as of X 

February 27, 2004 (Exhlbir 10,15, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 2003 filed 

March i, 2004, File No. i-8489) as amended effective December 3 1 , 2004 (Exhibit 10.1, Form 

8-K filed December 23, 2004, File No. 1-8489). 

10.19* Dominion Resources, Inc. Directors Stock Compensation Plan, as amended February 27, 2004 X 

(Exhibit 10.16, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 2003 filed March I, 2004, 

File No . 1-8489) as amended effective December 3 1 , 2004 (Exhibit 10.2, Form 8-K filed '• 

December 23 , 2004, File N o . 1-8489). 

10.20* Dominion Resources, Inc. Directors' Deferred Cash Compensation Plan, as amended and In X 
effect September 20, 2002 (Exhibit 10.4, Form 10-Qfor the quartet ended September 30. 2002 

filed November 8, 2002, Ffle No . 1-8489) as amended effective December 3 1 , 2004 (Exhibit 

10.3, Form S-K filed December 23 , 2004, File No. 1-8489). 

10.21* Dominion Resources, Inc. Non-Employee Directors' Compensation Plan, effective January 1, X 
2005, as amended and resrared effective December 17 ,2009 (Exhibit 10.18, Form 10-K filed for 
the f i sca lyearendedDecember31 ,2009f i l edFebruary26 ,2010 ,F i}eNo. 1-S4S9). ' 

10.22* Dominion Resources, Inc. Execurive Stock Purchase Tool Kit, effective September 1, 2001 , X X X 

amended and resrated May 7, 2014 {Exhibit 10.4, Form 10-Qfor rhe fiscal quarter ended 

June 30, 2014 filed July 30, 2 0 l 4 , File No. l -8489and Ffle No. 1-2250). 

10.23* Dominion Resources, Inc. Security Option Plan, effecrive January 1, 2003, amended December X X X 

3 1 , 2004 and restated effective January 1, 2005 (Exhibit 10.13, Form 8-K filed December 23 , 

2004, Fi leNo. 1-8489). 

10.24* Letter agreement between Dominion Resources, Inc. and Thomas F. Farrell II, dated February X X X 

27, 2003 (Exhibit 10.24, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 2002 filed March 

20, 2003, File No . 1-8489), as amended December 16, 2005 (Exhibit 10.1, Fotm 8 T K filed 

December 16, 2005, F i leNo. 1-8489). 

10.25* Employment agreement dated February 13, 2007 between Dominion Resources Services, Inc. X X X 

and Mark F. McGetttick (Exhibit 10.34, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 

2006 filed Februaiy 28, 2007, File No. 1-8489). 



ExViibit Virginia Dominion 
Number Description Dominion Power Gas 

10.26* Supplemental Rerirement Agreement dated October 22, 2003 berween Dominion Resources, X. X X 

Inc. and Paul D. Koonce (Exhibit 10.18, Form lO-K for rhe fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 

2003 filed March 1, 2004, File No . 1-2255). 

10.27* Supplemental Rerirement Agreement dared December 12, 2000, between Dominion Resources, X X X 

Inc. and David A. Christian (Exhibit 10.25, Form 10-K for rhe fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 
2001 filed March 11, 2002, Ffle No . 1-2255). 

10.28* Form of Advancement of Expenses for certain directors and officers of Dominion Resources, X X X 
Inc., approved by the Dominion Resources, Inc. Board of Directors on October 24, 2008 

(Exhibit 10.2, Form 10-Qfor the quarter ended September 3-0, 2008 filed October 30, 2008, 
File No. 1-8489 and Exhibit 10.3, Form 10-Qfor the quarter ended September 30, 2008 filed 
Ocrober 30, 2008, File No. 1-2255). 

10.29* Dominion Resources, Inc. 2005 Incentive C-ompensatlon Plan, originally effective May 1, 2005, X . X X 
as amended and restated effective December 20, 2011 (Exhibit 10.32, Form 10-K for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2011 filed February 28, 2012, File No. 1-8489 and Ffle No. 1-2255). 

10.30* Supplemental Rerirement Agreement with Mark F. McGertrick effecrive May 19, 2010 (Exhibit X X X 
10.1, Form 8-Kfiied May 20, 2010, File No. 1-8489). 

10.31* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under 2011 Long-Term Compensarion Program X X X 
approved January 20, 2011 (Exhlbir 10.2, Form 8-K filed January 21, 2011, File No. 1-8489). 

10.32* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Mark F. McGettrick, Paul D. Koonce and David X X X 
A. Christian approved December 17, 2012 (Exhibit 10.1, Form 8-K filed December 21, 2012, 
FileNo. 1-8489). 

10.33* 2012 Performance Grant Plan under the 2012 Long-Term Incentive Program approved X X X 
January 19, 2012 (Exhibit 10.1, Form 8-K filed January 20, 2012, File No. 1-8489). 

10.34* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2012 Long-term Incentive Program X X X 
approved January 19,2012 (Exhibit 10.2, Form 8-K filed January 20, 2012, File No. 1-8489) 

10.35* 2013 Performance Grant Plan under 2013 Long-Term Incentive Program approved January 24, X X X 
2013 (Exhibit 10.1, Form 8-Kfiled January 25, 2013, FileNo. 1-8489). 

10.36* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2013 Long-term Incentive Program X X X 
approved January 24, 2013 (Exhibit 10.2, Form 8-K filed January 25, 2013, File No. 1-8489) 

10.37* Restricted Stock Award Agreemenr for Thomas F. Farrell II, dated December 17, 2010 (Exhibit X X X 
lO.l, Form 8-K filed December 17, 2010, File No. 1-8489). 

10.38* Rerirement Agreement, dated as of June 20, 2013, between Dominion Resources, Inc. and Gary X 
L. Sypolt (Exhibit 10.1, Fotm 8-K filed June 24, 2013, File No. 1-8489). 

10.39* 2014 Performance Grant Plan under 2014 Long-Term Incentive Program approved January 16, X X X 
2014 (Exhibit 10.40, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, File No. 1-
8489). 

10.40* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2014 Long-term Incentive Program X X X 
approved January 16, 2014 (Exhibit 10.41, Form 10-Kfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2013, File No. 1-8489). 

10.41* Form of Special Performance Grant for Thomas F, Farrefl II and Mark F. McGettrick approved X X X 
January 16, 2014 (Exhibit 10.42, Form 10-Kfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, File 
No. 1-8489). 

10.42* Dominion Resources, Inc. 2014 Incentive Compensation Plan, effective May 7, 2014 (Exhibit X X X 
10.1, Form 8-K filed May 7, 2014, File No. 1 -8489). 
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Exhibit Virginia Dominior 
Number . Description . . Dominion Power Gas 

10.43 Registration Rights ./^reement, dated as of October 22, 2013, by and among Donilnion Gas ' X 

Holdings, LLC and RBC Capital Markets, LLC, RBS Securities Inc. and Scotia Capital (USA) 

Inc., as the Inirial purchasers of the Notes (Exhibit 10.1, Form S-4 filed Aprfl 4, 2014, F i leNo. 

333-195066). 

10.44 Inter-Company Credit Agreement, dated October 17, 2013, between Dominion Resources, Inc. X X 

and Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC (Exhibit 10.2, Form S-4 filed Aprfl 4, 2014, File N o . 333-

195066). 

10.45* 2015 Performance Grant Plan under 2015 Long-Term Incentive Program approved January 22, X X X 

2015 (Exhibit 10.42, Form 10-Kfor rhe fiscal year ended December 31 , 2014, File 

No. I-84S9). 

10.46* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under rhe 2015 Long-term Incentive Program X X X 
approved January 22, 2015 (Exhibit 10.43, Form 10-Kfor the fiscal year ended December 3 1 , 
2014, F i leNo. 1-8489). 

10.47* 2016 Performance Grant Plan under 2016 Long-Term Incentive Program approved January 2 1 , X X X 

2016 (filed herewith}. 

10.48* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2016 Long-term Incenrive Program X X X 

approved January 21 , 2 0 l 6 (filed herewith). 

10.49* Base salaries for named execurive officers of Dominion Resources, Inc. (filed herewith). X 

10.50* Non-employee directors' annual compensarion for Dominion Resources, Inc. (filed .herewith). X 

12.a Ratio of earnings to ftxed charges for Dominion Resources, Inc. (filed herewith). X 

12.b Ratio of earnings to fixed charges for Virginia Electric and Power Company (filed herewith). X 

12.C Rario of earnings to fixed charges for Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC (filed herewith). X 

21 Subsidiaries of Dominion Resources, Inc. (filed herewith). X 

23 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (fifed hetewith). X X ' X 

31.a Certificarion by Chief Executive Officet of Dominion Resources, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of X 

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 

31.b Certificarion by Chief Financial Officer of Dominion Resources, Inc. pursuant co Section 302 of X 
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 

3 L c Certification by Chief Executive Officer of Virginia Electric and Povi'er Company pursuant to X 

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 

31.d Cerrification by Chief Financial Officer of Virginia Elecrric and Power Company pursuant to X 

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 

31.e Cerrification by Chief Executive Officer of Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC pursuant to Secrion X 

302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 

31 .f Cerrification by Chief Financial Officer of Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC pursuant to Section X 

302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith). 

32.a Cerrification to the Securities and Exchange Commission b)'. Chief Execuriye Officer and Chief X 

Financial Officer of Dominion Resoutces, Inc. as required by Secrion 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley 

Act of 2002 (furnished herewith). 

32.b Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commission, by Chief Executive Officer and Chief X 

Financial Officer of Virginia Electric and Power Company as required by Section 906 ofthe 

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (fiirnished herewith). 

32.C Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commission by Chief Executive Officer and Chief X 

Financial Officer of Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC as required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002 (fiirnished herewith). 
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Exhibit Virginia Dominion 
Number ^ Description _ ^ Dominion Power Gas 

101 The following financial statements from Dominion Resources, Inc., Virginia Electric and Power X X X 
Company and Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2015, filed on February 26, 2016, formatted in XBRL: (1) Consolidated State­
ments of Income, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ifl) Consolidated Statements of Common 
Shareholders' Equity (iv) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (v) Consolidated 
Statements of Cash Flows, and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement 
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RENEWAL APPUCATION OF DOIVIINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOIMINION RETAIL, INC.") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OfflO 

AS A RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit C-3 ''Financial Statements" 

This contents of this exhibit is being filed under sea! pursuant to 
Rule 4901:1-27-08, Ohio Administrative Code. 



RENEWAL APPLICATION OF DOMINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOMINION RETAIL") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO 

AS A RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit C-4 "Financial Arrangements" 

Attached is a copy of a signed document from James R. Chapman, Senior Vice President -
IMergers & Acquisitions and Treasurer, Dominion Resources, Inc. ("Dominion"), declaring that 
Dominion will guarantee the obligations of Dominion Retail in connection with Dominion 
Retail's retail natural gas activities in Ohio. 



Dominion Resources, Inc. 
120 Tredegar Street, Rjchmond, VA 23219 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 26532 
Richmond, VA 23261 

Web Address: www.dom.com 

Dominion' 

June 3, 2016 

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 
180 E. Broad Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3793 

Re: Renewal Application of Dominion Retail, Inc. for Certification as a Retail 
Natural Gas Supplier in Ohio; Case No. 02-1757-GA-CRS 

To Whom It May Concern; 

Dominion Retail, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dominion Resources, Inc. 
In connection with the renewal application of Dominion Retail, Inc. for certification as a 
retail natural gas supplier in Ohio, please be advised that Dominion Resources, Inc. 
stands behind and will guarantee the obligations of Dominion Retail, Inc. related to its 
activities as a natural gas supplier in Ohio. 

Sincerely, 

JajJies KTcnapman 
Jenior Vice President 

Mergers & Acquisitions and Treasurer 

http://www.dom.com


RENEWAL APPLICATION OF DOIMINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOMINION RETAIL, INC.") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMl^SSION OF OHIO 

AS A RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit C-5 "Forecasted Financial Statements" 

This contents of this exhibit is being filed under seal pursuant to 
Rule 4901:1-27-08, Ohio Administrative Code. 



RENEWAL APPLICATION OF DOMINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOMINION RETAIL") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO 

AS A RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit C-6 "Credit Rating" 

Dominion Retail is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dominion Resources, Inc. Therefore, 
Dominion Retail does not have its own credit report. 

Information relating to the credit rating of Dominion Resoitrces, Inc. is attached hereto. 
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Research Update: 

Dominion Resources Inc. And Subsidiaries 
Downgraded To •BBB+' On Acquisition Of Questar 
Corp.; Outlook Stable 

Overview 

• Dominion Resources Inc. announced the acquisition of Questar Corp. for 
about $6 billion, which includes about $1.6 billion of assumed debt. The 
transaction is expected to close in about 12 months. 

• We are revising our assessment of the company's financial policy modifier 
to negative from neutral. This reflects our expectations that Dominion 
will continue to pursue growth related acquisitions at a faster pace than 
peers. 

• We are lowering our issuer credit rating on Dominion Resources and its 
siibsidiaries Virginia Electric & Power Co. and Dominion Gas Holdings LLC 
to 'BBB+' from 'A-'. We are lowering the senior unsecured debt and junior 
subordinated debt at Dominion Resources one notch to 'BBB' and 'BBB-'. At 
the same time, we are lowering the senior unsecured debt at both Virginia 
Electric & Power and Dominion Gas Holdings one notch to 'BBB+'. We are 
affirming the 'A-2' short-term rating on DRI. 

• The stable outlook reflects our expectations that Dominion will continue 
to consist of mostly lower-risk regulated utilities and that the 
financial measures will consistently be in the middle of the range for 
the significant financial risk profile category, reflecting funds from 
operations to debt of 16%-18%. 

Rating Action 

On Feb. 1, 2016, Standard & Poor's Ratings Services lowered its issuer credit 
rating on Dominion Resources Inc. (DRI) and its subsidiaries Virginia Electric 
& Power Co. and Dominion Gas Holdings LLC to 'BBB+' from 'A-'. We also lowered 
our rating on DRI's senior unsecured debt and junior subordinated debt by one 
notch to 'BBB' and 'BBB-', respectively. At the same time, we lowered the 
senior unsecured debt at both Virginia Electric & Power and Dominion Gas 
Holdings one notch to 'BBB+'. We are affirming the 'A-2' short-term rating on 
Dominion Resources. The rating outlook is stable. 

Rationale 

The downgrade of DRI and its subsidiaries reflects our expectations that the 
company will continue to grow through acquisitions at a faster pace than 
peers. This is based on our assessment of the company's master limited 
partnership, Dominion Midstream Partners L.P., which adds a degree of 
complexity to the company's organizational structure, provides incremental 

W W W . S T A N D A R D A N D P O O R S . C O M / R A T I N G S D I R E C T FEBRUARY 1, 2 0 1 6 2 

THIS WAS PREPARED EXCLUSIVELY FOR USER BLAKE O'BRIEN. 
NOT FOR REDISTRIBUTION UNLESS OTHERWISE PERMITTED. 
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Research Update: Dominion Resources Inc. And Subsidiaries Downgraded To 'BBB+' On Acquisition Of Questar 
Corp.; Outlook Stable 

opportunities and incentive for the company to complete acquisitions. The 
lonpredictable size and timing of mergers and acquisitions are not incorporated 
into our base case scenario but are reflected through the negative financial 
policy modifier. 

We base the issuer credit rating on DRI on its excellent business risk profile 
and its significant financial risk profile. We also expect that the company's 
business and financial risk profiles will be maintained following the 
company's acquisition of Questar Corp. 

The excellent business risk profile reflects the high proportion of the 
company's lower-risk regulated assets. The company's regulated assets consist 
of electric transmission, distribution, and generation assets that are mainly 
in Virginia, gas distribution assets in Ohio and West Virginia, and gas 
pipeline assets that are regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission. In addition, we believe the company has, for the most part, 
effectively managed regulatory risk, which has reduced regulatory lag and 
generally results in credit-supportive outcomes. 

Based on our forward-looking view of the company's revenue, cash flow, and 
assets, we view DRI as consisting of about 80% regulated businesses and 20% 
nonregulated businesses. The higher-risk nonregulated businesses consist of 
merchant power generation, gathering and processing, farm-outs, retail gas, 
and investments in the Cove Point terminal and Blue Racer Midstream LLC. The 
nonregulated businesses, particularly merchant generation, pressure the 
company's business risk profile and exposes the company to increased 
volumetric, weather, commodity, and operational risks. 

The company's organizational structure is more complex than most peers because 
the company has a master limited partnership. Dominion Midstream Partners 
L.P., which will gradually purchase many of DRI's nonregulated businesses. The 
enhanced complexity and sophistication requires increased management 
oversight, time, and expertise to effectively manage. Overall, because of the 
company's higher-risk, nonregulated businesses and the company's more complex 
organizational structure, we view DRI's business risk profile as trending 
toward the lower end of the excellent business risk profile category. 

We assess DRI's financial measures as consistent with the significant 
financial risk profile category using our medial volatility financial ratio 
table. Our use of that table reflects the company's generally lower-risk, 
rate-regulated utility businesses, offset by its higher-risk competitive 
businesses. Under our base case scenario of rising capital spending in 2016 to 
about $6 billion, we expect that the company's financial measures will weaken 
toward the lower half of the significant financial risk profile category. 
Specifically/ we expect funds from operations (FFO) to debt of 15% to 17% for 
2016. 

All modifiers are neutral expect for the financial policy modifier that we 
assess as negative and lowers the issuer credit rating by one notch. The 
negative financial policy modifier reflects our expectation that the company 
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will also continue to grow through acquisitions but at a faster pace than 
peers. This reflects the company's master limited partnership. Dominion 
Midstream Partners L.P., that adds a degree sophistication and complexity to 
the company's organizational structure, and also provides incremental 
opportunities and incentive for the company to complete acquisitions. 

We view DRI as the parent of a group that includes Virginia Electric & Power 
Co. and Dominion Gas Holdings LLC. DRI's group credit profile is 'bbb+', 
leading to an issuer credit rating of 'BBB+'. 

Liquidity 
We consider DRI's liquidity as adequate and believe it can more than cover its 
needs for the next 12 months, even if EBITDA declines by 10%. We expect the 
company's liquidity sources over the next 12 months to exceed uses by more 
than l.lx. Under our stress scenario, we do not expect that DRI would require 
access to capital markets during that period to meet liquidity needs. 

Principal lic[uidity sources include: 
• Cash and short-term investments of about $200 million 
• Credit facility availability of about $3 billion 
• FFO of more than $4 billion 

Principal liquidity uses include: 
• Maintenance and committed capital spending of less than $3 billion 
• Dividends of about $1,5 billion 
• Long-term debt maturities of about $1.3 billion in 2016 

Outlook 

The stable outlook reflects our expectation that Dominion will continue to 
consist mostly of lower-risk regulated utilities and that the financial 
measures will consistently be in the middle of the range for the significant 
financial risk profile category, reflecting FFO to debt of 16% to 18%. 

Downside scenario 

We could lower the rating on Dominion if the company's business risk profile 
weakens through an acquisition of a company with a weaker business risk 
profile or the company's effective management of regulatory risk weakens. We 
could also lower the rating if the financial measures consistently weakened to 
the lower-end of the significant financial risk profile category, reflecting 
FFO to debt consistently below 15%. 

Upside scenario 

We could upgrade the ratings if the financial measures consistently improved 
to the higher-end of the significant financial risk profile category, 
reflecting FFO to debt that is consistently greater than 20%. 
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Ratings Score Snapshot 

Corporate Credit Rating: BBB+/Stable/A-2 

Business risk: Excellent 

• Country risk: Very low 
• Industry risk: Very low 
• Competitive position: Strong 

Financial risk: Significant 
• Cash flow/leverage: Significant 

Anchor: a-

Modifiers 
• Diversification/portfolio effect: Neutral (no impact! 
• Capital structure: Neutral (no, impact) 
• Financial policy: Negative (-1 notch) 
• Liquidity: Adequate (no impact) 
• Management and governance: Satisfactory (no impact) 
• Comparable rating analysis: Neutral {no impact) 

Stand-alone credit profile: bbb+ 
• Group credit profile: bbb+ 

Recovery Analysis/ Notching Analysis 

We rate the senior unsecured debt at DRI one notch lower than the issuer 
credit rating because of structural subordination. This results from priority 
obligations exceeding 20% of total assets. 

Related Criteria And Research 
Related Criteria 
• Criteria - Corporates - General: Corporate Methodology: Ratios And 
Adjustments, Nov. 19, 2013 

• Criteria - Corporates - General: Corporate Methodology, Nov. 19, 2013 
• General Criteria: Group Rating Methodology, Nov. 19, 2013 
• Criteria - Corporates - Utilities: Key Credit Factors For The Regulated 
Utilities Industry, Nov. 19, 2013 

• Criteria - Corporates - Utilities: Notching Of U.S. Investment-Grade 
Investor-Owned Utility Unsecured Debt Now Better Reflects Anticipated 
Absolute Recovery, Nov. 10, 2008 

• General Criteria: Methodology For Linking Short-Term And Long-Term 
Ratings For Corporate, Insurance, And Sovereign Issuers, May 7, 2013 

• Criteria - Corporates - General: 2008 Corporate Criteria: Rating Each 
Issue, April 15, 2008 
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Criteria - Insurance - General: Hybrid Capital Handbook: September 2008 
Editioa, Sept. 15, 2 008 

Ratings List 

Long-Tertn Ratings Lowered; Outlook Action; Short-Term Ratings Affirmed 
To From 

Dominion Resources Inc. 
Virginia Electric & Power Co. 
Dominion Gas Holdings LLC 
Corporate Credit Rating BBB+/Stable/A-2 A-/Negative/A-2 

Issue-Level Ratings Lowered 

Dominion Resources Inc. 
Senior Unsecured 
Junior Subordinated 

To 

BBB 
BBB-

From 

BBB+ 
BBB 

Dominion Gas Holdings LLC 
Senior Unsecured BBB+ A-

Virginia Electric & Power Co, 
Senior Unsecured 
Preferred Stock 

BBB+ 
BBB-

A-
BBB 

Short-Tefm Ratings Affirmed 
Dominion Resources Inc. 
Virginia Electric & Power Co. 
Dominion Gas Holdings LLC 
Commercial Paper A-2 

Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to 
express our view on rating relevant factors, have specific meanings ascribed 
to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such 
criteria. Please see Ratings Criteria at www.standardandpoors'.com for further 
information. Complete ratings information is available to subscribers of 
RatingsDirect at www.globalcreditportal.com and at www.spcapitaliq.com. All 
ratings affected by this rating action can be found on Standard & Poor's 
public web site at www.standardandpoors.com. Use the Ratings search box 
located in the left column. 
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Dominion Resources Inc. 
Large and Diversified Energy Holding Company 

Summary Rat ing Rat ionale 
Dominion Resources' (Dominion) Baa2 senior unsecured rating derives primarily from its 
regulated utilities, Virginia Ekctnc and Power Company, (VEPCO A2 stable) and Dominion 
Gas Holdings, LLC {DomGas, A2 stable). The Baa2 rating is three notches belov̂ f that 
of VEPCO and DomGas, constrained by substantial structural subordination (-44% of 
consolidated debt is at Dominion) and its non-utility businesses where Dominion is making 
substantial capital investments over the next few years. The share of cash flows from non-
utility businesses is expected to remain stable at about 20% over the next several years. 
The risk profile of Dominion's non-utility busnesses has benefited from the sale of certain 
merchant generation assets and the power marketing businesses. Contracted assets such 
as LNG, gas pipelines and renewables will form the bulk of unregulated cash flows going 
forward. 

We expect that Dominion will finance Its large capex program in a manner that will maintain 
a financial profile adequate for the rating. Ratios will be supported by the issuance of $2.1 
billion of equity associated with mandatory convertible securities. Moody's expects cash from 
operations pre-working capital (CFO pre-WC) and retained cash flow (RCF) coverage of debt 
to be in the range of 15-18% and 9-12%, respectively, over the next three years. 

Exhibit 1 
Domin ion Resources Inc. 
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- • ' - — ^ / * H 2 ^ 
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Source: Moody's Investors Service 
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Credi t S t rengths 

» VEPCO, a regulated electric utility, underpins Dominion's credit quality 

» Business mix continuing to shift more towards regulated / contracted operations 

Cred i t Chal lenges 

» Financial profile pressured by substantial capex program but expected to remain adequate 

» Dominion Midstream - Newly formed MLP is credit negative but impact marginal for several years 

Rat ing O u t l o o k 
Dominion's stable outlook reflects Moody's expectation for strong and stable financial performance at its regulated utilities and a 
continued focus on new investments with regulated/contracted cash flows. We also expect Dominion to manage its balance sheet and 
liquidity resources appropriately throughout this period of heavy capital expenditures. 

Factors t h a t Cou ld Lead t o an Upgrade 

» Given the size of Dominion's investment program and the expected financial profile, an upgrade of its rating is unlikely at this time. 
A positive outlook could be considered when a significant improvement in the financial profile can be forecast within our 12-18 
month outlook horizon. This includes cash from operations pre-working capital (CFO Pre-WC) and retained cash flow coverage of 
debt in the range of 20-22% and 15-17%, respectively, for a sustained period 

Factors t h a t Cou ld Lead t o a Downgrade 

» A negative rating action is possible if Dominion fails to finance its capex program with an appropriate mix of debt and equity, if 
there is a material delay or cost overrun at the Cove Point LNG export terminal, a material increase in structural subordination at 
Dominion or an unexpectedly more contentious regulatory environment at VEPCO. A negative rating action could also follow if 
CFO Pre-WC and retained cash flow coverage of debt falls to the low teens percentage and 8-10%, respectively, for an extended 
period 

Key Indicators 

Exhibit 2 

KEY INDICATORS [1] 

Domrn ion Resources Inc. 

CFO pre-WC + Interest / Interest 

CFO pre-WC / Debt 

CFO pre-WC - Dividends / Debt 

Debt / Capitalization 

9/30/2015(L) 

4.4x 

15.8% 

10.4% 

56.4% 

12/31/2014 

3.9x 

14.2% 

8.8% 

56.8% 

12/31/2013 

4.4x 

14.5% 

8.7% 

54.3% 

12/31/2012 

5.1X 

16.3% 

10.6% 

56.6% 

12/31/2011 

4.8x 

16.7% 

10.9% 

53.7% 

[1] Afl ratios are based on 'Adjusted' financial data and incorporate Moody's Global Standard Adjustments for Non-Financial Corporations. 
Source: t*1oody's Financial t^etrics 

This publication does not announce a credit rating action. For any credit ratings referenced in this publication, please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on 
www,moodys.com for the most updated credit rating action information and rating history. 
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Deta i led Rat ing Considerat ions 
- VEPCO, a regulated electric utility, underpins Dominion's credit quality 

VEPCO underpins Dominion's credit quality, with its strong A2 credit rating and accounting for approximately 70% of CFO pre-
WC in 2014. We consider VEPCO to be well positioned within its A2 senior unsecured ratings category, with a favorable regulatory 
environment underpinned by specific utility legislation in Virginia and regulatory recovery mechanisms approved by the State 
Corporation Commission of Virginia (VSCC). The utility legislation provides for numerous riders (including generation, transmission and 
conservation) that permit a more timely return on investments. The legislation also provides for a biennial look-back at earned returns 
to determine if a utility's equity returns were within a statutory earnings band of 9.3% to 10.7%. 

The state of Virginia passed two bills. Senate Bill 1349 and FHouse Bill 2237, in Ql 2015 with an eye to potential upcoming carbon 
regulation. The bills froze VEPCO's base rates from 2015-19 and suspended biennial earnings reviews until 2022, although existing 
rate riders will continue to be revised and VEPCO may also request new riders if needed. The bills also require an annual integrated 
resource plan (IRP) filing and declared up to 500 MW of utility scale solar to be in the public interest. As a result of these bills, VEPCO 
will bear the risk of weather events and natural disasters as well as certain costs (eg: asset impairments) related to complying with the 
Clean Power Plan to reduce carbon emissions through 2019. Much of VEPCO's capex during this period (transmission, generation, and 
distribution capex for undergrounding lines) will mostly be recovered through rate riders and are thus not subject to the rate freeze. 
VEPCO estimates that other "base" distribution capex can be recovered under existing base rates without a material lag. 

Dominion's DomGas (A2 stable) subsidiary provides additional regulated cash flows, accounting for 10-15% of Dominion's consolidated 
cash flows. DomCas' A2 rating is underpinned by low risk FERC regulated gas transmission (2/3 of cash flows) and gas local distribution 
business in Ohio (1/3 of cash flows). 

- Dominion Midstream- Newly formed MLP is credit negative but impact marginal for several years 

The formation of Dominion Midstream Partners IP (DM, unrated) is credit negative for Dominion over the long term because it 
increases structural subordination and dilutes cash flow. But DM starts off small and the impact is marginal for several years. Less 
than 3% of Dominion's current cash flows will be dropped down into DM for the next five years. While the loss of existing cash flows 
(from dropping assets into the MLP) is typically a concern over time, DM will, for several years to come, primarily be a vehicle for new 
projects such as the Cove Point LNG project, the Atlantic Coast pipeline and the Blue Racer JV rather than be a recipient of existing 
assets being dropped into the MLP. 

Loss of existing cash flows could become an issue if DomGas was dropped into the MLP. We believe that the Cove Point and Blue Racer 
operations are worth $1 billion of EBITDA and the Atlantic Coast pipeline is incremental to this figure. This gives DM, which started 
with just $50 million of EBITDA, several years of growth (perhaps into the next decade) before cash flows from DomGas are needed to 
sustain growth. 

The creation of DM was intended to provide Dominion with an attractive, new source of equity capital to finance its capex plans. While 
the approximately 40% decline in DM's share price from its peak in summer 2015 makes it less attractive, DM shares still trade about 
20% higher than their IPO price. Further, the strong visibility into DM's future dividend growth allows the shares to still trade at a 
relatively attractive dividend yield of about 3% and perform better than most other yield oriented vehicles. 

- Business mix continuing to shift more towards regulated / contracted operations 

Despite large capex plans in the unregulated businesses, we expect Dominion to maintain its 80/20 mix of cash flows from regulated 
and unregulated businesses as a result of strong organic growth at VEPCO. In addition, the unregulated business has been transitioning 
away from merchant exposure as a result of the sale of some merchant power generation assets {in 2012), and the retail electric 
business (in 2014) and more towards long-term contracts (LNG, renewables etc), which benefits Dominion's consohdated business risk 
profile. 

Dominion's residual merchant generation fleet is well positioned. It has plants in ISO-NE (the 2,001 MW Millstone nuclear unit and 
461 MW of gas units), a region where merchant pricing remains profitable, and in the EMAAC region of PJM {1,196 MW CCGT) where 
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gas plants enjoy strong spark spreads and capacity factors. Dominion has also acquired about 400 MW of contracted utility-scale solar 
projects across the country which benefit from long-term contracts with utilities, 

- Financial profile pressured by substantial capex program but expected to remain adequate 

Dominion has a capex program of about $15 billion for the 2016-20 period. Despite substantial unregulated investments, only about 
35% of total capital spending is unregulated in 2016, falling to 16% by 2018. 

We expect that Dominion will finance its large capex program in a manner that will maintain a financial profile adequate for the Baa2 
rating. Moody's expects CFO pre-WC coverage of interest and debt to remain in the range of 5.0-6.0x and 15-18%, respectively, 
over the next three years. Retained cash flow to debt is expected to range between 9-12% and debt/capital at 50-56%. Ratios will be 
weakest in 2016 and 2017, and will then strengthen as the Cove Point project starts commercial operations in 2018. How Dominion 
uses the proceeds from asset dropdowns will matter once the larger assets such as Cove Point begin to be dropped into the MLP 
starting 2018. 

Supporting Dominion's financial profile during the 2016-17 period will be any equity raises through the MLP, about $300 million of 
equity annually through the DRIP program, and the $2.1 billion of equity issuance in 2016 and 2017 under the outstanding mandatory 
convertible securities (to which we provide 25% equity credit). 

L iqu id i ty Analys is 
Dominion's liquidity profile is adequate. Although the company's large capex program and dividend payout implies a reliance on 
external funding, the company's robust access to capital markets mitigates concerns on this front. Dominion currently has two shared 
credit facilities (with subsidiaries VEPCO and DomGas as co-borrowers) totaling $4.5 billion, maturing in April 2019. We expect that 
this facility will shortly be upsized to $5.5 billion. Dominion's sub-limit under these credit facilities is currently $2.25 billion, rising to 
$2.75 billion post the upsizing. VEPCO has a sub-limit of $1.75 billion while DomGas has $500 million, rising to $1 billion post the 
upsizing. At 9/30/15, Dominion reported cash on hand of $238 million and $1.89 billion available under the credit facilities. 

We note that VEPCO had used 78% of its sub-limits as of 9/30/15. VEPCO has had high utilization rates under its sub-limit for some 
time now, backing the issue of commercial paper. However, Dominion has the ability to increase the Dominion, VEPCO, and DomCas 
sub-limits up to six times every year. This flexibility, along with the general strong access to capital markets, mitigates liquidity 
concerns at VEPCO. 

For LTM 9/30/15, Dominion generated roughly $4.5 billion in cash from operations, incurred roughly $5.7 billion in capital expenditures 
(net of asset sales) and made dividend payments of approximately $1,5 billion, resulting in substantial negative free cash flow of about 
$2.7 billion. Given the size of the company's capital expenditure program, we expect Dominion will continue to have negative free cash 
flow over the next several years. On a consolidated basis. Dominion has approximately $1,3 billion of debt maturities in the next twelve 
months. 

Corpora te Prof i le 
Dominion Resources is a large and diversified energy holding company. Its largest and most important subsidiary is the regulated 
electric utility, Virginia Electric and Power Company (VEPCO), Dominion also owns Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC (DomGas), which has 
a large network of FERC-regulated interstate gas transmission pipelines, mainly in the Marcellus shale region, and a regulated natural 
gas distribution utility in Ohio. 

VEPCO and DomGas represented 94% of Dominion's cash from operations pre-working capital in 2014, although the ratio is 
historically between 80-90%. Dominion's non-regulated businesses include a fully contracted, 5.25 mtpa LNG export/liquefaction 
facility currently under construction; a 50% ownership in Blue Racer, a midstream gas gathering and processing company in the Utica 
shale; an approximately 4.2 GW merchant generation fleet (including renewables); and a 1.2 million customer retail gas marketing 
business in 13 states. In October 2014, Dominion successfully completed an IPO of its MLP Dominion Midstream Partners L.P (DM), 
raising approximately $422 million against the sale of a 31.5% L.P interest in DM. 
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Rating Methodology and Scorecard Factors 

Exhibit 3 
Dominion Resources Inc. 

Rating Factors 

Dominion Resources Inc 

Regulated Electric and Gas Utilities Industry Grid [1][2] 

Factor 1 : Regulatory Framework (25%) 

a) Legislati-ze and Judicial Underpinnings of the Regulatory Framework 

b) Consistency and Predictability of Regulation 

Current 

LTM 9/30/2015 

Measure 

A 

Aa 

Score 

A 

Aa 

Factor 2 : Ability to Recover Costs and Earn Returns (25%) 

a) Timeliness of Recovery of Operating and Capital Costs 

b) Sufficiency of Rates and Returns 

A 

Baa 

A 

Baa 

Factor 3 : Diversification (10%) 

a) Market position 

b) Generation and Fuel Diversity 

A 

A 

A 

A 

Factor 4 : Financial Strength (40%) 

a) CFO pre-WC + Interest / Interest (3 Year Avg) 

b) CFO pre-WC/Debt [3 Year Avg) 

c) CFO pre-WC - Dividends / Debt (3 Year Avg) 

d) Debt/Capitalization (3 Year Avg) 

4.5x 

14.8% 

9.2% 

55.9% 

Baa 

Baa 

Baa 

Ba 

Rating: 

Grid-Indicated Rating Before Notching Adjustment 

HoldCo Structural Subordination Notching 

a) Indicated Rating from Grid 

b) Actual Rating Assigned 

-2 

A3 

-2 

Baa2 

Baa2 

Moody's 12-18 Month 
Forward View 

As of 1/19/2016 [31 
Measure 

A 

Aa 

Score 

A 

Aa 

A 

Baa 

A 

Baa 

A 

A 

A 

A 

4x- 6x 

1S% -18% 

9% -12% 

52% - 56% 

A 

Baa 

Baa 

Baa 

A3 

-2 ~1 

Bda2 

Bda2 

[1] All ratios are Pased on 'Adjusted' financial data and incorporate Moody's Global Standard Adjustments for Non-Financial Corporations. 
[2] A3 of 9/30/2015(1) 
[3] This represents Moody's forward view; not the view of the issuer; and unless noted in the text, does not incorporate significant acquisitions and divestitures. 

Source: Moody's Financial t̂ etrics 

Ratings 

Exhibit 4 Category Moody's Rating 
DOMINION RESOURCES INC. 

Outlook 
Senior Unsecured 
Jr Subordinate 

Pref, Shelf 
Commercial Paper 

Stable 
Baa2 
Baa3 

{P)Ba1 
P-2 

VIRGINIA ELECTRIC AND POWER COMPANY 

Outlook 
Issuer Rating 
Senior Unsecured 

Pref. Stock 
Commercial Paper 

Stable 
A2 
A2 

Baal 
P-1 

DOMINION CAS HOLDINGS, LLC 

Outlook 
Senior Unsecured 
Jr Subordinate Shelf 
Commercial Paper 

Stable 
A2 

(P}A3 
P-1 

CONSOLIDATeo NATURAL GAS COMPANY 

Outlook 
Senior Unsecured 

No Outlook 
Baa2 
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PANDA-BOSEMARY FUNDING CORPORATION 

Outlook 
Bkd Senior Unsecured 

Stable 
A2 

DOMINION RESOURCES CAPITAL TRUST IM 

Outlook 
BACKED Pref. Stock 

Stable 
Baa3 

Source: Moody's Investors Service 
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FitchRatings 
Fitch Affirms Dominion Ratings Following Questar Acquisition 
Fitch Ratings-New York-01 February 2016: Fitch Ratings has affirmed tho 'BBB+' Issuer Default Rating (IDR) of Dominion Resources, Inc. (DRI) 
following tho announcement of its proposed acquisition of Questar Corp. for $4.4 billron in cash. The Rating Outlook is Stable. The ratings of Virginia 
Electric and Power Co. and Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC are also affimied with a Stable Rating Outlook, A full list ofthe ratings is provided at the end 
of ttiis release. 

The rating affirmation reflects the moderate impact on consolidated credit metrics and the strong financial position and low risk nature of Questar 
Corp.'s natural gas businesses. Th© acquisition premium and EBITDA multiple are below those of other recent transactions. The purchase price 
equates lo a premium ot approximately 30% aticive Questar's average closing price over the past 20 trading days. Including the assumption cA 
approximately $1.6 billion of Questar consolidated debt the enterprise value ofthis transaction is $6 billion and the EBITDA multiple about 9.8x. 

KEY RATING DRIVERS 
Moderate Impact on Credit Metrics; Based on the expected financing plan and Questar Corp.'s strong financial position, Fitch expects consolidated 
financial metrics to be moderately weaker than previously expected, but to remain supportive of existing ratings. Fitch still expects DRI's financial profile 
to begin to sirengthsn over the next several years as the company realizes anticipated eamings contributions from projects cun^ently under 
construction, including the Cove Point export facility. Fitch expects DRI's ratio of lease adjusted debt/funds from operations (FFO) to remain below the 
S.Qx ratings sensitivity previously identified for a downgrade. 

Financing Plan: The financing plan includes $1.5 billion of DRI corporate debt and $500 million of common equity. The remainder of the initial funding 
will consist of a combination of mandatory convertible debt, a term loan and equity from the drop down of Questar's pipeline business into Dominion 
Midstream Partners, LP.(DM), a master limited partrarship created by DRI in 2014. Fitch expects ttie equity from the planned drop dovms will be 
realized within a year of closing the transaction and used lo retire acquisition debt. Fitch considers execution of the drop down and associated debt 
retirement to be important to maintaining ratings. Any material deviation could adversely affect current ratings. It should be noted that Fitch does not 
attribute equity credit to mandatory convertible debt In the form of equity units which have previously been issued by DRI and is prevalent in the sector. 

Cash Flow Subordination: The sutwrdination of cash flows through drop downs into DM Is a credit concem that grows over time. The concern is 
mitigated by DRI's ownership of the general partnership and significant portion of the limited partnership units. In addition, the planned drop down of 
Questar pipeline assets will delay the previously planned drop down of the Blue Racer joint venture assets to 2020 from 2017. The subordination 
concem would heighten if DRI were to significantly reduce its ownership in DM without reducing DRI debt or raise significant debt at DM (DM is 
cun'ently debt free). 

Low Risk Assets: Questar's assets are considered low risk by Filch and consistent with DRI's existing risk profile. The largely regulated businesses 
provide further business and geographic diversity and growth opportunities particulariy related to the Clean Power plan, 

CovePoint: The expected commeroial operation of the Cove Point LNG facility in late 2017 Should enhance earnings and cash flow and lower capex. 
Capacity Is fully subscribed to investment grade counterparties under twenty year agreements and DRI takes no commodity or volumetric risks during 
the contract temi, 

Financial Profile: Consolidated leverage is high for tho rating level, but should gradually improve over the next several years as DRI realizes anticipated 
eamings contributions fnsm projects cun'ently under constmction, including the Cove Point export facility, and approximately $2.1 billion of proceeds 
from the conversion and subsequent remarketing of mandatory convertible debt in 2016 and 2017, Even with the acquisition financing, Fitch expects 
debt/EBITDAR to fall tielow 4,5x in 2018 and FFO leverage to remain below 5,Ox. 

KEY ASSUMPTIONS 
-DRI completes Bie drop down of Questar's pipeline business in a timely fashion and uses proceeds to pay down acquisition debt; 
-DRI raises $2,1 billion of equity from mandatory convertible notes in 2016 and 2017; 
-Organic growth capex will remain elevated through 2017 coinciding wilh the completion of Cove Point; 
-VEPCo's base rates remain fi-ozen through 2019; 
-Timely execution of capex plan, 

RATING SENSITIVITIES 

Positive Rating Action: Positive rating action is not expected at this time given the large capital investment plan and high consolidated leverage. 
However, ratings could be upgraded if adjusted debt to EBITDAR falls below 3.5x and FFO lease-adjusted leverage below 4,25x on a sustainable 
basis. 

Negative Rating Action: Ratings could be downgraded If there are substantial cost overains or delays in compleUng the Cove Point LNG export project. 
Weaker eamings, lower dividends trom VEPCo, or FFO-a(^usted leverage above 5.t)x on a sustained basis could also lead to negative rating action. 
The inability to reduce acquislb'on debt with equity proceeds from asset drop downs could also adversely affect ratings. 

LIQUIDITY 

Liquidity is considered sufficient supported by operating cash flow and two separate revolving credit facilities aggregating $5.5 billion. The credit facility 
supports commorcial paper txjrrowings and up lo $1,5 billion of letters of credit. The credit facilities expire in April 2019. 

Fitch affirms the follcwing ratings with a Stable OiAlook: 

Dominion Resources, Inc. 
-Long-term IDR at 'BBB+'; 
-Senior unsecured debt at 'BBB+'-, 
-Prefen-ed and junior sutwrdlnaled debt at 'BBB-'; 
-Short-term IDR al 'F2'; 
-Commercial paper at 'F2', 

Virginia Electric and Power Co, 
-Long-tenn IDR at 'A-'; 
-Senior secured debt and revenue tionds at 'A+/F2'; 
-Senior unsecured debt and revenue bonds at 'A'; 
-Short-term IDR at •F2'; 
-Commercial paper at 'F2'. 

Dominion Gas Holdings, LLC 

https://www.fitchratings.com/site/fitch-home/pressrelease?id=998849 3/24/2016 
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-Long-tenn IDR at -A-'; 
-Senior unsecured debt at 'A-'; 
-Short-term IDR at •F2'; 
-Commercial paper at 'F2'. 

Consolidated Natural Gas Co, (debt assumed by Dominion Resources) 
-Long-tenn IDR at 'BBe*'; 
-Senior unsecured debt at 'BBB+', 

Contact: 

Primary Analyst 
Robert Hornick 
Senor Director 
*1-212-908-0523 
Filch Ratings, Inc. 
33 VUhitehall Street 
NewYori(, NY 10004 

Secondary Analyst 
Shatini Mahajan 
Managing Director 
+1-212-908-0351 

Committee Chairperson 
Steven Marks 
Managing Director 
+1-212-908-9161 

Media Relations: Alyssa Castelli, New York, Tel: +1 (212) 908 0540, Email: a lyssa. caste Hi ©filch ratings, com. 

Additional infonnation is available at •www,fitchrallngs,com', 

Applicabte Criteria 
Corporate Rating Methodology - Including Short-Term Ratings and Parent and Subsidiary Linkage (pub, 17 Aug 2015) 
(hltps://www .fitch rat Ing s. com/cred itdesk/reports/repo rt_fram e, cfm ? 
rpl ld=869362S.cfl=eyJ0eXAiOiJKV1QiLCJhbGciOiJIUzl1NiJ9,eyJleHAiOjE0NTg4NjlyMTEslnNlc3Npb25LZXkiOiJFWnJxS0NHQzdIOUZESFJBQVpLOE5VMVJCOU. 
PSIA) 

Additional Disclosures 
Dodd-Frank Rating Inforniation Disclosure Form (https;//www.fitchratings,com/credltdesk/press_releases/content/rldfJrame,cfm? 
pr_id=998849&cft=eyJ0eXAI0IJK\/1QiLCJhbGciOiJIUzl1NiJ9.eyJleHAiOjE0NTg4NjlyMTEslnNlc3Npb25LZXkiOiJFVVTUxS0NHQzdlOUZESFJBQVpLOE5VMVJCOUJ 
PSiA) 
Solicitation Status (hllps://www,fitchratlngs,com/gws/en/disclosure/solicltation?pr_id=998849) 
Endorsement Policy (hllps://www.fitchralings,com/jsp/credildesk/PollcyRegulation,faces?context=2&detail=31) 

ALL FITCH CREDIT RATINGS ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN LIMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS, PLEASE READ THESE LIMITATIONS AND 
DISCLAIMERS BY FOLLOWING THIS LINK; HTTP://FITCHRATINGS,C0M/UNDERSTAND1NGCREDITRAT1NGS 
(http://filchratings,Com/understandingcreditralings), IN ADDITION, RATING DEFINITIONS AND THE TERMS OF USE OF SUCH RATINGS ARE 
AVAILABLE ON THE AGENCrS PUBLIC WEBSITE 'WWW,FITCHRATINGS,COM', PUBLISHED RATINGS, CRITERIA AND METHODOLOGIES 
ARE AVAILABLE FROM THIS SITE AT ALL TIMES, FITCH'S CODE OF CONDUCT, CONFIDENTIALITY, CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. AFFILIATE 
FIREWALL. COMPLIANCE AND OTHER RELEVANT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ARE ALSO AVAILABLE FROM THE 'CODE OF CONDUCT 
SECTION OF THIS SITE, FITCH MAY HAVE PROVIDED ANOTHER PERMISSIBLE SERVICE TO THE RATED ENTITY OR ITS RELATED THIRD 
PARTIES, DETAILS OF THIS SERVICE FOR RATINGS FOR WHICH THE LEAD ANALYST IS BASED IN AN EU-REGISTERED ENTITY CAN BE 
FOUND ON THE ENTnV SUMMARY PAGE FOR THIS ISSUER ON THE FITCH WEBSITE, 

Endorsement Policy • Fitch's approach to ratings endorsement so thai ratings produced outside the EU may be used by regulated entities wilhin the 
EU for regulatory purposes, pursuant to the terms of the EU Regulation with respect to credit rating agencies, can be found on the EU Regulatory 
Disclosures {https://www,fitch ratings, com/regulatory) page. The endorsement status of all Intematlonal ratings is provided within the entity summary 
page for each rated entity and in the transaction detail pages for all structured finance transactions on the Fitch website. TTiese disclosures are updated 
on a daily basis. 

https://vAvw.fitchratings.com/site/fitch-home/pressrelease?id=998849 3/24/2016 
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RENEWAL APPLICATION OF DOMINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOMINION RETAIL") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO 

AS A RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit C-7 "Credit Report" 

Attached is a Dun & Bradstreet report for Dominion Retail, Inc., dated June 17, 2016. 



DNBi Risk Management 
Printed By: Lisa Lewis 
Date PrintediJune 17, 2016 

Live Report: DOMINION RETAIL, INC. 
D-U-N-S® Number: 12-991-1954 

Trade Names: (SUBSIDIARY OF DOMINION RESOURCES, INC., RICHMOND. VA) 
Endorsement/Billing Reference: lisa.lewis@dom.com 

D&B Address 

Address 120 Tredegar St 500 
Richmond, VA, US -
23219 

Phone 804 819-2000 

Fax 

Location Type Single (Subsidiary) 

Web www.dom.com 

. Endorsement: llsa.lewis@dom.com 

Company Summary 

Score Bar 

Currency: Shown in USD unless otherwise indicated 

PAYDEX® 

Commercial Credit Score 
Percentile 

Financial Stress Score National 
Percentile 

D&B Viability Rating 

i Bankruptcy Found 

D&B Rating 

Paying on lime. 

Low lo Moderate Risk of severe payment 
delinquency. 

^ Moderate Risk of severe financial stress. 

View More Details 

IR indicates 10 or more Employees, Credit 
appraisal of 3 is fair 

Detailed Trade ft isk Insic|ht^ 

Days Beyond Terms Past 3 Months 
There is not sufficient reporting trading activity to generate 3 
months Days Beyond Terms {a minimum ol 3 trade experiences 
from at least 2 suppliers 

Recent Derogatory Events 

Placed for Collection 

Bad Debt Written Off 

Apr-16 

-

-

May-16 

-

-

Jun-16 

-

-

Total Amount Current & Past Due -13 Month Trend 

mailto:lisa.lewis@dom.com
http://www.dom.com
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Detailed Tr??!?. ,^)sk Insight" p&B Viabil i ty Ratint) 

Days Beyond Terms Past 3 Months 
There is not sufficient reporting trading activity to generate 3 
months Days Beyond Terms (a minimum of 3 trade experiences 
from at least 2 suppliers 

Recent Derogatory Events 

Placed for Collection 

Bad Debt Written Off 

Apr-16 

-

-

May-16 

-

-

Jun-16 

-

-

Total Amount Current S Past Due -13 Month Trend 

2 0 -

jun 15 Aug 15 Oct 15 Dec 15 Feb 16 Apr 16 Jun 16 
Jul 15 Sep 15 Nov 15 Jan 16 Mar 16 May 16 Jut 

*• Current 1-SO Days • • 51-t-Days 

PAYDEX® Trend Chart 
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% This Company • Industry Benchmark 

• Viabil i ty Score 

High Risk 

Portfol io Compar ison 

Low Risk 

High Risk 

; Data Depth Indicator 

Low Risk 

G 
Descriptive 

A 
Predictive 

Company Profile 

Subsidiary 

D&B Compa nypyery lew 

This is a single (subsidiary) location 

Chief Executive 

Year Started 

Employees 

Financing 

SIC 

Line of business 

NAICS 

History Status 

ROBERT M. BLUE, 
PRES 

1997 

60 

SECURED 

8742 

Management 
consulting services 

541611 

CLEAR 

F|rsMain Company News, 

/ f \ This Company is not currently tracked for Company 
^-^^ News 

Powered by FirstRain 

Public Fijings 

The following data includes both open and closed filings 
found in D&B's database on this company. 

Record Type 

Bankruptcies 

Judgments 

Liens 

Suits 

UCCs 

Number of 
Records 

0 

0 

0 

1 

9 

Most Recent 
; Filing Date 

-

-

-

03/18/14 

04/27/16 

The public record items contained herein may have been 



Corporate Linkage 

Parent 

paid, terminated, vacated or released prior to todays date. 

Corporate.Linkage ,,_, _ 

This is a Single (Subsidiary) location 

DOMINION RETAIL, INC. 
Richmond, VA 
D-U-N-S® Number 12-991-1954 

The Parent Company is 
DOMINION RESOURCES, INC. 
Virginia 
D-U-N-S® Number 10-171-5035 

Company 

DOMINION RESOURCES, INC. 

Ci ty, State 

RICHMOND, Virginia 

D-U-N-S® NUMBER 

10-171-5035 

Affiliates (Domestic) 

Company 

CONSOLIDATED NATURAL GAS COMPANY 

THE EAST OHIO GAS COMPANY 

HOPE GAS, INC. 

VIRGINIA ELECTRIC AND POWER COMPANY 

DOMINION NUCLEAR CONNECTICUT, INC. 

DOMINION TRANSMISSION CORP 

VIRGINIA POWER ENERGY MARKETING, INC, 

DOMINION FIBER VENTURES, LLC 

DOMINION TRANSMISSION, INC. 

DOMINION RESOURCES SERVICES, INC. 

DOMINION CAPITAL, INC 

DOMINION ENERGY NEW ENGLAND INC 

DOMINION ENERGY, INC. 

CNG RESEARCH COMPANY 

DOMINION COVE POINT LNG, LP 

CNG POWER SERVICES CORP 

STONEHOUSE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LLC 

UAE MECKLENBURG COGENERATION LP 

DRESDEN ENERGY LLC 

ELWOOD ENERGY LLC 

DOMINION GENERATION CORPORATION 

DOMINION GAS TRANSMISSION INC 

DOMINION ENERGY KEWAUNEE, INC. 

DOMINION TECHNICAL SOLUTIONS, INC. 

VIRGINIA POWER NUCLEAR SERVICES COMPANY 

Ci ty , State 

RICHMOND, Virginia 

MAPLE HEIGHTS, Ohio 

CLARKSBURG , West Virginia 

RICHMOND, Virginia 

RICHMOND , Virginia 

WAYNESBURG, Pennsylvania 

RICHMOND . Virginia 

RICHMOND, Virginia 

RICHMOND, Virginia 

RICHMOND, Virginia 

RICHMOND^irginia 

BOSTON , Massachusetts 

RICHMOND, Virginia 

PtTTSBURGH, Pennsylvania 

LUSBY. Maryland 

PITTSBURGH , Pennsylvania 

TOANO, Virginia 

CLARKSVILLE, Virginia 

DRESDEN , Ohio 

ELWOOD. Illinois 

RICHMOND, Virginia 

GENESEE, Pennsylvania 

KEWAUNEE, Wisconsin 

RICHMOND, Virginia 

RICHMOND, Virginia 

D-U-N-S® NUMBER 

00-698-2383 

00-790-0475 

00-794-4721 

00-794-1446 

01-561-4543 ^ 

02-619-4261 

02-704-6650 

04-092-7746 

11-602-5180 

13-589-6798 

14-986-1437 

19-015-6955 

19-657-9130 

79-283-2891 

87-683-3500 

88-437-3606 

96-436-1638 

83-877-3083 

36-178-0997 

07-264-0738 

80-864-9904 

96-078-3793 

96-186-6758 

78-424-6089 

07-838-0419 

This list is limited to the first 25 affiliates. 
For the complete list, Please logon to DNBi and view the Dynamic Family Tree Information. 



Affiliates (jnternational) 

Company 

Dominion Energy Central America Inc. 

City, Country 

Belice. BELIZE 

D-U-N-S® NUMBER 

85-002-2211 

Predic t ive Scores 

Currency: Shown in USD unless othenwise indicated 

P&B yiabUity Rating Summar^^ 

The D&B Viability Rating uses D&B's proprietary analytics to compare the most predictive business risk indicators and deliver a highly reliable 
assessment of the probability that a company will go out of business, become dormant/inactive, or file for bankruptcy/insolvency within the next 12 
months. The D&B Viability Rating is made up of 4 components: 

Viabi l i ty Score 
9 

High Risk Low Risk 

Compared to All US Businesses within the D&B Database: 

• Level of Risk: Low Risk 

• Businesses ranked 3 have a probability of becoming no longer viable: 3 % 

• Percentage of businesses ranked 3:15 % 

• Across ali US businesses, the average probability of becoming no longer viable: 14 % 

Portfolio Comparison 
9 

High Risk 

Compared to All US Businesses within the same MODEL SEGMENT: 

• Model Segment: Established Trade Payments 

• Level of Risk: Low Risk 

• Businesses ranked 2 within this model segment have a probability of becoming no longer viable: 3 % 

• Percentage cf businesses ranked 2 with this model segment: 16 % 

• Within this model segment, the average probability of becoming no longer viable: 5 % 

Data Depth Indicator 
G 

Descriptive 

Data Depth Indicator: 

1 
Lov/ Risk 

A 
Predictive 

V Rich Finmographics 

••/ Extensive Commercial Trading Activity 

V Basic Financial Attributes 

Greater data depth can Increase the precision ofthe D&B Viability Rating assessment. 

Company Profile Subsidiary 



Credit Capacity Summary 

This credit rating was assigned because of D&B's assessment of the company's creditworthiness. For more information, see the 

D&B Rating Key 

D&B Rating : 1R3 Numberof employees: IR indicates 10 or more employees 
Composite credit appraisal: 3 is fair 

The 1R and 2R ratings categories reflect company size based on the total number of employees for the business. They are assigned to business files 
that do not contain a current financial statement In 1R and 2R Platings, the 2, 3. or 4 creditworthiness indicator is based on analysis by D&B of public 
filings, trade payments, business age and other important factors. 2 is the highest Composite Credit Appraisal a company not supplying D&B with current 
financial intormation can receive. 

Below is an overview of the companys 
rating history since 02-01-2008 Number of Employees Total: 60 

D&B Rating 

1R3 

Date Applied 

02-28-2008 

02-01-2008 

Payment Activity: 

Average High Credit: 

Highest Credit: 

Total Highest Credit: 

(based on 6 experiences) 

133 

250 

700 

D&B Credit Limit Recommendation 

Conservative credit Limit 

Aggressive credit Limit: 

Risk category for this business 

40,000 

90,000 

LOW High Moderate Low 

The Credit Limit Recommendation {CLR) is intended to sen/e as a directional benchmari< for all businesses within the same line of business or industry, 
and is not calculated based on any individual business. Thus, the CLR is intended to help guide the credit limit decision, and must be balanced in 
combination with other elements which reflect the individual company's size, financial strength, payment history, and credit worthiness, all of which can be 
derived from D&B reports. 

Risk is assessed using D&Bs scoring methodology and is one factor used to create the recommended limits. See Help tor details. 

Financial Stress Class Sii 

The Financial Stress Score predicts the likelihood of a firm ceasing business without paying all creditors in full, or reorganization or obtaining relief from 
creditors under state/federal law over the next 12 months. Scores were calculated using a statistically valid model derived irom D&Bs extensive data files. 

The Financial Stress Class of 3 for this company shovre that firms with this class had a feilure rate of 0.24% (24 per 10,000), which is lower than the 
average of businesses in D & B's database 

Financial Stress Class : 

5 4 3 * 

^ ^ } 

High Low 

Moderately lower than average risk of severe financial stress, such as a banknjptcy or going out of business with unpaid debt, over the next 12 months. 



Probability of Failure: 

Risk of Severe Financial Stress for Businesses with this Class: 0.24 % (24 per 10.000) 
Financial Stress National Percentile : 67 (Highest Risk: 1; Lowest Risk: 100) 
Financial Stress Score: 1507 (Highest Risk: 1,001; Lowest Risk: 1.875) 
Average Risk of Severe Financial Stress for Businesses in D&B database: 0.48% (48 per 10,000) 

The Financial Stress Class of th is business is based on the following factors: 

UCC Filings reported. 
Unstable Paydex over last 12 months. 
Composite credit appraisal is rated fair. 
Business does not own facilities. 
Higher risk legal structure. 
Insufficient number of payment experiences. 

Financial Stress Percentile Trend: 

lOQ — 

S O -

SO— 

70 — 

60 — 

50 — 

40 — 

30 — 

20 — 

l o ­

urs— 
7.aS 6,aS 9/15 lO/lS 11/15 12/lS 1/16 2/16 

# This Company 

3/16 S/I6 6/16 

Notes: 

The Financial Stress Class indicates that this finn shares some of the same business and financial characteristics of other companies with this 
classification. It does not mean the firni will necessarily experience financial stress. 
The Probability of Failure shows the percentage of finns in a given Class that discontinued operations over the past year with loss to creditors. The 
Probabillly of Failure - National Average represents the national failure rate and Is provided for comparative purposes. 
The Financial Stress National Percentile reflects the relative ranking of a company among all scorable companies in D&Bs file. 
The Financial Stress Score offers a more precise measure of the level of risk than the Class and Percentile, it is especially helpful to customers 
using a scorecard approach to determining overall business peri'ormance. 
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This Business Region 
SOUTH ATLANTIC 

Industry 
BUSINESS, LEGAL 

AND ENGINEERING 
SERVICES 

Employee Range 
20-99 

Years in Business 
11-25 

Nomis 

This Business 

Region: SOUTH ATLANTIC 

Industry: BUSINESS, LEGAL AND ENGINEERING 
SERVICES 

Employee range: 20-99 

Years in Business: 11-25 

National 
% 

67 

48 

52 

66 

68 

This Business has a Financial Stress Percentile that shows: 

Lower risk than other companies in the same region. 

Lower risk than other companies in the same industry. 

Lowrer risk than other companies in the same employee size range. 

Higher risk than other companies with a comparable number of years in business. 

Credit Score Summary, 

The Commercial Credit Score (CCS) predicts the likelihood of a business paying its bills in a severely delinquent manner (91 days or more past terms). 

The Credit Score class of 2 for this company shows that 2.5% of fimns with this class paid one or more bills severely delinquent, which is lower than the 
average of businesses in D & B's database. 

Credit Score Class: 

5 4 3 

High 

Incidence of Delinquent Payment 

Low 

Among Companies with this Classification: 2.50 % 
Average compared to businesses in D&Bs database: 10.20 % 
Credit Score Percentile : 80 (Highest Risk: 1; Lowest Risk: 100) 
Credit Score: 550 (Highest Risk: 101; Lowest Risk:670) 

The Credit Score Class of this business is based on the following factors: 

Higher risk industry based on delinquency rates for this industry 
Evidence of open suits 

Credit Score Class Percentile Trend: 
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Notes: 

The Commercial Credit Score Risk Class indkates that this firm shares some of the same business and financial characteristics of other companies 
with this classification. It does not mean the firm will necessarily experience severe delinquency. 
The Incidence of Delinquent Payment is the percentage of companies with this classification that were reported 91 days past due or more by 
creditors. The calculation of this value is based on D&B's trade payment database. 
The Commercial Credit Score percentile reflects the relative ranking of a firm among all scorable companies in D&B's file. 
The Commercial Credit Score offers a more precise measure of the level of risk than the Risk Class and Percentile, It is especially helpful to 
customers using a scorecard approach to detemiining overall business perfomiance. 

100— 
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UN — u 
This Business Region 

SOUTH ATLANTIC 
Industry 

BUSINESS, LEGAL 
AND ENGINEERING 

SERVICES 

Employee Range 
20-99 

Years in Business 
n-25 

Norms 

This Business 

Region: SOUTH ATLANTIC 

Employee range; 20-99 

Years in Business: 11-25 

National % 

80 

43 

Industry: BUSINESS, LEGALAND ENGINEERING . „ 
SERVICES 

80 

66 

This business has a Credit Score Percentile that shows: 

Lower risk than other companies in the same region. 

Lower risk than other companies in the same Industry. 

Similar risk compared to other companies in the same employee size range. 

Lower risk than other companies wilh a comparable number of years in business. 



Tracie Payments 

D&B PAYDEX® 

Currency: Shown in USD unless otheoA'ise indicated 

The D&B PAYDEX is a unique, weighted indicator of payment performance based on payment experiences as reported to D&B by trade references. 
Learn more about the D&B PAYDEX 

Timeliness of historical payments for this company. 

Current PAYDEX is 80 Equal to generally within temis ( Pays more pnsmptly than the average for its industry of 2 days beyond terms) 

Industry Median Is 79 Equal to 2 days beyond terms 

Payment Trend currently is 4 # Unchanged, compared to payments three months ago 

Indications of slowness can be the result of dispute over merchandise, skipped invoices etc. Accounts are sometimes placed for collection even though 
the existence or amount of the debt is disputed. 

Total payment Experiences In D&Bs File (HQ) 

Payments Within Terms (not weighted) 

Trade Experiences with Slow or Negative Payments(%) 

Total Placed For Collection 

High Credit Average 

Largest High Credit 

Highest Now Owing 

Highest Past Due 

6 

100 % 

0.00% 

0 

133 

250 

0 

0 

D&B PAYDEX 

80 
100 

I I I 
120 Da>ra 30 Days 

3wJ gow P«=rnpt 

iK High risk of late payment (Average 30 to 120 days beyond temis) 

M Medium risk of late payment (Average 30 days or less beyond tenns) 

M Low risk of late payment (Average prompt to 30+ days sooner) 
When weighted by amount, payments to suppliers average generally within terms 

3-Month D&B PAYDEX 

120 Days 
Elcw 

30 Days 

80 
100 

Prompt 

••; High risk of late payment (Average 30 to 120 days beyond terms) 

i i i Medium risk of late payment (Average 30 days or less beyond terms) 

M. Low risk of late payment (Average prompt to 30+ days sooner) 
Based on payments collected over last 3 months. 

When weighted by amount, payments to suppliers average within terms 

P & B P A Y D E X ® C o m p a r i s o n 



Current Year 

PAYDEX® of this Business compared to the Primary Industry from each of the last four quarters. The Primary Industry is Management consulting 
services , based on SIC code 8742 , 

Shows the trend in D&B PAYDEX scoring over the past 12 months. 

1 
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This Company .^ Industry Upper 2 5 ^ f Industry Lower 25% i ^ Industry Median 

This Business 

Industry Quartiles 

Upper 

Median 

Lower 

7/15 

79 

8/15 

49 

9/15 

47 

80 

79 

71 

10/15 

47 

11/15 

47 

12/15 

47 

80 

79 

71 

1/16 2/16 3/16 4/16 5/16 6/16 

80 80 80 80 80 80 

80 

79 

70 

Current PAYDEX for this Business is 80 , or equal to generally within tenns 
The 12-month high is 80 . or equal to GENERALLY WITHIN terms 
The 12-month low is 47 , or equal to 39 DAYS BEYOND temis 

Previous Year 

Shows PAYDEX of this Business compared to the Primary Industry from each of the last four quarters. The Primary Industry is Management consulting 
services , based on SIC code 8742 . 
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This Company c. Industry Upper 255S T Industry Lower 2 5 ^ U Industry Median 

Previous Year 

This Business 

Industry Quartites 

Upper 

Median 

Lower 

06/14 
Q2'14 

UN 

78 

70 

09/14 
Q3'14 

78 

80 

78 

70 

12/14 
Q4'14 

79 

78 

71 

03/15 

oris 
79 

80 

79 

71 



Based on payments collected over the last 4 quarters. 

Current PAYDEX for this Business is 80 , or equal to generally within terms 
The present industry median Score is 79 , or equal to 2 days beyond terms 
Industry upper quartile represents the peri'ormance of the payers in the 75th percentile 
Industry lower quartile represents the performance of the payers in the 25th percentile 

Payrnent Habits 

For all payment experiences within a given amount of credit extended, shows the percent that this Business paid within terms. Provides number of 
experiences to calculate the percentage, and the total credit value of the credit extended. 

$ Credit Extended 

Over 100,000 

50,000-100,000 

15,000-49,999 

5,000-14,999 

1,000-4,999 

M Payment Experiences 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

3 

Total Amount 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

400 

% of Payments Within Terms 

0% i 

0% ' 

0%' 

0% ' 

0%! 

0% 501^ 1C0% 
Based on payments collected over last 24 months. 

All Payment experiences refiect how bills are paid in relation to the terms granted. In some instances, payment beyond terms can be the result of disputes 
over merchandise, skipped invoices etc. 

Payment^SummaTy, .__. ._ 

There are 6 payment experience(s) in D&Bs file for the most recent 24 months, with 3 experience(s) reported during the last three month period. 

The highest Now Owes on file is 0 , The highest Past Due on file is 0 

Below is an overview of the companys currency-weighted payments, segmented by its suppliers primary industries: 

Top Industries 

Federal savings bank 

Lithographic printing 

Nonclassified 

Other payment categories 

Cash experiences 

Payment record unknown 

Unfavorable comments 

Placed for collections 

Total in D&B's file 

Total 
Revd 

m 
Totai 
Amts 

250 

100 

50 

300 

0 

0 

N/A 

700 

Largest High 
Credit 
Within 
Terms 
(%) 

250 

100 

50 

100 

0 

0 

0 

250 

Days Slow 
<31 31-60 61-90 90> 
(%) (%) 

100 

100 

100 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

Accounts are sometimes placed for collection even though the existence or amount of the debt is disputed. 

Indications of slowness can be result of dispute over merchandise, skipped invoices etc. 

petaijed payment histpiY for t̂ ^̂  



Date 
Reported 
(mm/yy) 

05/16 

04/16 

09/15 

07/15 

Paying Record 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

(004) Cash own option 

(005) 

(006) 

High Credit 

250 

50 

100 

100 

100 

100 

Now Owes 

0 

0 

Past Due 
Setting 
Terms 

0 

0 

Cash 
account 

Cash 
account 

Cash 
account 

Last Sate 
Within 
(month) 

2-3 mos 

6-12 mos 

1 mo 

1 mo 

1 mo 

1 mo 

Payments Detail Key: • 30 or more days Iseyond terms 

Payment experiences reflect how bills are paid in relation to the terms granted. In some instances payment beyond terms can be the result of disputes 
over merchandise, skipped invoices, etc. Each experience shown is from a separate supplier. Updated trade experiences replace those previously 
reported. 

Publ ic F i l ings 

Currency: Shown in USD unless othenwise indicated 

Surnmary 

The following data includes both open and closed filings found in D&B's database on this company. 

Record Type # of Records Most Recent Filing Date 

Bankruptcy Proceedings 0 

Judgments 0 

Liens 0 

Suits 1 03/18/14 

UCCs 9 04/27/16 

The following Public Filing data is for information purposes only and is not the official record. Certified copies can only be obtained from the official source. 

Suits 

Status 

BOOKJPAGE 

Plaintiff 

Defendant 

Where filed 

Pending 

CV/14-823762 

NATIONWIDE INSURANCE COMPANY 

DOMINION RETAIL INC DBA DOMINION EAST OHIO ENERGY AND OTHERS 

CUYAHOGA COUNTY COMMON PLEAS COURT, CLEVELAND, OH 

Date status attained 03/18/14 

Date filed 03/18/14 

Latest Info Received 04/18/14 

If it is indicated that there are defendants other than the report subject, the lawsuit may be an action to clear title to property and does not necessarily 
Imply 3 claim for money against the subject. 

y c c Filings 

Collateral 

Type 

Sec. Party 

Accounts receivable including proceeds and products - Acoount(s) including proceeds and products 

Original 

NATIONAL GRID, SYRACUSE, NY NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION, SYRACUSE, NY 



Debtor 

Filing No. 

Filed With 

DOMINION RETAIL, INC. and OTHERS 

2015 4555214 

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, DOVER, DE 

Date Filed 

Latest Info Received 

2015-10-07 

11/13/15 

Collateral 

Type 

Sec. Party 

Debtor 

Filing No, 

Filed With 

Accounts receivable including proceeds and products - Account(s) including proceeds and products • 
General intangibles(s) including proceeds and products 

Original 

MASSACHUSETTS ELECTRIC COMPANY, WALTHAM, MA N/WTUCKET ELECTRIC COtJlPANY, 
WALTHAM, MA NATIONAL GRID, WALTHAM, MA 

DOMINION RETAIL, INC. 

2014 2234086 

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, DOVER, DE 

Date Filed 

Latest Info Received 

2014-06-09 

07/22/14 

Collateral 

Type 

Sec. Party 

Debtor 

Filing No. 

Filed With 

/Accounts receivable including proceeds and products 

Original 

NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION, SYRACUSE, NY 

DOMINION RETAIL. INC. 

6190049 7 

SECRETARY OF STATBUCC DIVISION, DOVER, DE 

Date Filed 

Latest Info Received 

2006-06-05 

07/06/06 

Collateral 

Type 

Sec. Party 

Debtor 

Filing No. 

Filed With 

Inventory and proceeds - Computer equipment and proceeds 

Original 

COLUMBIA GAS OF OHIO, INC., COLUMBUS, OH 

DOMINION RETAIL, INC 

2009 3326268 

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, DOVER, DE 

Date Filed 

Latest Info Received 

2009-10-15 

11/17/09 

Collateral 

Type 

Sec. Party 

Debtor 

Filing No. 

Filed With 

Account(s) and proceeds 

Original 

AMEREN SERVICES COMPANY, ST. LOUIS. MO 

DOMINION RETAIL, INC. 

20114731678 

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, DOVER. DE 

Date Filed 

Latest Info Received 

2011-12-09 

01/06/12 

13 



Collateral 

Type 

Sec. Party 

Debtor 

Filing No. 

Filed With 

Accounl(s) and proceeds 

Original 

AMEREN SERVICES COMPANY, AS DESIGNATED AGENT, ST. LOUIS, MO 

DOMINION RETAIL, INC. 

2011 4731520 

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, DOVER, DE 

Date Filed 

Latest Info Received 

2011-12-09 

01/06/12 

Collateral 

Type 

Sec. Party 

Debtor 

Filing No, 

Piled With 

RIGHT, TITLE AND INTEREST and proceeds 

Original 

COLUMBIA GAS OF VIRGINIA, INC., COLUMBUS, OH 

DOMINION RETAIL, INC. 

2016 2506952 

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, DOVER. DE 

Date Filed 

Latest Info Received 

2016-04-27 

05/27/16 

Collateral 

Type 

Sec. Party 

Debtor 

Filing No. 

Filed With 

RIGHT. TITLE AND INTEREST and proceeds 

Original 

COLUMBIA GAS OF OHIO. INC., COLUMBUS, OH 

DOMINION RETAIL. INC. 

2016 2506945 

SECRETARY OF STATBUCC DIVISION. DOVER. DE 

Date Filed 

Latest Info Received 

2016-04-27 

05/27/16 

Type 

Sec. Party 

Debtor 

Filing No. 

Filed With 

Original 

COLUMBIA GAS OF PENNSYLVANIA. INC., COLUMBUS. OH 

DOMINION RETAIL, INC. 

2011 3837161 

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, DOVER, DE 

Date Filed 

Latest Info Received 

2011-10-05 

11/17/11 

Government Actiyily. 

Activity summary 

Borrower (Dir/Guar) 

Administrative Debt 

Contractor 

Grantee 

NO 

NO 

YES 

NO 

14 



Party excluded from federal program(s} NO 

Possible candidate for socio-economic program consideration 

Labour Surplus Area 

Small Business 

8(A) firni 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

The details provided in the Government Activity section are as reported to Dun & Bradstreet by the federal government and other sounses. 

History & Operations 

Company Overview 

Currency: Shown in USD unless otherwise indicated 

Company Name: 

Doing Business A s : 

Street Address: 

Phone: 

URL: 

History 

Present management control 

DOMINION RETAIL. INC. 

(SUBSIDIARY OF DOMINION RESOURCES. INC., RICHMOND. VA) 

120 Tredegar St 500 
Richmond , VA 23219 

804 819-2000 

http;//www.dom .com 

Is clear 

19 years 

History 

The following information was reported: 06/08/2016 

Officer(s): 

DIRECTOR{S): 

ROBERT M. BLUE. PRES 
PHILIP E RiLEY. PRES 

THE OFFICER(S) 

The Delaware Secretary of State's business registrations file showed that Dominion Retail, Inc, was registered as a Corporation on January 30,1997, 

Business started 1997. 100% of capital stock is owned by Philip E Riley, Pres, 

ROBERT M, BLUE. Antecedents not available. 

PHILIP E RILEY, Antecedents not available. 

pReratipns 

06/08/2016 

Description: 

Employees: 

Facilities: 

Subsldiaryof DOMINION RESOURCES, INC., RICHMOND, VA. 

Operates as a prcivider of management consulting services, specializing in retail trade (100%). 

Terms are undetermined. Sells to undetermined. 

Nonseasonal, 

60 which includes of{icer(s), 

occupies premises in building. 

SIC & NAICS 

15 

http://www.dom


SIC: 

Based on infomiation in our file, D&B has assigned this company an extended 8-digit SIC, D&B's use of S-digit SlCs enables us to be more specific about 
a company's operations than if we use the standanj 4-digit code. 

The 4-digit SIC numbers link to the description on the Occupational Safety & Health Administration (OSHA) Web site. Links open in a new brciwser 
window, 

8742 0408 Retail trade consultant 

NAICS: 

541611 Administrative Management and General Management Consulting Sen/ices 

Financials 

Company Financials: p&B 

Additional Financial Data 

D & B has updated this report using available sources. 

Request Fitiancial, Statements 

Request Financial Statements | 

Requested finandals are provided byDOMINION RETAIL, INC.and are not DUNSRight certified. 

Key B u s i n e s s Ra t ios 

D & B has been unable to obtain sufficient financial information from this company to calculate business ratios. Our check of additional outside sources also 
found no information available on its finandal performance. 

To help you in this instance, ratios for other firms in the same industry are provided below to support your analysis of this business. 

Based on this Number of Establishments 

Industry Norms Based On 15 Establishments 

Profitability 

Return on Sales % 

Return on Net Worth % 

Short-Term Solvency 

Cument Ratio 

Quick Ratio 

Efficiency 

Assets to Sales % 

Sales / Net Working Capital 

Utilization 

Total Liabilities / Net Worth (%) 

15 

This Business 

UN 

UN 

UN 

UN 

UN 

UN 

Industry Median 

3.4 

9.9 

2.3 

2,2 

61,0 

4,4 

Industry Quartile 

UN 

UN 

UN 

UN 

UN 

UN 

UN 36.0 UN 

UN = Unavailable 
16 



Detailed Trade RislTlnsight™~ ' ~ ^ "~" - - ^ — "" " " " 

Detailed Trade Risk Insight provides detailed updatesonover 1.5 billion commercial trade experiences collected fnam more than 260 million unique 
supplier/purchaser relatonships. 

Days Beyond Terms - Past 3 & 12 Months 

T h e r e i s n o t s u f f i c i e n t r e p o r t e d t r a d i n g a c t i v i t y t o 
g e n e r a t e 3 m o n t h D a y s B e y o n d T e r m s ( a m i n i m u m 
o f 3 t r a d e e x p e r i e n c e s f r o m a t l e a s t 2 c o m p a n i e s ) . 

T h e r e i s n o t s u f f i c i e n t r e p o r t e d t r a d i n g a c t i v i t y t o 
g e n e r a t e 1 2 m o n t h D a y s B e y o n d T e r m s ( a 
m i n i m u m o f 3 t r a d e e x p e r i e n c e s f r o m a t l e a s t 2 
c o m p a n i e s ) . 

Derogatory Events Last 13 Months f rom Jun 15 to Jun 16 

No Derogatory trade Event has been reported on this company for the past 13 Months 

Total Amount Current and Past Due - 13 month trend f rom Jun 15 to Jun 16 

3 f l - | 

2 0 -

1 0 -

^ffigsa . " - l l ftBim 

1 I I 
Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Oct 15 Nov 15 Dec 15 JanI6 Feb 16 Mar 16 Apr 16 May 16 Jun 16 

Current ^ m 1-30 days 31-60 days •<•» 61-90 days ^ 91-l-days 

Status 

Total 

Current 

Jun -15 

21 

21 

Jul-15 Au^-15 

21 21 

21 21 

Sep 15 

21 

21 

Oct-15 

0 

-. 

Nov-15 

0 

-

Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 

0' 0 0 0 0 

- - -

May-16 Jun-16 

0, 0 

-, 

1-30 Days 
past Due 

31-60 Days 
Past Due 

61-90 Days 
past Due 

90+ Days 
Past Due 
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RENEWAL APPLICATION OF DOMINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOMINION RETAIL") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO 

AS A RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit C-8 "Bankruptcy Information" 

No such filings have been made by Dominion Retail or any of its corporate parents or affiliates 
since applicant last filed for certification. 



RENEWAL APPLICATION OF DOMINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOMINION RETAIL") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO AS A 

RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit C-9 "Merger Information" 

Not applicable. 



RENEWAL APPLICATION OF DOMINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOMINION RETAIL") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO 

AS A RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit C-10 "Corporate Structure" 

Dominion Retail is a Delaware corporation and was incorporated on January 30,1997, at which 
time it bore the legal name of CNG Retail Services Corporation. CNG Retail Services 
Corporation changed its legal name to Dominion Retail, hic. effective September 5, 2000. 
Dominion Retail is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dominion Resources, Inc. 

The attached pages present the organizational layout ofthe Dominion Resources system. 
Dominion Retail is affiliated with two natural gas utility companies: The East Ohio Gas 
Company (Ohio) and Hope Gas, Inc. (West Virginia). Dominion Retail is affiliated with two 
electric utility companies: Virginia Electric & Power Company (Virginia) and North Carolina 
Power (North Carolina). 



Dominion Resources, Inc. 1st Tier Companies 

i t CNG Coal Companv # Dominion MLP Holding Companv III. Inc. 

# Diamond Beehive Corp. H Dominion Natrium Holdings. Inc. 

# Dominion ACP Holding. Inc. # Dominion Oklahoma Texas Exploration & Production. Inc. 

# Dominion Alternative Energv Holdings. Inc. i» Dominion Payroll Companv. Inc 

*• Dominion Capital. Inc. 4i Dominion Privatization Holdings, Inc. 

g^ Dominion Carolina Gas Services, Inc. # Dominion Products and Services, Inc. 

# Dominion Cove Point, Inc. # Dominion Projects Services. Inc. 

# Dominion Energv. Inc. 4 Dominion Resources Capital Trust Hi 

# Dominion Field Services, Inc. i i Dominion Resources Services. Inc. 

# Dominion Gas Holdings. LLC % Dominion Retail, Inc. 

# Dominion Greenbrier. Inc. # Dominion South Holdings I. Inc. 

# Dominion High Voltage Holdings, Inc. n Dominion Technical Solutions, Inc. 

# Dominion Investments, Inc. ii§i Hope Gas. Inc. 

# Dominion Keystone Pipeline Holdings, Inc. gi Virginia Electric and Power Company 

# Dominion MLP Holding Companv II. Inc. # Virginia Power Energy Marketing. Inc. 

3/14/2016 



RENEWAL APPLICATION OF DOMINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOMINION RETAIL") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO AS A 

RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit D-1 "Operations" 

Dominion Retail possesses extensive operational experience and expertise in delivering natural 
gas to all classes of customers under utility retail choice programs. As noted, it has been 
engaged in the direct access sale of natural gas since 1997. 

As it has done in Ohio since 1997, Dominion Retail will continue to acquire natural gas for 
resale to retail customers in Ohio from various wholesale sources. Dominion Retail will 
continue to arrange for transmission and delivery, as well as applicable ancillary services, in 
connection with its procurement of natural gas for its Ohio customers. 



RENEWAL APPLICATION OF DOMINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOMINION RETAIL") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO AS A 

RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit D-2 "Operations Expertise" 

Dominion Retail's operations staff has years of experience in delivering natural gas supplies to 
retail choice customers in Ohio, Pennsylvania, New Jersey and Virginia. At present. Applicant 
serves a total ofapproximately 328,000 natural gas customers in those states. In Pennsylvania, 
Applicant serves customers on the following utility systems: The Peoples Natural Gas 
Company, Equitable Gas Company and Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania. In Ohio, Applicant 
provides natural gas service to retail customers on The East Ohio Gas Company and Columbia 
Gas of Ohio systems. In New Jersey, Applicant serves customers in the New Jersey Natural Gas 
and PSEG service territories, and in Virginia Applicant provides natural gas service to customers 
in the Virginia Natural Gas service territory. 

Dominion Retail also currently holds licenses to sell natural gas in the states of Connecticut, 
Illinois, Maryland, and the District of Columbia, although it is not currently marketing natural 
gas in those states. 



RENEWAL APPLICATION OF DOMINION RETAIL, INC. ("DOMINION RETAIL") 
FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO AS A 

RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER 

Exhibit D-3 "Key Technical Personnel" 

Applicant has operated as a competitive natural gas supplier since 1997 in the states of Ohio and 
Pennsylvania. In that nineteen year period, Applicant has gained considerable experience and 
expertise in the competitive retail supply business. The majority of Applicant's personnel -
including managerial staff- who will be engaged in providing service to Ohio customers have in 
excess of sixteen years of natural gas experience in the marketing and operational areas and in 
excess of fourteen years working with GISB rules and practices. Applicant's managerial staff 
has been engaged in enterprise financial and administrative responsibilities for over eighteen 
years and possesses in excess of eighteen years of natural gas sales experience. Information on 
selected management personnel follows: 

Diane Leopold, President - Dominion Energv 
DianeXepoId(a),dom.com: 804-771-6990 

Diane Leopold is President - Dominion Energy, which serves more than 1.3 million customer 
accounts in Ohio and West Virginia and also includes Dominion Gas Transmission and Cove 
Point LNG. Dominion Transmission, Inc. operates one ofthe largest undergroimd storage 
complexes in the world. 

Since joining the company in 1995, she has held various operational, project management, 
commercial and financial management roles in several business units. Recent positions include 
Senior Vice President - Business Development & Generation Construction and Senior Vice 
President - Dominion Transmission. She assumed her current post in January 2014. 

Thomas J. Butler, Director, Retail 
Thomas.J.Butler(a),Dom.com: 412-237-4765 

Mr. Butler has over 28 years of total experience in the natural gas business, including the 
following positions: 

Director Retail: 3 Months 
Director, Retail Gas Sales & Supply, Dominion Retail: 1 Year 
Director, Business Development, Dominion Retail; 12 years 
Director, Marketing, Dominion Retail: 2 years 
Manager, Customer Acquisition, Dominion Retail: 3 years 
Manager, Marketing, Dominion Retail: 2 years 
Director, Industrial Sales, Dominion Peoples: 3 years 
Manager, Residential Marketing, Dominion Peoples: 2 years 
Manager, Electric Utility Sales, Dominion Peoples: 2 years 
Assistant to Vice President, Marketing, Dominion Peoples: 1 year 



Prior to joining Dominion in 1988, Mr. Butler worked as an engineer and tujn supervisor for 
LTV Steel Corporation. Mr. Butler possesses broad and extensive experience in the marketing, 
operations and gas sales areas, including GISB, by virtue of his 28 years of service in both the 
regulated and imregulated sides ofthe business. He also has had direct accountability for 
enterprise fmancial and administrative performance for more than eighteen years. 

P. Ian Arbogast Director. Retail Gas Sales & Supply. Dominion Retail, Inc. 
P.Ian.Argobast(a),dom.com; 804-787-6134 

Director, Retail Gas Sales & Supply, Dominion Retail, Inc.: 3 Months 
Director, Retail Gas Operations, Dominion Retail, Inc.: 8 Months 
Director, Financial Analysis - AES: 1 V2 years 
Manager, Retail Finance, Dominion Resources, Inc.: 6 years 
Manager, Retail Accounting, Dominion Resources, Inc.: 2 years 
Lead Operational Accounting Analyst, Dominion Resources, Inc.: 2 Vi years 

Prior to joining Dominion in 2004, Mr. Arbogast worked as a fmancial analyst for McKesson 
Pharmaceuticals. Mr. Arbogast has extensive experience in excess often years working with 
operations and other financial and administrative aspects ofthe natural gas business. 


